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- COMMERCIAL ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, the City of Chicago (“City”) is a home rule unit of local government
pursuant to Article V1, Section 6 (a) of the 1970 constitution of the State of lllinois and, as such, may
exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs; and

WHEREAS, the properties at 9801-9803 S. Western Avenue, and 9805-9807 S.
Western Avenue are owned by ARHC BCCHIIL0O7, LLC a Delaware limited liability company -
(“Developer”); and

WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to use the portion of the alley to be vacated
herein to unify and expand their parking lot; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chicago, after due investigation and
consideration, has determined that the nature and extent of the public use and the public interest to
be subserved is such as to warrant the vacation of that portion of public alley, described in the
following ordinance; now therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO:

SECTION 1 THE NORTH 16.00 FEET OF LOT 38 IN BLOCK 2, DEDICATED FOR
PUBLIC ALLEY BY DOCUMENT NUMBER T3519190, IN JOHN JENSEN AND SONS' BEVERLY
HIGHLANDS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH 9.25 ACRES OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 7,
TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH, RANGE 14, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 29, 1925, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER T258206, IN
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS CONTAINING 1,773 SQUARE FEET or 0.041 ACRES, MORE OR
LESS as shaded and legally described by the words "HEREBY VACATED” on the plat hereto
attached as Exhibit A, which plat for greater clarity, is hereby made a part of this ordinance, be and
the same is hereby vacated and closed, inasmuch as the same is no longer required for public use
and the public interest will be subserved by such vacation.

SECTION 2. The vacation herein provided for is made upon the express condition that
within 180 days after the passage of this ordinance, the Developer shall pay or cause to be paid to
the City of Chicago as compensation for the benefits which will accrue to the owner of the property
abutting said part of public alley hereby vacated the sum
dollars ($ )
which sum in the judgment of this body will be equal to such benefits.

SECTION 3. The vacation herein provided for are made upon the express condition that
within one hundred eighty (180) days after the passage of this ordinance, the Developer shall file or
cause to be filed for recordation with the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, lllinois a
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certified copy of this ordinance, together with the associated full sized plat as approved by the Acting
Superintendent of Maps and Plats.

SECTION 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its

passage. The vacation shall take effect and be in force from and after recording of the approved
plat.

Vacation Approved:

o
D )
M Rl ——
Rébekah Scheinfeld

Commissioner of Transportation

Approved as to Form and Legality

@«n% b

Lisa Misher
Chief Assistant Corporation Counsel

IMamt— - O

Honorable Matthe 'Shea
Alderman, 19th Ward
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EXHIBIT "A”

PLAT OF VACATION
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SURVEY NOTES: COOK CO.

THE "HEREBY VACATED" PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON 1S PUBLIC PROPERTY AND IS NOT DELINEATED
WITH A ZONING CLASSIFICATION, THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF ADJOINING PROPERTY SHOWN
HEREON (S B1-1 (BUSINESS1-1) PER THE CITY OF CHICAGO, DEPARTMENT OF ZONING WEBSITE .

Note R. & M. denotes Record and Measured distances respectively. The bearing basis is assumed. All bearings

on this survey are measured.

Distances are marked in feet and decimal parts thereof. Compare all points BEFORE building by same and at
once report any differences BEFORE damage is done.

For easements, building lines and other restrictions not shown on survey plat refer to your absiract, deed,
contract, title policy and local building line regulations.

NO dimensions shall be assumed by scale measurement upon this plat.
Monumentation or witness points were not set at the clients request.

Unless otherwise noted hereon the Bearing Basis, Elevation Datum and Coordinate Datum if used is ASSUMED.

COPYRIGHT GREMLEY & BIEDERMANN, INC. 2012 "All Rights Reserved”

State of lllinois)
County of Cook)ss

We, GREMLEY & BIEDERMANN, INC. hereby certify that we have
surveyed the above described property and that the plat hereon drawn
is a correct representation of said survey corrected to a temy erature of

By: ‘ZW

Professional lllinois Land Surveyor No. 3584
My license expires November 30, 2018 N
This professional service conforms to the current | lino
standards for a boundary survey.

S minimum




UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
OR
a TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 1-10989

VENTAS, INC.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 61-1055020
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
353 N. Clark Street, Suite 3300, Chicago, Illinois 60654
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(877) 483-6827
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class . Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock, par value $0.25 per share New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a well-known scasoncd issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Sccuritics Act. Yes B No OO
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes[O No [

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes[X] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to submit and
post such files). Yes® No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation §-K is not containcd herein, and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment of this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. Sce definitions of “large
accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer B3 Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company O
(Do not check 1f a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes 3 No &

The aggregate market value of shares of the Registrant’s common stock held by non-affibates of the Registrant on June 30, 2015, based on a closing price of the common stock
of $62.09 as reported on the New York Stock Exchange, was $20 4 billion. For purposes of the foregoing calculation only, all directors, executive officers and 10% beneficial owners
of the Registrant have been deemed affiliates.

As of February 10, 2016, 336,070,352 shares of the Registrant’s common stock were outstanding.
. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant’s definiuve Proxy Statement for the Annual Mecting of Stockholders to be held on May 10, 2016 arc incorporated by reference into Part 111,
Ttems 10 through 14 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

Unless otherwise indicated or except where the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us” and “our” and other sinular terms in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K refer to Ventas, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forwatd-looking statements within thé meaning of Section 27A of the Sccurities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™). All statements regarding our or our
tenants’, operators’, borrowers’ or managers’ expected future financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, funds from operations, dividends and
dividend plans, financing opportunities and plans, capital markets transactions, business strategy, budgets, projected costs, operating metrics, capital
cxpenditures, competitive positions, acquisitions, investment opportunitics, dispositions, merger integration, growth opportunitics, cxpected lease income,
continued qualification as a real estate investment trust (“REIT™), plans and objectives of management for future operations, and statcments that include
words such as “anticipate,” “1f,” “believe,” “plan,” “cstimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “could,” “should,” “will,” and other similar cxpressions are
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain, and actual results may differ from our expcctations. We do not
undertake a duty to update these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date on which they are made.

» ”

Our actual future results and trends may differ materially from expectations depending on a varicty of factors discussed in our filings with the Sccurities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). These factors include without limitation:

+  The ability and willingness of our tenants, operators, borrowers, managers and other third partics to satisfy their obligations under their
respective contractual arrangements with us, including, in some cases, their obligations to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and
against various claims, litigation and liabilities;

- Theability of our tenants, operators, borrowers and managers to maintain the financial strength and liquidity necessary to satisfy their
respective obligations and liabilities to third parties, including without limitation obligations under their existing credit facilities and other
indebtedness;

+  Oursuccess in implementing our business strategy and our ability to identify, underwrite, finance, consummate and integrate diversifying
acquisitions and investments;

+  Macrocconomic conditions such as a disruption of or lack of access to the capital markets, changes in the debt rating on U.S. govemment
sccurities, default or delay in payment by the United States of its obligations, and changes in the fcderal or state budgets resulting in the
reduction or nonpayment of Medicare or Medicaid reimbursement rates;

*  The nature and extent of future competition, including new construction in the markets in which our seniors housing communities and medical
office buildings (“MOBs”) are located;

*  The extent of future or pending healthcare reform and regulation, including cost containment measures and changes in reimbursement policies,
procedures and rates; .

« Increases in our borrowing costs as a result of changes in intcrest rates and other factors;

*  The ability of our tenants, operators and managers, as applicable, to comply with laws, rules and regulations in the operation of our propertics,
to deliver high-quality services, to attract and retain qualified personnel and to attract residents and patients;

= Changesin general economic conditions or economic conditions in the markets in which we may, from time to time, compete, and the effect of
those changes on our revenues, eamnings and funding sources;

< Oour ability to pay down, refinance, restructure or extend our indebtedness as it becomes due;
+  Ourability and willingness to maintain our qualification as a REIT in light of economic, market, lcgal, tax and other considerations;
«  Final detemmination of our taxable n'ct income for the ycar ended December 31,2015 and for the year ending December 31, 2016;

+  The ability and willingness of our tenants to renew their leases with us upon expiration of the leases, our ability to reposition our properties on
the same or better terms in the event of nonrencwal or in the event we exercise our right to replace an existing tenant, and obligations, including
indemnification obligations, we may incur in connection with the replacement of an existing tenant;




- Risks associated with our senior living operating portfolio, such as factors that can cause volatility in our operating income and eamings
generated by those properties, including without limitation national and regional economic conditions, development of new, competing
propertics, costs of food, matcrials, energy, labor and services, employee benefit costs, insurance costs and professional and general liability
claims, and the timely delivery of accurate property-level financial results for those properties;

»  Changes in exchange rates for any foreign currency in which we may, from time to time, conduct business;

*  Year-over-year changes in the Consumer Price Index (“CPI™) or the UK Retail Price Index and the effect of those changes on the rent escalators
contained in our leases and on our camings;

«  Our ability and the ability of our tenants, operatbrs, borrowers and managers to obtain and maintain adequate property, liability and other
insurance from reputable, financially stable providers;

»  The impact of increased operating costs and uninsured professional liability claims on our liquidity, financial condition and results of
operations or that of our tenants, opcrators, borrowers and managers and our ability and the ability of our tenants, operators, bomrowers and
managers to accurately estimate the magnitude of those claims;

- Risks associated with our MOB portfolio and operations, including our ability to successfully design, develop and manage MOBs and to retain
key personnel;

»  The ability of the hospitals on or near whose campuses our MOBs are located and their affiliated health systems to remain competitive and
financially viable and to attract physicians and physician groups;

«  Risks associated with our investments in joint ventures and unconsolidated entities, including our lack of sole decision-making authority and
our reliance on our joint venture partners’ financial condition;

\

»  The impact of market or issuer events on the liquidity or value of our investments in marketable secunties;

«  Consolidation in the seniors housing and healthcare industries resulting in 2 change of control of, or a competitor’s investment in, one or more
of our tenants, operators, borrowers or managers or significant changes in the senior management of our tenants, opcrators, borrowers or
managers;

«  The impact of litigation or any financial, accounting, legal or regulatory issucs that may affect us or our tenants, operators, borrowers or
managers; and

«  Changes in accounting principles, or their application or interpretation, and our ability to make cstimates and the assumptions underlying the
estimates, which could have an effcct on our camings.

Many of these factors, some of which are described in greater detail under “Risk Factors” in Part ], Jtem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are
beyond our contro! and the control of our management.

Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred, Atria, Sunrise and Ardent Informatien

Each of Brookdale Scnior Living Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Brookdale Senior Living”) and Kindred Healthcare, Inc. (together with its
subsidiaries, “Kindred™) is subject to the reporting requirements of the SEC and is required to file with the SEC annual reports containing audited financial
information and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial information. The information related to Brookdale Senior Living and Kindred contained or
referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been derived from SEC filings made by Brookdale Senior Living or Kindred, as the case may be, or other
publicly available information or was provided to us by Brookdale Senior Living or Kindred, and we have not verified this information through an
independent investigation or otherwise. We have no reason to belicve that this information is inaccurate in any material respect, but we cannot assurc you of
its accuracy. We are providing this data for informational purposes only, and you are encouraged to obtain Brookdale Senior Living’s and Kindred's publicly
available filings, which can be found on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

Atria Scnior Living, Inc. (“Atria™), Sunrisc Senior Living, LLC (together with its subsidiaries, “Sunrise”) and Ardent Health Partners, LLC (together with
its subsidiaries, “Ardent™) are not currently subject to the reporting requirements of the SEC. The information related to Atria, Sunrise and Ardent contained
or referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been derived from publicly available information or was provided to us by Atria, Sunrise or Ardent, as
the case may be, and we have not verified this information through an independent investigation or otherwise. We have no reason to believe that this
information is inaccurate in any material respect, but we cannot assure you of its accuracy.
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PART 1
ITEM 1. Business

BUSINESS

Overview

Ventas, Inc., an S&P 500 company, is a REIT with a highly diversified portfolio of seniors housing and healthcare properties located throughout the
United States, Canada and the United Kingdom. As of December 31,2015, we owned approximately 1 300 properties (including properties classified as held
for sale), consisting of seniors housing communities, MOBs, skilled nursing facilities, specialty hospitals and general acute care hospitals, and we had four
propertics under development. Our company was oniginally founded in 1983 and is currently headquartered in Chicago, lllinois.

We primarily invest in seniors housing and healthcare propertics through acquisitions and lease our properties to unaffiliated tenants or operate them
through independent third-party managers. As of December 31, 2015, we leased a total of 607 properties (excluding MOBs and properties classified as held
for sale) to various healthcare operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute-net™ lcascs that obligate the tenants to pay all property-related expenses,
including maintcnance, utilitics, repairs, taxes, insurance and capital expenditures, and we engaged independent operators, such as Atria and Sunrise, to
manage a total of 304 of our seniors housing communities (excluding properties classified as held for sale) for us pursuant to long-term management
agreements. Our three largest tenants, Brookdale, Kindred and Ardent leased from us 140 propertics (excluding six propertics included in investments in
unconsolidated real estatc entities), 76 properties and ten properties, respectively, as of December 31, 2015.

Through our Lillibridge Healthcare Services, Inc. (“Lillibridge™) subsidiary and our ownership interest in PMB Real Estate Services LLC (“PMBRES™),
we also provide MOB management, leasing, marketing, facility development and advisory services to highly rated hospitals and health systems throughout
the United States. In addition, from time to time, we make sccured and non-mortgage loans and other investments relating to seniors housing and healthcare
operators or properties.

We operate through three reportable business segments: triple-net leased properties, senior living operations and MOB operations. Sec our
Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes, including “Note 2—Accounting Policies,” included in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Business Strategy

We aim to enhance sharcholder value by delivering consistent, superior total retumns through a strategy of: (1) gencrating reliable and growing cash
flows; (2) maintaining a balanced, diversified portfolio of high-quality assets; and (3) preserving our financial strength, flexibility and liquidity.

Generating Reliable and Growing Cash Flows

Gencrating reliable and growing cash flows from our seniors housing and hcalthcare assets enables us to pay regular cash dividends to stockholders and
creates opportunities to increase shareholder value through profitable investments. The combination of steady contractual growth from our long-term triple-
net leases, steady, reliable cash flows from our loan investments and stable cash flows from our MOBs with the higher growth potential inherent in our seniors
housing operating communities drives our ability to gencrate sustainable, growing cash flows that are resilient to economic downtums.

Maintaining a Balanced, Diversified Portfolio

We believe that maintaining a balanced portfolio of high-quality assets diversified by investment type, geographic location, asset type,
tenant/operator, revenue source and operating model diminishes the risk that any single factor or cvent could materially harm our business. Portfolio
diversification also enhances the reliability of our cash flows by reducing our exposure to any individual tenant, operator or manager and making us less
susceptible to single-state regulatory or reimbursement changes, regional climate events and local economic downturns.

Preserving Our Financial Strength, Flexibility and Liquidity

A strong, flexible balance sheet and excellent liquidity position us favorably to capitalize on strategic growth opportunities in the seniors housing and
healthcare industrics through acquisitions, investments, and development and redevelopment projects. We maintain our financial strength to pursue
profitable investment opportunities by actively managing our leverage, improving our cost of capital and preserving our access to multiple sources of
liquidity, including unsecured bank debt, mortgage financings and public debt and cquity markets.




2015 Highlights and Other Recent Developments

Investments and Dispositions

In January 2015, we acquired American Realty Capital Healthcare Trust, Inc. ("HCT") in a stock and cash transaction, which added 152 properties to
our portfolio, 20 of which were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off. We funded the transaction through the issuance of approximately 28.4
million shares of our common stock at $78.00 per share and 1.1 million limited partnership units.

On August 4,2015, we completed our acquisition of Ardent Medical Services, Inc. (*AHS™) and simultaneous separation and sale of the Ardent
hospital operating company (Ardent Health Partners, LLC, together with its subsidiaries, “Ardent™) to a consortium composed of an entity controlied
by Equity Group Investments, Ardent’s management team and us. As of the acquisition date, we recorded the estimated fair value of our investment
in owncd hospital and otherreal estatc of approximately $1.3 billion. At closing, we paid $26.3 million for our 9.9% intcrest in Ardent, which
represents our estimate of the acquisition date fair value of this interest. Upon closing, we entered into a long-term triple-nct master lease with Ardent
to operate hospitals and other real estate we acquired.

During 2015, we madc other investments totaling approximately $611.7 million, including the acquisition of eleven triple-net leased propertics;
eleven MOBs; and 12 skilled nursing facilitics (all of which were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off (as defincd below)).

During 2015, we sold 39 triple-nct leased properties and 26 MOBs for aggregate consideration of $541.0 million, including a $6.0 million lease
termination fee.

During 2015, we received aggregate proceeds of $173.8 million in final repayment of loans receivable and sales of bonds we held, and recognized
gains aggregating $7.7 million.

Capital and Dividends

In January 2015, we issued and sold 3,750,202 shares of common stock under our previous “at-the-market” (“ATM") equity offering program for
aggregate net proceeds of $285.4 million, after sales agent commissions of $4.4 million. Through the remainder 0f2015 and in the first quarter of
2016 we have issued and sold a total of 5,084,302 shares of our common stock under our ATM equity offering program for aggregate net proceeds of
$297.0 million, after sales agent commissions of $4.5 million.

In January 2015, we issued and sold $1.1 billion of senior notes with a weighted average interest rate below 3.7% and a weighted average maturity
of 15 years. The issuances were composed of $900 million aggregate principal amount of USD seniornotes and CAD notes of 250 million.

In July 2015, we issued and sold $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.125% scnior notes due 2026 at a public offering price equal to
99.218% of par, for total proceeds of $496.1 million before the underwriting discount and expenses.

In August 2015, we completed a $900 million five year term loan having a variable intcrest rate of LIBOR plus 1.0 basis points (the “Ardent Term
Loan”). The term loan matures in 2020.

In 2015, we repaid $305.0 million of our unsecured term loan due 2019 and recognized a loss on cxtinguishment of debt of $1.6 million
representing a write-off of the then unamortized deferred financing fees. Also, in May 2015, we repaid in full, at par, $234.4 million aggregate

principal amount then outstanding of our 6% senior notes duc 2015.

In 2015, we paid an annual cash dividend on our common stock of $3.04 per share. On August 17,2015, we also distributed a stock dividend of one

. Care Capital Properties, Inc. (“CCP!) common share for.every four shares of Ventas common stock held as of the distribution record date of August

10,2015. The stock dividend was valued at $8.51 per Ventas share based on the opening price of CCP stock on its first day of regular-way trading
on the New York Stock Exchange.

In February 2016, we entered into a $200 million notional amount interest rate swap with a maturity of August 3, 2020 that cffectively converts
LIBOR-based floating rate debt to fixed rate debt, setting LIBOR at 1.132% through lhe maturity date of the swap. The maturity date of the Ardent
Term Loan is also August 3, 2020.




Spin-Off

» In August 2015, we completed the spin ofl of most of our post-acute/skilled nursing facihity portfolio into an independent, publicly traded REIT
named Care Capital Properties, Inc. (the “CCP Spin-Off"). The historical results of operations of the CCP properties as well as the related assets and
liabilities are presented as discontinued operations for all periods presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Portfolio Summary

The following table summarizes our consolidated portfolio of properties and other investments (excluding properties included in discontinued
operations during 2015 and properties classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2015) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015:

Real Estate Property Investments Revenues (3)
#of Real Estate Percent of ' Real Estate
Units/ Property - Total Real Estate Property
Hof Sq. Ft./Beds Investment, at Property Investment Per Percent of
Asset Type Properties(1) 2) Cost Investments Unit/Bed/Sq. Ft. Revenue Total Revenues

{Dollars in thousands)

MOBS (4) 361 20,062,590 591,646
$killed miirsing ficilities 53 - 6279 - 5 73820
Specialty hospitals 46 3,857 135.9 143,776
‘Géneral achte are hospitals . - 2. 2034 CLMad o - 59229

1,240 . 3,157,124

Total propertics
Seaired foa &

Interest and other income

Reveaues related fo'asscts classificd a8 held S s . o
forsale -, - ) . P _ .. C e T T669

Total $ 24,659,566 100.0% s 3,286,398 100.0%

(1) Asof December 31, 2015, we also owned 20 seniors housing communities, 14 skilled nursing facilities and scven MOBs through investments in unconsolidated entities, and we
classified one seniors housing community, two skilled nursing facilities, and cight MOBs as held for sale. Our consolidated properties were located in 46 states, the District of
Columbia, scven Canadian provinces and the United Kingdom and, excluding MOBs, were operated or managed by 68 unaffiliated healthcare operating companies, including the
following publicly traded companics or their subsidiaries: Brookdale (141 properties) (excluding six properties owned through investments in unconsolidated entities); Kindred
(76 properties); 21st Century Oncology Holdings, Inc (12 properties); Capital Senior Living Corporation (12 properties); Spire Healthcare plc (threc properties); and HealthSouth
Corp. (four propertics).

(2) Seniors housing communities arc measured in units; MOBs arc measured by square footage; and skilled nursing facilities, specialty hospitals and general acute carc hospitals arc
measured by bed count. -

(3) Total revenues exclude revenues attributable to properties included in discontinued operations during 2015,

(4) Asof December 31, 2015, we leased 67 of our consolidated MOBs pursuant to triple-net leases, Lillibridge or PMBRES managed 282 of our consolidated MOBs and 30 of our
consolidated MOBs were managed by cleven unaffiliated managers. Through Lilibridge and PMBRES, we also provided management and leasing services for 79 MOBs owned
by third parties as of December 31, 2015,

Seniors Housing and Healthcare Properties

As of December 31,2015, we owned a total of 1,281 seniors housing and healthcare properties (excluding propertics classified as held for salc),
including through our investments in unconsolidated entities, as follows:

Consolidated Consolidated Unconsolidated
(100% interest) (<100% interest) (5-25% interest) Total
Seniors housing communities - 153 o as s Co 20 ' 788
MOBs 327 34 7 368
Skilled nursing facilities 53 S G : 14 67
Specialty hospitals 45 1 —_ 46
General acute care hospitals 12 O : — 12
Total 1,190 50 41 1,281




Seniors Housing Commuanities

Our scniors housing communities include independent and assisted living communitics, continuing care retirement communities and communities
providing care for individuals with Alzheimer’s discasc and other forms of dementia or memory loss. These communitics offer studio, one bedroom and two
bedroom residential units on a month-to-month basis primarily to elderly individuals requiring various levels of assistance. Basic services for residents of
these communities include housckeeping, meals in a central dining area and group activities organized by the staff with input from the residents. More
extensive care and personal supervision, at additional fees, are also available for such needs as cating, batbing, grooming, transportation, limited therapeutic
programs and medication administration, which allow residents centain convenicnces and cnable them to live as independently as possible according to their
abilities. These services are often met by home health providers, closc coordination with the resident’s physician and skilled nursing facilities. Charges for
room, board and services are gencrally paid from private sources.

Medical Office Buildings

Typically, our MOBs are multi-tenant properties leased to several unrelated medical practices, although in many cases they may be associated with a
large single specialty or multi-specialty group. Tenants include physicians, dentists, psychologists, therapists and other healthcare providers, who require
space devoted to paticnt examination and treatment, diagnostic imaging, outpatient surgery and other outpatient services. MOBs are similar to commercial
office buildings, although they require greater plumbing, electrical and mechanical systems to accommodate physicians’ requircments such as sinks in every
room, brighter lights and specialized medical cquipment. As of December 31,2015, we owned or managed for third parties approximately 24 million square
feet of MOBs that arc predominantly located on or near an acute carc hospital campus (“on campus™).

Skilled Nursing Facilities

Our skilled nursing facilities provide rchabilitative, restorative, skilled nursing and medical treatment for patients and residents who do not requirc the
high technology, care-intensive, high cost sctting of an acute care or rehabilitation hospital. Treatment programs include physical, occupational, speech,
respiratory and other therapies, including sub-acute clinical protocols such as wound care and intravenous drug treatment. Charges for these services are
generally paid from a combination of govemment reimburscment and private sources.

Long-Term Acute Care Hospitals

38.of our propertigs are operated as long-term acute care hospitals (‘LTACs™). LTACs have a Medicarc average length of stay of greater than 25 days
and serve medically complex, chronically ill patients who require a high level of monitoring and specialized care, but whose conditions do not necessitate
the continued services of an intensive care unit. The operators of these LTACs have the capability to treat patients who suffer from multiple systemic failures
or conditions such as neurological disorders, head injuries, brain stem and spinal cord trauma, cerebral vascular accidents, chemical brain injuries, central
nervous system disorders, developmental anomalies and cardiopulmonary disorders. Chronic patients often depend on technology for continued life support,
such as mechanical ventilators, total parenteral nutrition, respiration or cardiac monitors and dialysis machines, and, due to their severc medical conditions,
gencrally arc not clinically appropriate for admission to a nursing facility or rehabilitation hospital. All of our LTACs are freestanding facilities, and we do
not own any “hospitals within hospitals.” We also own two LTACs focused on providing children’s care and five rehabilitation LTACs devoted to the
rehabilitation of patients with various neurological, musculoskeletal, orthopedic and other medical conditions following stabilization of their acute medical
issues.

General Acute Care Hospitals

12 of our propertics are operated as general acute care hospitals. General acute care hospitals provide medical and surgical services, including inpatient
care, intensive care, cardiac care, diagnostic services and emergency services. These hospitals also provide outpatient services such as outpatient surgery,
laboratory, radiology, respiratory therapy, cardiology and physical therapy. In the United States, these hospitals receive payments for patient services from
the federal govenment primarily under the Medicare program, state govemments under their respective Medicaid or similar programs, health maintenance
organizations, preferred provider organizations, other private insurers, and directly from patients.

Geographic Diversification of Properties

United Kingdom, with propertics in only one state (California) accounting for more than 10% of our total revenues and total net operating income (“NOL”
which is defined as total revenues, excluding interest and other




income, less property-level operating expenses and medical office building services costs), in cach case excluding amounts in discontinucd opcrations, for
the year ended December 31,2015,

The following table shows our rental income and resident fees and services by geographic location for the year ended December 31, 2015:

Rental Income and
Resident Fees and Percent of Total
Services (1) Revenues (1)

{Dollars in thousands)

California

‘

P 4

199,428

New York. . .

Texas

Illinois : - .

Florida 150,572 4.6

Pcnti_'sly_l.vii_a_}\iin; S

Georgia

A.rlzona

New Jersey
Colorado - NTET
Other (36 statcs and the District of Columbia)
ToWIUL - et d 2 TEE
Canada (7 provinces)
United kingdom '

Total

3,157,301 96.1% (2)

(1) This presentation excludes revenues from propertics included in discontinued operations during 2015.

(2) The remainder of our total revenues is medical office building and other services revenue, income from loans and investments and interest and other income.




The following table shows our NOI by geographic location for the year ended December 31, 2015:

Percent of Total
NOI (1) NOI (1)

{Dollars in thousands)

Florida

Rrenied i

REERRFARE T

Canada (7 provinces)
i:ﬂ‘.’;- R
Unj

u~.

S 1,875,141 99.9%

(1) This presentation excludes NOI from properties included in disconunued operations during 2015.

See “Note 20—Segment Information™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
for more information regarding the geographic diversification of our portfolio.

Certificates of Need

Our skilled nursing facilities and hospitals arc generally subject to federal, state and local licensure statutes and statutes that may require regulatory
approval, in the form ofa certificate of need (“CON™) issucd by a governmental agency with jurisdiction over healthcare facilitics, prior to the expansion of
existing facilities, construction of new facilities, addition of beds, acquisition of major equipment or introduction of new services. CON requirements, which
are not uniform throughout the United States, may restrict our or our operators’ ability to cxpand our properties in certain circumstances.

The following table shows the percentages of our rental income (excluding amounts in discontinued operations) for the year ended December 31, 2015
that are derived by skilled nursing facilitics and hospitals in states with and without CON requirements:

" Skilled
Nursing
Facilities Hospitals Total
St wilf OGN rquivérnents S Lo TSRS T
States without CON requirements
" Total *

Loans and Investments
As of December 31,2015, we had $895.0 million of nct loans receivable and investments relating to seniors housing and healthcare operators or
properties. Our loans receivable and investments providc us with interest income, principal amortization and transaction fees and are typically secured by
mortgage liens or leasehold mortgages on the underlying properties and corporate or personal guarantees by affiliates of the borrowing entity. In some cases,
the loans are secured by a pledge of ownership interests in the entity or catities that own the related seniors housing or healthcare properties. From time to
time, we also make investments in mezzanine loans, which arc subordinated to senior sccured loans held by other investors that




‘encumber the same real estate. Sce “Note 6—Loans Receivable and Investiments™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 11
Item 8 ofthis Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Development and Redevelopment Projects

We are panty to certain agrcements that obligate us to develop seniors housing or healthcare properties funded through capital that we and, in certain
circumstances, our joint venture partners provide. As of December 31, 2015, we had four properties under development pursuant to these agreements. In
addition, from time to time, we cngage in redevelopment projects with respect to our existing seniors housing communities to maximize the value, increase
NOI, maintain a market-competitive position, achieve property stabilization or change the primary use of the property.

Segment Information

\We cvaluate our operating performance and aflocate resources based on three reportable business segments: triple-net leased propertics; senior living
opcrations; and MOB operations. Non-segment assets, classificd as “all other,” consist primarily of corporate assets, including cash, restricted cash, deferred
financing costs, loans receivable and investments, and miscellancous accounts receivable. For further information regarding our business segments, sce
“Note 20—Segment Information” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I1, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Significant Tenants, Operators and Managers

The following table summarizes certain information regarding our tenant, operator and manager concentration as of and for the year ended
December 31,2015 (excluding properties classified as held for sale as of December 31,2015 and propertics owned through investments in unconsolidated
catitics):

Number of

Properties
Leased or Percent of Total Real Percent of Total
Managed Estate Investments (1) Revenues Percent of NOI
Seniofliving operdtions ' _ Th304 T TTUBgAY T T sy R P % 72
140 85 : 53 9.3

Kindred -
Ardent

Brookdale Senior Living (2)

i
53

(1) Based on gross book valuc.

(2) Excludes six propertics owned through investments in unconsolidated entitics and one property managed by Brookdale Senior Living pursuant to a long-term management
agreement.

Triple-Net Leased Pmpenies.

Each of our leases with Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent is a triple-net lease that obligates the tenant to pay all property-related expenses,
including maintenance, utilitics, repairs, taxes, insurance and capital expenditures, and to comply with the terms of the mortgage financing documents, if
any, affecting the properties. In addition, each of our Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent lcases has a corporate guaranty. Brookdale Senior Living
and Kindred have multiple leases with us and those lcases contain cross-default provisions tied to each other, as well as bundled lease renewals (as described

in more detail below).

The propertics we lease to Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent accounted for a significant portion of our triple-net Icased properties segment
revenues and NOI for the year ended December 31, 2015. If any of Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent becomes unable or unwilling to satisfy its
obligations to us or to renew its leases with us upon expiration of the terms thereof, our financial condition and results of operations could decline and our
ability to service our indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders could be impaired. We cannot assure you that Brookdale Senior Living,
Kindred and Ardent will have sufficient assets, income and access to financing to enable them to satisfy their respective obligations to us, and any failure,
inability or unwillingness by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations or liquidity and our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations and to make distributions to our stockholders, as required
for us to continue to qualify as a REIT (a “Material Adverse Effect”). We also cannot assurc you that Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent will elect
to renew their respective leases with us upon expiration of the leases or that we will be able to reposition any non-renewed properties on a timely basis or on
the same or better economic terms, if at all. See “Risks Factors—Risks Arising from Our Business—Our leases with Brookdale Sentor Living, Kindred and
Ardent account for a significant portion of our triple-nct leased properties segment revenues and operating income; Any failure, inability orunwillingness by
Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent




to satisfy its obligations under our agreements could have a Material Adverse Effect on us™ included in Item 1 A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Brookdale Senior Living Leases

As of December 31,2015, we leased 140 properties (excluding six propertics owned through investments in unconsolidated entitics and one property
managed by Brookdale Senior Living pursuant to a long-tenn management agreement) to Brookdale Senior Living pursuant to multiple lease agreements.

Pursuant to our lease agreements, Brookdale Senior Living is obligated to pay base rent, which escalates annually at a specified rate over the prior
period base rent. As of December 31, 2015, the aggregate 2016 contractual cash rent due to us from Brookdale Senior Living, excluding variable interest that
Brookdale Scnior Living is obligated to pay as additional rent based on certzin floating rate mortgage debt, was approximately $170.9 million, and the
cument aggregate contractual base rent (computed 1n accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (*“GAAP”)) due to us from Brookdale
Senior Living, excluding the variable intercst, was approximatcly $160.6 million (in cach case, excluding six properties owned through investments in
unconsolidated entities as of Decermber 31, 2015). Sec “Note 3—Concentration of Credit Risk™ and *Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies” of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Kindred Leases

As of December 31,2015, we leased 76 propertics to Kindred pursnant to multiple lease agreements. The properties lcased pursuant to our Kindred
master leases are grouped into bundles, or “renewal groups,” with each renewal group containing a varying number of geographically diversified properties.
All properties within a single renewal group have the same current lease term of five to 12 years, and each renewal group is currently subject to one or more
successive five-year rencwal terms at Kindred's option, provided certain conditions arc satisfied. Kindred’s renewal option is “all or nothing” with respect to
the propertics contained in ecach rencwal group.

The aggregate annual rent we receive under each Kindred master lease is referred to as “base rent.” Base rent escalates annually at a specified rate over
the prior period basc rent, contingent, in the case of the remaining three original Kindred master lcases, upon the satisfaction of specified facility revenue
parameters. The annual rent escalator under two Kindred master Icases is 2.7%, and the annual rent escalator under the other two Kindred master leases is
based on year-over-year changes in CPI, subject to floors and caps.

In December 2014, we entered into favorable agreements with Kindred to transition or sell the operations of nine licensed healthcare assets, make
modifications to the master leases governing 34 leased assets, and reimburse us for certain deferred capital expenditures at skilled nursing facilities
previously transferred to new operators. In January 2015, Kindred paid us $37 million in connection with these agreements, which is being amortized over
the remaining leasc term for the 34 assets govemed by the modified master leases. We own or have the rights to all licenses and CONSs at the nine properties to
be transitioned or sold, and Kindred has extensive and detailed obligations to cooperate and ensure an orderly transition of the properties to another operator.
As of December 31, 2015, four of the nine propertics have been sold and three of the nine properties were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off.

Ardent Lease

As of December 31,2015, we leased ten hospital campuses to Ardent pursuant to a single, triple-net master leasc agreement. Pursuant to our master leasc
agreement, Ardent is obligated to pay basc rent, which cscalates annually by the lesser of four times the increase in the consumier price index for the relevant
period and 2.5%. The initial term of the master lease expires on August 31, 2035 and Ardent has one ten-year renewal option.

As of December31;2015, the aggregate 2016 contractual cash rent-due to us from Ardent, was approximately $105.0 miltion, and the current aggregate
contractual base rent (computed in accordance with GAAP) duc to us from Ardent was approximately $105.0 million.

Senior Living Operations

As of December 31, 2015, Atria and Sunnse, collectively, provided comprehensive property management and accounting services with respect to 268
seniors housing communities included in our senior living operations reportable business segment, for which we pay annual management fees pursuant to
long-term management agreements. Most of our management agreements with Atria have initial terms expiring either July 31, 2024 or December 31, 2027,
with.successive automaticten-year renewal-periods. The management fecs payable to Atra-under most of the-Atria management agreements range-from 4.5%
to 5% of revenues gencrated by the applicable propertics, and Atria can cam up to an additional 1% of revenues based on the achievement of specified
performance targets. Most of our management agreements with Sunrise have terms ranging from 25




1o 30 years (which commenced as early as 2004 and as recently as 2012) The management fees payable to Sunrise under the Sunrise management agrecinents
range from 5% to 7% of rcvenues generated by the applicable propertics. See “Note 3—Concentration of Credit Risk” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Part If, Item § of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Because Atnia and Sunnise manage our properties in exchange for the receipt of a management fee from us, we are not directly exposed to the credit risk
of our managers in the same manner or to the same extent as our triple-net tenants, However, we rely on our managers’ personnel, expertise, technical
resources and information systems, propnetary information, good faith and judgment to manage our senior living opcrations cfficiently and effectively. We
also rely on our managers to sct appropriate resident fecs and to otherwisc operate our seniors housing communities in compliance with the terms of our
management agreements and all applicable laws and regulations. Although we have various nghts as the property owner under our management agreements,
including various rights to terminate and exercisc remedies under those agreements as provided thercin, Atria’s or Sunrise’s failure, inability or unwillingness
to satisfy its respective obligations under those agreements, to cfficiently and cffectively manage our properties or to provide timely and accurate accounting
information with respcct thereto could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. In addition, significant changes in Atria's or Sunrise’s senior management or
equity ownership or any adverse developments in their businesses and affairs or financial condition could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. Sec “Risk
Factors—Risks Arising from Our Business—The properties managed by Atna and Sunrise account for a significant portion of our revenues and operating
income; Adverse developments in Atria’s or Sunrise’s business and affairs or financial condition could have a Material Adverse Effect on us” and “—We
have rights to terminate our management agreements with Atria and Sunrise in wholc or with respect to specific properties under certain circumstances, and
we may be unable to replace Atria or Sunrise if our management agreements are terminated or not renewed” included in Jtem 1 A of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Our 34% ownership interest in Atria entitles us to certain rights and minority protections, as well as the right to appoint two of five members on the
Atria board of dircctors.

Competition

We generally compcte for investments in seniors housing and healthcare assets with publicly traded, private and non-listed healthcare REITS, real
estate partnerships, healthcare providers, healthcare lenders and other investors, including developers, banks, insurance companies, pension funds,
govemment-sponsored entities and private equity firms, some of whom may have greater financial resources and lower costs of capital than we do. Increased
competition challenges our ability to identify and successfully capitalize on opportunitics that meet our objectives, which is affected by, among other
factors, the availability of suitable acquisition or investment targets, our ability to negotiate acceptable transaction terms and our access to and cost of
-capita). See “Risk Factors—Risks Asising from Our Business—Our pursuit of investments in and acquisitions of, or our development or redevelopment of,
seniors housing and healthcare assets may be unsuccessful or fail to meet our expectations” included in Item 1 A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and
“Note 10—Borrowing Amangements™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 of'this Annual Report on Form 16-K.

Our tenants, operators and managers also compcte on a local and regional basis with other healthcare operating companies that provide comparable
services. Seniors housing community, skilled nursing facility and hospital operators compete to attract and retain residents and patients to our propertics
based on scope and quality of care, reputation and financial condition, price, location and physical appearance of the properties, services offered, qualified
personnel, physician referrals and family preferences. With respect to MOBs, we and our third-party managers compete to attract and retain tenants based on
many of the same factors, in addition to quality of the affiliated health system, physician preferences and proximity to hospital campuses. The ability of our
tenants, operators and managers to competc successfully could be affected by private, federal and state reimbursement programs and other laws and
regulations. See “Risk Factors—Risks Arising from Our Business—Our tcnants, operators and managers may be adversely affected by healthcare regulation
and enforcement” and “—Changes in the reimbursement rates or methods of payment from third-party payors, including the Medicare and Medicaid
programs, could have a material adverse effect on certain of our tenants and operators and on us” included in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Employees

As of December 31, 2015, we had 466 employces, including 258 employees associated with our MOB operations reportable business segment, but
excluding 1,319 employees at our Canadian seniors housing communities under the supervision and control of our independent managers. Although the
applicable manager is responsible for hiring and maintaining the labor force at each of our Canadian seniors housing communitics, we bear many of the costs
and nisks generally bome by employers, particularly with respect to those properties with unionized labor. None of our employces is subject to a collective
bargaining agreement, other than those employees in the Canadian seniors housing communities managed by Sunrise or Atria. We believe that relations with
our employces are positive. See “Risk Factors—Risks Arising from Our Business—




Our operating assets cxpose us to various operational risks, liabilities and claims that could adversely affect our ability to generate revenucs or increase our
costs and could have a Matcrial Adverse Effect on us™ included in lItlem 1A of this Annval Report on Form 10-K.

Insurance

We maintain or require 1n our lease, management and other agrecments that our tenants, operators and managers maintain all applicable lines of
insurance on our properties and their operations. We belicve that the amount and scope of insurance coverage provided by our policies and the policies
required to be maintained by our tenants, operators and managers are customary for sinnlarly situated companies in our industry. Although we regularly
monitor our tenants’, operators’ and managers’ comphance with their respective insurance requirements, we cannot assure you that they will maintain the
required insurance coverages, and any failure, inability or unwillingness by our tenants, operators and managers to do so could have a Material Adverse
Effect on us. We also cannot assurc you that we will continuc to require the same levels of insurance coverage under our lease, management and other
agreements, that such insurance coverage will be available at a reasonable cost in the future or that the policies maintained will fully cover all losses related

_to our propertics upon the occurrence of a catastrophic event, nor can we assure you of the future financial viability of the insurers.

We maintain the property insurance for all of our semior living operations, as well as the general and professional liability insurance for our scniors
housing communitics and related operations managed by Atria. However, Sunrisc maintains the general and professional liability insurance for our seniors
housing communities and related operations that it manages in accordance with the terms of our management agreements. Under our management agreements
with Sunrise, we may elect, on an annual basis, whether we or Sunrisc will bear responsibility for maintaining the required insurance coverage for the
applicable properties, but the costs of such insurance are facility cxpcuses paid from the revenues of those properties, regardless of who maintains the
insurance.

Through our MOB opcrations, we provide engineering, construction and architectural services in connection with new development projects, and any
design, construction or systems failures related to the properties we develop could result in substantial injury or damage to our clients or third parties. Any
such injury or damage claims may arise in the ordinary course and may be asserted with respect to ongoing or completed projects. Although we maintain
liability insurance to protect us against these claims, 1f any claim results in a loss, we cannot assure you that our policy limits would be adequate to cover the
loss in full. If we sustain losses in excess of our insurance coverage, we may be required to pay the difference and we could lose our investment in, or
experience reduced profits and cash flows from, the affected MOB, which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

For various reasons, including to reduce and manage costs, many healthcare companies utilize different organizational and corporate structures coupled
with self-insurance trusts or captive programs that may provide less coverage than a traditional insurance policy. As a result, companies that self-insure could
incur large funded and unfunded general and professional liability expenses, which could have a material adverse effect on their liquidity, financial
condition and results of operations. The implementation of a trust or captive by any of our tenants, operators or managers could adversely affect such person’s
ability to satisfy its obligations under, or otherwise comply with the terms of, its respective lease, management and other agrecments with us, which could
have a Material Adverse Effect on us. Likewise, if we decide to implement a captive or self-insurance program, any large funded and unfunded general and
professional liability expenses that we incur could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Additional Information

‘We maintain a website at www.ventasreit.com. The information on our website is not mcoxpomlcd by reference in thls Annual Report on Form lO-lQ
and our web address is included as an inactive textual reference only.

We make available, free of charge, through our websitc our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-
K and amendmeénts to those reports filed or fumnished pursuant to Section 13 or I 5(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we
clectronically file such material with, or fumnish it to, the SEC. In addition, our Guidclines on Govemance, our Global Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
(including waivers from and amendments to that document) and the charters for each of our Audit and Compliance, Nominating and Cormporate Governance
and Executive Compensation Committees are available on our website, and we will mail copies of the foregoing documents to stockholders, free of charge,
upon request to our Corporate Secretary at Ventas, Inc., 353 North Clark Street, Suite 3300, Chicago, tilinois 60654.
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GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION
Hcalthcare Regulation
Overview

Our tenants, operators and managers are typically subject to extensive and complex federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to quality of
care, licensure and certificate of need, govemment reimbursement, fraud and abuse practices, qualifications of personnel, adequacy of plant and equipment,
and other laws and regulations goveming the operation ofhealthcare faciliues. We expect that the healthcare industry will, in general, continue to face
increased regulation and pressure in thesc areas. The applicable rules are wide-ranging and can subject our tenants, operators and managers to civil, criminal,
and administrative sanctions, including: the possible loss of accreditation or license; denial of reimbursement; imposition of fines; suspension,
decertification, or exclusion from federal and state healthcare programs; or facility closure. Changes in laws or regulations, reimbursement policies,
enforcement activity and regulatory non-compliance by tenants, operators and managers can all have a significant effect on their operations and financial
condition, which in turn may adversely impact us, as detailed below and set forth under “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1 A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Although the properties within our portfolio may be subject to varying levels of govemmental scrutiny, we expect that the healthcare industry, in
general, will continue to face increased regulation and pressure 1n the areas of fraud, waste and abuse, cost control, healthcare managemcent and provision of
services, among others. We also expect that efforts by third-party payors, such as the federal Medicare program, state Medicaid programs and private _
insurance carmiers (including health maintenance organizations and other health plans), to impose greater discounts and more stringent cost controls upon
operators (through changes in reimbursement rates and methodologies, discounted fee structures, the assumption by healthcare providers of all or a portion of
the financial risk or otherwisc) will intensify and continue. A significant expansion of applicable federal, state orlocal laws and regulations, existing or future
healthcare reform measures, new interpretations of existing laws and regulations, changes in enforcement priorities, or significant limits on the scope of
services reimbursed or reductions in reimbursement rates could have a matenal adverse effect on certain of our operators’ liquidity, financial condition and
results of operations and, in tum, their ability to satisfy their contractual obligations, including making rental payments under and otherwise complying with
the terms of our leases.

Licensure, Certification and CONs

In general, the operators of our skilled nursing facilities and hospitals must be licensed and periodically certified through various regulatory agencics
that determine compliance with federal, state and local laws to participate in the Mcdicare and Medicaid programs. Legal requirements pertaining to such
licensure and certification relate to the quality of medical care provided by the operator, qualifications of the operator's administrative personnel and clinical
staff, adequacy of the physical plant and equipment and continuing compliance with applicable laws and regulations. A loss of licensure or certification
could adversely affect a skilled nursing facility or hospital operator’s ability to receive payments from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, which, in tumn,
could adversely affect its ability to satisfy its obligations to us.

-

In addition, many of our skilled nursing facilitics and hospitals are subject to state CON laws that require governmental approval prior to the
development or expansion of healthcare facilities and services. The approval process in these states generally requires a facility to demonstrate the need for
additional or expanded healthcare facilitics or services. CONs, where applicable, are also sometimes necessary for changes in ownership or control of licensed
facilities, addition of beds, investment in major capital equipment, introduction of new services or termination of scrvices previously approved through the
CON process. CON laws and regulations may restrict an operator’s ability to expand our propertics and grow its business in certain circumstances, which
could have an adverse effect on the operator’s revenucs and, in turn, its ability to make rental payments under and otherwise comply with the terms of our
leases. See “Risk Factors-Risks Arising from Qur Business-If we must replace any of our tenants or operators, we might be unable to reposition the propertics
on as favorable terms, or at all, and we could be subject to delays, limitations and expenses, which could have a Material Adversc Effect on us” included in
Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Compared to skilled nursing facilities and hospitals, seniors housing communiues (other than those that receive Medicaid payments) do not receive
significant funding from governmental healthcare programs and are subject to relatively few, if any, federal regulations. Instead, to the extent they are
regulated, such regulation consists primarily of state and local laws govemning licensure, provision of scrvices, staffing requirements and other operational
matters, which vary greatly from onc jurisdiction to another. Although recent growth in the U.S. seniors housing industry has attracted the attention of
various federal agencies that believe more federal regulation of these properties is necessary, Congress thus far has deferred to state regulation of seniors
housing communities. However, as a result of this growth and increased federal scrutiny, some states have revised and strengthened their regulation of seniors
housing communities, and more states are expected to do the same in the future.
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Fraud and Abuse Enforcement

Skilled nussing facilitics, hospitals und scuior housing communities that receive Medicaid payments are subject to various complex federal, state and
local laws and regulations that govem healthcare providers' relationships and arrangements and prohibit fraudulent and abusive business practices. These
laws and regulations include, among others:

»  Fedcral and state false claims acts, which, among other things, prohibit healthcare providers from filing false claims or making false statements
to receive payment from Medicare, Medicaid or other governmental healthcare programs;

+  Federal and state anti-kickback and fec-sphitting statutes, including the Medicare and Medicaid anti-kickback statute, which prohibit the
payment, teceipt or solicitation of any remuneration to induce referrals of patients for items or services covered by a governmental healthcare
program, including Medicare and Medicaid;

» ' Federal and state physician self-referral laws, including the federal Stark Law, which generally prohibits physicians from referring patients
enrolled in certain govermmental healthcare programs to providers of certain designated hcalth services in which the referming physician or an
immediate family member of the referring physician has an ownership or other {inancial interest;

*  The federal Civil Monetary Penalties Law, which authorizes the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) to impose civil
penalties administratively for fraudulent acts; and

»  State and federal data privacy and security laws, including the privacy and security rules of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act 01996 (“HIPAA™), which provide for the privacy and security of certain individually identifiable health information.

Violating these healthcare fraud and abusc laws and regulations may result in criminal and civil penalties, such as punitive sanctions, damage
assessments, monetary penalties, imprisonment, denial of Medicare and Medicaid payments, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The
responsibility for enforcing these laws and regulations lies with a variety or federal, state and local govermnmental agencies, however they can also be enforced
by private litigants through federal and state false claims acts and other laws that allow private individuals to bring whistleblower suits known as qui tam
actions.

Congress has significantly incrcased funding to the govemmental agencics charged with enforcing the healthcare fraud and abuse laws to facilitate
increased audits, investigations and prosecutions of providers suspected of healthcare fraud. As a result, govermnment investigations and enforcement actions
brought against healthcare providers have increased significantly in recent years and are expected to continue. A violation of federal or state anti-fraud and
abusc laws or regulations by an operator of our properties could havc a material adverse effect on the operator’s liquidity, financial condition orresults of
operations, which could adversely affect its ability to satisfy its contractual obligations, including making rental payments under and otherwise complying
with the terms of our leases.

Reimbursement

The majority of skilled nursing facilities reimbursement, and a significant percentage of hospital reimbursement, is through Medicarc and Medicaid.
Medical buildirigs and other hcalthcare related properties have provider tenants that participate in Medicare and Medicaid. Thesc programs are often their
largest source of funding. Seniors housing communitics gencrally do not receive funding from Medicare or Medicaid, but their ability to retain their residents
is impacted by policy-decisions and initiatives established by the administrators of Medicare'and Medicaid. The passage of the Affordable Care Act (*ACA™)
in 2010 allowed formerly uninsured Amcricans to acquire coverage and utilize additional health care services. In addition, the ACA gave the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services new authorities to implement Medicaid waiver and pilot programs that impact healthcare and long term custodial care
reimbursemént by Medicarc and Medicaid. These activities promote “aging in place”, allowing scnior citizens to stay longer in seniors housing communities,
and diverting or delaying their admission into skilled nursing facilities. The potential risks that accompany these regulatory and market changes are
discussed below.

« Asarcsult of the ACA, and specifically Medicaid expansion and establishment of Health Insurance Exchanges providing subsidized health
insurance, an estimated seventeen million more Americans have health insurance. These newly-insured Americans utilize services delivered by
providers at medical buildings and other healthcare facilitics. The ACA remains controversial and continued attempts to repeal or reverse
aspects of the law could result in insured individuals losing coverage, and consequently foregoing services offered by provider tenants in
medical buildings and other healthcare facilities.




*  Enabled by the Medicare Modemization Act (2003) and subsequent laws, Medicare and Medicaid have implemented pilot programs (officially
termed demonstrations or models) to “divent” clderly from skilled nursing facilitates and promote “aging in place” in “the least restrictive
environment.” Scveral states have implemented Home and Community-based Medrcaid waiver programs that increase the support services
available to senior citizens in senior housing, lengthening the time that many scniors can live outside of a skilied nursing facility. These
Medicaid waiver programs arc subjcct to re-approval and pilots arc time-limited. Roll-back or expiration of these programs could have an
adverse effect on the senior housing market.

«  The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services is currently in the nudst of transitioning Medicare from a traditional fee for service
reimbursement model to capitated, valuc-bascd, and bundled payment approaches in which the govermment pays a set amount for each
beneficiary for a defined period of time, based on that person’s underlying medical needs, rather than the actual services provided. The result is
increasing use of management tools to oversee individual providers and coordinate their services. This puts downward pressure on the number
and cxpense of services provided. Roughly eight mitlion Medicare beneficiarics now receive care via Accountable Care Organizations, and
Mecdicare Advantage health plans now provide care for roughly scventeen million Medicare beneficiaries. The continued trend toward
capitated, value-based, and bundled payment approaches has the potential diminish the market for certain healthcare providers, particularly
specialist physicians and providers of particular diagnostic technologies such Medical Resonance Imaging services. This could adversely
impact the medical properties that house these physicians and medical technology providers.

«  The majonty of Medicare payments continue to be made through traditional Medicare Part A and Part B fee-for-service schedules. The Medicare
and CHIP Reauthorization Act of 2015 (“MACRA™) addresses the risk of a Sustainable Growth Rate cut in Medicare payments for physician
services. However, other annual Medicare payment regulations, particularly with respect to certain hospitals, skilled nursing care, and home
health services have resulted in lower net pay increases than providers of those services have often expected. In addition, MACRA establishes a
multi-year transition into pay-for-quality approaches for Medicare physicians and other providers. This will include payment reductions for
providers who do not meet government quality standards. The implementation of pay-for-quality models is expected to produce funding
disparitics that could adversely impact some provider tenants in medical buildings and other health care properties.

For the year ended December 31,2015, approximatély 1% of ourtotal revenues and 19% of our total NOI (in each case excluding amounts in
discontinued operations) were attributable to skilled nursing facilities and hospitals in which our third-party tenants receive reimbursement for their services
under govemmental healthcare programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid. We are neither a participant in, nor a direct rccxpxcnt of, any reimburscment under
these programs with respect to those leased facilities.

Environmental Regulation

As an owner of real property, we are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding cnvironmental, health and safety matters.

Thesc laws and regulations address, among other things, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls, fuel oil management, wastewater discharges, air
emissions, radioactive materials, medical wastes, and hazardous wastes, and, in certain cases, the costs of complying with these laws and regulations and the
penalties for non-compliance can be substantial. With respect to our properties that are operated or managed by third parties, we may be held primarily or
jointly and severally liable for costs relating to the investigation and clean-up of any property from which there is or has been an actual or threatened release
ofa regulated material and any other affccted properties, regardless of whether we knew of or caused the release. Such costs typically arc not limited by law or
regulation and could excced the property’s value. In addition, we may be liable for certain other costs, such as governmental fines and injuries to persons,
property or natural resources, as a result of any such actual or threatened release. Sce “Risk Factors-Risks Arnising from Our Business-We could incur
substantial liabilities and costs if any of our properties are found to be contaminated with hazardous substances or we become involved in any environmental
disputes” included in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. '

Under the terms of our lease, management and other agreements, we generally have a right to indemnification by the tenants, operators and managers of
our properties for any contamination caused by them. However, we cannot assure you that our tenants, operators and managers will have the financial
capability or willingness to satisfy their respective indemnification obligations to us, and 'my failure, inability or unwillingness to do so may require usto
satisfy the underlying environmental claims.




In general, we have also agreed to indemnify our tenants and operators against any cnvironmental claims (including penaltics and clean-up costs)
resulting from any condition arising in. on or under, or relating to, the leased properties at any time before the applicable lease commencement date. With
respect to our senior living opcrating portfolio, we have agreed to indemnify our managers agamst any environmental claims (including penalties and clean-
up costs) resulting from any condition on thosc properties, unless the manager caused or contributed to that condition.

We did not make any material capital expenditures in connection with environmental, health, and safety laws, ordinances and regulations in 2015 and
do not expect that we will be required to make any such material capital expendtitures during 2016.

.Canada

In Canada, seniors housing communitics are currently generally subject to significantly less regulation than skilled nursing facilities and hospitals, and
the regulation of such facilities is principally a matter of provincial and municipal jurisdiction. As a result, the regulatory regimes that apply to seniors
housing communities vary depending on the province (and in certain circumstances, the city) in which a facility is located. Recently, certain Canadian
provinces have taken steps to implement regulatory measures that could result in enhanced regulation for scniors housing communities in such provinces.

CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion sumunarizes certain U.S. federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to you as a holder of our stock. It is not tax
advice,nor does it purport to address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be important to particular stockholders in light of their personal
circumstances or to certain types of stockholders, such as insurance companies, tax-cxempt organizations (except to the extent discussed below under “-
Treatment of Tax-Exempt Stockholders™), financial institutions, pass-through entities (or investors in such cntities) or broker-dealers, and non-U.S.
individuals and entities (except to the extent discussed below under “-Special Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. Stockholders™), that may be subject to special
rules.

The statements in this section are based on the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), U.S. Treasury Regulations, Intemal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) rulings, and judicial decisions now in effect, all of which are subject to change or different interpretation, possibly with retroactive effect. The
laws goveming the U.S. federal income tax treatment of REITs and their stockholders are highly technical and complex, and this discussion is qualified in its
entircty by the authoritics listed above. We cannot assure you that new laws, interpretations of law or court decisions will not causc any statement herein to
be inaccurate.

Federal Income Taxation of Ventas

We elected REIT status beginning with the year ended December 31, 1999. We believe that we have satisfied the requirements to qualify as a REIT for
federal income tax purposes for all tax ycars starting in 1999, and we intend to continue to do so. By qualifying for taxation as a REIT, we generally are not
subject to federal income tax on net income that we cumently distribute to stockholders, which substantially climinates the “double taxation” (i.c., taxation at
both the corporate and stockholder levels) that results from investment in a C corporation (i.., a corporation generally subject to full corporate-level tax).

Notwithstanding such qualification, we are subject to federal income tax on any undistributed taxable income, including undistributed net capital
gains, at regular corporate rates. In addition, we are subject to a 4% excise tax if we do not satisfy specific REIT distribution requirements. See “-
Requirements for Qualification as a REIT-Annual Distribution Requirements.” Under certain circumstances, we may be subject to the “altemative minimum
tax” on our undistributed items of tax preference. If we have net income from the salc or other disposition of “foreclosure property” (as described below) held
primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary coursc of business or certain other non-qualifying income from foreclosure property, we are subject to tax at the
highest corporate rate on that income. See “-Requircments for Qualification as a REIT-Foreclosure Property.” In addition, if we have net income from
“prohibited transactions” (which arc, in general, certain sales or other dispositions of property (other than foreclosure prop'rly) held pnmunly for sale to
customers in the ordinary course of business), that income is subject to a 100%.tax. A . . :

We also may be subject to “Built-in Gains Tax” on any appreciated assct that we own or acquire that was previously owned by a C corporation. If we
dispose of any such asset and recognize gain on the disposition during the five-year period immediately after the asset was owned by a C corporation (either
prior to our REIT election, or through stock acquisition or merger), then we generally are subject to regular corporate income tax on the gain equal to the
lesser of the recognized gain at the time of disposition or the built-in gain in that asset as of the date it became a REIT asset.




If we fail to satisfy cither of the gross income tests for qualification as a REIT (as discussed below), but maintain such qualification under the rehief
provisions of the Code, we will be subject to a 100% tax on the gross income attnbutable to the amount by which we failed the applicable test, muluplied by
a fraction intended to reflect our profitability. In addition, if we violate onc or more of the REIT asset tests (as discussed below), we may avoid a loss of our
REIT status if we qualify under certain relief provisions and, among other things, pay a tax equal to the greater of $50,000 or the highest corporate tax rate
multiplied by the net income gencrated by the non-qualifying asset duning a specified period. If we fail to satisfy any requirement for REIT qualification,
other than the gross income or assets tests mentioned above, but maintain such qualification by meeting certain otherrequirements, we may be subject to a
$50,000 penalty for each failure. Finally, we will incura 100% excisc tax on the income derived from certain transactions with a taxable REIT subsidiary
(including rental income derived from leasing properties to a taxablie REIT subsidiary) that are not conducted on an arm’s-length basis.

See “-Requirements for Qualification as a REIT” below for other circumstances th which we may be required to pay federal taxes.

Requirements for Qualification as 2 REIT

To qualify as a REIT, we must meet the requirements discussed below relating to our organization, sources of income, nature of assets and distributions
ofincome to our stockholders. '

Organizational Requirements

The Code defines a REIT as a corporation, trust or association: (i) that is managed by one or more directors or trustees; (ii) the benceficial ownership of
which is evidenced by transferable shares or by transferable certificates of bencficial interest; (iii) that would be taxable as a domestic corporation but for
Sections 856 through 859 of the Code; (iv) that is neither a financial institution nor an insurance company subject to certain provisions of the Code; (v) the
beneficial ownership of which is held by 100 or more persons during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 12 months, or during a proportionate part of a
shorter taxable year (the “100 Sharcholder Rule™); (vi) not more than 50% in value of the outstanding stock of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by five
or fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities) during the last half of each taxable year (the “5/50 Rule™); (vii) that makes an election
to be a REIT {or has made such election for a prior taxable year) and satisfies all relevant filing and other administrative requirements established by the IRS
that must be met in order to elect and to maintain REIT status; (viii) that uses a calendar year for federal income tax purposes; and (ix) that mects certain other
tests, described below, regarding the nature of its income and assets.

We believe, but cannot assure you, that we have satisficd and will continue to satisfy the organizational requirements for qualification as a REIT.
Although our certificate of incorporation contains certain limits on the ownership of our stock that are intended to prevent us from failing the 5/50 Rule or
the 100 Sharcholder Rule, we cannot assure you as to the effectivencss of those limuts.

To qualify as a REIT, a corporation also may not have (as of the end of the taxable year) any camings and profits that were accumulated in periods
before it elected REIT status or that arc from acquired non-REIT comporations. We belicve that we have not had any accumulated eamings and profits that are
attributable to non-REIT periods or from acquircd corporations that were not REITs, although the IRS is entitled to challenge that determination.

Gross Income Tests
‘We must satisfy two annual gross income requirements to qualify as a REIT:

. Atleast 75% of our gross income (excluding gross income from prohibited transactions) for each taxable year must consist of defined
types of income derived directly or indirectly from investments relating to rcal property or mortgages on real property (including
pledges of equity interest in certain entities holding real property and also including “rents from real property” (as dcfined in the
Code)) and, in certain circumstances, interest on certain types of temporary investment income; and

*  Atleast 95% of our gross income (excluding gross income from prohibited transactions) for each taxable year must be derived from
such real property or temporary investments, dividends, interest and gain from the sale or disposition of stock or securities, or from any
combination of the foregoing.

We believe, but cannot assure you, that we have been and will continue to be in compliance with these gross income tests. If we fail to satisfy one or
both tests for any taxable year, we ncvertheless may qualify as a REIT for that year if we qualify
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under certain relicf provisions of the Code, in which case we would be subject to a 100% tax on the gross income attributable to the amount by which we
failed the applicable test. If we fail to satisfy one orboth tests and do not qualify under the relief provisious for any taxable year, we will not qualify as a2
REIT for that year, which would have a Matenal Adverse Effect on us.

Asset Tests

Al the close of cach quarter of our taxable year, we must satisfy the following tests relating to the nature of our assets:

*  Atlcast 75% of the valuc of our tuiaf asscis must be represented by cash or cash items (including certain receivabics), government
securities, “real estate asscts” (including interests in real property and in mortgages on real property and shares in other qualifying
REITs) (for taxable years beginning after December 31,2013, the term “real estate assets” also includes (i) unsecured debt instruments
of REITs that are required to filc annual and periodic reports with the SEC under the Exchange Act (“Publicly Offcred REITs”) (it)
personal property securing a mortgage secured by both real property and personal propetty if the fair market value of such personal
property does not exceed 15% of the combined fair market value of all such personal and real property and (iii) personal property
Icased in conncction with a lease of real property for which the rent attributable to personal property 1s not greater than 15% of the total
rent received under the leasc) or, in cases where we raise new capital through stock or long-tenm (i.e., having a maturity of at least five
years) debt offerings, temporary investments in stock or debt instruments during the onc-year period following our receipt of such
capital (the “75% asset test™); and

«  Ofthe investments not meeting the requirements of the 75% asset test, the value of any single issuer’s debt and cquity securities that
we own (other than our equity interests in any cntity classificd as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, the stock or debt ofa
taxable REIT subsidiary or the stock or debt of a qualificd REIT subsidiary or other disregarded entity subsidiary) may not exceed 5%
of the value of our total asscts (the “5% asset test”), and we may not own more than 10% ofany single issuer’s outstanding voting
securitics (the “10% voting securities test™) or more than 10% of the value of any single issuer’s outstanding securitics (the “10% valuc
test™), subject to fimited “safe harbor” exceptions.

*  No more than 25% (20% for taxable years beginning aftcr December 31, 2017) of the valuc of our total assets can be represented by
securities of taxable REIT subsidiaries (the “25% TRS Test” or after December 31,2017, the “20% TRS Test™).

= Fortaxable years beginning after December 31, 2015, the aggregate value of all unsecured debt instruments of Publicly Offered REITs
that we hold may unot exceed 25% of the value of our total assets.”

We believe, but cannot assure you, that we have been and will continue to be in compliance with the asset tests described above. If we fail to satisfy one
or morc assct tests at the end of any quarter, we nevertheless may continue to qualify as a REIT if we satisfied all of the asset tests at the close of the preceding
calendar quarter and the discrepancy between the value of our assets and the assct test requirements is due to changes in the market values and not caused in
any part by our acquisition of non-qualifying assets.

Furthemmore, if we fail to satisfy any of the asset tests at the end of any calendar quarter without curing that failure within 30 days after quarter end, we
would fail to qualify as a REIT unless we qualified under certain relief provisions enacted as part of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. Under one relief
provision, we would continuc to qualify as a REIT if our failure to satisfy the 5% assct test, the 10% voting securities test or the 10% valuc test is duc to our
ownership of assets having a total value not exceeding the lesser of 1% of our assets at the cnd of the relevant quarter or $10 million and we disposed of those
asscts (or otherwise met such assct tests) within six months after the end of the quarter in which the failure was identified. If we faif to satisfy any of the asset
tests for a particular quarter but do not qualify under the relicf provision described in'thé preéeding sentenc€; thén ‘we would be deemed to have satisfied the
relevant asset test if: (i) following identification of the failure, we filed a schedule containing a description of each assct that caused the failure; (i1) the failure
was due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect; (iii) we disposed of the non-qualifying asset (or otherwise met the relevant asset test) within six months
after the end of the quarter in which the failure was identified; and (iv) we paid a pénalty tax equal to the gréatér of $50,000 or the highest corporate tax rate
multiplied by the net income generated by the non-qualifying asset during the period beginning on the first date of the failure and ending on the date we
disposed of the asset (or otherwise cured the asset test failure). We cannot predict whether in all circumstances we would be entitled to the benefit of these
relief provisions, and-if we fail to satisfy any of the asset tests and do not qualify for the relief provisions, we will lose our REIT status, which would have a
Material Adverse Effect on us.




Foreclosure Property

The foreclosure property rules permut us (by our election) to foreclose or repossess properties without being disqualified as a REIT as a result of
rceeiving income that does not qualify under the gross income tests. However, in such a case, we would be subject to a corporate tax on the net non-
qualifying income from “foreclosurc property,” and the after-tax amount would increase the dividends we would be required to distribute to stockholders. Sce
“-Annual Distribution Requirements”. The corporate tax imposed on non-qualifying income would not apply to income that qualifies as “good REIT
income,” such as a leasc of qualified healthcare property to a taxable REIT subsidiary, where the taxable REIT subsidiary engages an “eligible independcent
contractor” to manage and opecrate the property.

Foreclosurc property treatment will end on the first day on which we enter into a lease of the applicable property that will give rise to income that does
not constitute “good REIT income™ under Section 856(c)(3) of the Cede, but will not end if the lease will give rise only to good REIT income. Forcclosure
property treatment also will end if any construction takes place on the property (other than completion of a building or other improvement that was more than
10% complete beforc default becamce imminent). Foreclosure property treatment (other than for qualified healthcare property) is available for an initial period
of three years and may, in certain circumstances, be extended for an additional three years. Foreclosure property treatment for qualified healthcare property is
available for an initial period of two years and may, in certain circumstances, be extended for an additional four years.

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

A taxable REIT subsidiary, or “TRS,” is a corporation subject to tax as a regular C corporation. Generally, a TRS can own assets that cannot be owned
by a REIT directly and can perform tenant services (excluding the dircct or indirect operation or management of a lodging or healthcare facility) that would
otherwise disqualify the REIT’s rental income under the gross income tests. Notwithstanding general restrictions on related party rent, a REIT can lease -
healthcare properties to a TRS if the TRS does not manage or operate the properties and instcad engages an eligible independent contractor to manage them.
We are permitted to own up to 100% of a TRS, subject to the 25% TRS Test (or 20% TRS Test, as applicable)but the Code imposes certain limits on the
ability of the TRS to deduct interest payments made to us. In addition, we are subject to a 100% penalty tax on any excess payments received by us or any
excess expenses deducted by the TRS ifthe economic amangements between the REIT, the REIT’s tenants and the TRS are not comparable to similar
arrangements among unrelated parties.

Annual Distribution Requirements

In order to be taxed as a REIT, we are rcquired to distribute dividends (other than capital gain dividends) to our stockholders in an amount at least equal
to the sum of (i) 90% of our “REIT taxable income” (computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain) and (ii) 90% of the
nct income (after tax), if any, from forcclosure property, minus the sum of certain items of non-cash income. These dividends must be paid in the taxable year
to which they relate, but may be paid in the following taxable year if (i) they are dcclared in October, November or December, payable to stockholders of
record on a specified date in onc of those months and actually paid during January of such following year or (ii) they are declared beforc we timely file our
tax retum for such year and paid on or before the first regular dividend payment after such declaration, and we clect on our federal income tax return for the
prior year to have a specified amount of the subsequent dividend treated as paid in the prior year. To the extent we do not distribute all of our net capital gain
or at least 90%, but less than 100%, of our REIT taxable income, as adjusted, we will be subject to tax on the undistributed amount at regular capital gains
and ordinary corporate tax rates, except to the extent of our net operating loss or capital loss carryforwards. If we pay any Built-in Gains Taxes, those taxes
will be deductible in computing REIT taxable income. Moreover, if we fail to distribute during each calendar year (o, in the case of distributions with
declaration and record dates falling in the last three months of the calendar year, by the end of January following such year) at least the sum of 85% of our
REIT ordinary income for such year, 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for such year (other than long-term capital gain we elect to retain and treat as
having been distributed to stockholders), and any undistributed taxable income from prior periods, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on
the excess of such required distribution over the amounts actually distributed.

We believe, but cannot assure you, that we have satisfied the annual distribution requirements for the year of our initial REIT election and cach
subsequent year through the year ended December 31, 2015, Although we intend to satisfy the annual distribution requirements to continue to qualify as a
REIT for the year ending December 31,2016 and thereafter, economic, market, legal, tax or other considerations could limit our ability to meet those
requirements.

We have net operating loss carryforwards that we may use to reduce our annual distribution requirements. Sce “Note 13-Income Taxes” of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 1, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Failure to Continuc to Qualify

If we fail to satisfy one or more requirements for REIT qualification, other than by violating a gross income or asset test for which relief is available
under the circumstances described above, we would retain our REIT quahfication 1f the failure is due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect and if we
pay a penalty of $50,000 for each such failure. We cannot predict whether in all'circumstances we would be entitled to the benefit of this relief provision.

If ourelection to be taxed as a REIT 1s revoked or termimated 1n any taxable year (e.g., duce to a failure to meet the REIT qualification tests without
qualifying for any applicable relicf provisions), we would be subject to tax’(including any applicable altemative minimum tax) on our taxable income at
regular corporate rates (for ail open tax years beginning with the year our REIT eiection is revoked or terminated), and we would not be required to make
distributions to stockholders, nor would we be entitled to deduct any such distributions. Al distnbutions to stockholders (to the extent of our current and
accumulated eamings and profits) would be taxable as ordinary income, except to the extent such dividends are eligible for the qualified dividends rate
generally available to non-corporate holders, and, subjcct to certain limitations, corporate stockholders would be eligible for the dividends received
deduction. In addition, we would be prohibited from re-clecting REIT status for the four taxable years following the ycar during which we ccascd to qualify
as a REIT, unless certain relief provisions of the Code applied. We cannot predict whether we would be entitled to such relief.

New Partnership Audit Rules

The recently enacted Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015 changes the rules applicable to U.S. federal income tax audits of partnerships. Under the new rules
(which are generally cficctive for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017), among other changes and subject to certain exceptions, any audit
adjustment to items of income, gain, loss, deduction, or credit of a partnership (and any partner’s distributive sharc thereof) is determined, and taxcs, interest,
or penalties attributable thereto are assessed and collected, at the partnership level. Although it is uncertain how these new rules will be implemented, it is
possible that they could result in partnerships in which we directly or indirect invest being required to pay additional taxes, interest and penaities as a result
of an audit adjustment, and we, as a direct or indirect partner of these partnerships, could be required to bear the economic burden of those taxes, interest, and
penalties even though we, as a REIT, may not otherwise have been required to pay additional corporatc-level taxes had we owned the assets of the
partnership directly. The changes created by these new rules are sweeping and in many respects dependent on the promulgation of future regulations or other
guidancce by the U.S. Trcasury. You should consult with your tax advisors with respect to these changes and their potential impact on your investment in our
common stock.

Federal Income Taxation of US. Stockholders

As used in this discussion, the term “U.S. Stockholder” refers 1o any beneficial owner of our stock that is, for U.S. federl income tax purposes, an
individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States, a corporation crcated or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thercof or
the District of Columbia, an estate the income of which must be included in gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes regardless of its source, or a
trust if (i) a U.S. court is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of such trust and one or more U.S. persons have authority to control all
substantial decmons of the trust or (ii) the trust has elccted under applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations to retain its pre-August 20, 1996 classification as a
USS. person. If an entity treated asa partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds our stock, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnershlp will
gencrally depend on the status of the partner and the activities,of the partnership. Partners in partnerships holding our stock should consult their tax advisors.
This section assumes the U.S. Stockholder holds our stock as a capital asset (that is, for investment).

Provided we qualify as a REIT, distributions made to our taxable U.S. Stockholders out of current or accumulated eamings and profits (and not
designated as capital gain dividends) generally will be taxable to such U.S. Stockholders as ordinary income and will not be eligible for the qualified
dividends rate generally available to-non-corporate holders or for the dividends received deduction-gencrally available to corporations. Distributions that are
designated as capital gain dividends will be taxed as a long-term capital gain (to the extent such distributions do not exceed our actual net capital gain for
the taxable year) withou! regard to the period for which the slockholdcr has held our stock The distributions we dcsignatc as capital gain dividcnds may not
of current and accumuilated earnings and proﬂts will'not be taxable to a U.S. Stockholdcr to the extent they do not exceed the U.S. Stockholder s adjusted
basis of our stock (dctcmuned on a sharc-by-share basis), but rather will reduce the U.S. Stockholder’s adjusted basis of our stock. To the extent that
distributions in excess of cumrent and accumulated camings and profits exceed the U.S. Stockholder’s adjusted basis of our stock, such distributions will be
included in income as capital gains and taxable at a rate that wil] depend on the U.S. Stockholder’s holding period for our stock. Any distribution declared by
us and payable to a stockholder of record on a specified date in October, November or
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December of any year will be treated as both paid by us and received by the stockholder on December 31 of that year, provided that we actually pay the
distribution during January of the following calendar year.

We may elect to treat all or a part of our undistributed net capital gamn as if it had been distributed to our stockholders. If we so elect, our US.
Stockholders would be required to include in their income as long-term capital gain their proportionate share of our undistributed net capital gain, as
designated by us. Each U.S. Stockholder would be deemed to have paid 1ts proportionate share of the income tax imposed on us with respect to such
undistributed net capital gain, and this amount would be credited or refunded to the U.S. Stockholder. In addition, the U.S. Stockholder’s tax basis of our
stock would be increased by its proportionate share of undistributed nct capital gains included in its income, less its proportionate share of the income tax
imposed on us with respect to such gains.

U.S. Stockholders may not include in their individual income tax retums any of our net operating losses or nct capital losses. Instead, we may carry over
those losses for potential offsct against our futurc income, subjcct to certain limitations. Taxable distributions from us and gain from the disposition of our
stock will not be treated as passive activity income, and, therefore, U.S. Stockholders generally will not be able to apply any “passive activity losscs” (such as
losses from certain types of limited partnerships in which the U.S. Stockholder is a limited partner) against such income. In addition, taxable distributions
from us generally will be treated as investment income for purposes of the investment interest limitations.

We will notify stockholders after the close of our taxable year as to the portions of the distributions attributable to that year that constitute ordinary
income, retumn of capital and capital gain. To the cxtent that a portion of the distribution is designated as a capital gain dividend, we will notify stockholders
as to the portion that is a “20% rate gain distribution” and the portion that is an unrecaptured Section 1250 distribution. A 20% ratc gain distribution is a
capital gain distribution to U.S. Stockbolders that arc individuals, estates or trusts that is taxable at a maximum rate of 20%. An unrecaptured Scction 1250
gain distribution is taxable to U.S. Stockholders that are individuals, estates or trusts at a maximum rate of 25%.

Taxation of US. Stockholders on the Disposition of Shares of Stock

In general, a U.S. Stockholder must treat any gain or loss realized upon a taxable disposition of our stock as long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S.
Stockholder has held the stock for more than one year, and otherwisc as short-term capital gain or loss. However, a U.S. Stockholder must treat any loss upon
a sale or exchange of shares of our stock held for six months or less as a long-term capital loss to the extent of capital gain dividends and any other actual or
deemed distributions from us which the U.S. Stockholder treats as long-term capital gain. All or a portion of any loss that a U.S. Stockholder realizes upon a
taxable disposition of our stock may be disallowed if the U.S. Stockholder purchases other shares of our stock (or certain options to acquire our stock) within
30 days before or after the disposition.

Medicare Tax on Investment Income

Certain U.S. Stockholders who are individuals, cstates or trusts and whose income exceeds certain thresholds are required to pay a 3.8% Medicare tax on
dividends and certain other investment income, including capital gains from the sale or other disposition of our stock.

Treatment of Tax-Exempt Stockholders

Tax-exempt organizations, including qualified employee pension and profit sharing trusts and individual retirement accounts (collectively, “Exempt
Organizations”), gencrally are excmpt from U.S. federal income taxation but are subject to taxation on their unrelated business taxable income (“UBTT™).
While many investments in real estatc generate UBT], a ruling published by the IRS states that dividend distributions by a REIT to an exempt employee
pension trust do not constitute UBTI, provided that the shares of the REIT are not otherwise used in an unrelated trade or business of the exempt cmployee
pension trust. Based on that ruling, and subject to the exceptions discussed below, amounts distributed by us to Exempt Organizations generally should not
constitute UBTI. Howcver, if an Exempt Organization finances its acquisition of our stock with debt, a portion of its income from us will constitute UBTI
pursuant to the “debt-financed property™ rules. Social clubs, voluntary employec benefit associations, supplemental unemployment benefit trusts and
qualified group legal services plans that are exempt from taxation under paragraphs (7), (9), (17) and (20), respectively, of Section 501(c) of the Code are
subject to different UBTI rules, which generally require them to charactenze distributions from us as UBTI, and in certain circumstances, a pension trust that
owns more than 10% of our stock is required to treat a percentage of the dividends from us as UBTL
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Special Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. Stockholders

As used heremn, the term “Non-U.S. Stockholder” refers to any beneficial owner of our stock that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a nonresident
alien individual, foreign corporation, foreign estate or foreign trust, but does not include any foreign stockholder whose investment in our stock is
“effectively connected” with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States. Such a foreign stockholder, in general, is subject to U.S. federal income
tax with respect to its investment in our stock in the same manner as a U.S. Stockholder (subject to applicable alterative minimum tax and a special
altermative minimum tax in the case of nonresident alien individuals). In addition, a foreign corporation recerving income that is treated as eflectively
connccted with a U.S. trade or busincss also may be subject to an additional 30% “branch profits tax™ on its effectively connected eamings and profits
(subject to adjustments) unless an applicable tax treaty providces a lower rate or an exempiion. Centain certification requirements must be satisfied in order for
cffectively connected income to be exempt from withholding

Distributions to Non-U.S. Stockholders that arc not attributable to gain from sales or cxchanges by us of U.S. real property interests and are not
designated by us as capital gain dividends (or deemed distributions of retained capital gains) are treated as dividends of ordinary income to the extent that
they are made out of our current or accumulated eamings and profits. Such distributions ordinarily are subject to a withholding tax equal to 30% of the gross
amount of the distribution unlcss an applicable tax treaty reduces or climinates that tax. Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated carings and
profits are not taxable to a Non-U.S. Stockholder to the extent that such distributions do not exceed the Non-U.S. Stockholder’s adjusted basis of our stock
(dctermined on a share-by-share basis), but rather reduce the Non-U.S. Stockholder’s adjusted basis of our stock. To the extent that distributions in excess of
current and accumulated eamings and profits exceed the Non-U.S. Stockholder’s adjusted basis of our stock, such distributions will give rise to tax liability if
the Non-U.S. Stockholder would otherwise be subject to tax on any gain from the sale or disposition of our stock, as described below.

We expect to withhold U.S. tax at the rate of 30% on the gross amount of any dividends, other than dividends treated as attributable to gain from sales
or exchanges of U.S. real property intcrests and capital gain dividends, paid to a Non-U.S. Stockholder, unless (i) a lower treaty rate applies and the required
IRS Form W-8BEN or IRS Form W-8BEN-E evidencing eligibility for that reduced rate is filed with us or the appropriate withholding agent or (i) the Non-
U.S. Stockholder files an IRS Form W-8ECI or a successor form with us or the appropriate withholding agent properly claiming that the distributions are
effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Stockholder’s conduct of a U.S. trade or business.

For any year in which we qualify as a REIT, distributions to a Non-U.S. Stockholder that owns more than 10% of our shares at any time during the one-
year period ending on the date of distribution and that are attributable to gain from sales or exchanges by us of U.S. real property interests will be taxed to the
Non-U.S. Stockholder under the provisions of the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 (“FIRPTA”) as if such gain were effectively
connected with a U.S. business. Accordingly, a Non-U.S. Stockholder that owns more than 10% of our shares will be taxed at the normal capital gain rates

.applicable to a U.S. Stockholder (subject to any applicable altemative minimum tax and a special altemative minimum tax in the case of nonrgsident alien

individuals) and would be required to file a U.S. federal income tax retum. Distributions subject to FIRPTA also may be subject to a branch profits tax equal
to 30% of its effectively connected eamings and profits (subject to adjustments) if the recipient is a corporate Non-U.S. Stockholder not entitled to treaty
relicf or exemption. Unider FIRPTA, we are required to withhold 35% (which is higher than the maximum rate on long-term capital gains of non-corporate
persons) of any distribution to a Non-U.S. Stockholder that owns more than 10% of our shares which is or could be designated as a capital gain dividend
attributable to U.S. real property interests. Moreover, if we designatc previously made distributions as capital gain dividends attributable to U.S. real property
interests, subsequent distributions (up to the amount of such prior distributions) will.be treated as capital gain dividends subject to FIRPTA withholding.

This amount is creditable against the Non-U.S. Stockholder’s FIRPTA tax liability.

Distributions by us to a “qualified foreign pension fund,” within the mcaning of Section 897(1) of the Code (“Qualificd Foreign Pension Fund™), or any
entity all of the interests of which are held by a Qualified Foreign Pension Fund, is exempt from FIRPTA, but may nonctheless be subject to U.S. federal
dividend withholding tax unless an applicable tax treaty or Section 892 of the Code provides an exemption from such dividend withholding tax. Non-U.S.
Stockholders who are Qualified Foreign Pension Funds should consult their tax advisors regarding the application of these rules.

If a Non-U.S. Stockholder does not own more than 10% of our shares at any time during the one-year period ending on the date of a distribution, any .
capital gain distributions, to th¢ extent attributable to sales or cxchanges by us of U.S. real property interests, will not be considered to be effectively
connected with a U.S. busincss, and the Non-U.S. Stockholder would not be required to file a U.S. federal income tax retum solely as a result of receiving such
a distnbution. In that case, the distribution will be treated as an ordinary dividend to that Non-U.S. Stockholder and taxced as an ordinary dividend that is not
a capital gain distribution (and subjcct to withholding), as described above. In addition, the branch profits tax will not apply to the
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distribution. Any capital gain distribution, to the extent not attributablce to sales or exchanges by us of U.S. real property interests, generally will not be
subject to U.S. federal income taxation (regardless of the amount of our shares owned by a Non-U.S. Stockholder).

For so long as our stock continucs to be regularly traded on an cstablished sccuntics market, the sale of such stock by any Non-U.S. Stockholder who is
not a Ten Percent Non-U.S. Stockholder (as defined below) generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax (unless the Non-U.S. Stockholderis a
nonresident alien individual who was present in the United States for more than 182 days during the taxable year of the sale and certain other conditions
apply, in which casc such gain (net of certain sources within the U.S,, if any) will be subject to a 30% tax on a gross basis). A “Ten Percent Non-U.S.
Stockholder” is a Non-U.S. Stockholder who, at some time during the five-year period preceding such sale or disposition, beneficially owned (including
under certain attribution rules) more than 10% of the total fair market value of our stock (as outstanding from time to time).

In general, the sale or other taxable disposition of our stock by a Ten Percent Non-U.S. Stockholder also will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax if
we are a “domestically controlled REIT.” A REIT is a “domestically controlled REIT” if, at all times during the five-year period preceding the disposition in
question, less than 50% in value of its shares is held directly or indirectly by Non-U.S. Stockholders. For purposcs of determining whether a REIT is a
domestically controlled quahfied REIT, certain special rules apply including the rule that a person who at all applicable times holds less than 5 percent of a
class of stock that is “rcgularly traded” is treated as a U.S. person unless the REIT has actual knowledge that such person is not a U.S. person. Because our
comumnon stock is publicly traded, we believe, but cannot assure you, that we currently qualify as a domestically controlled REIT, nor can we assure you that
we will so qualify at any time in the futurc. If we do not constitute a domestically controlled REIT, a Ten Percent Non-U.S. Stockholder generally will be
taxed 1n the same manner as a U S. Stockholder with respect to gain on the sale of our stock (subjcct to applicable altemative minimum tax and a special
alternative minimum tax in the case of nonresident alien individuals). The sale or other taxable disposition of our stock by a Qualified Foreign Pension Fund,
or any entity all of the interests of which are held by a Qualified Forcign Pension Fund, is exempt from U.S. tax imrespective of the level of its sharcholding in
us and of whether we are 2 domestically controlled REIT.

Special rules apply to certain collective investment funds that arc “qualified sharcholders” as defined in Section 897(k)(3) of the Code of a REIT. Such
investors, which include publicly traded vehicles that mect certain requirements, should consult with their own tax-advisors prior to making an investment in
our shares.

A 30% withholding tax will currently be imposed on dividends paid on our stock and will be imposed on gross proceeds from a sale or redemption of
our stock paid after December 31, 2018 to (i) foreign financial institutions including non-U.S. investment funds, unless they agree to collect and disclose to
the IRS information regarding their direct and indirect U.S. account holders and (ii) certain other forcign entities, unless they certify certain information
regarding their direct and indirect U.S. owners. To avoid withholding, forcign financial institutions will need to (i) enter into agreements with the IRS that
state that they will provide the IRS information, including the names, addresses and taxpayeridentification numbers of direct and indirect U.S. account
holders, comply with due diligence procedures with respect to the identification of U.S. accounts, report to the IRS certain information with respect to U.S.
accounts maintained, agree to withhold tax on certain payments made to non-compliant foreign financial institutions or to account holders who fail to
provide the required information, and determine certain other information as to their account holders, or (ii) in the event that an applicable intergovemmental
agreement and implementing legislation are adopted, provide local revenue authorities with similar account holder information or otherwise comply with the
terms of the intergovemmental agreement and implementing legislation. Other foreign entitics will need to either provide the name, address, and taxpayer
identification number of each substantial U.S. owner or certifications of no substantial U.S. ownership unless certain exceptions apply or agree to provide
certain information to other revenue authorities for transmittal to the IRS.

Information Reporting Requirements and Backup Withholding

Information retums may be filed with the IRS and backup withholding (at a rate of 28%) may be collected in connection with distributions paid or
required to be treated as paid during each calendar year and payments of the proceeds of a sale or other disposition of our stock by a stockholder, unless such
stockholder is a corporation, non-U.S. person or comes within certain other exempt catcgorics and, when required, demonstrates this fact or provides a
taxpayer identification number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding and otherwise complies with the applicable requirements of the
backup withholding rules. A stockholder who does not provide us with its correct taxpayer identification number also may be subject to penalties imposed
by the IRS.
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Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, the U.S federal income tax liability of persons subject to lncl\up withholding wall be offsct by the
amount of tax withheld. If backup withholding results in an overpayment of U.S federal income taxes, a refund or credit may be obtained from the IRS,
provided the required information 1s fumished timely thereto

As a general matter, backup withholding and information reporting will not apply to'a payment of the procceds of a sale of our stock by or through a
foreign office of a foreign broker. Information reporting (but not backup withholding) will apply, however, to a payment of the proceeds of a salc of our stock
by a foreign officc of a broker that is a U.S. person, a foreign partnership that engaged during certain periods in the conduct of a trade or business in the
United States or more than 50% of whosc capital or profit interests are owned during certain periods by U.S. persons, any foreign person that derives 50% or
more of its gross income for cenain penods from the conduct of a trade or business in the United States, ur a “controlled foreign corporation™ for U.S. tax
purposes, unless the broker has documentary evidence in its records that the holder s a Non-U.S. Stockholder and certain other conditions are satisfied, or the
stockholder otherwise establishes an exemption. Payment to or through a U.S. office of a broker of the proceeds of a sale of our stock is subject to both
backup withholding and information reporting unless the stockholder centifics under penalties of perjury that the stockholder is a Non-U.S. Stockholder or
otherwise establishes an exemption. A stockholder may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rulcs in cxcess of its U.S.
federal income tax hability by timely filing the appropriate claim for a refund with the IRS.

Other Tax Consequences
State and Local Taxes

We and our stockholders may be subject to taxation by various states and localitics, including those in which we or a stockholder transact business,
own property or reside. State and local tax treatment may differ from the U.S. federal income tax treatment described above. Conscqucnlly, stockholders
should consult their own tax advisers regarding the effect of state and local tax laws, in addition to federal, foreign and other tax ldws in connection with an
investment in our stock.

Possible Legislative or Other Actions Affecting Tax Consequences

You should recognize that future legislative, judicial and administrative actions or decisions, which may be retroactive in eflect, could adversely affect
our federal income tax treatment or the tax conscquences of an investment in shares of our stock. The rules dealing with U.S. federal income taxation are
continually under review by persons involved in the legislative process and by the IRS and the U.S. Treasury Department, resulting in statutory changes as
well as promulgation of new, or revisions to existing, regulations and revised interpretations of established concepts. We cannot predict the likelihood of
passage of any new tax legislation or other provisions, cither directly or indirectly, affecting us or our stockholders or the value of an investment in-our stock.
Changes to the tax laws, such as the Protecting Americans From Tax Hikes Act 0f 2015 enacted on December 18,2015 or the Bipartisan Budget Act 0of2015
enacted on November 2, 2015, or interpretations thereof by the IRS and the Treasury, with or without retroactive application, could matenially and adversely
affect us or our stockholders.

ITEM1A. Risk Factors

This section discusses the most significant factors that affect our business, operations and financial condition. It does not descnibe all risks and
uncertainties applicable to us, our industry or ownership of our sccurities. If any of the following risks, or any other risks and uncertainties that are not
addressed below or that we have not yet identified, actually occur, we could be matenially adversely affected and the valuc of our securities could decline.

We have grouped these risk factors into three general categories:

*  Risks ansing from our business;
»  Risks arising from our capital structure; and
< Risks anising from our status as a REIT.

Risks Arising from Our Business

The properties managed by Atria and Sunrise account for a significant portion of our revenues and operating income; adverse developments in Atria’s
or Sunrise’s business and ajfalrs orfnancml condition could have a MatcrmlAdverse Eﬂ'ect on us.

As of December 31,2015, Atria and Sunrisc, collectively, managed 268 of our seniors housing communitics pursuant to long-term management
agrecments. These properties represent a substantial portion of our portfolio, based on their gross book




value, and account for a significant portion of our revenues and NOI Although we have various nghts as the property owner under our management
agrecments, we rely on Atria’s and Sunnse’s personnel, expertise, technical resources and information systems, proprictary information, good faith and
judgment to manage our senior living operations efficiently and effectively. We also rely on Atria and Sunrise to set appropriate resident fees, to provide
accurate property-level financial results for our propertics in a imely manner and to otherwise operate our seniors housing communities in compliance with
the terms of our management agrecments and all applicable laws and regulations. For example, we depend on Atria’s and Sunrise’s ability to attract and retain
skilled management personnel who are responsible for the day-to-day operations of our seniors housing communities. A shortage of nurscs or other trained
personnel or general inflationary pressurcs may force Atria or Sunrise to enhance its pay and benefits package to compete effectively for such personnel, but
it may not be able to offset thesc added costs by increasing the rates charged to restdents. Any increase in labor costs and other property operating expenses,
any failure by Atria or Sunrise to attract and retain qualified personnel, or significant changes in Atria’s or Sunrise’s senior management or cquity ownership
could adversely affect the income we reccive from our seniors housing communities and have a Material Adverse Eftect on us.

Because Atria and Sunrise manage our properties in exchange for the receipt of a management fee from us, we are not directly exposed to the credit risk
of our managers in the same manner or to the same extent as our triple-net tenants. However, any adverse developments in Atria’s or Sunrise’s business and
affairs or financial condition could impair its ability to manage our properties efficiently and eflectively and could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. If
Atria or Sunrisc experiences any significant financial, legal, accounting or regulatory difficulties due to a weak cconomy or otherwise, such difficulties could
result in, among othcr adverse events, acceleration of its indebtedness, impainment of its continued access to capital, the enforcement of default remedses by
its counterparties, or the commencement of insolvency proceedings by or against it under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, any one or a combination of which
indirectly could have a Material Adverse Effect on us

Our leases with Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent account for a significant portion of our triple-net leased properties segment revenues and
operating income; any failure, inability or unwillingness by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent to satisfy its obligations under our agreements

could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

The properties we lease to Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent account for a significant portion of our triple-net leased properties segment
revenues and NOI, and because our leases with Brookdale Senior Living and Ardent and the Kindred Master Leases are triple-net leases, we depend on
Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent to pay all insurance, taxes, utilitics and maintenance and repair expenses in connection with the leased
propertics. We cannot assure you that Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent will have sufficient assets, income and access to financing to enable
them to satisfy their respective obligations to us, and any failure, inability or unwillingness by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent to do so could
have a Material Adverse Effect on us. In addition, any failurc by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent to effectively conduct its operations or to
maintain and improve our properties could adversely affect its business reputation and its ability to attract and retain patients and residents in our properties,
which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent have agreed to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from
and against various claims, litigation and liabilities arising in connection with their respective businesscs, and we cannot assure you that Brookdale Senior
Living, Kindred and Ardent will have sufficicnt assets, income, access to financing and insurance coverage to enable them to satisfy their respective
indemnification obligations.

We face potential adverse consequences of bankruptcy or insolvency by our tenants, operators, borrowers, managers and other obligors.

We are exposed to the risk that our tenants, operators, borrowers, managers or other obligors may become bankrupt or insolvent. Although our lease,
loan and management agreements give us the right to exercise certain remedics in the event of default on the obligations owing to us or upon the occurrence
of certain insolvency events, fcderal laws afford certain rights to a party that has filed for bankruptcy or reorganization. For example, a dcbtor-lessee may
reject our lease in a bankruptcy proceeding, in which casc our claim against the debtor-lessee for unpaid and futurc rents would be limited by the statutory
cap of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. This statutory cap could be substantially less than the remaining rent actually owed under the leasc, and any claim we have
for unpaid rent might not be paid in full. In addition, a debtor-lessec may assert in a bankrptcy proceeding that our lease should be re-characterized as a
financing agreement, in which case our rights and remedices as a lender, compared to a landlord, generally would be more limited. If a debtor-manager seeks
bankruptcy protection, the automatic stay provisions of the U.S. Bankrupicy Code would preclude us from enforcing our remedics against the manager unless
relief is first obtaincd from the court having jurisdiction over the bankruptcy case. In any of these events, we also may be required to fund certain expenscs
and obligations (e.g., real estatc taxes, debt costs and maintenance expenses) to preserve the value of our properties, avoid the imposition of liens on our
properties or transition our propcrties to a new tenant, operator or manager.
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We have rights to terminate our management agreements with Atria and Sunrise in whole or with respect to specific properties under certain
circumstances, and we may he unable to replace Atria or Sunrise if our management agreements are terminated or not renewed.

We are parties to long-term management agrecments pursuant to which Atria and Sunrisc, collectively, provided comprehensive property management
and accounting services with respect to 268 of our seniors housing communities as of December 31, 2015. Most of our management agrecments with Atria
have terms expiring either July 31,2024 or December 31, 2027, with successive automatic ten-ycar renewal periods, and our management agreements with
Sunrise have terms ranging from 25 to 30 years (which commenced as carly as 2004 and as recently as 2012). Our ability to terminate these long-term
management agreements is lnmited to specific circumstances set forth in the agreements and may relaic to all properties or a specific property or group of
properties.

N

We may terminate any of our Atria management agreements upon the occurrence of an event of defuult by Atria in the perfformance of a material
covenant or term thereof (including, in certain circumstances, the revocation of any license or certificate necessary for operation), subject in most cases to
Atria’s right to cure such default, or upon the occummence of certain insolvency events relating to Atria. In addxhon we may terminate our management
agrecments with Atria based on the failure to achieve centain NOI targets or upon the payment of a fee.

Similarly, we may terminate any of our Sunrisc management agreements upon the occurrence of an event of default by Sunrise in the performance of a
material covenant or term thereof (including, in certain circumstances, the revocation of any license or certificate necessary for operation), subject in most
cases to Sunrise’s right to cure such default, or upon the occurrence of certain insolvency events relating to Sunrise. We also may terminate most of our
management agreements with Sunnse based on the failure to achieve certain NOI targets or to comply with certain expense control covenants, subject to
certain rights of Sunrise to make curc payments to us, and upon the occurrence of certain other events or the existence of certain other conditions.

We continually monitor and assess our contractual rights and remedies under our management agreements with Atria and Sunrise. When determining
whether to pursuc any existing or future rights or remedies under those agreements, including termination rights, we consider numerous factors, including
legal, contractual, regulatory, business and other relevant considerations. In the event that we exercise our rights to terminate the Atria or Sunrise
management agreements for any rcason or such agreements are not renewed upon expiration of their terms, we would attempt to reposition the affected
properties with another manager. Although we believe that many qualified national and regional seniors housing operators would be interested in managing
our seniors housing communities, we cannot assure you that we would be able to locate another suitable manager or, if we are successfu! in locating such a
manager, that it would manage the propertics effectively. Moreover, the transition to a replacement manager would require approval by the applicable
regulatory authorities and, in most cases, the mortgage lenders for the properttics, and we cannot assure you that such approvals would be granted on a tlmcly
basis, if at all. Any inabilityto replace; or a lengthy delay in replacing, Atria or Sunrise as the manager of our seniors housing communities following
termination or non-rencwal of the applicable management agreements could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Ifwe musi replace any of our tenants or operators, we might be unable to reposition the properties on as favorable terms, or at all, and we could be
subject to delays, limitations and expenses, which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We cannot predict whether our tenants will renew existing leases beyond their current term. If our leases with Brookdale Senior Living or Ardent, the
Kindred Master Leases or any of our other triple-net leasces are not renewed, we would attempt to reposition those properties with another tcnant or operator.
In case of non-renewal, we generally have one year prior to expiration of the lcase term to amange for repositioning of the properties and our tenants are
required to continue to perform all of their obligations (including the payment of all rental amounts) for the non-renewed assets until such expiration.
However, following expiration of a lease term or if we cxercise our right to replace a tenant or operator in default, rental payments on the related properties
could decline or cease altogether while we reposition the properties with a suitable replacement tenant or operator. We also might not be successful in
identifying suitable replacements or entering into feases or other arangements with new tenants or operators on a timely basis or on terms as favorable to us
as our curmrent leases, if at all, and we may be required to fund certain expenses and obligations (c.g., real estate taxes, debt costs and maintenance expenscs) to
preserve the value of, and avoid the imposition of liens on, our propertics while they are being repositioned. In addition, we may incur certain obligations
and liabilities, including obligations to indemnify the replacement tenant or operator, which could have a Matenial Adverse Effect on us.

In the event of non-renewal or a tenant default, our ability to reposition our properties with a suitable replacement tenant or operator could be
significantly delayed or limited by state liccnsing, receivership, CON or other laws, as well as by the Medicare and Medicaid change-of-ownership rules, and
we could incur substantial additional expenses in connecuon with any licensing, receivership or change-of-ownership proceedings. Our ability to locate and
attract suitable replacement tenants also
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could be impaired by the specialized healtheare uses or contractual restrictions on use of the properties, and we may be foiced to spend substantial amounts
to adapt the propertics to other uses. Any such delays, limitations and expenses could adversely impact our ability to collect rent, obtain possession of feased
properties or otherwise excrcise remedies for tenant default and could have a Matenal Adverse Effect on us.

Moreover, in connection with certain of our properties, we have entered into intercreditor agreements with the tenants’ lenders or tri-party agreements
with our lenders. Our ability to exercise remedics under the applicable leases or management agreements or to reposition the applicable propertics may be
significantly delayed or limited by the terms of the intercreditor agreement or tri-party agreement. Any such delay or limit on our rights and remedies could
adversely affect our ability to mitigate our losses and could have a Matenal Adverse Effect on us.

Merger and acquisition activity or consolidation in the seniors housing and healthcare industries resulting in a change of control of; or a competitor’s
investment in, one or more of our tenants, operators or managers could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

The seniors housing and healthcare industrics have recently experienced increased consolidation, including among owners of real estate and care
providers. We compete with other healthcare REITs, healthcare providers, healthcare lenders, real estate partnerships, banks, insurunce companies, private
equity firms and other investors that pursue a variety of investments, which may include investments in our tenants, opcrators or managers. A competitor’s
investment in one of our tenants, operators or managers could enable our competitor to influence that tcnant’s, operator’s or manager’s business and strategy
in a manner that impairs our relationship with the tenant, operator or manager or is otherwisc adverse to our interests. Depending on our contractual
agreements and the specific facts and circumstances, we may have the nght to consent to, or otherwise exercise rights and remedices, including termination
rights, on account of, a competitor’s investment in, a change of control of| or other transactions impacting a tenant, operator or manager. In deciding whether
to exercise our nghts and remedies, including termination rights, we assess numerous factors, including legal, contractual, regulatory, business and other
relevant constderations. In addition, in connection with any change of control of a tenant, operator or managecr, the tenant’s, operator’s or manager’s
management team may change, which could lead to a change in the tenant’s, operator’s or manager’s strategy or adversely affect the business of the tenant,
operator or manager, cither of which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Market conditions, including, but not limited to, interest rates and credit spreads, the availability of credit and the actual and perceived state of the real
estate markets and public capital markets generally could negatively impact our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

The markets in which we operate arc affected by a number of factors that are largely beyond our control but may nevertheless have a significant
negative impact on us. These factors include, but are not limited to:

+ Interest rates and credit spreads;
«  The availability of credit, including the price, terms and conditions under which it can be obtained; and
*  The actual and perceived state of the real estate market, the market for dividend-paying stocks and public capital markets in general.

In addition, increased inflation may have a pronounced negative impact on the interest expense we pay in connection with our outstanding
indebtedness and our general and administrative expenses, as these costs could increase at a rate higher than our rents.

Deflation may result in a decline in gencral price levels, often caused by a decrease in the supply of money or credit. The predominant effects of deflation
are high unemployment, credit contraction and weakened consumer demand. Restricted lending practices may impact our ability to obtain financing for our
properties, which could adversely impact our growth and profitability.

Our ongoing strategy depends, in part, upon future investments in and acquisitions of; or our development or redevelopment of, seniors housing and
healthcare assets, and we may not be successful in identifying and consummating these transactions.

An important part of our business strategy is to continue to expand and diversify our portfolio through accretive acquisition, investment, development
and redevelopment opportunities in domestic and intemational seniors housing and healthcare properties. Our execution of this strategy by successfully
identifying, sccuring and consummating beneficial transactions is made morc challenging by increased competition and can be affected by many factors,
including our relationships with current and prospective clients, our ability to obtain debt and equity capital at costs comparable to or better than our
competitors and lower than the yield we cam on our acquisitions or investments, and our ability to negotiate favorable terms with property owners seeking to
sell and other contractual counterparties. Qur competitors for these opportunitics
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include other healthcare REITS, real estate partnerships, healthceare providers, healtheare lenders and other investors, including developers, banks, insurance
companics, pension funds, govemment-sponsored entities and private equity firms, some of whom may have greater financial resources and lower costs of
capital than we do. Sce “Business—Competition™ included 1n ltem | ofthis Annual Report on Form 10-K. If we are unsuccessful atidentifying and
capitalizing on investment, acquisition, development and redevelopment opportunities, our growth and profitability may be adversely affected.

Investments in and acquisitions of seniors housing and healthcare properties entail risks associated with real estate investments generally, including
risks that the investment will not achieve expected retumns, that the cost estimates for necessary property improvements will prove inaccurate or that the
tenant, operator or tnanager will fuil to meet performance expectations. Investments outside the United States taise legal, cconomic and market risks
associated with doing business in foreign countrics, such as currency exchange fluctuations, costly regulatory requirements and forcign tax risks. Domestic
and intemational real esiate development and redevelopment projects present additional risks, including construction delays or cost overruns that increase
expenses, the inability to obtain required zoning, occupancy and other govemmental approvals and permits on a timely basis, and the incurrence of
significant costs prior to completion of the project. Furthermore, healthcare propertics arc oficn highly customized and the development or redevelopment of
such properties may require costly tenant-specific improvements. As a result, we cannot assure you that we will achieve the economic benefit we expect from
acquisition, investment, development and redevelopment opportunities.

Our significant acquisition and investment activity presents certain risks to our business and operations.

We have made and expect to continue to make significant acquisitions and investments as part of our overall business strategy. Our significant
acquisition and investment activity presents certain risks to our business and operations, including, among other things, that:

»  We may be unable to successfully integrate the operations, personnel or systems of acquircd cornpanies, maintain consistent standards, controls,
policies and procedures, or realize the anticipated benefits of acquisitions and other investments within the anticipated time frame or at all;

«  Wec may be unable to cfectively monitor and manage our expanded portfolio of properties, retain key employees or attract highly qualified new
employccs;

= Projections of estimated future revenues, costs savings or operating metrics that we develop during the due diligence and integration planning
process might be inaccurate;

*  Ourleverage could increase or our per share financial results could decline if we incur additional debt or issuc equity securities to finance
acquisitions and investments;

«  Acquisitions and other new investments could divert management’s attention from our existing assets;
»  The value of acquired assets or the market price of our common stock may decline; and
*  We may be unablc to continue paying dividends at the current rate.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to integrate acquisitions and investments without encountering difficultics or that any such difficultics will not
have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

If the liabilities we assume in connection with acquisitions, including indemnification obligations in favor of third parties, are greater than expected, or
if there are unknown liabilities, our business could be materially and adversely affected. .

We may assume or incur liabilitics in connection with our acquisitions, including, in some cascs, contingent liabilitics. As we integrate these
acquisitions, we may leam additional information about the sellers, the properties, their operations and therr liabilities that adverscly affects us, such as:
- Liabilities relating to the clean-up or remediation of undisclosed environmental conditions;
«  Unasserted claims of vendors or other persons dealing with the scllers;

» Liabilities, claims and litigation, including indemnification obligations, whether or not incurred in the ordinary course of busincss, relating to
periods prior to or following our acquisition;

+  Claims for indemnification by gencral partners, directors, officers and others indemnified by the sellers; and
« . Liabiliticsfor taxes-relating to periods prior-to-our acquisition. - --- - -

As a result, we cannot assure you that our past or future acquisitions will be successful or will not, in fact, harm our business. Among other things, if the
liabilities we assume in connection with acquisitions are greater than expected, orif we
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discover obligations relating to the acquired propertics or businesses of which we were not aware at the ime of acquisition, our business and results of
operations could be matenally adversely affected.

In addition, we have now, and may have in the future, certain surviving indemnification obligations in favor of third parties under the terms’of
acquisition agreements to which we are a party. Most of these indemnification obligations will be capped as to amount and survival period, and we do not
believe that these obligations will be material in the aggregate. However, there can be no assurances as to the ultimate amount of such obligations or whether
such obligations will have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Our future results will suffer if we do not effectively manage the expansion of our hospital portfolio and operations following the acquisition of AHS.

As a result of our acquisition of AHS, we entered into the genceral acute care hospital sector. Part of our long-term business strategy involves
expanding our hospital portfolio through additional acquisitions. Both the asset management of our cxisting general acute care hospital portfolio and such
additional acquisitions may involve complex challenges. Our future success will depend, in pant, upon our ability to manage our expansion opportunities,
integrate new investments into our existing business 1n an efficient and timely manner, successfully monitor the operations, costs, regulatory compliance and
service quality of our opcrators and leverage our relationships with Ardent and other operators of hospitals. It is possible that our expansion or acquisition
opportunitics within the general acute care hospital sector will not be successful, which could adversely impact our growth and future results.

Our investments are concentrated in seniors housing and healthcare real estate, making us more vulnerable economically to adverse changes in the real
estate market and the seniors housing and healthcare industries than if our investments were diversified.

We invest primarily in seniors housing and healthcare properties and arc constraincd by the terms of our existing indebtedness from making
investments outside those industries. This investment focus exposes us to greater economic risk than if our portfolio were to include real estate assets in other
industries or assets unrelated to real cstate.

The healthcare industry is highly regulated, and changes 1n government regulation and reimbursement can have material adverse consequences on its
participants, some of which may be unintended. The healthcare industry is also highly competitive, and our operators and managers may encounter increased
competition for residents and patients, including with respect to the scope and quality of care and scrvices provided, reputation and financial condition,
physical appearance of the properties, price and location. If our tenants, operators and managers are unable to successfully compete with other operators and
managers by maintaining profitable occupancy and mte levcls, their ability to meet their respective obligations to us may be materially adversely affected.
We cannot assure you that future changes in government regulation will not adversely affect the healthcare industry, including our seniors housing and
healthcare operations, tenants and operators, nor can we be certain that our tenants, opcrators and managers will achieve and maintain occupancy and rate
levels that will enable them to satisfy their obligations to us. Any adverse changes in the regulation of the healthcare industry or the competitiveness of our
tenants, operators and managers could have a more pronounced cffect on us than if we had investments outside the seniors housing and healthcare industrics.

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid, and our ability to quickly sell or exchange our properties in response to changes in economic or other
conditions is limited. In the event we market any of our properties for sale, the valuc of those properties and our ability to sell at prices or on terms acceptable
to us could be adversely affected by a downturn in the real estate industry orany economic weakness in the seniors housing and healthcare industries. In
addition, transfers of healthcare properties may be subject to regulatory approvals that are not required for transfers of other types of commercial properties.
We cannot assure you that we will recognize the full value of any property that we sell for liquidity or other reasons, and the inability to respond quickly to
changes in the performance of our investments could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our operating assets expose us to various operational risks, liabilities and claims that could adversely affect our ability to generate revenues or increase
our costs and could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. ,

Our senior living operating asscts and MOBs exposc us to various operational risks, liabilitics and claims that could increase our costs or adversely
affect our ability to generate revenucs, thereby reducing our profitability. These operational risks include fluctuations in occupancy levels, the inability to
achieve economic resident fees (including anticipated increascs in thosc fees), increases in the cost of food, matcrials, energy, labor (as a result of
unionization or otherwise) or other services, rent control regulations, national and regional economic conditions, the imposition of new or increased taxes,
capital expenditurc requirements, professional and general liability claims, and the availability and cost of professional and general liabitity
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insurance. Any onc or a combination of these factors could result in operating deficiencies in our senior living operations or MOB opcrations reportable
business segments, which could have a Matenal Adverse Effect on us.

Our ownership of properties outside the United States exposes us to different risks than those associated with our domestic properties.

Our current or future ownership of properuies outside the United States subjects us to risks that may be different or greater than those we face with our
domestic properties. These risks include, but are not Iimited to:

»  Challenges with respect to repatriation of foreign eamings and cash;
< Foreign owncrship restrictions with respect to operations in countries in which we own properties;
«  Regional or country-specific business cycles and economic instability;

»  Challenges of complying with a wide varicty of foreign laws and regulations, including those relating to real estate, corporate governance,
opcrations, taxcs, employment and legal proceedings;

»  Differences in lending practices and the willingness of domestic or foreign lenders to provide financing; and

+  Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations in the United States that affect foreign opcrations, mcludmg, but not limited to, the U.S.
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

Increased construction and development in the markets in which our seniors housing communities and MOBs are located could adversely affect our
- future occupancy rates, operating margins and profitability.

Limited barmiers to entry 1n the seniors housing and MOB industries could lead to the development of new seniors housing communities or MOBs that
outpaces demand. In particular, data published by the National Investment Center for Scniors Housing & Care has indicated that seniors housing construction
starts have been increasing and deliverics on seniors housing communities will accelerate in 2016, especially in certain geographic markcts Ifdcvclopmcnt
outpaces demand for those assets in the markets in which our properties are located, those markets may become saturated and we could experience decreased
occupancy, rudUCCd operating margins and lower profitability, which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We have now, and may have in the future, exposure to contingent rent escalators, which could hinder. our growth and pmﬁtabiliiy.

We denive a significant portion of our revenues from leasing properties pursuant to long-term triple-net leasces that generally provide for fixed rental
rates, subject to annual escalations. In certain cases, the annual escalations are contingent upon the achievement of specified revenue parameters or based on
changes in CPI, with caps and floors. If, as a result of weak cconomic conditions or other factors, the properties subject to these leases do not generate
sufficient revenue to achieve the specified rent escalation parameters or CPI does not increase, our growth and profitability may be hindered. If strong
economic conditions result in significant increases in CPI, but the cscalations under our leases are capped, our growth and profitability also may be limited.

We own certain properties subject to ground lease, air rights or other restrictive agreements that limit our uses of the properties, restrict our ability 1o
sell or otherwise transfer the properties and expose us to loss of the properties if such agreements are breached by us or terminated.

Our investments in MOBs and other propertics may be made through leaschold interests in the land on which the buildings are located, leases of air
rights for the spacc above the land on which the buildings are located, or other similar restrictive arrangements. Many of these ground Icase, air rights and
other restrictive agreements impose significant limitations on our uses of the subject properties, restrict our ability to sell or otherwise transfer our interests in
the propertics or restrict the leasing of the properties. These restrictions may limit our ability to timely sell or exchange the properties, impair the properties’
value or negatively impact our ability to find suitable tenants for the properties. In addition, we could lose our interests in the subject properties if the ground
lease, airrights or other restrictive agreements are breached by us or terminated.

We may be unable to successfully foreclose on the collateral securing our loans and other investments, and even if we are successful in our foreclosure
efforts, we may be unable to successfully sell any acquired equity interests or reposition any acquired properties, which could adversely affect our ability
to recover our investments.

" Ifa'borrower defaults under mongagc or other secured loans for which we are the lender we may altcmpt to foreclose on the collateral sccunng those
loans, including by acquiring any pledged cquity interests or acquiring title to the subjcct properties, to protect our investment. In response, the defaulting
borrower may contest our enforcement of foreclosure or other available remedies, seek bankruptcy protection against our excrcisc of enforcement or other
availablc remedies, or bring claims against us for lender liability. If a defaulting borrower secks bankruptcy protection, the automatic stay provisions of the
Us.
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Bankruptcy Code would preclude us from enforcing foreclosure or other available remedies agamst the borower uniess relief'is first obtained from the cournt
with jurisdiction over the bankruptcy case. In addition, we may be subject to intercreditor or tn-party agreements that delay, impact, govern or limit our
ability to foreclose on a lien sccuring a loan or otherwisc delay or limit our pursuit of our rights and remedies. Any such delay or limit on our ability to pursue
our rights or remedies could have a Matenal Adverse Effect on us.

Even if we successfully foreclose on the collateral securing our mortgage loans and other investments, costs related to enforcement of our remedies,
high loan-to-value ratios or declines in the value of the collateral could prevent us from realizing the full amount of our secured loans, and we could be
required to record a valuation allowance for such losses. Morcover, the collateral may include equity interests that we are unable to sell due to sccuritics law
restrictions or otherwise, or propertics that we are unable to reposition with new tenants or operators on a timely basis, 1f at all, or without making
improvements or repairs. Any delay or costs incurred in selling or repositioning acquired collateral could adversely affect our ability to recover our
investments.

Some of our loan investments are subordinated to loans held by third partics.

Our mezzanine loan investments are subordinated to senior secured loans held by other investors that encumber the same real estate. If a scnior secured
loan is foreclosed, that forcclosure would extinguish our rights in the collateral for our mezzanine loan. In order to protect our cconomic interest in that
collateral, we would need to be prepared, on an expedited basis, to advance funds to the senior lenders in order to cure defaults under the senior secured loans
and prevent such a forcclosure. If a senior secured loan has matured or has been accelerated, then in order to protect our economic intercst in the collateral, we
would nced to be prepared, on an expedited basis, to purchase or pay off that senior secured loan, which could require an infusion of fresh capital as large or
larger than our initial investment. Our ability to scll or syndicate a mezzanine loan could be limited by transfer restrictions in the intercreditor agreement with
the senior secured lenders. Our ability to negotiate modifications to the mezzanine loan documents with our borrowers could be limited by restrictions on
modifications in the intercreditor agreement. Since mezzanine loans are typically secured by pledges of equity rather than direct liens on real estate, our
mezzanine loan investments arc more vulnerable than our mortgage loan investments to losses caused by competing creditor claims, unauthorized transfers,
or bankruptcics.

Our tenants, operators and managers may be adversely affected by healthcare regulation and enforcement.

Regulation of the long-term healthcare industry generally has intensificd over time both in the number and type of regulations and in the efforts to
enforce those regulations. This is particularly true for large for-profit, multi-facility providers like Atria, Sunrise, Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and
Axdent. Federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting the healthcare industry include those relating to, among other things, licensure, conduct of
operations, ownership of facilities, addition of facilities and equipment, allowable costs, services, prices for services, qualified benceficiarics, quality of care,
patient rights, fraudulent or abusive behavior, and financial and other arrangements that may be entered into by healthcare providers. In addition, changes in
enforcement policies by federal and state governments have resulted in an increase in the number of inspections, citations of regulatory deficiencies and
other regulatory sanctions, including terminations from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, bars on Medicare and Medicaid payments for new admissions,
civil monetary penaltics and even criminal penalties. See “Governmental Regulation—llcalthcare Regulation” included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. We arc unable to predict the scope of future federal, state and local regulations and legislation, including the Medicare and Medicaid statutes and
regulations, or the intensity of enforcement efforts with respect to such regulations and legislation, and any changes in the regulatory framework could have a
matcrial adverse effect on our tenants, operators and managers, which, in tum, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

If our tenants, operators and managers fail to comply with the extensive laws, regulations and other requirements applicable to their businesses and the
operation of our properties, they could become ineligible to receive reimbursement from govermmental and private third-party payor programs, face bans on
admissions of ncw patients or residents, suffer civil or criminal penalties or be required to make significant changes to their operations. Our tenants, operators
and managers also could face increased costs related to healthcare regulation, such as the Affordable Care Act, or be forced to expend considerable resources
in responding to an investigation or other enforcement action under applicable laws or regulations. In such event, the results of opcrations and financial
condition of our tenants, operators and managers and the results of operations of our properties operated or managed by those entities could be adversely
affected, which, in tumn, could have a Matcrial Adverse Effect on us.
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Changes in the reiinbursement rates or methods of payment from third-party payors, including insurance companies and the Medicare and Medicaid
programs, could have a material adverse effect on certain of our tenants and operators and on us.

Certain of our tenants and operators rely on reimbursement from third-party payors, including the Medicare (both traditional Medicarc and "managed"
Medicare/Medicare Advantage) and Medicaid programs, for substantially all of their revenues. Federal and state legislators and regulators have adopted or
proposed various cost-contaiminent measures that would limit payments to healthcare providers, and budget crises and financial shortfalls have caused states
to implement or consider Medicaid rate freczes or cuts. See “Governmental Regulation—Healthcare Regulation” included in ftem 1 ofthis Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Private third-party payors alse have continued their efforts 1o control healthicare costs. We cannot assuic you that our tenants and operators who
currently depend on govemnmental or private payor reimbursement will be adequately reimbursed for the services they provide. Significant limits by
govemnmental and private third-party payors on the scope of services reimbursed or on reimbursement rates and fees, whether from legislation, administrative
actions or private payor cfforts, could have a material adverse effect on the liquidity, financial condition and results of operations of certain of our tenants

and opcrators, which could affect adversely their ability to comply with the terms of our leases and have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

The healthcare industry trend away from a traditional fee for service reimbursement model towards value-based payment approaches may negatively
impact certain of our tenants’ revenues and profitability

Certain of our tenants, specifically those providers in the post-acuté and general acute carc hospital space, arc subject to the broad trend mn the
healthcare industry toward value-based purchasing of healthcare services. These value-based purchasing programs include both public reporting of quality
data and preventable adverse events tied to the quality and efficiency of care provided by facilities. Medicare and Medicaid require healthcare facilities,
including hospitals and skilled nursing facilities, to report certain quality data to receive full reimbursement updates. In addition Medicare does not
reimburse for carc related to certain preventable adverse events (also called “never events”). Many large commercial payors currently require healthcare
facilitics to report quality data, and several commercial payors do not reimburse hospitals for certain preventable adverse events.

Recently, HHS indicated that it is particularly focused on tying Medicare payments to quality or value through altemative payment models, which
generally aim to make providers attentive to the total costs of treatment. Examples of alternative payment models include bundled-payment arrangements. It
is unclear whether such models will successfully coordinate care and reduce costs or whether they will decrease reimbursement. The value-based purchasing
trend is not limited to the public scctor. Several of the nation’s largest commercial payors have also expressed an intent to increase reliance on value-based
rcimbursement arrangements. Further, many large commercial payors require hospitals to report quality data, and several commercial payors do not reimburse
hospitals for certain preventable adverse events.

We expect value-based purchasing programs, including programs that condition reimbursement on paticnt outcome measures, to become more common
and to involve a higher perccatage of reimbursement amounts. We are unablc at this time to predict how this trend will affect the revenues and profitability of
those of our tenants who are providers of healthcare services; however, if this trend significantly and adversely affects their profitability, it could in tum
negatively affect their ability and willingness to comply with the terms of their leases with us and or renew thosc leases upon expiration, which could have a
Material Adverse Effect on us. :

If controls imposed on certain of our tenants who provide healthcare services that are reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid and other third-party payors to
reduce admissions and length of stay affect inpatient volumes at our healthcare facilities, the financial condition or results of operations of those tenants
could be adversely affected.

Controls imposed by Medicare, Medicaid and commercial third-party payors designed to reduce admissions and lengths of stay, commonly referred to
as “utilization reviews,” have affected and are expected to continue to affect certain of our healthcare facilities, specifically our acute care hospitals and post-
acute facilitics. Utilization rcview cntails the review of the admisston and course of treatment of a patient by managed care plans. Inpatient utilization,
average lengths of stay and occupancy rates continuc to be negatively affected by payor-required preadmission authornization and utilization review and by
payor pressures to maximizc outpatient and altemative healthcare delivery services for less acutely ill patients. Efforts to impose more stringent cost controls
and reductions are expected to continue, which could negatively impact the financial condition of our tenants who provide healthcare services in our
hospitals and post-acute facilities. If so, this could adversely affect thesc tenants’ ability and willingness to comply with the terms of their leases with us and
or renew thosc leases upon expiration, which could have a Matenal Adverse Effect on us.
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The implementation of new patient criteria for LTACs will change the basis upon which certain of our tenants are reimbursed by Medicare, which could
adversely affect those tenants’ revenues and profitability.

As part of the Pathway for SGR Reform Act 0f 2013 enacted on December 26, 2013, Congress adopted various legislative changes impacting LTACs.
These legislative changes create new Medicare critena and payment rufes for LTACs, and could have a material adverse impact on the revenues and
profitability of the tenants of our LTACs. This material adverse impact could, in tum, negatively affect those tenants’ ability and willingness to comply with
the terms of their leases with us or renew those leases upon expiration, which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

The hospitals on or near whose campuses our MOBs are located and their affiliated health systems could fail to remain competitive or financially viable,
which could adversely impact their ability to attract physicians and physician groups to our MOBs.

Our MOB operations depend on the competitiveness and financial viability of the hospitals on or near whose campuses our MOBs are located and their
ability to attract physicians and other healthcarc-related clients to our MOBs. The viability of these hospitals, in turn, depends on factors such as the quality
and mix of healthcare services provided, competition for patients, physicians and physician groups, demographic trends in the surrounding community,
markct position and growth potential, as well as the ability of the affiliated health systems to provide cconomices of scale and access to capital. If a hospital on
or near whose campus one of our MOBs is located fails or becomes unable to meet its financial obligations, and if an affiliated health system 1s unable to
support that hospital, the hospital may be unable to compete successfully or could be forced to close or relocate, which could adversely impact its ability to
attract physicians and other healthcare-related clients. Because we rely on proximity to and affiliations with hospitals to create leasing demand in our MOBs,
a hospital’s inability to remain competitive or financially viable, or to attract physicians and physician groups, could materially adversely affect our MOB
operations and have a Materal Adverse Effect on us.

Our development and redevelopment projects, including projects undertaken through our joint ventures, may not yield anticipated returns.

We consider and, when appropriate, invest in various development and redevelopment projects. In deciding whether to make an investment in a
particular project, we make certain assumptions regarding the expected future performance of the property. Our assumptions arc subject to risks generally
associated with development and redevelopment projects, including, among others, that:

»  Wc may be unable to obtain financing for the project on favorable terms or at all;
*  Wemay not complete the project on schedule or within budgeted amounts;

¢« We may cncounter dclays in obtaining or fail to obtain all nccessary zoning, land use, building, occupancy, environmental and other
govemmental permits and authorizations, or underestimate the costs necessary to develop or redevelop the property to market standards;

*  Construction or other delays may provide tenants or residents the right to terminate preconstruction {eases or cause us to incur additional costs;
«  Volatility in the pricc of construction materials or lJabor may increase our project costs;

»  In the casc of our MOB developments, hospitals or health systems may maintain significant decision-making authority with respect to the
development schedule;

*  Ourbuilders may fail to perform or satisfy the expectations of our clients or prospective clients;

+  We may incorrectly forecast risks associated with development in new geographic regions;

«  Tenants may not lease space at the quantity or rental rate levels or on the schedule projected;

«  Demand for our project may decreasc prior to completion, including duc to competition from other developments; and

«  Lease rates and rents at newly developed or redeveloped propertics may fluctuate bascd on factors beyond our control, including market and
economic conditions.

If any of the risks described above occur, our development and redevelopment projects, including projects undertaken through our joint ventures, may
not yield anticipated retums, which could have a Material Adversc Effect on us.
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Qur investments in joint ventures and unconsolidated entities could be adversely affected by our lack af sole decision-making authority, our reliance on
our joint venture partners’ financial condition, any disputes that may arise between us and our joint venture partners, and our exposure 1o potential
losses from the actions of our joint venture partners. '

As of December 31,2015, we owned 34 MOBs, 15 seniors housing communities and one LTAC through consolidated joint ventures, and we had
owncrship interests ranging between 5% and 25% in seven MOBs, 20 seniors housing communities and 14 skilled nursing facilities through tvestments in
unconsolidated entitics. In addition, we had a 34% owncrship interest in Atria and a 9.9% interest in Ardent as of December 31,2015, These joint ventures

and unconsolidated entities invelve fisks not present with respect to our wholly owned properties, including the following:
= Wemay be unable to take actions that are opposed by our joint venture partners under arrangements that require us to share decision-making
authority over major decisions affecting the ownership or operation of the joint veature and any property owned by the joint venture, such as

the sale or financing of the property or the making of additional capital contributions for the benefit of the property;

+  Forjoint ventures in which we have a noncontrolling interest, our joint venture partners may take actions that we opposc;

= Ourability to sell or transfer our interest in a joint venture to a third party may be restricied if we fail to obtain the prior consent of our joint
venture partners;

*  Ourjoint venture partners may become bankrupt or fail to fund their share of required capital contributions, which could delay construction or
development of a property or increase our financial commitment to the joint venture;

< Ourjoint venture partners may have business interests or goals with respect to a property that conflict with our business interests and goals,
including with respect to the timing, terms and strategies for investment, which could increasc the likelihood of disputes regarding the
ownership, management or disposition of the property;

+  Disagrcements with our joint venturc partners could result in litigation or arbitration that increases our expenses, distracts our officers and
dircctors, and disrupts the day-to-day operations of the property, including by delaying important decisions until the dispute is resolved; and

»  Wc may suffer losses as a result of actions taken by our joint venture partners with respect to our joint venture investments.

Events that adversely affect the ability of seniors and their families to afford daily resident fees at our seniors housing communities could cause our
occupancy rates, resident fee revenues and results of operations to decline.

Assisted and independent living services generally are not reimbursable under govemment reimbursement programs, such as Mcdicare and Medicaid. A
large majority of the resident fec revenues gencrated by our senior living operations, therefore, are derived from private pay sources consisting of the income
or assets of residents or their family members. In light of the significant expense associated with building new properties and staffing and other costs of
providing scrvices, typically only seniors with income or assets that meet or exceed the comparable region median can afford the daily resident and care fees
at our seniors housing communities, and a weak economy, depressed housing market or changes in demographics could adversely affect their continued
ability to do so. If the managers of our seniors housing communities are unable to attract and retain seniors that have sufficient income, assets or other
resources to pay the fees associated with assisted and independent living services, the occupancy rates, resident fee revenues and results of operations of our
senior living operations could decline, which, in tum, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

The amount and scope of insurance coverage provided by our policies and policies maintained by our tenants, operators and managers may not
adequately insure against losses.

We maintain or requirc in our lease, management and other agreements that our tenants, operators and managers maintain all applicable lines of
insurance on our propertics and their operations. Although we regularly review the amount and scope of insurance provided by our policies and required to
be maintained by our tenants, operators and managers and believe the coverage provided to be customary for similarly situated compantes 1n our industry, we
cannot assure you that we or our tenants, opcrators and managers will continuc to be able to maintain adequate levels of insurance. We also cannot assure you
that we or our tenants, operators and managers will maintain the required coverages, that we will continue to require the same levels of insurance under our
lease, management and other agreements, that such insurance will be available at a reasonable cost in the future or that the policies maintained will fully
cover all losses on our properties upon the occurrence of a catastrophic event, nor can we make any guaranty as to the future financial viability of the insurers
that underwrite our policies and the policies maintained by our tenants, operators and managers.
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For vatious reasons, including to reduce and manage costs, many healthcare companies utilize different organizational and corporate structures coupled
with self-insurance trusts or captive programs that may provide less insurance coverage than a traditional tnsurance policy. Companies that insure any part of
their gencral and professional hability nisks through their own captive himited purpose entities generally estimate the future cost of general and professional
liability through actuarial studics that rely primarily on historical data. However, duc to the rise in the number and severity of professional claims against
healthcare providers, these actuarial studies may underestimate the future cost of claims, and reserves for future claims may not be adequate to cover the
actual cost of those claims. As a result, (he tenants and operators of our propertics who self-insure could incur large funded and unfunded general and
professional liability expenses, which could materally adversely affect their liquidity, financial condition and results of operations and, in tum, their ability
to satisfy their obligations to us. If we or the managers of our senior living operations decide to implement a captive or self-insurance program, any large
funded and unfunded general and professional liability expenses incurred could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, we could incur substantial liability or lose all or a portion of the capital we have
invested in a property, as well as the anticipated futurc revenucs from the property. Following the occurrence of such an event, we might nevertheless remain
obligated for any mortgage debt or other financial obligations related to the property. We cannot assure you that material uninsured losscs, or losses in excess
of insurance proceeds, will not occur in the future.

Significant legal actions or regulatory proceedings could subject us or our tenants, operators and managers to increased operating costs and substantial
uninsured liabilities, which could materially adversely affect our or their liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

From time to time, we may be subject to claims brought against us in lawsuits and other legal or regulatory proceedings arising out of our alleged
actions or the alleged actions of our tenants, operators and managers for which such tenants, operators and managers may have agreed to indemnify, defend
and hold us harmless. An unfavorable resolution of any such litigation or proceeding could materially adverscely affect our or their liquidity, financial
condition and results of operations and have a Material Adverse Effcct on us.

In certain cases, we and our tenants, operators and managers may be subject to professional liability claims brought by plaintiffs’ attomeys secking
significant punitive damages and attomeys’ fees. Duc to the historically high frequency and severity of professional liability claims against seniors housing
and healthcare providers, the availability of professional liability insurance has decreased and the premiums on such insurance coverage remain costly. As a
result, insurance protection against such claims may not be sufficicnt to cover all claims against us or our tenants, operators or managers, and may not be
available at a reasonable cost. If we or our tenants, operators and managers arc unable to maintain adequate insurance coverage or are required to pay punitive
damages, we or they may be exposed to substantial liabilities.

The occurrence of cyber incidents could disrupt our operations, result in the loss of confidential information and/or damage our business relationships
and reputation.

As ourreliance on technology has increased, our busincss is subject to greater risk from cyber incidents, including attempts to gain unauthorized access -
to our or our managers’ systems to disrupt operations, corrupt data or steal confidential information, and other electronic security breaches. Whilc we and our
managers have implemented measures to help mitigate these threats, such measures cannot guarantec that we will be successful in preventiog a cyber
incident. The occurrence of a cyber incident could disrupt our operations, or the operations of our managers, compromise the confidential information of our
employees or the residents in our seniors housing communities, and/or damage our business relationships and reputation.

Reductions in federal government spending, tax reform initiatives or other federal legislation to address the federal government’s projected vperating
deficit could have a material adverse effect on our operators’ liguidity, financial condition or results of operations.

President Obama and members of the U.S. Congress have approved or proposed various spending cuts and tax reform initiatives that have resulted or
could result in changes (including substantial reductions in funding) to Medicare, Medicaid or Medicarc Advantage Plans. Any such existing or future
federal legislation relating to deficit reduction that reduces reimburscment payments to healthcare providers could have a material adverse effcct on certain of
our operators’ liquidity, financial condition or results of operations, which could adversely affect their ability to satisfy their obligations to us and could have
a Matenal Adverse Effect on us.

Our operators may be sued under a federal whistleblower statute.

Our operators who engage in business with the federal govemment may be sued under a federal whistleblower statute designed to combat fraud and
abuse in the heaithcare industry. See “Govemmental Regulation—Healthcare Regulation” included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These
lawsuits can involve significant monetary damages and award
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bounties Lo private plaintifts who successfully bring these suits. If any of these lawsuits were brought agatnst our operators, such suits combined with
increased operating costs and substantial uninsured labilities could have a material adverse cffect on our operators’ liquidity, financial condition and results
of operations and on their ability to satisfy their obligations under our leases, which, in tum, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

We could incur substantial liabilities and costs if any of our properties are found to be contaminated with hazardous substances or we become involved
in any environmental dispufes.

Under federal and state environmentai jaws and reguiations, a current or former owner of real property may be liable for costs related to the
investigation, removal and remediation of hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum that are relcased from or are present at or under, or that are disposed of
in conncction with such property. Owners of real property may also face other environmental liabilities, including govemment fines and penaltics imposed
by regulatory authoritics and damages for injuries to persons, property or natural resources. Environmental laws and regulations often impose liability
without regard to whether the owner was aware of] or was responsible for, the presence, release or disposal of hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum. In
certain circurnstances, environmental liability may result from the activities of a current or former operator of the property. Although we generally have
indemnification rights against the current operators of our properties for contamination caused by them, such indemnification may not adequately coverall
environmental costs. Sce “Governmental Regulation—Environmental Regulation” included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

QOur success depends, in part, on our ability to attract and retain talented employees, and the loss of any one of our key personnel could adversely impact
our business.

The success of our business depends, in part, on the leadership and performance of our exccutive management tcam and key employees, and our ability
to atiract, retain and motivate talented employees could significantly impact our future performance. Competition for these individuals is intense, and we
cannot assure you that we will retain our key officers and employces or that we will be able to attract and retain other highly gualified individuals in the
future. Losing any one or more of Lthese persons could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Pursuant to the Sarbancs-Oxley Act of 2002, we are required to provide a report by management on intemnal control over financial reporting, including
management’s assessment of the elfectiveness of such control. Because of its inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error, the circumvention
orovemding of controls, or fraud, effective internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatement and can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to the preparation and fair prescntation of financial statements. If we fail to maintain the adequacy of our intcmal controls over
financial reporting and our operating internal controls, including any failure to implement required new or improved controls as a result of changes to our
business or otherwise, or if we experience difficultics in their implementation, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially
adversely harmed and we could fail to meet our reporting obligations.

Economic and other conditions that negatively affect geographic locations to which a greater percentage of our NOI is attributed could adversely affect
our financial results.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, approximately 37.7% of our total NOI (excluding amounts in discontinued operations) was derived from
propertics located in Calitomia (14.7%), Texas (6.7%), New York (6.0%), lllinois (5.5%), and Florida (4.8%). As a result, we arc subjcct to increased exposure
to adverse conditions aflecting thesc regions, including downtums in the local cconomies or changes in local real estate conditions, increased construction
and competition or decrcased demand for our properties, regional climate events and changes in state-specific legislation, which could adversely affect our
business and results of operations. ’

We may be adversely affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Our ownership of propertics in Canada and the United Kingdom currently subjects us to fluctuations in the exchange rates between U.S. doliars and
Canadian dollars or the British pound, which may, from time to time, impact our financial condition and results of operations. If we continue to expand our
intcmational presence through investments in, or acquisitions or development of, seniors housing or healthcare assets outside the United States, Canada or
the United Kingdom, we may transact busincss in other foreign currencies. Although we may pursue hedging altematives, including borrowing in local
currencies, to protcct against foreign cumrency fluctuations, we cannot assure you that such fluctuations will not have a Material Adverse Effect on us.
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Risks Arising from Qur Capital Structure
We may become more leveraged.

Asof December 31,2015, we had approximately $11.2 billion of outstanding indebtedness. The instruments goveming our existing indebtedness
permit us to incur substantial additional debt, including secured debt, and we may satisfy our capital and hiquidity nceds through additional borrowings. A
high level of indebtedness would require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operatious to the payment of debt service, thereby
reducing the funds available to implement our business strategy and make distributions to stockholders. A high level of indebtedness could also have the
following conscquences:

»  Potential limits on our ability to adjust rapidly to changing market conditions and vulnerability in the event of 2 downtum in general cconomic
conditions or in the real estate or healthcare industries; -

«  Potential impaimment of our ability to obtain additional financing to exccute on our business strategy; and

+  Potential downgrade in the rating of our debt securities by one or more rating agencices, which could have the effect of, among other things,
limiting our access to capital and increasing our cost of borrowing.

In addition, from time to time, we mortgage certain of our properties to secure payment of indebtedness. If we are unable to meet our mortgage
payments, then the encumbered properties could be foreclosed upon or transferred to the mortgagee with a resulting loss of income and asset value.

We are exposed to increases in interest rates, which cowld reduce our profitability and adversely impact our ability to refinance existing debt, sell assets
or engage in acquisition, investment, development and redevelopment activity, and our decision to hedge against interest rate risk might not be effective.

We receive a significant portion of our revenues by leasing assets under long-tenn triple-net leasces that generally provide for fixed rental rates subject
to annual escalations, while certain of our debt obligations are floating rate obligations with interest and related payments that vary with the movement of
LIBOR, Bankers’ Acceptance or other indexes. The generally fixed rate nature of a significant portion of our revenues and the vanable rate nature of certain
of our debt obligations create interest rate nisk. Although our operating assets provide a partial hedge against interest rate fluctuations, if interest rates rise, the
costs of our existing floating rate debt and any new debt that we incur would increase. These increascd costs could reduce our profitability, impair our ability
to meet our debt obligations, or increase the cost of financing our acquisition, investment, development and redevelopment activity. An increase in interest
rates also could limit our ability to refinance existing debt upon maturity or cause us to pay higher rates upon refinancing, as well as decrease the amount that
third partics arc willing to pay for our asscts, thereby limiting our ability to promptly reposition our portfolio in response to changes in economic or other
conditions.

We may scek to manage our exposure to interest rate volatility with hedging ammangements that involve additional risks, including the risks that
counterpartics may fail to honor their obligations under these arrangements, that these amangements may not be effective in reducing our exposure to interest
rate changes, that the amount of income we cam from hedging transactions may be limited by federal tax provisions govemning REITs, and that these
arrangements may cause us to pay higherinterest rates on our debt obligations than otherwise would be the case. Moreover, no amount of hedging activity
can fully insulate us from the risks associated with changes in interest rates. Failure to hedge effectively against interest rate nisk, if we choose to engage in
such activities, could adverscly affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Limitations on our ability to access capital could have an adverse effect on our ability to make required payments on our debt obligations, make
distributions to our stockholders or make future investments necessary to implement our business strategy.

We cannot assurc you that we will be able to raise the capital necessary to meet our debt service obligations, make distributions to our stockholders or
make future investments nceessary to implement our business strategy, if our cash flow from operations is insufficient to satisfy these needs, and the failure to
do so could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. Although we believe that we have sufficient access to capital and other sources of funding to meet our
expected liquidity needs, we cannot assure you that conditions in the capital markets will not deteriorate or that our access to capital and other sources of
funding will not become constrained, which could adversely affect the availability and tenns of future borrowings, renewals or refinancings and our results of
operation and financial condition. If we cannot access capital at an acceptable cost or at all, we may be required to liquidate one or more investments in
propertics at times that may not permit us to maximizc the return on those investments or that could result in adverse tax consequences to us.

As a public company, our access to debt and equity capital depends, in part, on the trading prices of our senior notes and common stock, which, in tum,
depend upon market conditions that change from time to time, such as the market’s perception
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of our financial condition, our growth potential and our current and expected future camings and cash distnbutions. Qur failure to meet the market’s
expectation with regard to future eamings and cash distributions or a significant downgrade in the ratings assigned to our long-term debt could impact our
ability to access capital or increase our borrowing costs. We also rely on the financial institutions that are partics to our unsecured revolving credit facility. If
these institutions become capital constramed, tighten their lending standards or become insolvent or if they experience excessive volumes of borrowing
requests from other borrowers within a short period of time, they may be unable or unwilling to honor their funding commitments to us, which would
adversely affect our ability to draw on our unsecured revolving credit facility and, over time, could negatively impact our ability to consummate
acquisitions, repay indebtedness as it matures, fund capital expenditures or make distnbutions to our stockholders.

Covenants in the instruments governing our existing indebtedness limit our operational flexibility, and a covenant breach could materially adversely
affect our operations.

The terms of the instruments goveming our existing indebtedness require us to comply with certain customary financial and other covenants, such as
maintaining debt scrvice coverage, leverage ratios and minimum net worth requircments. Our continued ability to incur additional debt and to conduct
business in general is subject to our compliance with these covenants, which limit our operational flexibility. Breaches of these covenants could result in
defaults under the applicable debt instruments and could trigger defaults under any of our other indebtedness that is cross-defaulted against such instruments,
even if we satisfy our payment obligations. Financial and other covenants that limit our operational fiexibility, as well as defaults resulting from our breach
of any of these covenants, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. :

Risks Arising from Our Status as a REIT
Loss of our status as a REIT would have significant adverse consequences for us and the value of our common stock.

If we lose our status as a REIT (currently or with respect to any tax years for which the statute of limitations has not expired), we will face serious tax
consequences that will substantially reduce the funds available to satisfy our obligations, to implement our business strategy and to make distributions to our
stockholders for each of the years involved because:

*  We would not be allowed a deduction for distributions to stockholders in computing our taxable income and would be subject to federal
income tax at regular corporate rates;

*  We could be subject to the federal altemative minimum tax and increased state and local taxes; and

«  Unless we arc entitled to relief under statutory provisions, we could not elect to be subject to tax as a REIT for four taxable years following the
year during which we were disqualified.

In addition, in such event we would no longer be required to pay dividends to maintain REIT status, which could adversely affect the value of our common
stock.

Qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for which there are only limitcd judicial and
administrative interpretations. The dctermination of factual matters and circumstances not entirely within our control, as well as new legislation, regulations,
administrative interpretations or court decisions, may adversely affect our investors or our ability to remain qualified as a REIT for tax purposes. Althouﬂh we
believe that we currently qualify as a' REIT, we cannot assure you that we will continue to qualify for all future periods.

The 90% distribution requirement will decrease our liquidity and may limit our ability to engage in otherwise beneficial transactions.

To comply with the 90% distribution requirement applicable to REITs and to avoid the nondeductible excise tax, we must make distributions to our
stockholders. See “Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Counsiderations—Requirements for Qualification as a REIT—Annual Distribution Requircments”
included in Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Such distributions reduce the funds we havc available to finance our investment, acquisition,
development and redevelopment activity and may limit our ability to engage in transactions that are otherwise in the best interests of our stockholders.

Although we do not anticipatc any inability to satisfy the REIT distribution requirement, from time to time, we may not have sufficient cash or other
liquid assets to do so. For example, timing diflerences between the actual receipt of income and actual payment of deductible expenses, on the one hand, and
the inclusion ofthat income and deduction of those.cxpenses in arriving at.our taxable income, on the other hand,-or non-deductible expenses such-as -
principal amortization or repayments or capital expenditures in excess of non-cash deductions may prevent us from having sufficient cash or liquid assets to
satisfy the 90% distribution requirement.

In the event that timing differences occur or we decide to retain cash or to distribute such greater amount as may be necessary to avoid income and
excisc taxation, we may seek to borrow funds, issue additional equity securities, pay taxable
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stock dividends, distribute other property ot securities or engage in a transaction intended to enable us to meet the REIT distribution requirements. Any of
these actions may require us Lo raise additional capital to mect our obligations; however, see “—Risks Arising from Our Capital Structure—Limitations on
our ability to access capital could have an adverse effect on our ability to make required payments on our debt obligations, make distributions to our
stockholders or make future investments necessary to implement our business strategy.” The terms of the instruments goveming our existing mdebtedness
restrict our ability to engage in certain of these transactions.

To preserve our qualification as a REIT, our certificate of incorporation contains ownership limits with respect to our capital stock that may delay,
defer or prevent a change of control of our company.

..

To assist us in preserving our qualification as a REIT, our certificate of incorporation provides that ifa person acquires beneficial ownership of more
than 9.0% of our outstanding common stock or more than 9.9% of our outstanding preferred stock, the shares that arc beneficially owned in excess of the
applicable limit are considered “excess shares” and are automatically deemed transferred to a trust for the benefit of a charitable institution or other
qualifying organization sclected by our Board of Directors. The trust is entitled to all dividends with respect to the excess shares and the trustee may exercise
all voting power over the excess shares. In addition, we have the right to purchase the excess shares for a price cqual to the lesser of (i) the pnce per share in
the transaction that created the excess shares or (ii) the market price on the day we purchase the shares, but if we do not purchasc the excess shares, the trustee
of the trust is required to transfer the shares at the direction of our Board of Directors. These ownership limits could delay, defer or prevent a transaction ora
change of control that might involve a premium price for our common stock or might otherwisc be in the best interests of our stockholders.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

ITEM 2. Properties

Seniors Housing and Hecalthcare Propertics

As of December 31, 2015, we owned approximately 1,300 properties (including propertics classified as held for sale), consisting of seniors housing
communities, MOBs, skilled nursing facilities, specialty hospitals and gencral acute care hospitals, and we had four properties under development. We
belicve that maintaining a balanced portfolio of high-quality assets diversified by investment type, geographic location, asset type, tenant/opcrator, revenue
source and operating model makes us less susceptible to single-state regulatory or reimbursement changes, regional climate events and local cconomic
downtums and diminishes the risk that any single factor or cvent could materially harm our business.

As of December 31,2015, we had $2.0 billion aggregate principal amount of mortgage loan indebtedness outstanding, secured by 157 of our
properties. Excluding those portions attributed to our joint venture and operating partners, our share of mortgage loan indebtedness outstanding was $1.9
billion.




The following table provides additional information regarding the geographic diversification of our portfolhio of properties as of December 31,2015
(including properties owned through investments in unconsolidated entitics, but excluding properties classified as held for sale):

Seniors Housing Skilled Nursing
Communities Facllities MOBs . Specialty Hospitals General Acute Care
Number of Number of Licensed Number of Number of Licensed Number of Licenscd
Gengraphic Locanan Propertics Units Properties Beds Propertics Square Feet Propertics Beds Propertics Beds
'Al_a_l‘::_xm' . : Ea T oo T T 7 - po T . <
Arizona 28 2,608

Colofad

Connecticut

Idaho
Mingis -

Indiana

Maine
Marylifd’

Massachusetts

Naada T
New Hampshire
-

~36,664:

New Mexico : 5 — —_ — — 2 123 4
N G age el W L - - -
North Carolina 23 2,242 3 297 20 759,422 1 124 —
North Dakota 2. s IR T riagee o — — —
Ohio 22 1417 6 1,221,287 1 50 — —
Oklshoma 8 463 R DS e 1 59 4 T
Oregon 29 2,574 — — 1 105,375 — — — —
Pénnsylvania N 5 2,455 T4 e 0.0 811878 . 2 115 S
Rhode Island 6 596 — — — — — — —
South Carolina 5 388 R 200 1,103,828 - - — -
P e
Tennessce 18 1.467 — Lol— 1 40asn ) 49 — —
Texas 52 4,014 — — 22 1,330,987 10 657 1 445
Uuh 3 321 — R = - = - - =
Vermont — — 1 144 — — — — — —
Virginia 8 658 3 a2 s 231463 — — — —
Washington 25 2.441 3 737 10 578,975 - — — —
West Virginia . 2 17 4 326 — — — — — —
Wisconsin 69 2,958 — — 21 1,104,558 — — — —
Wyoming -2 168 — —_ — — - - — —
Total U § 737 63,790 67 8,143 368 20,877,804 46 3,857 9 1,913
Canada 41 4493 — - —_ — — -— — —
United Kingdom 10 663 . - —_ _ — — — 3 121
Total 788 68,946 67 8,143 368 20,877,504 a6 3,857 12 2,034
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Corporate Offices

Qur headquarters are located in Chicago, Illinois, and we have additional corporate offices in: Lowsville, Kentucky; Plano, Texas; and Irvine,
Califormia. We lease all of our corporate offices.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

The information contained in “Note 16-—Litigation” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K is incorporated by reference into this Item 3. Except as set forth therein, we are not a party to, nor is any of our property the subject of,
any matenal pending legal proceedings.

As previously disclosed, in July 2014, we voluntarily contacted the SEC to advise it of the determination by our former registered public accounting
firm, Emst & Young LLP (“EY™), that it was not independent of us due solely to an inappropnate personal relationship between an EY partner, who until June
30, 2014 was the lead audit partner on our 2014 audit and quarterly review and was previously an audit engagement partner on our 2013 and 2012 audits,
and an individual in a financial reporting oversight role at our company. We have cooperated with the SEC and intend to continue to do so with respect to its
inquines related to this matter. At this time, the matter is ongoing and we cannot reasonably assess its timing or outcorme.

ITEMA4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
PART II
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitic..c

Market Information

Our common stock, par value $0.25 per share, is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol “VTR.” The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE and the dividends declared
per share.

Sales Price of

Common Stock Dividends

High Low Declared

First Quarter S 63.67 S 56.79 %
SccondQuartcr o S .. . : . . '. g S : 68.40" . ___6!229 G e
Third Quarter ) 66.04 60.70
Fourth Quarter ' L . 74.44 6248
2015
First Quarter . . P T P o s 8095 § 69.12  § - 079
Second Quarter 76.90 61.82
Thid Quantet . © R S 68.52 52.66
Fourth Quarter 58.38 49 68

As of February 10, 2016, we had 336,070,352 shares of our common stock outstanding held by approximately 5,102 stockholders of record.

Dividends and Distributions

We pay regular quarterly dividends to holders of our common stock to comply with the provisions of the Code goveming REITs. On February 12,
2016, our Board of Directors declared the first quarterly installment of our 2016 dividend on our common stock in the amount of $0.73 per share, payable in
cash on March 31,2016 to stockholders of record on March 7, 2015. We expect to distributc at least 100% of our taxable net income, after the use of any net
operating loss carryforwards, to our stockliolders for 2016. See “Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations—Requirements for Qualification as a REIT
--Annual Distribution Requirements” included in Part I, Item [ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

39




In general, our Board of Directors makes decisions regarding the nature, frequency and amount of our dividends on a quarterly basis Because the Board
considers many factors when making these decisions, including our present and (uture liquidity needs, our current and projected financial condition and
results of operations and the performance and credit quality of our tenants, operators, borrowers and managers, we cannot assure you that we will maintain the
practice of paying regular quarterly dividends to continue to qualify as a REIT. Please sec “Cautionary Statements™ and the risk factors included in Part 1,
Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description of other factors that may affect our distribution policy.

Prior to its suspension 1n July 2014, our stockholders were entitled to reinvest all or 2 portion of any cash distribution on their shares of our common
stock by participating in our Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP™), subjeci to the terms of the plan. See “Note 1 7—Pennanent and
Temporary Equity” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We¢ may determine
whether or not to reinstate the DRIP at any time, in our sole discretion.

Director and Employee Stock Sales

Certain of our dircctors, executive officers and other employces have adopted and, from time to time in the future, may adopt non-discretionary, written
trading plans that comply with Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act, or otherwise monetize, gift or transfer their equity-based compensation. Thesc
transactions typically are conducted for estate, tax and financial planning purposes and are subject to compliance with our Amended and Restated Securities
Trading Policy and Procedures (“Securities Trading Policy™), the minimum stock ownership requirements contained in our Guidehnes on Governance and all
applicablc laws and regulations. ’

Our Sccurities Trading Policy expressly prohibits our directors, executive officers and employees from buying or selling derivatives with respect to our
sccurities or other financial instruments that are designed to hedge or offset a decrease in the market value of our securities and from engaging in short sales
with respect to our securities. In addition, our Securitics Trading Policy prohibits our directors and executive officers from holding our secunitics in margin
accounts or pledging our secuntics to secure loans without the prior approval of our Audit and Compliance Committee. Each of our executive officers has
advised us that he or she is in compliance with the Securities Trading Policy and has not pledged any of our cquity securitics to secure margin or other loans.

Stock Repurchases
The table below summarizes repurchases of our common stock made during the quarter ended December 31,2015:

Number of Shares Average Price
Repurchased (1) Per Share
TN R

s L 564l

(1) Repurchascs represent shares withheld to pay taxes on the vesting of restricted stock granted to employees under our 2006 Incentive Plan or 2012 Incenuve Plan or restricted
stock units granted to employees under the Nationwide Health Properties, Inc. (“NHP™) 2005 Performance Incentive Plan and assumed by us in connection with our acquisition of
NHP. The value of the shares withheld is the closing price of our common stock on the date the vesting or exercise occurred (or, if not a trading day, the immediately preceding
trading day) or the fair market value of our common stock at the time of the exercise, as the case may be.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitics

On January 16,2015, in connection with our acquisition of HCT, each of the 7,057,271 issued and outstanding limited partnership units of American
Rcalty Capital Healthcare Trust Operating Partnership, L.P. (subsequently renamed Ventas Realty Capital Healthcare Trust Operating Partnership, L.P.), a
limited partnership in which HCT was the sole general partner prior to the acquisition, was converted into a newly created class of limited partnership units
(“Class C Units”) at the 0.1688 exchange ratio payablc to HCT stockholders in the acquisition, net of any Class C Units withheld to pay taxes. The Class C
Units may be redeemed at the clection of the holder for one share of our common stock per unit or, at our option, an equivalent amount in cash, subject to
adjustment in certain circumstances. The Class C Units were issued solely to “accredited investors™ (as such term is defined in Rule 501 under the Sccurities
Act) in reliance on the excmption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total retum (including dividends) to the holders of our common stock from December 31,
2010 through December 31,2015, with the cumulative total retumms of the NYSE Composite Index, the FTSE NAREIT Composite REIT Index (the
“Composite REIT Index”) and the S&P 500 Index over the same period. The comparison assumes $100 was imvested on December 31, 2010 in our common
stock and in cach of the foregoing indexes and assumes reinvestment of dividends, as applicable. We have included the NYSE Composite Index in the
performance graph because our common stock is listed on the NYSE, and we have included the S&P 500 Index because we are a member of the S&P 500. We
have included the Composite REIT Index because we believe that it is most representative of the industrics in which we compete, or otherwise provides a fair
basis for companson with us, and is therefore particularly refevant to an assessment of our performance. The figures i the table below are rounded to the
nearest dollar.

12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 123172015

Ventas ¢

NYSE Composite Index
Compésité:REIT Index.-

S&P 500 Index $118.44

$156.78 $178.22 5180.67
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

You should read the following selected financial data in conjunction with *Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” included in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as acquisitions, dispositions, changes in accounting policies and other items may nnpact the comparability of the financial
data.

As of and For the Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

OperitingData:

1,346,046 § 1,138,457 1,036,356 894 495- 596,445

T elA

367114 ; 199,801
7 H19 ' 966,81

115,083

Net income attributable to common
stockholders.

1.54

L2745

Dllulcd

Dwndcnds dcclarcd per common share
Other Data
Net cas'h provndcd by- opcmtmg actlvmcs
Net cash used in investing activities
th cash prowg:led b (uscd in); ﬁnancmg

D1,94755 8 1. 9528167 S
(1,282,760) (2.169,689)

114,996 1198914 i

actlvmcs o . . AA04DL
FFO(l) 1,365,408 1 273 680 1,208,458 1,024,567 824,851
‘Nommnalized FFO (1) s U493,683 T 0 13300088 0 1,220,709 1,120235 : 176,963

B.:lance Sheet Data

Real estate investments, at cost $ .20;196/770- .8 19,798,805 §  19,745607%:S - 17,830.262

Cash and cash Lquuvalents 55,348 57,690 67,908 45,807
Total assets o _ 8- -1 215165913 - 18,706,921 18,980,000 - ©  '17271;910°
Senior notes payable and other debt 11,206,996 10,844,351 8,295,908 8,413,646 6,429,116

(1) Webclieve that net income, as defined by U.S. genemally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™), is the most appropriatc camings mcasurcment.
However, we consider Funds From Operations (“FFO”) and normalized FFO to be
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appropriate measures of operating performance of an equity REIT In particular, we believe that normalized FFQ is uscful because 1t allows investors,
analysts and our management to compare our operating performance to the operating performance of other real estate companies and between periods on
a consistent basis without having to account for differences caused by unanticipated items and other cvents such as transactions and litigation. In some
cases, we provide infornmation about identificd non-cash components of FFO and nommalized FFO because it allows investors, analysts and our
management to asscss the impact of those items on our financial statements.

We use the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) definition of FFO. NAREIT defines FFO as net income (computed 1n
accordance with GAAD), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of real estate property, including gain on re-measurement of equity method investments,
and ympaiment write-downs of depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated
partnerships and joint ventures. Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will be calculated to reflect FFO on the same basis. We
define normalized FFO as FFO excluding the following income and expense items (which may be recurming in nature): (a) merger-related costs and
expenscs, including amortization of intangibles, transition and intcgration expenses, and deal costs and expenscs, including expenses and recoveries
relating to our acquisition lawsuits; (b) the impact of any expenses related to asset impairment and valuation allowances, the write-off of unamortized
deferred financing fees, or additional costs, expenses, discounts, make-whole payments, penalties or premiums incurred as a result of carly retircment or
payment of our debt; (c) the non-cash effect of income tax benefits or expenses and derivative transactions that have non-cash mark-to-market impacts on
our Consolidated Statements of Income; (d) the impact of future acquisitions, divestitures (including pursuant to tenant options to purchase) and capital
transactions; (e) the financial impact of contingent consideration, severance-related costs, charitable donations made to the Ventas Charitable
Foundation, gains and losses for non-opcrational forcign currency hedge agreements and changes in the fair value of financial instraments; and (f)
expenses related to the re-audit and re-review in 2014 of our historical financial statements and rclated matters

FFO and normalized FFO presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, or otherwise disclosed by us, may not be comparable to FFO and normalized
FFO presented by other real estate companies due to the fact that not all real estate companies use the same definitions. FFO and normalized FFO (or
cither measure adjusted for non-cash items) should not be considered as altematives to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP) as indicators
of our financial performance or as altematives to cash flow from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) as measures of our liquidity,
nor are FFO and normalized FFFO (or cither measure adjusted for non-cash items) nccessarily indicative of sufficient cash flow to fund all of our needs. See
*“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opcrations—Funds From Operations and Normalized Funds from
Operations” included in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a reconciliation of FFO and normalized FFO to our GAAP earnings.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion provides information that management belicves is relevant to an understanding and assessment of the consolidated financial
condition and results of operations of Ventas, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, unless otherwisc indicated or except where the context otherwise requires,
“we,” “us” or “our”). You should rcad this discussion in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as it will help you understand:

v

¢ Ourcompany and the environment in which we operate;

«  Our2015 highlights and other recent developments; B
+  OQurcritical accounting policics and estimates;

»  OQurresults of operations for the last three years;

+  How we manage our assets and liabilities;

< Ouvrliquidity and capital resources;

«  Qurcash flows; and .
«  Our future contractual obligations.

Corporate and Operating Environment

We are a real estate investment trust (“REIT”") with a highly diversified portfolio of scniors housing and healthcare properties located throughout the
United States, Canada and the United Kingdom. As of December 31, 2015, we owned approximately 1,300 properties (including properties classified as held
for sale), consisting of seniors housing communities,
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medical office butldings (*MOBs™), skilled nursing facilities, specialty hospitals and general acute care hospitals, and we had four properties under
development. We are an S&P 500 company and currently headquartered 1n Chicago, IHinois.

We primarily invest in senjors housing and healtheare propertics through acquisitions and lease our propertics to unaffiliated tenants or operate them
through independent third-party managers. As of December 31,2015, we leased a total of 607 properties (excluding MOBs and propertics classified as held
for sale) to various healthcare operating companies under “triple-nct” or “absolute-net” leases that obligate the tenants to pay all property-related expenses,
including maintenance, utilities, repairs, taxcs, insurance and capital expenditures, and we engaged independent operators, such as Atria Senior Living, Inc.
(“Atria”) and Surrise Senior Living, LLC {together with its subsidiaries, “Suniise™), to manage 304 of our seniots housing communitics {cxcluding propertics
classificd as héld for sale) for us pursuant to long-term management agreements. Our three largest tenants, Brookdale Senior Living Inc. (together with its
subsidiarics, “Brookdale Senior Living™), Kindred Healthcare, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Kindred™) and Ardent Health Pantners, LLC (together with
its subsidiarics, “Ardent™), lcased from us 140 propertics (excluding six propertics owned through investments in unconsolidated entities and one property
managed by Brookdale Senior Living pursuant to a long-term management agreement), 76 propertics and ten properties, respectively, as of December 31,
2015.

Through our Lillibridge Healthcare Services, Inc. (“Lillibridge™) subsidiary and our ownership interest in PMB Real Estate Services LLC (“PMBRES”),
we also provide MOB management, lcasing, marketing, facility development and advisory scrvices to highly rated hospitals and health systems throughout
the United States. In addition, from time o time, we make secured and non-mortgage loans and other investments relating to seniors housing and healthcare
operators or propertics.

We conduct our operations through three reportable business segments: triple-net leased propertices; senior living operations; and MOB operations. See
“Note 20—Segment Information” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As of December 31, 2015, our consolidated portfolio included 100% owncrship interests in 1,190 properties and controlling joint venture interests in
50 propertics, and we had non-controlling ownership interests in 41 properties through investments in unconsolidated entities. Through Lillibridge and
PMBRES, we provided management and leasing services to third partics with respect to 79 MOBs as of December 31,2015,

We aim to enhance sharcholder value by delivering consistent, superior total retums through a strategy of: (1) generating reliable and growing cash
flows; (2) maintaining a balanced, diversified portfolio of high-quality assets; and (3) preserving our financial strength, flexibility and liquidity.

Our ability to access capital in a timcly and cost-effective manner is critical to the success of our business strategy because it affects our ability to
satisfy existing obligations, including the repayment of maturing indebtedness, and to make future investments. Factors such as general market conditions,
interest rates, credit ratings on our securities, expectations of our potential future eamings and cash distributions, and the trading price of our common stock
that arc beyond our control and fluctuate over time all impact our access to and cost of external capital. For that rcason, we generally attempt to match the
long-term duration of our investments in real property with long-term financing through the issuance of shares of our common stock or the incumrence of
long-term fixed rate debt. At December 31,2015, 19.3% of our consolidated debt (excluding debt related to propertics classified as held for sale) was variable
rate debt.

2015 Highlights and Other Recent Developments

Investments and Dispositions

*  In January 2015, we acquired American Realty Capital Healthcarc Trust, Inc. (*HCT”) in a stock and cash transaction, which added 152 properties to
our portfoli0. We funded the transaction through the issuance of approximately 28.4 million shares of our common stock at $78.00 per share and 1.1
million limited partnership units.

*  On August 4,2015, we completed our acquisition of Ardent Medical Services, Inc. (“AHS”) and simultaneous scparation and sale of the Ardent
hospital opcrating company (Ardent Health Partners, LLC, together with its subsidiaries “Ardent”) to a consortium composed of an entity controlled
by Equity Group Investments, Ardent’s management team and us. As of the acquisition date, we recorded the estimated fair value of our investment
in owned hospital and other real estate of approximately $1.3 billion.. At closing, we paid $26.3 million for our 9.9% interest in Ardent, which
represents our cstimate of the acquisition date fair value of this interest. Upon closing, we entered into a long-term triple-net master lease with Ardent
to opcmte hospuals and other real estate we acqunred

»  During 2015, we made other investments totaling approximately $611.7 million, including the acquisition of eleven triple-net leased properties;
eleven MOBs; and 12 skilled nursing facilities (all of which were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off (as defined below)).
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During 2015, we sold 39 triple-net leased properties and 26 MOBs for aggrepate consideration of $54 1.0 million, including a $6.0 mithion lease
termination fee

During 2015, we received aggregate proceeds of $173.8 million in final repayment of loans teccivable and sales of bonds we held, and recognized
gains aggregating $7.7 million.

Capital and Dividends

In January 2015, we issued and sold 3,750,202 sharcs of common stock under our previous “at-the-market™ (*“ATM™) cquity offcring program for
aggregate net proceeds of $285 .4 million, after sales agent commissions of $4.4 million Through the remainder of 2015 and 1n the first quarter of
2016 we have issued and sold a total of 5,084,302 shares of our common stock under our ATM equity offering program for aggregate net proceeds of
$297.0 million, after sales agent commissions of $4.5 million.

In January 2015, we issued and sold $1.1 billion of senior notes with a weighted average interest rate below 3.7% and a weighted average maturnity
of 15 years. The issuances were composed of $900 million aggregate principal amount of USD senior notes and CAD notes of 250 million.

In July 2015, we issued and sold $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.125% senior notes duc 2026 at a public offering price equal to
99.218% of par, for total procceds of $496.1 million before the underwriting discount and expenses.

In August 2015, we completed a $900 million five ycar term loan having a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.0 basis points (the “Ardent Term
Loan”). The term loan matutes in 2020.

In 2015, we repaid $305.0 million of our unsecured term loan due 2019 and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.6 million
representing a write-off of the then unamortized deferred financing fees. Also, in May 2015, we repaid in full, at par, $234.4 million aggregate
principal amount then outstanding of our 6% senior notes due 2015.

In 2015, we paid an annual cash dividend on our common stock of $3.04 per share. On August 17,2015, we also distnbuted a stock dividend of one
Carc Capital Properties, Inc. (“CCP™) common share for cvery four shares of Ventas common stock held as of the distribution record date of August
10, 2015. The stock dividend was valued at $8.51 per Ventas share based on the opening price of CCP stock on its first day of regular-way trading
on the New York Stock Exchange.

In February 2016, we entered into a $200 million notional amount interest rate swap with a maturity of August 3, 2020 that cffectively converts
LIBOR-based floating rate debt to fixed rate debt, setting LIBOR at 1.132% through the maturity date of the swap. The matunity date of the Ardent
Term Loan is also August 3, 2020.

Spin-Off

In August 2015, we completed the spin off of most of our post-acute/skilled nursing facility portfolio into an independent, publicly traded REIT
named Care Capital Properties, Inc. (the “CCP Spin-Off"). The historical results of operations of the CCP properties as well as the related assets and
liabilities are prescnted as discontinucd operations for all periods presented in this Annual Report on Form §0-K.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally

accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™) sct forth in the Accounting Standards Codification (*ASC”), as published by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB™). GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions regarding future events that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. We basc these cstimates on our expericnce and assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. However, if our judgment or
interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to various transactions or other matters had becen different, we may have applied a different accounting
treatment, resulting in a different presentation of our financial statements. We periodically reevaluate our estimates and assumptions, and in the event they
prove to be different from actual results, we make adjustments in subsequent periods to reflect more current estimates and assumptions about matters that are
inhcrently uncertain, We believe that the critical accounting policies described below, among others, affect our more significant
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estimates and judgments used in the preparation ol our financial statements. For more information regarding our critical accounting policies, sce “Note 2—
Accounting Polictes” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements included 1n Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly
owned subsidiaries and the joint venture entitics over which we exercise control. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consoltdation, and our net camings arc reduced by the portion of net camings attributable to noncontrolling interests.

GAAP requires us to identify entities for which control is achieved through means other than voting nﬂhtv and to determine which business enteprise
is the primary beneficiary of variable interest entities (“VIEs™). A VIE is broadly defined as an entity with one or more of the following characteristics: (a) the
total equity investment at risk is insufticient to {inance the entity’s activities without additional subordinated financial support; (b) as a group, the holders of
the equity investment at risk lack (i) the ability to make decisions about the entity’s activities through voting or similarrights, (ii) the obligation to absorb
the expected losses of the entity, or (iii) the right to receive the expected residual retums of the entity; and (c) the equity investors have voting rights that are
not proportional to their cconomic interests, and substantially all of the entity’s activities either involve, or are conducted on behalf of, an investor that has
disproportionately few voling rights. We consolidate our investment in a VIE when we determine that we are its primary beneficiary. We may change our
original assessment of a VIE upon subsequent events such as the modification of contractual arrangements that affects the characteristics or adequacy of the
entity’s equity investments at risk and the disposition of all or a portion of an interest held by the primary beneficiary.

We identify the primary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprise that has both: (i) the power to direct the activitics of the VIE that most significantly
impact the entity’s economic performance; and (ii) the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benelfits of the VIE that could be significant to the
entity. We perform this analysis on an ongoing basis.

As it relates to investments in joint ventures, GAAP may preclude consolidation by the sole general partner in certain circumstances based on the type
of rights held by the limited partner(s). We assess limited partners’ rights and their impact on the presumption of control of the limited partnership by the sole
general partner when an investor becomes the sole gencral partner, and we perform a reassessment when there is a change to the terms or in the excrcisability
of the nights of the limited partners, the sole gencral partner increases or decreascs its ownership of limited partnership interests, or there is an increase or
decrease in the number of outstanding limited partnership interests. We also apply this guidance to managing member interests in limited liability
companies.

Business Combinations

We account foracquisitions using the acquisition method and record the cost of the businesses acquired among tangible and recognized intangible
assets and liabilities based upon their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date. Recognized intangibles primarily include the value of in-place lcases,
acquired lease contracts, tenant and customer relationships, tradeé names/trademarks and goodwill. We do not amortize goodwill, which represents the excess
of the purchase pricc paid over the fair value of the net assets of the acquiréd business and is included in other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Our method for recording the purchase price to acquired investments in real estate requires us to make subjective assessments for determining fair value -
of'the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. This includes determining the valuc of the buildings, land and improvements, construction in progress, ground
leases, tenant improvements, in-place leascs, abgve and/or below market leascs, purchase option intangible assets and/or liabilities, and any debt assumed.
These estimates require significant judgment and in some cases involve complex calculations. These assessments directly impact our results of operations, as
amounts estimated for certain assets and liabilitics have different depreciation or amortization lives. In addition, we amortize the value assigned to above
and/or below market leases as a componcnt'of revenuc, unlike in-placé I¢aseés and other intangibles, which we include in depreciation and amortization in our

" Consolidated Statements of Income.

We estimate the fair value of buildings acquired on an as-if-vacant basis, or replacement cost basis, and depreciatc the building value over the
estimated remaining life of the building, generally not to excecd 35 years. We determine the fair value of other fixed assets, such as site improvements and
fumiture, fixtures and equipment, based upon the replacement cost and depreciate such value over the assets’ estimated remaining uscful lives as determined
at the applicable acquisition date. We determine the value of land either by consndenng the sales prices of similar propertics in recent transactions or based
on intemal analysis of recently acquired and existing comparable properties within our portfolio. We generally detemmine the value of construction in
progress based upan_the replacement cost. However, for.certain.acquired-properties-that-arc part of a-ground-up development, we determine-fair value-by
using the same valuation approach as for all other properties and deducting the estimated cost to complete the development. During the remaining
construction peried, we capitalize interest expense until the
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development has reached substantial completion Construction in progress, including capitalized interest, is not depreciated until the development has
reached substantial completion.

The fair value of acquired lease-related intangibles, if any, reflects: (1) the estimated value of any above and/or below market lcases, determined by
discounting the difference between the estimated market rent and in-place lease rent; and (ii) the estimated value of in-place leases related to the cost to
obtain tenants, including leasing commissions, and an estimated value of the absorption period to reflect the value of the rent and recovery costs foregone
during a reasonable lease-up pertod as if the acquired space was vacant. We amortize any acquired leasc-related intangibles to revenue or ameontization
cxpensc over the remaining life of the associated 1ease plus any assumed bargain renewal periods. If a lease is terminated prior to its stated expiration ornot
renewed upon expiration, we recognize all unamortized lease-related intangibles associated with that lease in opcrations at that time.

We estimate the fair value of purchase option intangible assets and liabilities by discounting the difference between the applicable property’s
acquisition date fair value and an estimate of its future option price. We do not amortize the resulting intangible asset or liability over the term of the lease,
but rather adjust the recognized value of the asset or liability upon sale.

We estimate the fair value of tenant or other customer rclationships acquired, if any, by considering the nature and extent of existing business
rclationships with the tenant or customer, growth prospects for developing new business with the tenant or customer, the tenant’s credit quality, expectations
of lease renewals with the tenant, and the potential for significant, additional futurc leasing amrangements with the tenant, and we amortize that value over the
cxpected life of the associated arangements or leases, including the remaining terms of the related leases and any expected renewal periods. We estimate the
fair value of trade names and trademarks using a royalty ratc methodology and amortize that value over the estimated useful life of the trade name or
trademark.

In connection with a business combination, we may assume rights and obligations under certain lease agreements pursuant to which we become the
lessec of a given property. We assume the lease classification previously determined by the prior lessee absent a modification in the assumed lease agreement.
We assess assumed operating lcases, including ground leases, to determine whether the lease terms are favorable or unfavorable to us given current market
conditions on the acquisition date. To the extent the lease terms are favorable orunfavorable relative to market conditions on the acquisition date, we
recognize an intangible assct or liability, as applicable, at fair value and amortize that asset or liability (excluding purchase option intangibles) to interest or
rental expensc in our Consolidated Statements of Income over the applicable lease term. We include all leasc-related intangible assets and liabilities within
acquired lease intangibles and accounts payable and other liabilities, respectively, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We determine the fair value of loans receivable acquired in connection with a business combination by discounting the estimated future cash flows
using current interest rates at which similar loans on the same terms with the same length to maturity would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings.
We do not establish a valuation allowance at the acquisition date because the estimated future cash flows already reflect our judgment regarding their
uncertainty. We recognize the difference between the acquisition date fair value and the total expected cash flows as interest income using an effective
interest method over the life of the applicable loan. Subsequent to the acquisition date, we evaluate changes regarding the uncertainty of future cash flows
and the need for a valuation allowance, as appropriate.

We estimate the fair value of noncontrolling interests assumed consistent with the manner in which we value all of the underlying assets and liabilities.

We basc the instial carrying value of investments in unconsolidated entities on the fair value of the assets at the time we acquired the joint venture
interest. We estimate fair values for our equity method investments based on discounted cash flow models that include all estimated cash inflows and
outflows over a specified holding period and, where applicable, any estimated debt premiums or discounts. The capitalization rates, discount rates and credit
spreads we use in these models are based upon assumptions that we believe to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective
mvestments.

We gencrally amortize any difference between our cost basis and the basis reflected at the joint venture level over the lives of the related asscts and
liabilities and include that amortization in our share of income or loss from unconsolidated entities. For camings of cquity method investments with pro rata
distribution allocations, net income or loss is allocated between the partners in the joint venture based on their respective stated ownership percentages. In
other instances, net income or loss is allocated between the partners in the joint venture based on the hypothetical Liquidation at book value method.

We calculate the fair value of long-term debt by discounting the remaining contractual cash flows on each instrument at the current market rate for
those borrowings, which we approximate based on the rate at which we would expect to incur a replacement instrument on the date of acquisition, and
recognize any fair value adjustments rclated to long-term debt as effective yicld adjustments over the remaining term of the instrument.
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Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

We periodically evaluate our long-lived assets, primarily consisting of investments in real estate, for impairment indicators. If indicators of impatrment
arc present, we evaluate the carrying value of the related real cstate investments in relation to the futurc undiscounted cash flows of the underlying
opcrations. In performing this evaluation, we consider market conditions and our current intentions with respect to holding or disposing of the asset. We
adjust the net book valuc of leased properties and other long-lived assets to fair value if the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows, including
sales proceeds, is Iess than book valuc. We recognize an impairment loss at the time we make any such determination.

If impairment indicators arise with respect to intangible assets with finite useful lives, we evaluate impairment by companng the carrying amount of the
asset to the estimated foture undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assct. If estimated future undiscounted net cash flows arc less than
the carrying amount of the assct, then we estimate the fair value of the asset and compare the estimated fair value to the mtangible assct’s camrying value. We
recognize any shortfall from camying valuc as an impairment loss in the current period.

We evaluate our investments in unconsolidated entities for impainment at least annually, and whencver events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of our investment may exceed its fair value. If we determine that a decline in the fair value of our investment in an unconsolidated
entity is other-than-temporary, and if such reduced fair value is below the carrying value, we record an impairment.

We test goodwill for impairment at lcast annually, and more frequently if indicators arise. We first assess qualitative factors, such as current
macrocconomic conditions, state of the equity and capital markets and our overall financial and operating performance, to determine the likelihood that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If we determine it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, we proceed with the two-step approach to evaluating impairment. First, we estimate the fair value of the reporting unit and compare it to the
reporting unit’s carrying valuc. If the carrying valuc exceeds fair value, we proceed with the second step, which requires us to assign the fair value of the
reporting unit to all ofthe assets and liabilities of the reporting unit as if it had been acquired in a business combination at the date of the impairment test.
The excess fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to the assets and liabilities is the implied value of goodwill and is used to determine the
amount of impairment. We recognize an impairment loss to the extent the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the implicd value in the current period.

Estimates of fair valuc used in our evaluation of goodwill (if necessary based on our qualitative assessment), investments in rcal estate, investments in
unconsolidated cntities and intangible asscts are based upon discounted future cash flow projections or other acceptable valuation techniques that are based,
in tum, upon all available evidence including level three inputs, such as revenue and expense growth rates, estimates of future cash flows, capitalization
rates, discount rates, general economic conditions and trends, or other available market data. Our ability to accurately predict future operating results and
cash flows and to estimatc and allocate fair valucs impacts the timing and recognition of impairments. While we believe our assumptions are reasonable,
changes in these assumptions may have a matcrial impact on our financial results.

Loans Receivable

We record loans receivable, other than thosc acquired in connection with a business combination, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets (either in
sccured loans receivable and investments, net or other assets, in the case of non-mortgage loans receivable) at the unpaid principal balance, net of any
deferred origination fees, purchase discounts or premiums and valuation allowances. We amortize net deferred origination fees, which are comprised of loan
fees collected from the borrower net of certain direct costs, and purchase discounts or premiums over the contractual life of the loan using the effective
interest method and immediately recognize in income any unamortized balances if the loan is repaid before its contractual maturity.

We regularly evaluate the collectibility of loans receivable based on factors such as corporate and facility-level financial and operational reports,
compliance with financial covenants sct forth in the applicable loan agreement, the financial strength of the borrower and any guarantor, the payment history
of the borrower and current economic conditions. If our evaluation of these factors indicates it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due
under the terms of the applicable loan agreement, we provide a reserve against the portion of the receivable that we estimate may not be collected.

Fair Value

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and we determine fair value based on the assumptions that we expect
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considerihg market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, GAAP
establishies @ fairvalu€ tiierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within levels one and two of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market
participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within level three of the hierarchy).
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Level one inputs utilize unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilhities in active markets that we have the ability to access. Level two inputs
consist of inputs other than quoted pnces included in level one that are directly or indirectly observable for the assct or iability. Level two inputs may
include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and other inputs for the asset or liabslity that are observable at commonly quoted
intervals, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and yield curves. Level three inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or hiability, which typically
arc based on our own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity. If the determination of the [air value measurement 1s based on inputs from
different levels of the hicrarchy, the Ievel within which the entire fair value measurement falls 1s the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurcment in its entirety. If the volume and level of market activity for an assct or liability has decreased significantly relative to the normal market
activity for such asset or liability (or similar asscts or liabilities), then transactions or quoted prices may not accurately reflect fair value. In addition, if there is
evidence that a transaction for an asset or liability 1s not orderly, little, if any, weight is placed on that transaction price as an indicator of fair value. Our
asscssment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entircty requires judgment and considers factors spectfic to the assct or
liability.

Revenue Recognition
Triple-Net Leased Properties und MOB Operations

Certain of our triple-net leases and most of our MOB leases provide for periodic and determinable increases in base rent. We recognize base rental
revenues under these leases on a straight-line basis over the applicable lease term when collectibility is reasonably assured. Recognizing rental income on a
straight-line basis generally results in rccognized revenues during the first half of a lease term exceeding the cash amounts contractually due from our tenants,
creating a straight-line rent receivable that is included in other assets on our Consolidated Balance Shects.

Certain of our leases provide for periodic increases in base rent only if certain revenuc parameters or other substantive contingencies are met. We
recognize the increased rental revenue under these leases as the related parameters or contingencies are met, rather than on a straight-line basis over the
applicable lcase term.

Senior Living Operations

We recognize resident fees and services, other than move-in fees, monthly as services are provided. We recognize move-in fees on a straight-line basis
over the average resident stay. Our lease agreements with residents generally have terms of 12 to 18 months and are cancelable by the resident upon 30 days’
notice.

Other

We recognize interest income from loans and investments, including discounts and premiums, using the effective intcrest method when collectibility is
reasonably assured. We apply the effective intcrest method on a loan-by-loan basis and recognize discounts and premiums as yield adjustments over the
related loan term. We recognize interest income on an impaired loan to the extent our estimate of the fair value of the collateral is sufficient to support the
balance of the loan, other receivables and all related accrued interest. When the balance of the loan, other receivables and all related accrued interest ts equal
to our cstimate of the fair value of the collateral, we recognize interest income on a cash basis. We provide a reserve against an impaired loan to the extent our
total investment in the loan exceeds our cstimate of the fair value of the loan collateral.

We recognize income from rent, lease termination fees, development services, management advisory scrvices, and all other mcome when all of the
following criteria are met in accordance with Securnities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) Staff Accounting Bulletin 104: (1) the applicable agreement has
been fully executed and delivered; (ii) services have been rendered; (iii) the amount is fixed or determinable; and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Allowances

We assess the collectibility of our rent receivables, including straight-line rent reccivables. We base our assessment of the collectibility of rent
receivables (other than straight-linc rent receivables) on several factors, including, among other things, payment history, the financial strength of the tenant
and any guarantors, the value of the underlying collateral, if any, and curmrent economic conditions. If our evaluation of these factors indicates it is probable
that we will be unable to recover the full value of the receivable, we provide a reserve against the portion of the receivable that we estimate may not be
recovered. We also base our assessment of the collectibility of straight-linc rent receivables on several factors, including, among other things, the financial
strength of the tenant and any guarantors, the historical opcrations and operating trends of the property, the historical payment pattem of the tenant and the
type of property. If our evaluation of these factors indicates it is probable that we will be unable to receive the rent payments due in the future, we provide a
reserve against the recognized stright-line rent receivable asset for the portion, up to its full value, that we estimate may not be recovered. If we change our
assumptions or




estimates regarding the collectibility of future rent payments required by a lease, we may adjust our reserve to increase or reduce the rental revenue
recognized in the penod we make such change in our assumptions or estimates

Federal Income Tax

We have clected to be treated as a REIT under the applicable provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Codc™), for cvery year
beginning with the year ended December 31, 1999. Accordingly, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on net income that we distribute to our
stockholders, provided that we continuc to qualify as a REIT. However, with respect to certain of our subsidiaries that have clected 1o be treated as “taxable
REIT subsidiaries” (“TRSs”), we record income tax expense or benefit, as those entities are subject to federal income tax similar to regular corporations.
Certain foreign subsidiaries are subject to forcign income tax, although they did not elect to be treated as TRSs.

We account for deferred income taxes using the asset and liability method and recognize deferred tax asscts and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been included in our financial statements or tax retums. Under this method, we determine deferred tax assets and liabilities
based on the differences between the financial reponting and tax bases of asscts and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences arc expccted to reverse. Any increasc or decrease in the deferred tax liability that results from a change in circumstances, and that causes us to
change our judgment about expected future tax consequences of events, is included in the tax provision when such changes occur. Defested income taxes
also reflect the impact of operating loss and tax credit camryforwards. A valuation allowance is provided if we belicve it is more likely than not that all or
some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Any increase or decrease in the valuation allowance that results from a change in circumstances,
and that causcs us to change our judgment about the realizability of the related deferred tax assct, is included in the tax provision when such changes occur.

We rccognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax retum only ifit is more likely than not that the
tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authoritics, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such a position are mecasured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
scttiement. We recognize interest and penalties, if applicable, related to uncertain tax positions as part of income tax benefit (expense).

Recently Issued or Adopted Accounting Standards

In Apnl 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU) 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs (“ASU 2015-03),
which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance shect as a direct deduction from the camrying amount
of that debt liability, consistcnt with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected. Also in August
2015, the FASB issues ASU 2015-15, Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated With Line-of-Credit Arrangements
(“ASU 2015-15") which clarifics the SEC stafl’s position not objecting to an entity deferring and presenting debt issuance costs as an asset and subscquently
amortizing such costs, regardless of whether there are any outstanding bofrowings on the line-ofcredit arrangement. We adopted ASU 2015-03 and 2015-15
for the quarter ended September 30, 2015. There were deferred financing costs 0of $69.1 million and $60.3 million as of December 31,2015 and 2014,
respectively that are now classified within senior notes payable and other debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In Scptember 2015, the FASB issucd ASU 2015-16, Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments (“ASU 2015-16") to simplify the
accounting for business combinations, specifically as it relates to measurement-period adjustments. Acquiring entities in a business combination must
recognize measurement-period adjustments in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. Also, ASU 2015-16 requires entities to
prescnt separately on the face of the income statement (or disclose in the notes to the financial statements) the portion of the amount recorded in the cumrent
period camnings, by line item, that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts had been recognized
as of the acquisition datc. ASU 2015-16 is cffective for the Company beginning January 1, 2016 and is to be applied prospectively to measurement-period
adjustments that occur after the cffective date. We do not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial

statements.

In 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts With Customers (“ASU 2014-09), which outlines
a comprehensive modcl for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. ASU 2014-09 states that “an entity recognizes
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.” While ASU 2014-09 specifically references contracts with customers, it may apply to certain other
transactions such as the sale of real estate or equipment. In 2015, the FASB provided for a one-ycar deferral of the effective date for ASU 2014-09 which is
now cffcctive for us beginning January 1, 2018. We are continuing to evaluate this guidance; however, we do
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not expect its'adoption to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements, as a substantial portion of our revenue consists of rental income
from leasing arrangements, which are specifically excluded from ASU 2014-09.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis (*ASU 20§5-02"), which
makes certain changes to both the variable intercst model and the voting model, including changes to (1) the identification of variable interests (fees paid to
a decision maker or service provider), (2) the vanable interest entity characteristics for a limited partnership or similar entity and (3) the primary beneficiary
determination. ASU 2015-02 is effective for us beginning January 1, 2016. We arc continuing to evaluate this guidance; however, we do not expect its
adoption to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statcments.

Results of Operations

As of December 31, 2015, we operated through three reportable business segments: triple-nct leased properties, senior living operations and MOB
operations. In our triple-net leased propertics segment, we acquire and own seniors housing and healthcare properties throughout the United States and the
United Kingdom and lease those propertics to healthcare operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute-net” leases that obligate the tenants to pay all
property-rclated expenses. In our senior living opcerations scgment, we invest in seniors housing communities throughout the United States and Canada and
engage independent operators, such as Atria and Sunrise, to manage those communitics. In our MOB operations segment, we primarily acquire, own, develop,
lease, and manage MOBs. Information provided for “all other” includes income from loans and investments and other miscellancous income and various
corporate-level expenses not dircctly attributable to any of our three reportable business segments. Asscts included in “all other” consist primarily of
corporate assets, including cash, restricted cash, loans receivable and investments, and miscellaneous accounts receivable.

The historical results of operations of the CCP propertics as well as the related assets and liabilities are presented as discontinued operations in the

accompanying results of operations. Throughout this discussion, “continuing operations” does not include properties disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-
Off. :
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Years Ended December 31,2015 and 2014

The table below shows our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the cffect of changes in those results from period
to period on our net income attributable to common stockholders.

For the Year Ended
December 31, ’ Increase (Decrease) to Net Income

2015 2014 5 kA

{Dollars in thousands)

784234 3 ()79112 $

(121,738)
se0 P‘““>4"'P'
(43,304) (59 640)
(43,304) ety

Incomc bcforc loss from unconso]idatcd entities, income taxes,
discontinued opcrations, real estate dispositions and
nonconlrollmg mtcrcst 350,703 972

39):. 28y c 00)3:
8,732 30,5_52 >100
T0:359396; . 030243 ¢ o

(88,632)
© 610 e
(57,779) (12.1)
| R 79% e 145y - o (iR
Net income altnbutablc to common stockholders ) 417,843 § . 475,767 (57,924) (12.2)

Segment NOI—Triple-Net Leased Properties

NOI for our triple-net leased properties reportable business segment equals the rental income and other services revenue eamed from our triple-net
asscts. We incur no direct operating expenses for this segment.

The following table summarizes results of continuing operations in our triple-net Icascd properties reportable business segment:

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

2015 2014 s %

“(Dollars’in thousands)

Seﬁm’éntNOI—Trlple—Nel Leased Properties: T i _
Rental income ) $ 779,801 § 674,547 § 105,254 15.6%

Othier sérvices revenue ot 443 4,565, (132) @9)
Segment NOI 3 784234 § 679,112 105,122 155
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Triple-net leased properties segment NOl increased in 2015 over the prior year primarily due to rent from the propertics we acquired during 2015 and
2014, contractual ¢scalations in rent pursuant to the terms of our leases, and increases 1n base and other rent under certain of our leases.

In our triple-net leased properties segment, our revenues gencrally consist of fixed rental amounts (subject to annual contractual escalations) received
from our tenants in accordance with the applicable lease terms and do not vary based on the underlying opcrating performance of the propertics. Therefore,
while occupancy rates may affect the profitability of our tenants® operations, they do not have a direct impact on our revenues or financial results. The
following table scts forth average continuing occupancy rates related to the triple-net Ieased propertics we owned at December 31,2015 for the trailing 12
months ended September 30,2015 (which is the most recent information available to us from our tenants) and average continuing occupancy rates related to
the triple-net lcascd properties we owned at December 31, 2014 for the trailing 12 months ended September 30, 2014.

Specialty Hospitals .~
General Acute Care Hospitals

Number of Average Occupancy Number of Average Occupancy
Properties at for the Trailing 12 Months Properties at for the Trailing 12 Months
December 31, Ended September 30, Decewmber 31, Ended September 30,

2015 (1) 2015 (1) 2014 (1) 2014 (1)
T P - .':_8'872% T a8 . . 8 ;-.';:_8‘8-_.3_%.:
814 281 79.6
L TR IR 7561

_1.2,, . jy - -

(1) Excludes properties included in discontinued opcrations during 2015 and properties classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2015, non-stabilized
properties, properties owned through investments in unconsolidated entities and certain properties for which we do not receive occupancy information.
Also excludes propertics acquired during the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively, including propertics acquired as part of the 2015
AHS acquisition, and properties that transitioned operators for which we do not have cight full quarters of results subsequent to the transition.

The following table comparcs results of continuing operations for our 507 same-store triple-nct leased properties. Throughout this discussion, “same-
store” refers to properties that we owned for the full period in both comparison periods.

Rental income
Otﬁcr"s:c:ﬁj'it:‘,c‘.é-tpvcnﬁé S
Segment NOI

Segment NOI—Senior Living Operations

For the Year Ended Increase (Decrease) to Segment

December 31, NOI

2015 2014 s %

etit NOI--Triple-Net Leased

646,426 §

{Dollars in thousands)

28,540 '4.6'%
STz o @)y

617,886 §
S

4337

650,859 § 622,451 28,408 4.6

The following table summarizes results of continuing operations in our senior living operations reportable business segment:

Scgment NOI—Senior Living Operations:
Total revenues
Less:
Property-level operating expenses
Segment NOI

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI
2015 2014 s %
{Dollars in thousands)
S 1811,255  § 1,552,951 $ 258,304 16.6 %
(1,209,415) 1,036,556) (172,859) (16.7)
s 601,840 S 516,395 85,445 16.5
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Revenues attributed to our senior living operations segment consist of resident fees and services, which include all amounts eamed from residents at
our seniors housing communilties, such as rental fees related to resident leases, extended health care fees and other ancillary service income. Qur senior living
opcrations segment revenues increased 1n 2015 over the prior year primanly due to sensors housing communities we acquired during 2015 and 2014,

including the 2015 HCT acquisition and the 2014 acquisition of 29 semors housings communitics located in Canada from Holiday Retirement (the “Holiday

Canada Acquisition™).

Property-level operating expenses related to our senior living operations segment include 1abor, food, utilitics, marketing, management and other costs
ar priman}y duc to the acquircd propertics described above,

:d vear over ye

of operating the properties. Property-level op ng expenses also increased year over ye
increases in salarics, repairs & maintenance costs, real estate taxes and higher management fees primarily duc to increased revenues, partially offset by

decreased incentive fees and property insurance costs.
The following table compares results of continuing operations for our 236 same-store senior living operating communitics

For the Year Ended

December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

s %

2015 2014
{Dolars in thousands)

1485146 § 38275

5

1,523,421

The following table sets forth average unit occupancy rates and the average monthly revenue per occupied room related to continuing operations in our

senior living operations segment for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014:

Average Unit
Average Monthly Revenue Per

. Occupancy
Number of for the Year Occupied Room for the Year
Ended Ended

Properties at
December 31,

December 31, Dccember 31,

2015 2014

Total scmoxs_houSmg mmumtlcs

Same-store seniors housing commumncs 236 236
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Segment NOI—MOB Operations
The following table summarizes results of continuing operations in our MOB operations reportable business segment:

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

2015 2014 s %

(Dollars in thousands)

S.egiti.eht"l\{_(_)l__—MQ_B_(_)p_é_fatio_hg:",-—.. Jo

Rental income s 566245 § 463910 § 102335 221%
Medical office building services revenue -7 ho o 0T34 436 Ly o80T L1807 L s
Total revenues 600,681 486,439 114242 235
Less: - R St et s h e . R e
Property-level operating expenses : (174,225) (158,832) (15,393) 9.7
* Medical office building'services costs ¢ - (26.565) . - L (17,092)5 (9.473) T (55.4) .
Segment NOI s 399891 § 310,515 89,376 28.8

The increase in our MOB operations segment rental income in 2015 over the prior year is attributed primarily to the MOBs we acquired during 2015
and 2014 as well as same-store revenue growth and an increase in lease termination fees. The increase in our MOB property-level operating expenses is due
primarily to those acquired MOBs and increases in cleaning, administrative wages and real estate tax expenses, partially offset by decreascs in operating costs
resulting from ecxpense controls.

Medical office building scrvices revenue and costs both increased in 2015 over the prior year primarily due to increased construction activity during
2015 compared to 2014. Management fee revenue also increased due to insourcing completed during 2014 and 2015.
The following table compares results of continuing operations for our 275 same-store MOBs.

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

2015 2014 s %
(Dollars in thousands)

Same-Store Segment NOI—MOB Operations: . '

Rental income $ 450,463 $ 447,437 3,026 0.7%
Property-level opt?rating cxpeuscs . (152,533) (152,680) ) 147
SegmentNOI -+ . - . AR s . 297930 S .. 1294757 SR T I B

The following table sets forth occupancy rates and the annualized average rent per occupied square foot rclated to continuing operations in our MOB
operations scgment at and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Number of Annualized Average Rent Per
Properties at Occupancy at Occupied Square Foot for the
December 31, December 31, Year Ended Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Total MOBs . . ) 361 277 91.7% 902% . 830 $30
Same-store MOBs 275 275 90.8 912 31 31

Segment NOI—All Other
All other NOI consists solely of income from loans and investments. Income from loans and investments increased in 2015 over the prior year due

primarily to higher investment balances and prepayment income during 2015, partially offset by lower weighted average interest rates on loan balances in
2015 compared to 2014.
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Interest Expense

The $49 0 million increase in total mterest expense, including interest allocated to discontinued operations of $60.4 mitlion and $86.5 million for the
years cnded December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, is attributed pnmanly to $53.6 million of additional interest duc to higher debt balances, partially
offset by a $6.5 million reduction in interest due to lower cffective interest rates, including the amortization of any fair value adjustments. Our effective
interest ratc was 3.6% for 2015, compared to 3.7% for 2014.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense increased $168.8 million in 2015 primanly due to the real estate acquisitions we made in 2014 and 2015.
\ General, Administrative and Professional Fees

General, administrative and professional fees increased $6.3 million in 2015 primarily duc to our increased employee head count as a result of
organizational growth, partially offset by savings related to the CCP Spin-Off.
Loss on Extinguishment of Debt, Net

The loss on extinguishment of debt, net in 2015 and 2014 resulted primarily from various debt repayments we made to improve our credit profile. The
2015 repayments were made primarily with proceeds from the distribution paid to us at the time of the CCP Spin-Off.

Merger-Related Expenses and Deal Costs
Merger-related expenses and deal costs in both years consist of transition, integration, dcal and severance-related expenses primarily related to pending

and consummated transactions required by GAAP to be expensed rather than capitalized into the asset value. The $59.6 million increase in merger-related
expenses and deal costs in 2015 over the prior year is primarily due to increased 2015 investment activity and costs related to CCP Spin-Off.

Other

Other primarily includes building rent cxpense paid to lease certain of our senior living operating communitics, as well as certain unreimbursable
expenses related to our triple-net lcased portfolio and expenses related to the re-audit and re-review of our historical financial statements.

Income Tax Benefit

Income tax bencefit for 2015 was due primarily to the income tax bencfit of ordinary losses of certain taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS” or “TRS
cntities™). These losses were mainly attributable to the depreciation and amortization of fixed and intangible assets recorded as deferred tax liabilities in
purchasc accounting. Income tax benefit for 2014 was due primarily to the income tax benefit of ordinary losscs and restructuring related to one of our TRS
cntities.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations primarily relates to the operations of assets and liabilities disposcd of as part of the CCP Spin-Off. The decrease in income
from discontinued operations for 2015 compared to 2014 is primarily the result of $46.4 nullion of transaction and scparation costs associated with the spin.
Also, 2014 includes a full year of net income for the CCP operations whereas 2015 only includes net income through August 17,2015, the date of the CCP
Spin-Off.

Gain on Real Estate Dispositions

The gain on rcal estate dispositions in 2015 and 2014 primarily relates to the sale of 45 and ten propertics, respectively.




Years Ended December 31,2014 and 2013

The table below shows our results of operations for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013 and the effeet of changes in those results from penod
to period on our net income attnbutable to common stockholders.

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Net Income

2014 2013 s Ya

(Dollars in thousands)

SegmentNOL: R C
Triple-Net Leased Properties 679,112 § 590485 § 88,627
* Senior Living Operations: _ S T 516395 0 449321 $ 67,074
MOB Operations 310,515 300,861 9,654
: All chcr S L R TR T I A T © 054,048 - ohi 55,688 A (],640) R N v X,
Total scgment NOI 1,560,070 1,396,355 163,715
Inferest and othieringome <+~ - L R - 4263 0 2,022 2241
Interest expense ’ (292,065) (249,009) (43,056)
Depreciation and arortization SRR (725216) .. (629.908) . (95308),
General, administrative and professional fees (121,738) (115,083) (6,655)
Loss on extinguishment 6f debt; nét - BRI S (5564) 0 LT u201) (4,363) } 0)
Merger-related expenses and deal costs " (43,304) (21,634) (21,670) (>100)
Other - =i =0 T SR L EEQ5143) 5 . (11364) (8379) " - HTI(dB3) ¢
Income before loss from unconsolidated cntitics, income taxes,
discontinued opcerations, real estate dispositions and
noncontrolling intercst 350,703 364,178 (13,475) 3.7
Loss from unconsolidated entitics S TR a3y T (508) - 369 126
Income tax benefit ' 8,732 11,828 (3,096) 26.2)
’ Income from continuing operations . st < 1359206 ... - 375498 - - (16202 - . - :(43)..
Discontinued operations 99,735 79,171 20,564 26.0
Gain on real estate dispositions’ B g : 17,970 - L Te70Y e nm e
Net income 477,001 454,669 22332
Net incomé dttributable to noncontrolling interest e 1234 o - 1160 74) T (64).
Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 475767 §$ 453,509 22258 49

nm—not meaningful

Segment NOI—Triple-Net Leased Properties

The following table summanzes results of continuing operations in our triple-nct leased propertics reportable business segment:

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase to Segment NOI

2014 2013 s %

(Dollars in thousands)

Segment NOI—Triple-Net Leased Properties: ; et .
Rental income $ 674,547 $ 586,016 $ 88,531 15.1%

* Other services revenue 4,565 ’ 4,469 96 2.1
Segment NOI 3 679,112 $ 590,485 88,627 150

Triple-net leased propertics segment NOI increased in 2014 over the prior year primarily due to rent from the properties we acquired durnng 2014 and
2013, contractual escalations in rent pursuant to the terms of our leases, and increases in base and other rent under certain of our leases.



The following table compares results of continuing operations for our 477 same-store triple-net leased propertics.

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

2014 2013 s %

(Dollars in thousands)
o .

$ . 524,676

$ 550,866 & 529,145

546,301

Segment NOI—Senior Living Operations

The following table summarizes results of continuing operations in our senior living operations reportable business segment:

For the Ycar Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

%

2014

' A 8 LS

y-level operating expenscs

Our senior living operations segment revenues increased in 2014 over the prior year primanly due to the Holiday Canada Acquisition and other seniors
housing communities we acquired during 2014 and 2013.

Property-level operating cxpenses also increased year over year primanily due to the acquired properties described above.

The following table compares results of continuing operations for our 219 same-store senior living operating communities.

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

2014 2013 ) %

{Dollars in thousands)-

20%
(925,478) (12,193) 1.3)
T 431,610; 15,597 36

The following table sets forth average unit occupancy rates and the average monthly revenue per occupied room related to continuing operations in our
senior living opcrations segment for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013:

Average
Average Unit Monthly Revenue Per Occupiced
Occupancy for Room for
Number of the Year the Year
Properties at Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 ' 2013
Total seniars housing communities 270 239 “91.1% 91.1% $5,407 $5470
Samc-store seniors housing comumunities 219 219 91.1 91.2 5,673 5,553
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Segment NOI—MOB Operations
The following table summarizes results of continuing operations in our MORB opcrations reportable business segment:

For the Year Ended
December 31, Increase (Decrease) to Segment NOI

2014 2013 s A

(Dollars in thousands)

SegrﬁehtNdl;MOB'.Opc_rntio'l_i_s: -l : . NP D T Ll e T T
Rental income 3 463,910 450340 $ 13,570 30%
Medical office builldingiseivices eveaue = o 9389 - i a6 e 0453l g6s
Total revenues 486,439 5.2
Property-level operating expenses (158,832) 241) (5,591) (3.6)
Medical office building servicescosts =~~~ . A7,692) i 315y LT @Iy T (105.6)
3 310,515 § 300,861 9,654 3.2

Segment NOI

The increase in our MOB operations scgment rental income in 2014 over the prior year is attributed primarily to the MOBs we acquired during 2014
and 2013 and slightly higher base rents. The increase in our MOB property-level operating expenses is due primarily to those acquired MOBs and increases
in utilitics, snow removal, payroll and insurance expenses, partially offset by decreases in operating costs resulting from cxpense controls.

Medical office building services revenue and costs both increased in 2014 over the prior year primarily duc to increased construction activity during
2014 compared to 2013,

The following table compares results of continuing operations for our 297 same-store MOBs.

For the Year Ended Increase (Decrease)
December 31, to Segment NOI

2014 2013 s %

(Dollars in thousands)

440,755 435786

Property-level operating expenses (150,585) (147,987) (1.8)
chmcnlNOI G T8 290470 . 84 2871799 08

The following table sets forth occupancy rates and the annualized average rent per occupied square foot related to continuing operations in our MOB
operations segment at and for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013:

Number of Annualized Average Re.nt Per
Properties at Occupancy at Occupied Square Foot for the
December 31, December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Total MOBs 31 309 89.8% ..901% $31 529
Samec-storc MOBs 297 297 89.8 90.0 30 29

Segment NOI—All Other

All other NOI consists solely of income from loans and investments. Income from loans and investments decreased in 2014 over the prior year due
primarily to final repayments and sales of portions of certain loans receivable throughout 2013.

Interest Expense

The $38.2 million increase in total interest expense, including interest allocated to discontinued operations of $86.5 miltion and $91.4 million for the
years ended December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively, is attributed primarnily to $50.9
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million of additional interest due to higher debt balances, partially offsct by a $15 6 million reduction in nterest due to lower effective interest rates,
including the amortization of any fair value adjustments Our cilective mterest rate was 3.7% for 2014, compared to 3.8% for 2013.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $95.3 million in 2014 primanly due to real estate acquisitions we madc in 2013 and 2014,
General, Administrative and Professional Fees

Gencral, administrative and professional fees increased $6.7 million 1n 2014 primarily due to our continued organizational growth.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt, Net

The loss on extinguishment of debt, net in 2014 resulted primarily from various debt repayments. The loss on extinguishment of debt, nct in 2013
resulted primarily from the writc-off of unamortized deferred financing fees as a result of replacing our previous $2.0 billion unsecured revolving credit
facility with a new $3.0 billion unsecured credit facility and the repayment of certain mortgage debt.

Merger-Related Expenses and Deal Costs

Merger-related expenses and deal costs in both ycars consist of transition, intcgration, deal and severance-related expenses primarily related to pending
and consummated transactions requircd by GAAP to be expenscd rather than capitalized into the asset value. The $21.7 million increase in merger-related
cxpenscs and deal costs in 2014 over the prior year is primarily due to incrcased 2014 investment activity.

Other

Other primarily includes building rent expensc paid to lease certain of our senior living operating communitics, as well as certain unreimbursable
cxpenses related to our triple-net leased portfolio. For the year ended December 31, 2014, other also includes expenses related to the re-audit and re-review of
our historical financial statements. '

Income Tax Benefit

Income tax benefit for 2014 was due primarily to the income tax benefit of ordinary losses and restructuring related to one of our TRS entities. Income
tax benefit for 2013 was due primarily to the relcase of valuation allowances against certain deferred tax assets related to one of our TRS entities.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations primarily relates to the operations of assets and liabilitics disposcd of as part of the CCP Spin-Off, and impairments of $1.5
million and $39.7 million recorded in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Gain on Real Estate Dispositions

The gain oo rcal estate dispositions in 2014 resulted pnmarily from the sale of ten propertics that arc not classified as discontinued operations in
accordance with ASU 2014-08, resulting in a net gain of $18.0 million. Gains on real estate dispositions in 2013 are classified in discontinued operations.

Non-GAAP Financial Mcasures

We belicve that net income, as defined by GAAP, is the most appropriatc camings measurement. However, we consider certain non-GAAP financial
measures to be useful supplemental measures of our operating performance. A non-GAAP financial measurc is a measure of historical or future financial
_performance, financial position or cash flows that excludes or includes amounts that are not so excluded from or included in the most directly comparable,

measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP. Described below are the non-GAAP financial measures used by management to evaluate our
operating performance and that we consider most useful to investors, together with reconciliations of these measures to the most directly comparable GAAP
measurcs.

The non-GAAP financial measures we present in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may not be comparable to those presented by other real estate
companies due to the fact that not all real estatc companies usc the same definitions. You should not consider these measures as altematives to net income
(determined in accordance with GAAP) as indicators of our financial performance or as altematives to cash flow from operating activities (determined in
accordance with GAAP) as measures of
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our liquidity, nor are these measures necessarily indicative of suflicient cash flow to fund all of our needs. In order to facilitate a clear understanding of our
consolidated historical operating results, you should examine these measures in conjunction with net income as presented in our Consolidated Financial
Statements and other financial data included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Funds From Operations and Normalized Funds From Operations

Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumcs that the value of real estate asscts diminishes predictably over time. However, since
real cstatc values historically have risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors deem presentations of operating results for real estate
companies that use historical cost accounting to be insufficient by themselves. For that reason, we consider Funds From Opcerations (“FFO”) and nommalized
FFO to be appropriate measures of operating performance of an equity REIT. In particular, we believe that normalized FFO is uscful because it allows
investors, analysts and our management to compare our operating performance to the operating performance of other real estate companies and between
periods on a consistent basis without having to account for differences caused by unanticipated items and other events such as transactions and litigation. In
some cascs, we provide information about identificd non-cash components of FFO and normalized FFO because it allows investors, analysts and our
management to assess the impact of those items on our financial results.

We use the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) definition of FFO. NAREIT defines FFO as net income (computed in
accordance with GAAP), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of real estate property, including gain on re-measurement of equity method investments, and
impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization, and afier adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and
joint ventures. Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will be calculated to reflect FFO on the same basis. We define nommalized FFO
as FFO excluding the following income and expense items (which may be recurring in nature): (a) merger-related costs and expenses, including amortization
ofintangibles, transition and integration expenses, and deal costs and expenses, including expenses and recoveries relating to our acquisition lawsuits;

(b) the impact of any expenses related to asset impairment and valuation allowances, the writc-off of unamortized deferred financing fees, or additional costs,
expenscs, discounts, make-whole payments, penalties or premiums incurred as a result of carly retirement or payment of our debt; (c) the non-cash effect of
income tax benefits or expenscs and derivative transactions that have non-cash mark-to-market impacts on our Consolidated Statements of Income; (d) the
impact of future acquisitions, divestitures (including pursuant to tenant options to purchase) and capital transactions; (€) the financial impact of contingent
consideration, scverance-related costs, charitable donations made to the Ventas Charitable Foundation, gains and losses for non-operational foreign currency
hedge agreements and changes in the fair value of financial instruments; and (f) expenses related to the re-audit and re-review in 2014 of our historical
financial statements and related matters.
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The following table summanzes our FFO and normalized FFO for each of the five years ended December 31, 2015, Our normalized FFO for the year
ended December 31, 2015 increased over the prior year due pnmarily to aceretive acquisitions and increases in property NOI, partially offset by increased
interest expense and a partial year's results from the properties that were transferred to CCP on August 17, 2015 in connection with the CCP Spin-Off.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

S E .
Loss (gain) on re-measurement of equity
interest upon acquisition,

(1,241) (16,645) —

23 e ebaey 4
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Discontinued operations:

§0952)

H(B095
139,973 144256

11,330,018 .3 : ’ 776963
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Adjusted EBITDA

We consider Adjusted EBITDA an important supplemental measure to net income because it provides another manner in which to evaluate our
operating performance and serves as another indicator of our ability to service debt. We define Adjusted EBITDA as eamings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (including non-cash stock-bascd compensation expense), excluding gains or losses on extinguishment of debt, merger-related
expenses and deal costs, expenses related to the re-audit and re-review of our historical financial statements, nct gaius on real estate activity and changes in
the fair value of financial instruments (including amounts in discontinued operations) The following table sets forth a reconciliation of our net income
attributable to common stockholders to Adjusted EBITDA (including amounts in discontinucd operations) for the ycars ended December 31,2015, 2014 and

2013:

n stockholders . °

Net incomg attributable fo,com

63

For the Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
) (In (housands)
s L drsercs | AsassT

340381
1,048
. (1,i66)

973,665
.. 19,537,
150,290

(18,811) (19,183)
460 .. sn20 R T ()
176 — (1,241)
1,949,500 .8 . 1,745781.. § 1,596,911




NOI

We also consider NOL an important supplemental measure to net income because it allows investors, analysts and our management L0 assess our
unlevered property-level operating results and to compare our operating results with the operating results of other real estate companics and between periods
on a consistent basis. We define NOI as total revenues, less interest and other income, property-level operating expenses and medical office building services
costs (including amounts in discontinued operations). Cash receipts may differ due to straight-line recognition of certain rental income and the application of
other GAAP policies. The following table sets forth a reconcihation of NOI to net income attributable to common stockholders (including amounts in

Sl Ty

discontinucd operations) for the years ended December 31,2615, 2014 and 2013:

For the Year Ended December 31,

1,863, 113

PeNE Y Ep T

NOI (excluding amounts in discontinucd operations) b) 1,875,141  § 1,560,070 3 1,396, 355

‘Asset/Liability Mapnagement

Asset/liability management, a key element of enterprise risk management, is designed to support the achievement of our business strategy, while
cnsuring that we maintain appropriate and tolerable levels of market risk (primarily interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk) and credit risk.
Effective management of these risks is a contributing factor to the absolute levels and variability of our FFO and net worth. The following discussion
addresses our intcgrated management of asscts and liabilitics, including the use of derivative financial instruments.

Market Risk

We are exposed (o market risk related to changes in interest rates with respect to borowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility and our
unsecured term loans, certain of our mortgage loans that are floating rate obligations, morigage loans receivable that bear interest at floating rates and
marketable debt sccuritics. These market risks result primarily from changes in LIBOR rates or prime rates. To manage these risks, we continuously monitor
our level of floating rate debt with respect to total debt and other factors, including our assessment of curmrent and future economic conditions.
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The table below sets forth certain information with respect to our debt, excluding premiums and discounts.

As of December 31,

2015 2014 2013

{Dollars in thousands)

Balance: -

“Fixed rate:

*'Seniorriotes and other * LU T T 1534459 8] VG611 875 50 L 5418543
Mortgage loans and other (1) _ _ _ _ 1,554,062 1,810,716 2,155,155

180,683
15568477, - .

376,343

474,047

Mortgagc loans and olhcr ) 433,339

CTotal . . A A 5 112710200 §  1087237K
Percent oftotnl debt
Fxxcdratc . RS O R S ] R A V)

Senior notes and othcr 66.9% 61.4% 58.1%
‘Mortgageloansan_d olhc;-(i S e 13.8 1 23
Variable rate:

Unisecuired revolvingcredit facilif 1.6 -

Unsecured term lonns 13.9

38

100.0%

Senlernolcs and other” ” : : . 3559 N .
Mortgage loans and olher (l) 5.7

14

Unsecurcd revolvmg credlt facﬂmes
“Unseclired temloans - ] ) 14"
Morlgage Ioans and olher 20
Total '3:'--_-_‘.; Dol : : AT s T T W DRRL TR ¥

(1) Excludes mortgage debt 0£$22.9 million, $27.6 million and $13.1 million related to real estate assets classified as held for sale as of December 31,2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. All amounts were included in liabilities related to asscts held for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The variable rate debt in the table above reflects, in part, the effect of $150.5 million notional amount of interest rate swaps with a maturity of March
21, 2018 that effectively convert fixed rate debt to variable rate debt. In addition, the fixed ratc debt in the table above reflects, in pari, the effect of $48.1
million notional amount of interest rate swaps W'lth maturitics ranging from October 1,2016 to April 1,2019, in cach case that effcctively convert variable
rate debt to fixed rate debt.

In February 2016, we entered into a $200 million notional amount intcrest rate swap with a maturity of August 3, 2020 that effectively converts
LIBOR-based floating rate debt to fixed rate deb, setting LIBOR at 1.132% through the maturity date of the swap. The maturity date of the Ardent Tenmn
Loan is also August 3,2020.

The dccreasc in our outstanding variable rate debt at December 31, 2015 compared to December 31, 2014 is primarily attributable to the repayment of
borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility and our unsecured term loan due 2019, partially offset by borrowings under our unsccured term loan
. due 2020.

Pursuant to the terms of certain leases with onc of our tenants, if interest rates increase on certain variable rate debt that we have totaling $80.0 million
as of December 31, 2015, our tenant is required to pay us additional rent (on a dollar-for-dollar




basis)in an amount equal to the increase in interest expense resulting from the increased interest rates. Therefore, the increase in interest expense related to
this debt is equally offsct by an increase in addiuonal rent due to us from the tenant. Assuming a 100 basis point increase in the weighted average interest rate
related to our vanable rate debt and assuming no change in our variable rate debt outstanding as of December 31, 2015, interest expense for 2016 would
increase by approximately $21.9 million, or $0.07 per diluted common share.

AsofDecember 31,2015 and 2014, our joint venture and operating partners® aggregate share of total debt was $132.6 million and $141.4 million,
respectively, with respect to certain properties we owned through consolidated joint ventures and an operating partnership. Total debt does not include our
portion of debt reiated to investmentis in unconsoiidated entitics, which was $90.1 million and $97.5 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

The fair value of our fixed and variable rate debt is based on current intcrest rates at which we could obiain similar borrowings. For fixed rate debt,
interest rate fluctuations genenally affect the fair value, but not our camings or cash flows. Therefore, intcrest rate risk docs not have a significant impact on
our fixed rate debt obligations until their maturity or carlier prepayment and refinancing. If interest rates have risen at the time we seek to refinance our fixed
rate debt, whether at maturity or otherwise, our future eamings and cash flows could be adversely affected by additional borrowing costs. Conversely, lower
interest rates at the time of refinancing may reduce our overall borrowing costs.

To highlight the sensitivity of our fixed rate debt to changes in interest rates, the following summary shows the effects of a hypothetical instantaneous
change of 100 basis points in interest rates as of Dccember 31,2015 and 2014:

As of December 31,

2015 2014

........ B o i s TR

boolvaluey

9,256,492
B nidiii

4067358

Lok ST

X3

(1) The change in fair valuc of our fixed rate debt from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2015 was duc primarily to 2015 scnior note issuances, net of
repayments, and mortgage loan repayments.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the fair value of our secured and non-mortgage loans receivable, based on our estimates of currently prevailing
rates for comparable loans, was $855.7 million and $767.9 million, respectively. See “Note 6—Loans Reccivable and Investments” and “Note 11-—Fair
Values of Financial Instraments” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As a result of our Canadian and United Kingdom operations, we are subject to fluctuations in certain foreign cumrency exchange rates that may, from
time to time, affect our financial condition and operating performance. Based solely on our results for the year ended December 31,2015 (including the
impact of existing hedging arrangements), if the value of the U.S. dollarrelative to the British pound and Canadian dollar were to increase or decrease by onc
standard deviation compared to the average exchange rate during the year, our normalized FFO per share for the year ended December 31, 2015 would
decrease or increasc, as applicable, by approximately $0.01 per share or less than 1%. We will continue to mitigate these risks through a layered approach to
hedging looking out for the next year and continual assessment of our foreign operational capital structure. Nevertheless, we cannot assure you that any such
fluctuations will not have an effect on our eamings. . -




Concentration and Credit Risk

We use concentration ratios to identify, understand and evaluate the potential impact of economic downtums and other adversc events that may allect
our assct types, geographic locations, business models, and tenants, operators and managers. We evaluate concentration risk in terms of investment mix and
operations mix. Investment mix measures the percentage of our investments that is concentrated 1n a specific asset type or that is operated or managed by a
particular tenant, operator or manager. Operations mix measures the percentage of our operating results that 1s attributed to a patticular tenant, operator or
manager, geographic location or business model. The following tables reflect our concentration risk as of the dates and for the periods presented:

Asof .
December 31,

2015 2014

BeLype (i, L o
Seniors housing communitics
 NOB: .

Inyestrint imix 6y,

' 652%
D3 iy ORI

écialty hospitals *
General acute care hospitals

secused loan & and investnients, et
Investment mix by tenant, operator and manager (1):
tna’ .- oL
Sunrise
. Brookdale Senjor Living
Kindred

3133V

- Alligther 7t

(1) Ratios are based on the gross book value of real estate investments (excluding assets classificd as held for sale) as of cach reporting date.
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For the Year Ended
December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Ali others .
Adjusted EBITDA(3

Senior living operations l 29..8% 28.4% 26.0%

(1) Total revenues include medical office building and other services revenue, revenue from loans and investments and interest and other income (excluding
amounts in discontinued opcrations).

(2) Excludes onc seniors housing community included in senior living operations.

(3) Includes amounts in discontinued operations.

(4) Excludes amounts in discontinucd operations.

(5) Ratios are based on total revenues (excluding amounts in discontinued operations) for cach period presented.

See “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional disclosure and reconciliations of net
income attributable to common stockholders to Adjusted EBITDA and NOI as computed in accordance with GAAP.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues by leasing assets under long-term triple-nct leases in which the rental rate is generally fixed with annual
escalators, subject to certain limitations. Some of our triple-nct Icase escalators are contingent upon the satisfaction of specified facility revenuc parameters or
based on increases in the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”), with caps, floors or collars. We also cam revenues directly from individual residents in our seniors
housing communities that arc managed by independent operators, such as Atria and Sunrise, and tenants in our MOBs. For the year ended December 31,
2015, 29.8% of our Adjusted EBITDA (including amounts 1n discontinued operations) was derived from our senior living operations and MOB operations,
for which rental rates may fluctuate more frequently upon lease rollovers and renewals duc to shorter term lcases and changing economic or market
conditions.

The concentration of our triple-net lcased properties segment revenues and operating income that arc attributed to Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred
and Ardent creates credit risk. If cither Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent becomes unable or unwilling to satisfy its obligations to us or to renew its
leases with us upon expiration of the termms thereof, our financial condition and results of operations could decline and our ability to service our indebtedness

and to make distributions
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to our stockholders could be limited. We cannot assure you that Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent will have sufficient assets, income and access
to financing to cnable them to satisfy their respective obligations to us, and any failure, inability or unwillingness by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or
Ardent to do so could have a Matenal Adverse Effect on us. In addition, any failure, inability or unwillingness’by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or
Ardent to effectively conduct its operations or to maintain and improve our propertics could adversely affect its business reputation and its ability to attract
and retain patients and residents in our properties, which could have an indirect Material Adverse Effect on us. See “Risk Factors—Risks Arising from Our
Business—Our leases with Brookdale Sentor Living, Kindred and Ardent account for a significant portion of our triple-net leased properties segment
revenues and operating income; Any failure, inability or unwillingness by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent to satisfy its obligations under our
agrecements could have a Material Adverse Effect on us” included in Part ], ltem L A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and “Note 3—Concentration of
Credit Risk” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Jtem § of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

‘We regularly monitor and asscss any changes in the relative credit risk of our significant tenants, and in particular those tenants that have recourse
obligations under our triple-net leases. The ratios and metrics we use to cvaluate a significant tenant’s liquidity and creditworthiness depend on facts and
circumstances specific to that tenant and the industry or industrics in which it operates, including without limitation the tenant’s credit history and economic
conditions related to the tenant, its operations and the markets in which the tenant operates, that may vary over time. Among other things, we may (i) review
and analyze information regarding the real estate, seniors housing and healthcare industries generally, publicly available information regarding the
significant tenant, and information required to be provided by the tenant under the terms of its lease agreements with us, (ii) examine monthly and/or
quarterly financial statements of the significant tenant to the extent publicly available or otherwise provided under the terms of our leasc agreements, and (iii)
participate in periodic discussions and in-person meetings with representatives of the significant tenant. Using this information, we calculate multiple
financial ratios (which may, but do not necessarily, include net debt to EBITDAR or EBITDARM, fixed charge coverage and tangible net worth), after
making certain adjustments based on our judgment, and assess other metrics we deem relevant to an understanding of the significant tenant’s credit risk.

Because Atria and Sunrisc manage our properties in exchange for the receipt of a management fee from us, we are not directly exposed to the credit risk
of our managers in the same manner or to the same extent as our triple-net tenants. However, we rely on our managers’ personnel, expertise, technical
resources and information systems, proprictary information, good faith and judgment to manage our scnior living operations efficiently and cffectively. We
also rely on our managers to sct appropriate resident fees and to otherwise operate our seniors housing communities in compliance with the terms of our
management agreements and all applicable laws and regulations. Although we have various rights as the property owner under our management agrecments,
including various rights to terminate and exercise remedics under the agreecments as provided therein, Atria’s or Sunrise’s failure, inability orunwillingness to
satisfy its respective obligations under those agreements, to cfficiently and effectively manage our propertics or to provide timely and accurate accounting
information with respect thereto could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. In addition, significant changes in Atria’s or Sunrise’s senior management or
equity ownership or any adverse developments in their businesses and affairs or financial condition could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. See “Risk
Factors—Risks Arising from Our Business—The propertics managed by Atria and Sunrise account for a significant portion of otir revenues and operating
income; Adverse developments in Atria’s or Sunrisc’s business and affairs or financial condition could have a Material Adverse Effect on us” and “—We
have rights to terminate our management agreements with Atria and Sunrise in whole or with respect to specific propertics under certain circumstances, and
we may be unable to replace Atria or Sunrise if our management agreements are terminated or not renewed” included in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

In December 2012, we acquired a 34% ownership interest in Atria, which entitles us to certain rights and minority protections as well as the right to
appoint two of five members on the Atria board of directors.

Triple-Net Lease Expirations

If our tenants are not able or willing to renew our triple-net leases upon expiration, we may be unable to reposition the applicable propertics on a timcly
basis or on the same or better economic temms, if at all. Although our lcase cxpirations are staggered, the non-rencwal of some or all of our triple-net leases
that expire in any given year could have a Material Adversc Effect on us. During the year ended December 31, 2015, we had no triple-net lease renewals or
expirations without renewal that, in the aggregate, had a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations for that period. See “Risk Factors
—Risks Arising from Our Business—If we must replace any of our tenants or operators, we might be unable to reposition the properties on as favorable terms,
orat all, and we could be subject to delays, limitations and cxpenscs, which could have a Material Adverse Effect on us” included in Part 1, Item 1A of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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The following table summarizes our triple-net lease expirations currently scheduled to occur over the next ten years (excluding leascs related to assets
classificd as held for sale as of December 31,2015):

% of 2015 Total

Triple-Net Leased
Number of 2015 Annual Propertics Segment Rental
Properties Rental Income Income

ot ? §
2025 ! 70 110,608 142

In December 2014, we entered into favorable agreements with Kindred to transition or sell the operations of nine licensed healthcare assets, make
modifications to the master leases goveming 34 leased asscts, and reimburse us for certain deferred capital expenditures at skitled nursing facilities
previously transferred to new operators. In Jantary 2015, Kindred paid us $37 million in connection with these agrecements, which is being amortized over
the remaining lease term for the 34 assets govemed by the modified master leases. We own or have the rights to all licenses and CONs at the nine properties to
be transitioned or sold, and Kindred has extensive and detailed obligations to cooperate and ensure an orderly transition of the properties to another operator.
As of December 31,2015, four of the nine properties have been sold and three of the nine properties were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2015, we had a total of $53.0 million of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, operating cash and cash related to our senior living
operations and MOB operations reportable busincss segments that is deposited and held in property-level accounts. Funds maintained in the property-level
accounts arc used primarily for the payment of property-level expenses, debt service payments and certain capital expenditures. As of December 31,2015, we
also had escrow deposits and restricted cash of $77.9 million and $1.8 billion of unused borrowing capacity available under our unsecured revolving credit
facility.

During 20135, our principal sources of liquidity were cash flows from operations, borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility and CAD
unsecured term loan, proceeds from the issuance of debt and equity securities, proceeds from asset sales and cash on hand.

For the next 12 months, our principal liquidity nceds are to: (i) fund operating expenses; (ii) mcet our debt service requirements; (iii) repay maturing
mortgage and other debt, including $550.0 million of senior notes; (iv) fund capital expenditures; (v) fund acquisitions, investments and commitments,
including development and redevclopment activities; and (vi) make distributions to our stockholders and unitholders, as required for us to continue to
qualify as a REIT. In addition, we may clect to prepay outstanding indebtedness prior to maturity based on our analysis of various factors. We expect that
these liquidity nceds generally will be satisfied by a combination of the following: cash flows from operations, cash on hand, debt assumptions and
financings (including secured financings), issuances of debt and equity securitics, dispositions of assets (in whole or in part through joint venture
arrangements with third parties) and borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility. However, an inability to access liquidity through multiple
capital sources concurrently could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. See “Risk Factors—Risks Arising from Qur Capital Structure—Limitations on our
ability to access capital could have an adverse cffect on our ability to make required payments on our debt obligations, make distributions to our
stockholders or make future investments nccessary to implement our business strategy” included in Part [, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In January 2015, we funded the HCT Acquisition through the issuance of approximately 28.4 million shares of our common stock and 1.1 million
-~{imited partnership units that-arc redeemable for shares of our common stock, the payment of
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approximately $11 million in cash (excluding cash in licu of fractional shares) and the assumption or repayment of debt, net of HCT cash on hand.

Beginning on January 16,2016 and as of February 10,2016, third party investors exccuted redemption rght exercise notices for Ventas Realty Capital
Healthcare Trust Operating Partnership, L.P. to redeem 303,136 Class C Units. We expect that the Class C Units will be redeemed through the issuance of
303,136 shares of Ventas common stock on or before April 1, 2016, but we have the right to redeem the Class C Units for a cash amount.

Unsecured Credit Facility and Unsecured Term Loans

Our unsccured credit facility is comprised of a $2.0 billion revolving credit facility priced at LIBOR plus 1.0% as of December 31,2015, and a $200.0
million fully funded term loan and an $800.0 million term loan (with $468.5 million outstanding), cach priced at LIBOR plus 1.05% as of December 31,
2015. The revolving credit facility matures in January 2018, but may be extended, at our option subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, for an
additional period of one year. The $200.0 million and $800.0 million term loans mature in January 2018 and January 2019, respectively. The unsecured
credit facility also includes an accordion feature that permits us to increase our aggregate borrowing capacity thercunder to up to $3.5 billion.

As of December 31, 2015, we had $180.7 million of borrowings outstanding, $14.9 million of letters of credit outstanding and $1.8 billion of unused
borrowing capacity available under our unsecured revolving credit facility.

In August 2015, we completed a $900 million five year term loan having a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 97.5 basis points. The term loan matures
in 2020.

Also in August 2015, we repaid $305.0 miflion of our $800.0 million unsecured term loan due 2019 and rccogmzcd a loss on extinguishment of debt of
$1.6 million representing a write-off of the then unamortized deferred financing fees.

The agreement goveming ourunsecured credit facility requires us to comply with various financial and other restrictive covenants. See “Note 10—
Borrowing Amangements” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We were in compliance
with all of these covenants at December 31, 2015.

Senior Notes

As of Deccmber 31, 261 5, we had $6.8 billion aggregate principal amount of senior notes issued by our subsidiary, Ventas Realty, Limited Partnership

(“Ventas Realty”), and guarantced by Ventas, Inc. outstanding as follows:

. $550.0 million principal amount of 1.55% senior notes due 2016;

. $300.0 million principal amount of 1.250% senior notes due 2017;

= $700.0 million principal amount of 2.00% scnior notes duc 2018;

+  $600.0 million principal amount of 4.00% scnior notes due 2019;

«  $500.0 million principal amount of 2.700% scnior notes due 2020;

. $700.0 million principal amount 0f4.750% senior notes duc 2021;

*  $600.0 million principal amount of 4.25% senior notes due 2022;

= $500.0 million principal amount of 3.25% senior notes duc 2022;

«  $400.0 million principal amount 0f 3.750% scnior notes duc 2024;

«  $600.0 million principal amount of 3.500% scnior notes due 2025;

«  $500.0 million principal amount of 4.125% senior notes due 2026;

*  $258.8 million principal amount of 5.45% senior notes due 2043;

*  $300.0 million principal amount of 5.70% scnior notes due 2043; and

¢ $300.0 million principal amount 0f 4.375% senior notes due 2045.

With the exception of the senior notes duc 2016, the senior notes due 2017, the scnior notes due 2024, the senior notes due 2025, the senior notes duc
2026, the 5.70% scnior notes duc 2043, and the senior notes due 2045, all of these senior notes were co-issued with Ventas Realty’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation.
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Asof December 31, 2015, we had $75.4 million aggregate pnncipal amount of senior notes of our subsidiary, Nationwide Health Properties, LLC
(“NHP LLC”), as successor to NHP, outstanding as follows:

< $52.4 million principal amount of 6.90% senior notes duc 2037 (subjcct to earlier repayment at the option of the holder); and
+  $23.0 million principal amount of 6.59% senior notes due 2038 (subject to earlier repayment at the option of the holder).
In addition, as of December 31, 2015, we had $650.3 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes of our wholly owned subsidiary, Ventas
Canada Finance Limited, and guaranteed by Veatas, Inc. outstanding as follows:
+  $289.0 million (CAD 400.0 million) principal amount of 3.00% scnior notes, serics A due 2019;
= $180.6 million (CAD 250.0 million) principal amount of 3.300% senior notcs due 2022; and
= $180.6 million (CAD 250.0 million) principal amount 0{4.125% senior notes, scries B due 2024.

In January 2015, we issued and sold $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.500% scnior notes due 2025 at a public offcring price equal to
99.663% of par, for total procceds of $598.0 million beforc the underwriting discount and expenses, and $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of
4.375% senior notes due 2045 at a public offering price equal to 99.500% of par, for total proceeds of $298.5 million before the underwriting discount and
expenses. .

Also in January 2015, Ventas Canada Finance Limited, issued and sold CAD 250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.30% senior notes, serics C
duc 2022 at an offering price equal to 99.992% of par, for total proceeds of CAD 250.0 million before the agent fees and expenses. The notes were offered on
a private placcment basis in Canada.

In May 2015, we repaid in full, at par, $234.4 million aggregate pnncipal amount then outstanding of our 6% scnior notes due 2015 upon maturity.

In July 2015, we issucd and sold $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.125% senior notes due 2026 at a public offering price equal to
99.218% of par, for total procecds of $496.1 million before the underwnting discount and expenses.

In September 2015, we redeemed all $400.0 million principal amount then outstanding of our 3.125% senior notes due November 2015 at a redemption
price equal to 100.7% of par, plus accrucd and unpaid interest to the redemption date, and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.9 million.

2014 Activity

In April 2014, Ventas Realty issucd and sold $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.250% scnior notes duc 2017 at a public offering price
equal to 99.815% of par, for total procceds of $299.4 million before the underwriting discount and expenses, and $400.0 million aggregate principal amount
0f 3.750% senior notes due 2024 at a public offering price equal to 99.304% of par, for total proceeds of $397.2 million before the underwriting discount and
expenses.

In September 2014, Ventas Canada Finance Limited issued and sold CAD 400.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.00% scnior notes, series A due
2019 at an offering price equal to 99.713% of par, for total procceds of CAD 398.9 million before the agent fees and expenses, and CAD 250.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 4.125% senior notcs, series B duc 2024 at an offering price cqual to 99.601% of par, for total proceeds of CAD 249.0 million
before the agent fees and expenses. The notes were offercd on a private placement basis in Canada.

2013 Aclivity
In February 2013, we repaid in full, at par, $270.0 million principal amount then outstanding of our 6.25% senior notes due 2013 upon maturity.

In March 2013, we issued and sold: $258.8 million aggregate principal amount of 5.45% senior notcs duc 2043 at a public offering price equal to par,
for total proceeds of $258.8 million before the underwriting discounts and expenses; and $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2.700% senior notes
__due 2020 at a public offering pricec equal to 99.942% of par, for total proceeds of $499.7 million before the underwriting discount and expenses.

In September 2013, we issued and sold: $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.55% senior notes duc 2016 at a public offering price cqual to
99.910% of par, for total proceeds 0f $549.5 million before the underwnting discount and expenses; and $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of
5.70% scnior notes due 2043 at a public offering price equal to 99.628% of par, for total proceeds of $298.9 million-before the underwriting discount and

expenses.
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We may, from time to time, seck to retire or purchase our outstanding senior notes for cash or in exchange for equity sccurities in open market
purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity
requirements, contractual restrictions, prospects for future access to capital and other factors. The amounts involved may be material.

The indentures goveming our outstanding scnior notes require us to comply with various financial and other restrictive covenants. See “Note 10—
Borrowing Amrangements” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in ltem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We were in compliance
with all of these covenants at December 31, 2015,

Mortgage Loan Obligations

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, our consolidated agpregate principal amount of mortgage debt outstanding was $2.0 billion and $2.3 billion,
respectively, of which our share was $1.9 billion and $2.2 billion, respectively. .

During 2015, we repaid in full mortgage loans in the aggregate principal amount of $461.9 million and a weighted average maturity of 2.1 years and
recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $9.9 million in connection with these repayments.

During 2014, we assumed or incumred mortgage debt 0£$246.8 million and repaid in full mortgage loans outstanding in the aggregate principal amount
0f$398.0 million. We recognized a net loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.3 million in connection with these repayments.

During 2013, we assumed or incurred mortgage debt of $178.8 million in connection with our $1.8 billion of gross investments, and we repaid in full
mortgage loans outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $493.7 million. We recognized a net gain on extinguishment of debt of $0.5 million in
conncction with these repayments.

See “Note 4—Acquisitions of Real Estate Property™ and “Note 10—Bomowing Amangements” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Dividends

In order to continuc to qualify as a REIT, we must make annual distributions to our stockholders of at least 90% of our REIT taxable income (cxcluding
net capital gain). In 2015, our Board of Dircctors declared,and we paid cash dividends on our common stotk aggregating $3.04 per share, which exceeds
100% of our 2015 cstimated taxable income after the use of any net operating loss carryforwards. We intend to pay dividends greater than 100% of our
taxable income, after the use of any net operating loss carryforwards, for 2016. On August 17,2015, we also distributed a stock dividend of one CCP common
share for every four shares of Ventas common stock held as of the distribution record date of August 10,2015. The stock dividend was valued at $8.51 per
Ventas share based on the opening price of CCP stock on its first day of regular-way trading on the New York Stock Exchange.

We expect that our cash flows will exceed our REIT taxable income due to depreciation and other non-cash deductions in computing REIT taxable
income and that we will be able to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement. However, from time to time, we may not have sufficient cash on hand or other
liquid assets to meet this requirement or we may decide to retain cash or distribute such greater amount as may be necessary to avoid income and excise
taxation. If we do not have sufficient cash on hand or other liquid assets to enable us to satisfy the 90% distribution requirement, or if we desire to retain cash,
we may borrow finds, issue additional equity securities, pay taxable stock dividends, if possible, distribute other property or securities or engage in a
transaction intended to enable us to meet the REIT distribution requirements or any combination of the foregoing. See “Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax
Considerations—Requirements for Qualification as a REIT—Annual Distribution Requirements” included in Part I, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

Capital Expenditures

The terms of our triple-nct lcascs generally obligate our tenants to pay all capital expenditures necessary to maintain and improve our triple-net lcased
properties. However, from time to time, we may fund the capital expenditures for our triple-net leased properties through loans to the tenants or advances,
which may increase the amount of rent payable with respect to the properties in certain cases. We expect to fund any capital expenditures for which we may
become responsible upon expiration of our triple-nct leases or in the event that our tenants arc unable or unwilling to meet their obligations under those
leascs with cash flows from operations or through additional borrowings.

We also expect to fund capital expenditures related to our senior living opcrations and MOB operations reportable business segments with the cash
flows from the properties or through additional borrowings. To the extent that unanticipated capital expenditure needs arise or significant borrowings are
required, our liquidity may be affected adversely. Our ability to
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borrow additional funds may be restricted in centain circumstances by the terms of the instruments goveming our outstanding indebtedness.

We are party to certain agrcements that obligate us to develop seniors housing or healthcare properties funded through capital that we and, in certain
circumstances, our joint venture partners provide. As of Deceraber 31,2015, we had four propertics under development pursuant to these agreements,
including two propertics that arc owned by an unconsolidated real estate entity. Through December 31, 2015, we have funded $15.5 million of our share of
estimated total commitment over the projected development period ($69.0 million to $72.9 million) toward these projects. In addition, from time to time, we
engage 1n redevelopment projects with respect to our existing seniors housing communities to maximize the value, increase NOI, maintain a market-
competitive position, achieve property stabilization or change the primary use of the property.

Equity Offerings and Related Events

In March 2013, we established an “at-the-market” (*“ATM™) cquity offering program through which we could sell from time to time up to an aggregate
0f$750 million of our common stock. In January 2015, we issued and sold 3,750,202 shares of common stock under our previous ATM equity offering
program for aggregate net procceds of $285.4 million, after sales agent commissions of $4.4 mullion. In March 2015, we replaced our previous shelf
registration statement that was scheduled to expire in accordance with the SEC’s rules with a new universal shelf registration statement, rendering our
previous ATM program inaccessible. In connection with our new universal shelf registration statement, we established a new ATM program pursuant to
which we may sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate of $1.0 billion of our common stock. Through the remainder 0£2015 and in the first quarter 0o£2016
we have issued and sold a total of 5,084,302 shares of our common stock under our ATM cquity offering program for aggregate net procceds of $297.0
million, after sales agent commissions of $4.5 million.

Other

We received procecds of $6.4 million and $26.2 million for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively, from the exercises of
_ outstanding stock options. Future proceeds from the exercises of stock options will be affected primarily by the future trading price of our common stock and
the number of options outstanding. The number of options outstanding increased to 3,051,729 as of December 31, 2015, from 2,460,628 as of December 31,
2014. The weighted average exercise price was $52.62 as of December 31,2015. \

We issued approximately 19,000 shares of common stock under our Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP”) for net proceeds of
$1.2 million for the yearended December 31, 2014. The DRIP was suspended effective July 3, 2014. We may determine whether or not to reinstate the DRIP
at any time, in our sole discretion.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth our sources and uses of cash flows for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014:

For the Year Ended Increase (Decrease)
December 31, . to Cash

2015 2014 %

(Dollars in thous:

. - 2 Ab - Lol . v F) o 16 {s : : (K‘#‘.ﬁi‘.ﬁ‘g ¢ "4 ‘- v ey '40’;.§I/.?
Net cash provided by 1,391,767 1,254,845 136,922 109
Net cash used in investing activ . - (2423,692) (2,055,040) (368,65 e (17'9))
Net cash provided by financing activitics 1,030,122 758,057 272,065 359
Effect of foreigi currenéy, tranisiation on cash and cish equivalents. .. - (522) ... 2670 T @,192) i S imes.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ) 53,023 % 55,348 (2,325) (4.2)

nm—not meaningful
Cash Flows from Operating Activities. . .. . _ -
Cash flows ffom operating activities increased in 2015 over the prior year primarily duc to 2014 and 2015 acquisitions, payments received from tenants

in 2015 and increases in fee income, partially offset by increased merger-related expenses and deal costs and a full year’s results in 2014 from the propertics
that were spun offto CCP.
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activitics dunng 2015 and 2014 consisted primarily of cash paid for our investments in real estate ($2.7 billion and $1.5 billion
in 2015 and 2014, respectively). investments in loans receivable ($171.1 rmllion and $499.0 nullion in 2015 and 2014, respectively), purchase of markcetable
securities ($96.7 million in 2014), capital expenditures ($107.5 million and $87.5 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively), development project
expenditures ($119.7 million and $107.0 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively) and investment in unconsolidated operating cntity ($26.3 million 1n 2015)
These uses were partially offset by proceeds from loans receivable ($109.2 million and $73.6 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively), proceeds'from the sale
or maturity of marketablc debt securitics (§76.8 million and $21.7 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively), and proceeds from real estate dispositions ($492 .4
million and $118.2 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively).

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities during 2015 and 2014 consisted primarily of net borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility
($540.2 million in 2014), nct proceeds from the issuance of debt ($2.5 billion and $2.0 billion 1n 2015 and 2014, respectively), proceeds of debt related to
the CCP Spin-Off ($1.4 billion in 2015) and net proceeds from the issuance of common stock ($491.0 million and $242.1 million in 2015 and 2014,
respectively). These cash inflows were partially offset by debt repayments (81 .4 billion and $1.2 billion in 2015 and 2014, respectively), cash distributions to
common stockholders, unitholders and noncontrolling intercst parties ($1.0 billion and $890.9 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively), net payments made
on our unsecured revolving credit facility ($723.5 million in 2015), net cash impact of the CCP Spin-Off ($128.7 million in 2015) and payments for deferrcd
financing costs ($324.7 million and $14.2 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively).

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the effect that minimum debt (which includes principal and interest payments) and other material noncancelable
commitments are expected to have on our cash flow in future periods as of December 31, 2015:

. Less than1 More than §
Total year (4) 1-3 years(5) 3 - 5 years (6) years (7)
. {In thousands)
Long-term debt obligations (1) (2) (3) $ ' 14603925 S. 1,020,977 § 2,770287 § 3,867,824 .8 6,944,837
Operating obligations, including ground lease
obligations _ 629,512 31,346 44,840 33372 519,954
CoTetal T o LT $ 01523343787 1 1052323 § 2815127 § 3,901,196 -8 " i7,464,7917

(1) Amounts represent contractual amounts due, including interest.
(2) Interest on variable rate debt was based on forward rates obtained as of December 31, 201 5.

(3) Excludes $22.9 million of mortgage debt rclated to real estate asscts classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2015 that is scheduled to mature in
2016 and 2017.

(4) Includes $550.0 million outstanding principal amount of our 1.55% senior notes due 2016.

(5) Includes $300.0 million outstanding principal amount of our 1.250% senior notes due 2017, $180.7 million of borrowings outstanding on our unsccured
revolving credit facility, $700.0 million outstanding principal amount of our 2.00% senior notes due 2018 and $200.0 million of borrowings under our
unsecured term loan due 2018.

Includes $468.5 million of borrowings under our unsecured term loan due 2019, $600.0 million outstanding principal amount of our 4.00% senior notes
due 2019, $289.0 million outstanding principal amount of our 3.00% senior notes, series A due 2019, $500.0 million outstanding principal amount of
our 2.700% senior notes due 2020 and $900.0 million of borrowings under our unsccured term loan due 2020.

©

~

(7) Includes $4.6 billion aggregate principal amount outstanding of our senior notes maturing between 2021 and 2045. $52.4 million aggregate principal
amount outstanding of our 6.90% senior notes due 2037 are subject to repurchase, at the option of the holders, on October | in each 0f2017 and 2027,
and $23.0 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of our 6.59% scnior notes due 2038 are subject to repurchase, at the option of the holders, on
July 7 in each 0f 2018,2023 and 2028.

As of December 31,2015, we had $24.1 million of unrecognized tax benefits that are excluded from the table above, as we arc unable to make a
reasonable reliable estimate of the period of cash settlement, if any, with the respective tax authority.



ITEM 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information set forth in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under “Managcment’-s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Assct/Liability Management™ is incorporated by reference into this Item 7A.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROI OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Qur management is responsible for establishing and mamtaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting, as defined 1in Rules 13a-15(1)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act of 1934. This system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statcments for extemal purposes in accordance with U.S GAAP. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Exccutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an assessment of the
cffcctivencss of the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting bascd on the critenia sct forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issucd by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) Based on this assessment, management has concluded that our
intemal control over financial reporting was cffective at the reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 2015.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent
registered public accounting finm, as stated in their report included herein.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Ventas, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance shecets of Ventas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31,2015 and 2014, and the
related consolidated statements of income, comprchenstve income, equity, and cash flows for cach of the ycars in the three-ycar period ended December 31,
2015. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the information in financial statement schedules Ii, 11l and
V. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audsts in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thosce standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc frec of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonablc basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ventas, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-ycar period ended
December 31,2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules II, IIl
and IV, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set
forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consohdated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for discontinued operations in 2014 duc
to the adoption of Accounting Standards Update 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Ventas, Inc.’s intemal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria cstablished in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issucd by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 12, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s intcmal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP
February 12,2016

79




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Stockholders and Board of Dircctors
Ventas, Inc.:

We have audited Ventas, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the Company) intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, bascd on criteria established
in Internal Control - Intcgrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the cffectiveness of
intemal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on the Intemal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards ot the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the nisk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and opcrating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in.the circumstances. We belicve that our audit provides a reasonablc basis for our opinion.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s intemal control
over financial reporting includcs those policics and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s asscts that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the nsk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofcomphance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Ventas Inc. and subsidiarics maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015,
based on criteria cstablished in Jnternal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)issued by thc Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets
of the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows for
cach of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2015, respectively, and our report dated February 12, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion
on those consolidated financial statements. Our report refers to a change in the method of accounting for discontinued operations.

/s KPMGLLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 12,2016
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VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31,2015 and 2014
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2015 2014

{In thousands, except per
share amounts)

l "2 056 428 $
20 309 599

955,035

| (4,177,234) " (3423,780)

.:19,625220 - . 16,772990 .
857,112 802,881
; 95707 . L 9VETD
20,578,039 17,667 43'
7]",7;1“
2,555,322
451758 -

$ 21,165,913

750.657
237,973
338382 . - 43441337
12,439,962 12,239,500
196,529. .. - -172,016
Vcntas stockholdcrs equity’
Prcfcm:d stock “$1: 0_ :pa _alue 10, 000 shares authorized, unissued ' PPV e — R —
Common stock, $0.25 par value; 600,000 shares authorized, 334,386 and 298,478 shares issued at
Dcccmbcr 31,2015 and 2014, respectively 83,579 74,656
Capital in excess: ofparva1ue : ’ e o 11,602,838 ]0,1_1_9,-3(5_6_
Accumulated othcr comprchcnsxve income @, 565) 13,121
Rclamcd cammgs (dcficn) Co P ' . ) 2,111 ,958) (1,526,388)
Trcasury stock,44 and 7 sharcs at Dcccmbcr 31 2015 and 2014, respectively (2,567) 511)
- Total Véatas stockiolgers o - : ST T 9564327 78,680,184
Noncontmllmg ml?resl ) ] 61,100 74,213
 Total equity L . T T T 9625427 8,754,397
Total liabilities and cqunty $ 22,261918 $ 21,165913

See accompanying notes.
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VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013

2015 2014

2013

{In thousands, except per share

amounts)

566,245

1,811,255

450,340

et Do e
1,406,005

Incomc bcforc Joss from unconsolidated cntmes income taxes, dlscommucd operations,
rcal estatc dxsposmons and n roll est

Gam on: n:al cslate di po ition

Net income

475,767

Dmconlmued opcmnons 0.03 0.34 0.27

Net incomé aunbulable io comm ders ety o $ ':_:1;15 -8 co 160 8 1.54
Weighted average shares used in compuling earnings per comimon share:

Basic ST 330311 T 294,175 292,654

Diluted 334,007 296,677 295,110

Sec accompanying notes.




VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013

2015 . 2014 2013

(In thousands)

Nétincome ™ *° 419222 'S, 'S 454,669

Olhcr comprehcmlvc lo« _ _
Cldgezy T R
Chnngc in unrulllzcd gain on markctable debt securities @, 047)

(847)

'lolal olhercomprch i (20,686) (o, 538)
Comprchcnswc income . 398,536 A ‘470'463 e
Comprchcnsnvc income altnbutablc to nonconlmllmg mtcrcsl 1,379 1 234

Compmhenstvc income attnbutable to Corfmon stockho]dcrs Vs o 397157 8

See accompanying notes.
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VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013

Accumulated
Common Capitalin Other Retained Total Ventas
Stock Par Excess of Comprchensive Earnings Treasury Stockholders® Non- controlling
Value Par Value Income {Deficir) Stock Equity Interest Total Equity

(In thouunds, except per share amoun(s)

Dwndcnds {o common slockholdcrv.——
$2.735 per share

.'. It
: ‘AP‘”

o v

12,640

Adjust redecemable OP unitholder
interesis to current fair value — 8,683 — —_ —_— 8,683 —_ 8,683

Gr;ml of rEstricted stock, net of

forfeitures 9,386 —
E 74,488- L Agg24R8L ¢ 579,530
475,767 1,234

R s BTSN : (875:614). .
845 ©241,.262 — —_ —_ 242,107

. 173 CBayr =
Channc in rcdccmablc noncontrollmg
interest ) ) — — (1,0.82) 1,926 844
C—= - -(3z2993) - —
1 —_ (82) —
36 19; IR i as28) .. 9700 . — 9700
74,656 10,119,306 13,121 (1,526,388) (511) 8,680,184 74,213 8,754,397
L e s inges . — 417843 1379 419,223
— - (20.686) — — (20,686) — (20,686)
7003 2,200,202 L O = 2,216305 853 2217,isE
— (1,247,356) — — — (1,247,356) (4,17 (1,252,073)
0 . — o e s e 2 — . e e e — e = e e e s ....(12;530). '(lz 530)
Dividends to common slocl\ho]dcrs—
$3.04 pcr share — - — (1,003,413) -_ (1,003,413) — (1,003,413)
Issuaiicé &f commmon'sioek ., 1 . 1797 - #9227 . - T — Tl B - 491,024 — 491,024
Issuance of common stock for stock -
plans 23 6,068 — o 5,945 1.2,036 — 12,036
G::mgc in Tel ecmablc nonconuo“mg ’ B . AR S
interest - ° : - (374) R L= — (374) 1,902 1,528
Adjust rcdccm.xblc opP unith'oldcr
interests to cum:nl fzur value —_ 7,831 — —_ — 7,831 — 7,831
Pur(.hase of OP units — 1,719 — —_ . —_ 1,719 e 1,719
Grant of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures — 17,215 — — (8,001) 9,214 — 9,214
Balance at December 31, 2015 -$ $3,579 5 11,602,838 § (7,565) § (2,111,958) § (2,567) S 9,564,327 S 61,100  $9,625427

See accompanying notes.



VENTAS. INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from op'_cx.'.nin'g activities:

Net income

. Adjus&f{cn!s 'lo_. rcconcnlc hqt income to net cash brovide_d‘bsr _{)pdnﬁng' activities:

Depreciation and amortization (including amounts in discontmued opcrations)

. Amoruzauon .éf dct'crred Tevenue and Jeast intangibles, nd
Other non-cash amortization
., Stock:based corpensat

Straight Iining of rental incomc net

Loss on cxtmgunshmmt ofddn, nct ’

Gam on raﬂ cstate dlSpOSlthnS (including amounts m dlsconUnucd opmmons)

Gam on salc ofmarkclablc sccurmcs

lncomc lnx bcncﬁt (mdudmg amnunls in dlsoontmucd opcmnons)

Loss from unconsohdatcd cntmcs

Loss (gam) on re-masummmt of equity interest upon aoquisition, net

Distributions from unconsolidated entities
. Othes | L -

Changes i in opc.ratmg assets and habllmcs

Docrmsc (maeasc) m olher assets

lncrcasc in accrued mu:rcsl

.c m accoums payable and othcr liabilitics
OVIdcd by opentmg auuvms

Cash’ ﬂows i : m
Net mvcslmcnt m real mtatc propcrty
"'Invutmmt in loans rccuvable and othcr

Proceeds from real estate disposals

Proceeds from loans receivable
Purchase of marketable sccurities
'Pmct::cds" fmm ‘sale or matirity of marketable sccuritics
Funds held i in escrow for future development expcndlturcs
: Dcvclopmcnt pm;cct expendlturm '
Capital expenditures .
Investment in inconsolidated operating entity
Contributions to unconsolidated cntities
Other ©+ T
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from ﬁnanang activities:
Net changc in borrowmgs under credit facilities
Net cash lmpact ofCCP Spin-Off :
Proceeds from debt
Proceeds from debt related to CCP Spin-Off
Repayment of debt
Purchase of porioonrmllin'g interest
Payment of deferred financing costs

Issuance of common stock, nct

Cash distribution to common stockholders
Cash distribution to redecmable OP unitholders
Purchascs of redecmable O units
Contribulior_l_s. from noncontrolling interest
Distnibuuions to noncontrolling interest
Other
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Eftect of forcign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014 2013
(In thousauds)
419222 § 477,001 § 454,669
973,663 528,467 769,881
* (24,129) ~(18,871) (15,793)
5,448 (312) (16,745)
19,537 20,994 - 20,683
(33,792) (38,687) (30,540)
a1 5,564 S 4048
(18,811) (19,183) 3,617)
- (1,455) +(5:056)
(5,800) - (856)
. (@2388) ©431) 1,828)
1,244 139
176 — La241)
23,462 6,508 6,641
6517 - 9,416 - 1,986
- 42316 5317 (690).
19,995 7,958 6,806
..(9,308) (18,580) 17,689
1,391,767 1,254,845 1,194,755
(2,650,788) (1,468,286) (1,437,002)
- S(171144) (498,992) - " (37.963)
492,408 118,246 35,501
109,176 73,557 325,518
— (96,689) —
76,800 21,689 5493
4,003 4,590 19,458
(119,674), (106,988) (95.741)
(107,487) (87,454) (81,614)
(26,282 — —
(30,704) (5,598) (2,169)
— 9,115) (14,331)
(2,423,692) (2,055,040) (1,282,760)
(123.457) 540,203 (164,029)
(128,749) — L=
2,512,747 2,007,707 2,767,546
1,400,000 - -
(1,435,596) (1,151,395) (1,792,492)
(3.819) — —
(24,665) (14,220) (31,277)
491,023 242,107 141343
(1,003,413) (875,614) (802,123)
{15,095) {5.762) (5,040)
(33,188) (503) (659)
— 49 2,395
(12,649) (9.559) (9,286)
6,983 24,602 8,618
1,030,122 758,057 114,996
(1.803) (42.138) 26,991
(522) 2,670
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Cash and cash'équivalents a béginning of period-.. . L NSEA4E . S94BI6 T 67,908

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 53,023 S 55348 S 94,816




VENTAS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWS (Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

2015 2014 2013

{In thousands)
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: - _; * . _ . C S
Interest paid including swap payments and receipts s 391,699 § 361,144

Supp:lcﬁmciilal sd_x:cdij_l_c_i_)"f non-cash activities:. 1+ . i L

Asscts and habilities assurned from acquisitions
- Realestate inVestments AL R SRR By el it
Uulizatton of funds held for an Internal Revenue Code Section 1031 exchange
Debt assumed
Othér labilitie
Deferred income tax hability

241,076
2097
110,728

Noncontrolling istérests
Equity issued

Sec accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1-—Description of Business

Ventas, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated or except where the context otherwise requires, “we,” “us™ or “our™), an S&P 500
company, is a real estate investment trust (“RETT™) with a highly diversified portfolio of seniors housing and hcaltbcare propertics tocated throughout the
United States, Canada and the United Kingdom. As of December 31, 2015, we owned approximately 1,300 properties (including propetties classified as held
for sale), consisting of seniors housing communities, medical office buildings (“MOBs”™), skilled nursing facilities, specialty hospitals and general acute care
hospitals, and we had {our properties under development, including two properties that are owned by an unconsolidated real estate entity. Our company was
originally founded in 1983 and is currently headquartered in Chicago, Illinois. As further discussed in “Note 5—Dispositions”, in August 2015 we completed
the spin-off of most of our post-acute/skilled nursing facility portfolio into an independent, publicly traded REIT named Care Capital Properties, Inc.
(“CCP”) (the “CCP Spin-Off”). The historical results of operations of the CCP properties as well as the related assets and liabilities are presented as
discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

We primarily invest in seniors housing and healthcare properties through acquisitions and lease our properties to unaffiliated tenants or operate them through
indcpendent third-party managers. As of December 31,2015, we leased a total of 607 properties (excluding MOBs and properties classified as held for sale) to
various healthcare operating companics under “triple-nct™ or “absolute-net” leases that obligate the tenants to pay all property-related expenses, including
maintenance, utilities, repairs, taxes, insurance and capital expenditures, and we engaged independent operators, such as Atria Senior Living, Inc. (“Atria™)
and Suurisc Senior Living, LLC (together with its subsidiaries, “Suntisc™), to manage 304 seniors housing communities for us pursuant to long-term
management agreements. Our three largest tenants, Brookdale Senior Living Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Brookdale Senior Living”), Kindred
Healthcare, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “Kindred”) and Ardent Health Partners, LLC (together with its subsidiaries, “Ardent”) leased from us 140
propertics (excluding six propertics owned through investments in unconsolidated entities and one property managed by Brookdale Senior Living pursuant
to a long-term management agreement), 76 propertics and ten properties, respectively, as of December 31, 2015.

Through our Lillibridge Healthcare Services, Inc. (“Lillibridge™) subsidiary and our ownership interest in PMB Real Estate Services LLC (“PMBRES”),
we also provide MOB management, leasing, marketing, facility development and advisory services to highly rated hospitals and health systems throughout
the United States. In addition, from time to time, we make sccured and non-mortgage loans and other investments relating to seniors housing and healthcare
opcrators or properties.

Note 2—Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries and the joint venture
cntities over which we exercise control. All intercompany transactions and balances have been ehminated 1n consolidation, and our nct eamings arc reduced
by the portion of net eamings attributable to noncontrolling interests.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™) requires us to identify entitics for which control is achieved through means other than voting
rights and to determine which business enterprisc is the primary beneficiary of variable interest entities (“VIEs™). A VIE is broadly defined as an entity with
one or more of the following characteristics: (a) the total equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance the entity’s activities without additional
subordinated financial support; (b) as a group, the holders of the equity investment at risk lack (i) the ability to make decisions about the entity’s activities
through voting orsimilar rights, (i1) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity, or (iii) the right to receive the expected residual retums of the
entity; and (c) the equity investors have voting rights that are not proportional to their economic interests, and substantially all of the entity’s activities either
involve, or arc conducted on behalf of, an investor that has disproportionately few voting rights. We consolidate our investment in a VIE when we dctcrmine
that we are its primary beneficiary. We may change our original assessment of a VIE upon subscquent cvents such as the modification of contractual
arrangements that affects the characteristics or adequacy of the entity’s equity investments at risk and the disposition of all or a portion of an interest held by

We identify the primary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprise that has both: (i) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly
impact the entity’s economic performance; and (ii) the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits of the VIE that could be significant to the
entity. We perform this analysis on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As it relates to investments in joint ventures, GAAP may preclude consolidation by the sole general partner in certain circumstances based on the type
of rights held by the limited partner(s). We assess limited partners’ rights and their impact on the presumption of control of the limited partnership by the solc
general partner when an investor becomes the sole general partner, and we reassess if there is a change to the terns or in the exercisability of the nghts of the
limited partners, the sole general partner icreases or decreases its ownership of limited partnership interests, or there is an increase or decrease in the number
of outstanding limited partnership interests. We also apply this guidance to managing member interests in limited liability companies.

Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

We report investments in unconsolidated entities over whose operating and financial policics we have the ability to cxercise significant influence
under the cquity method of accounting. Under this method of accounting, our share of the investee’s camings or losses is included in our Consolidated
Statements of Income.

We base the initial carrying value of investments in unconsolidated entities on the fair value of the assets at the time we acquired the joint venture
interest. We estimatc fair valucs for our equity method investments based on discounted cash flow models that include all estimated cash inflows and
outflows over a specificd holding period and, where applicable, any estimated debt premiums or discounts. The capitalization rates, discount rates and credit
spreads we use in these models are based upon assumptions that we belicve to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective
investments.

We genenally amortize any difference between our cost basis and the basis reflected at the joint venture level, ifany, over the lives of the related assets
and liabilities and include that amortization in our share of income or loss from unconsolidated entities. For eamings of cquity method investments with pro
rata distribution allocations, net income or loss is allocated between the partners in the joint venture based on their respective stated ownership percentages.
In other instances, net income or loss is allocated between the partners in the joint venture based on the hypothetical liquidation at book value method (the
“HLBV mcthod”). Under the HLBV method, net income or loss is allocated between the partners based on the difference between each partner’s claim on the
net assets of the joint venture at the end and beginning of the period, after taking into account contributions and distributions. Each partner’s share of the net
asscts of the joint venture is calculated as the amount that the partner would receive if the joint venture were to liquidate all of its assets at net book value and
distribute the resulting cash to creditors and partners in accordance with their respective priorities. Under this method, in any given period, we could record
more or less income than the joint venture has generated, than actual cash distributions received or than the amount we may receive in the event of an actual
liquidation.

Redeemable OP Unitholder and Noncontrolling Interests

We own a majority interest in NHP/PMB L.P. (“NHP/PMB”), a limited partnership formed in 2008 to acquire properties from entities affiliated with
Pacific Medical Buildings LLC. We consolidate NHP/PMB, as our wholly owned subsidiary is the general partner and exercises control of the partnership. As
of December 31, 2015, third party investors owned 2,812,318 Class A limited partnership units in NHP/PMB (“OP Units™), which represented 28.9% of the
total units then outstanding, and we owned 6,917,009 Class B limited partnership units in NHP/PMB, representing the remaining 71.1%. At any time
following the first anniversary of the date of their issuance, the OP Units may be redeemed at the clection of the holder for cash or, at our option, 0.9051
shares of our common stock per unit, as adjusted from 0.7866 shares of common stock per unit in connection with the CCP Spin-Off, and subject to further
adjustment in certain circumstances. We are party by assumption to a registration rights agreement with the holders of the OP Units that requires us, subject to
the terms and conditions and certain exceptions set forth therein, to file and maintain a registration statement relating to the issuance of shares of our common
stock upon redemption of OP Units.

On January 16,2015, in connection with our acquisition of American Realty Capital Healthcare Trust, Inc. (*HCT™), each of the 7,057,271 issued and
outstanding limited partnership units of American Realty Capital Healthcare Trust Operating Partnership, L.P. (subsequently renamed Ventas Realty Capital
Hecalthcare Trust Operating Partnership, L.P. (“Ventas Realty OP™)), a limited partnership in which HCT was the solc general partner prior to the acquisition,
was converled into a newly created class of limited partnership units (“Class C Units™) at the 0.1688 exchange ratio payable to HCT stockholders in the
acquisition, net of any Class C Units withheld to pay taxes. We consolidate Ventas Realty OP, as our wholly owned subsidiary is the general partner and
excrcises control of the partnership. The Class C Units may be redeemed at the election of the holder for one share of our common stock per unit or, at our
option, an equivalent amount in cash, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. We are party by assumption to a registration rights agreement with the
holders of the Class C Units that requires us, subject to the terms and conditions and certain exceptions set forth therein, to file and maintain a registration
statement relating to the issuance of shares of our common stock upon redemption of Class C Units. As of December 31,2015, third party investors owncd
672,984 Class C Units, which represented 2.3% of'the total units then outstanding, and we owned
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28,550,812 Class C Units and 176,374 OP units in Ventas Realty OP, representing the remaining 97.7%. In Apnl 2015, third party investors redeemed
445,541 Class C Unuts for approximately $32.6 mullion.

As redemption rights arc outside of our control, the redeemable OP unitholder interests are classified outside of permanent equity on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. We reflect the redeemable OP unitholder interests at the greater of cost or fair value. As of December 31,2015 and 2014, the fair value of the
redcemable OP unithelder interests was $188.5 million and $159.1 million, respectively. We recognize changes in fair value through capiial in excess of par

value, net of cash distributions paid and purchascs by us of any OP Units. Our diluted eamings per share (“EPS™) includes the effect of any potential shares
outstanding from redemption of the OP Units.,

Beginning on January 16, 2016 and as of February 10, 2016, third party investors executed redemption right exercisc notices for Ventas Realty Capital
Healthcare Trust Operating Partnership, L.P. to redeem 303,136 Class C Units. We expect that the Class C Units will be redcemed through the issuance of
303,136 shares of Ventas common stock on or before April 1, 2016, but we have the right to redcem the Class C Units for a cash amount.

Certain noncontrolling interests of other consolidated joint ventures were also classified as redcemable at December 31,2015 and 2014, Accordingly,
we record the cammying amount of these noncontrolling interests at the greater of their initial camying amount (increased or decreased for the noncontrotiing
interest’s share of net income or loss and distributions) or the redemption vatue. Our joint venture partners have certain redemption rights with respect to their
noncontrolling interests in these joint ventures that are outside of our control, and the redcemable noncontrolling interests are classified outside of permanent
cquity on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recognize changes in carrying value of redcemable noncontrolling interests through capital in excess of par
value.

Noncontrolling Interests

Excluding the redecmable noncontrolling interests described above, we present the portion of any equity that we do not own in entitics that we control
(and thus consolidate) as noncontrolling interests and classify those interests as a component of consolidated equity, separate from total Ventas stockholders’
cquity, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. For consolidated joint ventures with pro rata distribution allocations, net income or loss is allocated between the
joint venture partners based on their respective stated ownership percentages. In other instances, net income or loss is allocated between the joint venture
partners based on the HLBV method. We account for purchases or sales of equity interests that do not result in a change of control as equity transactions,
through capital in excess of par value. In addition, we include nct income attributable to the noncontrolling interests in net income in our Consolidated

Statements of Income.
Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions regarding future events that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilitics, the disclosure of contingent asscts and-liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Business Combinations

We account for acquisitions using the acquisition method and record the cost of the businesses acquired among tangible and recognized intangible
asscts and liabilities based upon their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date. Recognized intangibles primarily include the value of in-place leases,
acquired lease contracts, tenant and customer relationships, trade names/trademarks and goodwill. We do not amortize goodwill, which represents the excess
of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets of the acquired business and is included in other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We estimate the fair value of buildings acquired on an as-if-vacant basis, or replacement cost basis and depreciate the building value over the cstimated
remaining life of the building, generally not to exceed 35 years. We determine the fair value of other fixed asscts, such as site improvements and furniture,
fixtures and equipment, based upon the replacement cost and depreciate such value over the assets’ estimated remaining useful lives as determined at the
applicable acquisition datc. We determine the value of land cither by considering the sales prices of similar propertics in recent transactions or based on
internal analyses of recently acquired and existing comparable propertics within our portfolio. We generally determine the value of construction in progress
based upon the replacement cost. However; {or ceitain acquired piopértics that are part of a giotind-up development, we determirie fair value by using the
same valuation approach as for all other propertics and deducting the estimated cost to complete the development. During the remaining construction period,
we capitalize interest expensc until the development has reached substantial complction. Construction in progress, including capitalized interest, is not

depreciated until the development has reached substantial completion.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The fair value of acquired lease-related intangibles, 1f any, reflects: (1) the estimated value of any above and/or below market leases, detemuned by
discounting the difference between the estimated market rent and in-place leasc rent; and (ii) the estimated value of in-place lcases related to the cost to
obtain tenants, including leasing commissions, and an estimated value of the absorption period to reflect the value of the rent and recovery costs foregone
during a rcasonable lease-up period as if the acquired space was vacant. We amortize any acquired lcasc-related intangibles to revenue or amortization
expense over the remaining life of the associated lease plus any assumed bargain renewal periods. If a lease is terminated prior to its stated expiration or not
renewed upon expiration, we recognize all unamortized amounts of lease-related intangibles associated with that lease in operations at that tme.

We estimate the fair value of purchase option intangible asscts and lhiabilities, if any, by discounting the diffcrence between the applicable property’s
acquisition date fair value and an estimate of its future option price. We do not amortize the resulting intangible asset or liability over the tenm of the lease,
but rather adjust the recognized value of the asset or liability upon salc.

We estimate the fair value of tenant or other customer relationships acquired, if any, by considering the nature and extent of existing business
relationships with the tenant or customer, growth prospects for developing new business with the tenant or customer, the tenant’s credit quality, expectations
of leasc renewals with the tenant, and the potential for significant, additional future Icasing arrangements with the tenant, and we amortize that value over the
expected life of the associated arrangements or leases, including the remaining terms of the related leases and any expected renewal periods. We estimate the
fair value of trade names and trademarks using a royalty rate methodology and amortize that value over the estimated uscful life of the trade name or
trademark.

In connection with a business combination, we may assume rights and obligations under certain leasc agreements pursuant to which we become the
lessec of a given property. We assume the lease classification previously determined by the prior lessee absent a modification in the assumed lease agreement.
We assess assumed operating leases, including ground leascs, to determine whether the lease terms are favorable or unfavorable to us given current market
conditions on the acquisition date. To the extent the lease terms are favorablc or unfavorable to us relative to market conditions on the acquisition date, we
recognize an intangible asset or liability at fair value and amortize that assct or liability to interest or rental expense in our Consolidated Statements of
Income over the applicable lease term. We include all lease-related intangible asscts and liabilities within acquired lease intangibles and accounts payable
and other liabilities, respectively, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We determine the fair value of loans receivable acquired in connection with a business combination by discounting the estimated future cash flows
using current interest rates at which similar loans with the same terms and length to maturity would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings. We do
not establish a valuation allowance at the acquisition date because the estimated future cash flows already reflect our judgment regarding their uncertainty.
We recognize the difference between the acquisition date fair value and the total expected cash flows as interest income using an effective interest method
overthe life of the applicable loan. Subsequent to the acquisition date, we cvaluate changes regarding the uncertainty of futurc cash flows and the need fora
valuation allowance, as appropriatc.

We estimate the fair value of noncontrolling interests assumed consistent with the manner in which we value all of the underlying assets and liabilities.

We calculate the fair value of long-term debt by discounting the remaining contractual cash flows on cach instrument at the current market rate for
those borrowings, which we approximate based on the rate at which we would expect to incur a replacement instrument on the date of acquisition, and
recognize any fair value adjustments related to long-term debt as effective yield adjustments over the remaining term of the instrument.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

We periodically evaluate our long-lived asscts, primarily consisting of investments in rcal estate, for impairment indicators. If indicators of impairment
are present, we evaluate the carrying value of the related real estate investments in relation to the future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying
operations. In performing this evaluation, we consider market conditions and our current intentions with respect to holding or disposing of the asset. We
adjust the net book value of leased propertics and other long-lived assets to fair value if the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows, including
sales proceeds, is less than book value. We recognize an impairment loss at the time we make any such determination.

If impairment indicators arise with respect to intangible assets with finite useful lives, we evaluate impairment by comparing the cammying amount of the |
assel to the estimated future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If estimated future undiscounted net cash flows are less than
the carrying amount of the asset, then we cstimate the fair
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value of the asset and compare the estimated fair value 1o the intangible assel’s carmying value. We recognize any shortfall from camying value as an
impairment loss 1n the current period.

We cvaluate our investments in unconsolidated entities for impairment at least annually, and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of our investment may exceed its fair value. If we determine that a decline in the fair value of our investment in an unconsolidated
entity is other-than-temporary, and if such reduced fair value is below the camying value, we record an impairment.

We test goodwill for impairment at least annually, and more frequently if indicators arisc. We first assess qualitative factors, such as current
macroeconomic conditions, state of the equity and capital markets and our overall financial and operating performance, to determine the likelihood that the
fair valuc of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If we determine it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
camying amount, we proceed with the two-step approach to evaluating impairment. First, we estimate the fair value of the reporting unit and compare it to the
reporting unit’s carrying value. If the canying value exceeds fair value, we proceed with the second step, which requires us to assign the fair value of the
reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit as if it had been acquired in a business combination at the date of the impairment test.
The excess fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to the assets and liabilitics is the implied value of goodwill and is used to determine the
amount of impairment. We recognize an impaimment loss to the extent the carrying value of goodwill excecds the implicd value in the current period.

Estimates of fair value used in our evaluation of goodwill (if necessary based on our qualitative assessment), investments in real estate, investments in
unconsolidated entitics and intangible asscts are based upon discounted future cash flow projections or other acceptable valuation techniques that are based,
in turn, upon all available evidence including level three inputs, such as revenue and expensc growth rates, estimates of future cash flows, capitalization
rates, discount ratcs, general economic conditions and trends, or other available market data. Qur ability to accurately predict future operating results and
cash flows and to estimate and allocate fair values impacts the timing and recognition of impairments. While we believe our assumptlons are reasonable,
changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on our financial results. :

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

We scll properties from time to time for various reasons, including favorable market conditions or the exercise of purchase options by tenants. We
classify certain long-lived assets as held for sale once the criteria, as defined by GAAP, has been met. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the
lower of their carrying amount or fair value minus cost to sell and are no longer depreciated. We report discontinued operations when the following criteria
are met: (1)a component of an cntity-or group of componcnts that has been disposed of or classified as held for sale and represents a strategic shift that has or
will have a major cffect on an entity’s operations and financial results; or (2) an acquired business that is classified as held for sale on the acquisition date.
Asstts relating to the CCP Spin-Off were reported as discontinued operations once the transaction was completed. The results of operations for asscts meeting
the definition of discontinued opcrations arc reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Income as discontinued opcrations for all periods presented. We
allocate estimated interest expense to discontinued operations based on property values and our weighted average interest rate or the property’s actual
mortgage interest.

Loans Receivable

We record loans receivable, other than those acquired in connection with a business combination, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets (eitherin
secured loans recetvable and investments, net or other assets, in the case of non-mortgagc loans reccivable) at the unpaid principal balance, net of any
deferred origination fecs, purchase discounts or premiums and valuation allowances. We amortize net deferred origination fees, which are compriscd of loan
fees collected from the borrower net of certain direct costs, and purchase discounts or premiums over the contractual life of the loan using the effective
interest method and immediately recognize in income any unamortized balances if the loan is repaid before its contractual maturity.

We regularly cvaluate the collectibility of loans receivable based on factors such as corporate and facility-level financial and operational reports,
compliance with financial covenants set forth in the applicable loan agreement, the financial strength of the borrower and any guarantor, the payment history
of the borrower and cumrent economic conditions. If our evaluation of these factors indicates it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due
under the terms of the applicable loan agreement, we provide a reserve against the portion of the receivable that we estimate may not be collected.

wo—Cash Equivalents ... __.__ . _ . .. . . .

Cash cquivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less when purchased. These mvcstmcnts are stated at cost,
which approximates fair value.
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Escrow Deposits und Restricted Cash

Escrow deposits consist of amounts held by us or our lenders to provide for future real estate tax, insurance expenditures and tenant improvements
related to our propertics and opcerations. Restricted cash represents amounts paid to us for secunty deposits and other similar purposcs.

Deferred Financing Costs

We amortize deferred financing costs, which are reported within scnior notes payable and other debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, as a
component of interest expense over the terms of the related borrowings using a method that approximates a level yield. Amortized costs of approximately
$18.7 million, $16.9 million and $13.5 million werc included in interest expense for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Marketable Debt and Equity Securities

We rccord marketable debt and equity securities as available-for-sale and classify them as a component of other assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets (other than our interests in govemment-sponsored pooled loan investments, which arc classificd as secured loans receivable and investments, net on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets). We record these securitics at fair value and include unrealized gains and losses recorded in stockholders’ equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income on our Consolidated Balance Shects. We report interest income, including discount or premium
amortization, on markctable debt secunties and gains or losses on securities sold, which are based on the specific identification method, in income from loans
and investments in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Derivative Instruments

We recogmize all derivative instruments in other assets or accounts payable and other liabilitics on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair valuc as of
the reporting date.- We recognize changes in the fair value of derivative instruments in other expenscs in our Consolidated Statements of Income or
accumulated other comprehensive income on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, depending on the intended usc of the derivative and our destgnation of the
instrument.

We do not use our derivative financial instruments, including intcrest rate caps, intcrest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts, for trading or
speculative purposcs. Our foreign currency forward contracts and certain of our interest rate swaps (including the interest rate swap contracts of
unconsolidated joint ventures) are designated as effectively hedging the variability of expected cash flows related to their underlying securities and,
therefore, also are recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, with changes in the fair value of these instruments recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive income on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recognize our proportionate share of the change in fair value of swap contracts of our
unconsolidated joint ventures in accumulated other comprehensive income on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Certain of our other interest rate swaps and
rate caps were not designated as having a hedging relationship with the underlying securities and therefore do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting
under GAAP. Accordingly, these interest rate swaps arc recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, and we recognize changes in the fair value
of these instruments in current eamings (in other expenscs) in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair valuc is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and we determine fair value based on the assumptions that we expect
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering markct participant assumptions in fair valuc measurements, GAAP
cstablishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions bascd on market data obtained from sources independent of the
reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within levels one and two of the hicrarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about markct
participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classificd within level three of the hierarchy).

Level one inputs utilize unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that we have the ability to access. Level two inputs
are inputs other than quoted prices included in level one that are directly or indirectly obscrvablc for the asset or liability. Level two inputs may include
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and other inputs for the asset or liability that are observable at commonly quoted intervals,
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and yield curves. Level three inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which typically are based
on our own assumptions, because there is little, if any, related market activity. If the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the hierarchy, the level within which the entire fair value measurement falls is the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. If the volume and Icvel of market activity foran asset or liability has decreased significantly relative to the normal market
activity for such assct or liability (or similar assets or liabilities), then transactions or quoted prices may not accurately reflect fair value. In addition, if there is
evidence that a transaction for an asset or liability is not orderly, little, if any, weight is placed on that transaction price as an
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indicator of fair value. Qur assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in jts entirety requires judgment and considers
factors specific to the asset or hiability.

We usc the following methods and assumptions in estimating the fair value of our financial instruments.

+  Cush and cash equivaienis - The carrying amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents reported on our Consoiidated Balance Sheets
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

»  Escrow deposits and restricted cash - The carrying amount of escrow deposits and restricted cash reported on our Consalidated Balance Sheets
approximatcs fair value duc to the short maturity of these instruments.

*  Loans receivable - We estimate the fair value of loans receivable using level two and level three inputs: we discount future cash flows using
current interest rates at which similar loans with the same terms and length to maturity would be madc to borrowers with similar credit ratings.

«  Murketable debt securities - We estimate the fair value of corporate bonds using level two inputs: we observe quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets that we have the ability to access. We estimate the fair value of certain government-sponsored pooled loan
1nvestments using level three inputs: we consider credit spreads, underlying assct performance and credit quality, default rates and any other
applicable criteria.

»  Derivative instruments - With the assistance of a third party, we estimate the fair valuc. of dcrivative instruments, including intcrest rate caps,
interest rate swaps, and forcign currency forward contracts using level two inputs: for interest rate.caps, we observe forward yicld curves and
other relevant information; for interest rate swaps, we observe altemative financing rates derived from market-based financing rates, forward
yield curves and discount rates; and for foreign currency forward contracts, we estimate the future values of the two currency tranches using
forward exchange rates that are based on traded forward points and calculate a present value of the net amount using a discount factor based on
observable traded interest rates.

Senior notes payable and other debt - We cstimate the fair value of senior notes payable and other debt using level two inputs: we discount the
future cash flows using current intcrest rates at which we could obtain similar borrowings. For mortgage debt, we may estimate fair value using
level threc inputs.

»  Redeemable OP unitholder interests - We estimate the fair value of our redeemable OP unitholder interests using level one inputs: we base fair

value on the closing price of our common stock, as OP Units may be redeemed at the election of the holder for cash or, at our option, shares of
our common stock, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances.

Revenue Recognition
Triple-Net Leased Properties and MOB Operations

Certain of our triple-net leases and most of our MOB leases provide for periodic and determinable increases in base rent. We reccognize basc rental
revenucs under these leases on a straight-line basis over the applicable lease term when collectability is reasonably assured. Recognizing rental income on a
straight-line basis generally results in recognized revenues during the first half of a lease term excceding the cash amounts contractually due from our tenants,
creating a straight-line rent receivable that is included in other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. At December 31,2015 and 2014, this cumulative
cxcess totaled $219.1 million (net of allowances of $101.4 million) and $187.6 million (net of allowances of $83.5 million), respectively (excluding
properties classified as held for sale).

Certain of our leases provide for periodic increases in base rent only if certain revenuc parameters or other substantive contingencies are met. We
recognize the increased rental revenue under these leases as the related parameters or contingencies are met, rather than on a straight-line basis overthe
applicable leasc term.

Senior Living Operations
We recognize resident fees and services, other than move-in fees, monthly as services are provided. We recognize move-in fees on a straight-line basis

over.the average resident stay. Qurlcasce agreements with residents generally-have terms of-12to 18 months-and-are cancelabie-by-the resident upon 30-days’—— -
notice.

Other

We recognize interest income from loans and investments, including discounts and premiums, using the effective interest method when collectibifity is
reasonably assured. We apply the eflective interest method on a loan-by-loan basis and recognize discounts and premiums as yield adjustments over the
rclated loan term. We recognize interest income on an impaired loan to
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the extent our estimate of the fair value of the collateral is sufficient to support the balance of the loan, other receivables and all related accrued interest

When the balance of the loan, other receivables and all related accrued interest is equal to or less than our estimate of the fair value of the collateral, we
recognize interest income on a cash basis. We provide a rescrve against an impaired loan to the extent our total investment in the loan exceeds our estimate of
the fair value of the loan collateral.

We recognize income from rent, lease termination fees, development services, management advisory services, and all other income when all of the
following criteria are met in accordance with Sccuritics and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) Staff Accounting Bulletin 104: (i) the applicable agreement has
been fully executed and delivered; (i1) services have been rendered,; (iii) the amount is fixed or determinable; and (1v) collectibility is reasonably assured.

Allowances

We asscss the collectibility of our rent receivables, including straight-line rent receivables. We base our assessment of the collectibility of rent
receivables (other than straight-linc rent receivables) on several factors, including, among other things, payment history, the financial strength of the tenant
and any guarantors, the valuc of the underlying collateral, if any, and current economic conditions. If our evaluation of these factors indicatcs it is probable
that we will be unable to recover the full value of the receivable, we provide a reserve against the portion of the recervable that we estimate may not be
recovercd. We also base our assessment of the collectibility of straight-line rent receivables on several factors, including, among other things, the financial
strength of the tenant and any guarantors, the historical operations and operating trends of the property, the historical payment pattern of the tenant and the
type of property. If our cvaluation of these factors indicates it is probable that we will be unable to receive the rent payments due in the future, we provide a
reserve against the recognized straight-line rent receivable asset for the portion, up to its full value, that we estimate may not be recovered. If we change our
assumptions or estimates regarding the collectibility of future rent payments required by a lease, we may adjust our reserve to increase or rcducc the rental
revenue recognized in the period we make such change in our assumptions or estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize share-based payments to employces and directors, including grants of stock options, included in General, administrative and professional
fees in our Conso]ldalcd Statements of Income generally on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period based on the grant date fair value of the
award.

Gain on Sale of Assets

We recognize sales of assets only upon the closing of the transaction with the purchaser. We record payments received from purchasers prior to closing
as deposits and classify them as other assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recognize gains (net of any taxes) on assets sold using the full accrual
method upon closing if the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured, we are not obligated to perform any significant activities afier the sale to
eam the profit, we have received adequate initial investment from the purchaser, and other profit recognition criteria have becn satisfied. We may defer
recognition of gains in whole or in part until: (i) the profit is determinable, meaning that the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured or the
amount that will not be collectible can be estimated; and (ii) the eamnings process is virtually complete, meaning that we are not obliged to perform any
significant activitics after the sale to cam the profit.

Federal Income Tax

We have clected to be treated as a REIT under the applicable provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Codc™), for every year
beginning with the ycar ended December 31, 1999. Accordingly, we generally are not subject to federal income tax on net income that we distribute to our
stockholders, provided that we continue to qualify as a REIT. However, with respect to certain of our subsidiaries that have elected to be treated as “taxable
REIT subsidianes,” we record income tax expense or benefit, as those entities are subject to federal income tax similar to regular corporations. Certain foreign
subsidiaries are subject to foreign income tax, although they did not elect to be treated as TRSs.

We account for deferred income taxes using the assct and liability method and recognize deferred tax assets and fiabilitics for the expected future tax
conscquences of events that have been included in our financial statements or tax retumns. Under this method, we detenmine deferred tax assets and liabilities
bascd on the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences arc expected to reverse. Any increase or decrease in the deferred tax liability that results from a change in circumstances, and that causes us to
change our judgment about expected future tax consequences of events, is included in the tax provision when such changes occur. Deferred income taxes
also reflect the impact of operating loss and tax credit camyforwards. A valuation allowance is provided if we believe it is morc likely than not that all or
some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Any increase or decrcase in the valuation allowance that results from a change in circumstances,
and that causes us to change our judgment about the realizability of the related deferred tax asset, is included in the tax provision when such changes occur.
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We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax retum only if it 1s more likely than not that the
tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authonties, based on the tcchnical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likclibood of being realized upon ultimate
scttiement. We recognize interest and penaltics, if applicable, related to uncertain tax positions as part of income tax benefit (cxpensc).

Foreign Currency

Certain of our subsidiaries’ functional currencics are the focal currencies of their respective foreign jurisdictions. We translate the results of operations
of our foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollars using average rates of exchange in effect during the period, and we translate balance sheet accounts using
exchange rates in effect at the end of the period. We record resulting currency translation adjustments in accumulated other comprehensive income, a
component of stockholders’ equity, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, and we record foreign curmrency transaction gains and losses in our Consolidated
Statements of Income. ’

Segment Reporting

AsofDecember31,2015,2014 and 2013, we operated through three reportable business segments: triple-net leased propertics; senior living
operations; and MOB operations. In our triple-net leased properties segment, we invest in seniors housing and healthcare propertics throughout the United
States and the United Kingdom and lease those properties to healthcare operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute-net” leases that obligate the
tenants to pay all property-related expenses. In our senior living operations segment, we invest in seniors housing communities throughout the United States
and Canada and engage independent operators, such as Atria and Sunrise, to manage those communities. In our MOB operations scgment, we primarily
acquire, own, develop, lease, and manage MOBs throughout the United States. Sec “Notc 20—Scgment Information.”

Operating Leases

We account for payments made pursuant to operating leases in our Consolidatcd Statements of Income based on actual rent paid, plus or minus a
straight-line rent adjustment for leases that provide for periodic and determinable increases in base rent.

Recently Issued or Adopted Accounting Standards

In April 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs (“ASU 2015-03"),
which requircs that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a dircct deduction from the carrying amount
of that dcbt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognmon and measurement guldancc for debt issuance costs are not affected. Also in August
2015, the FASB issues ASU 2015-15, Presentation and ‘Subsequent Measurement: of Debt Issuance Costs Associated With Line-of-Credit Arrangements
(“ASU 2015-15") which clarifics the SEC staff’s position not objecting, to'an cntity deferring and presénting debt issuance costs as an asset and subscquently
amortizing such costs, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings on the linc-of-credit amangement. We adopted ASU 2015-03 and 2015-15
during 2015. There were deferred financing costs of $69.1 million and $60.3 million as of December 31,2015 and 2014 , tespectively that arc now classified
within senior notes payable and other debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16, Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments (“ASU 2015-16") to simplify the
accoumm;> for business combinations, specifically as it relates to measurement-period adjustments. Acquiring entitics in a business combination must
recognize measurement-period adjustments in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. Also, ASU 2015-16 requires enfities to
present separately on the face of the income statement (or disclose in the notes to the financial statements) the portion of the amount recorded in the current
period camings, by linc item, that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts had been recognized
as of the acquisition date. ASU 2015-16 is cffective for thc Company beginning January 1,2016 and is to be applied prospectively to measurement-period
adjustments that occur afier the effective date. We do not expect the adoption of this ASU to have'a significant impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (*ASU”) 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts With Customers (“ASU 2014-09"), which outlines
a comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenuce arising from contracts with customers. ASU 2014-09 states that “an entity recognizes
revenue to depict the transfer of promised go_ods or scrvices to customers in-an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be

“entitled in exchange for thosc goods or services.” While ASU2014-09 specifically references contracts with customers, it may apply to certain other
transactions such as the sale of real estate or equipment. In 2015, the FASB provided for a one-year deferral of the effective date for ASU
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2014-09 which 1s now eflective for us beginning January 1,2018. We arc continuing to evaluate this guidance; however, we do not expect its adoption to
have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements, as a substantial portion of our revenue consists of rental income from leasing
arrangements, which are specifically excluded from ASU 2014-09.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis (*ASU 2015-027), which
makes certain changes to both the variablc interest model and the voting model, including changes to (1) the identification of variable interests (fees paid to
a decision maker or service provider), (2) the variable interest entity characteristics for a limited partnership or similar entity and (3) the primary beneficiary
determination. ASU 2015-02 is effective for us beginning January 1, 2016. We are continuing to cvaluate this guidance; however, we do not expect its
adoption to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Note 3—Concentration of Credit Risk

As of December 31, 2015, Atria, Sunrisc, Brookdale Scnior Living, Kindred and Ardent managed or operated approximately 22.5%, 11.7%, 8.5%, 2.1%
and 5.3%, respectively, of our real estate investments based on gross book value (excluding properties classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2015).
Seniors housing communitics constituted approximately 65.2% of our real estate investments based on gross book value (excluding properties classified as
held for sale as of December 31, 2015), while MOBs, skilled nursing facilities, specialty hospitals and general acute care hospitals collectively comprised the
remaining 34.8% Our propertics were located in 46 states, the District of Columbia, seven Canadian provinces and the United Kingdom as of December 31,
2015, with properties in one state (Califomnia) accounting for more than 10% of our total revenues and total nct operating income (“NOL” which is defined as
total revenues, excluding interest and other income, less property-level operating expenses and medical office buildiog services costs) (in each case
excluding amounts in discontinued operations) for each of the years ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013.

Triple-Net Leased Properties

For the ycars ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, approximately 5.3%, 6.1% and 6.2%, respectivcly, of our total revenucs and 9.3%, 10.9% and
11.2%, respectively, of our total NOI (in each case excluding amounts in discontinued operations) were derived from our lease agreements with Brookdale
Senior Living. For the same periods, approximately 5.6%, 5.9% and 6.2%, respectively, of our total revenues and 9.8%, 10.6% and 11.2%, respectively, of
our total NOI (in each case excluding amounts in discontinued operations) were derived from our leasc agreements with Kindred. As a result of our 2015
acquisition of Ardent Medical Services, Inc. (“AHS”) and simultancous scparation and sale of Ardent, for the year ended December 31, 2015, approximately
1.3% of our total revenues and 2.3% of our total NOI (in each case excluding amounts in discontinued operations) were derived from our lease agreements
with Ardent. Each of our lcases with Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent is a triple-net lease that obligatcs the tenant to pay all property-related
expenses, including maintenance, utilitics, repairs, taxes, insurance and capital expenditures, and to comply with the terms of the mortgage financing
documents, if any, affecting the propertics. In addition, each of our Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent leases has a corporate guaranty. Brookdale
Senior Living and Kindred have multiple leases with us and those leases contain cross-default provisions tied to each other, as well as bundled lease renewals
(as described in more detail below).

The properties we lease to Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent accounted for a significant portion of our tripie-net leased propertics segment
revenues and NOI for the years ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013. If either Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent becomes unable or unwilling
to satisfy its obligations to us or to renew its leases with us upon cxpiration of the terms thereof, our financial condition and results of opcrations could
decline and our ability to service our indebtedness and to make distributions to our stockholders could be impaired. We cannot assure you that Brookdale
Senior Living, Kindred and Ardent will have sufficient assets, income and access to financing to enable them to satisfy their respective obligations to us, and
any failure, inability or unwillingness by Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred or Ardent to do so could have a matenial adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and liquidity, our ability to service our indebtedness and other obligations and our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders, as required for us to continuc to qualify as a REIT (a “Material Adverse Effect™). We also cannot assure you that Brookdale Senior Living,
Kindred and Ardent will elect to renew their respective leases with us upon expiration of the lcases or that we will be able to reposition any non-renewed
properties on a timely basis or on the same or better economic terms, if at all. '

In December 2014, we entered into favorable agreements with Kindred to transition or sell the operations of nine licensed healthcare assets, make
modifications to the master lcases govemning 34 leased assets, and reimburse us for certain deferred capital expenditures at skilled nursing facilities
previously transferred to new operators. In January 2015, Kindred paid us $37
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milion in connection with these agreements, which is being amortized over the remaining lease term for the 34 assels governed by the modificd master
lcases. We own or have the rights to all hicenses and CONs at the ninc properties to be transitioned or sold, and Kindred has extensive and detailed
obligations to cooperate and ensure an orderly transition of the properties to another operator. As of December 31, 2015, four of the nine properties have been
sold and three of the nine properties were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off, and one property was sold subsequent to December 31,2015,

The following table sets forth the future contracted minimum reatals, excluding contingent rent escalations, but including straighi-line rent
adjustments where applicable, for all of our triple-nct and MOB leases as of December 31,2015 (excluding propertics owned through investments in
unconsolidated entities and propertics classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2015):

’

Brookdale
Senior
Living Kindred Other Total
3067 LS
2017
201850 Gria el L PR PER LS Kbt 22 S 84,744,
2019 o , 1 012 399

5341516

1

401 088. T 4916928
3 FTERIR2AS66

Senior Living Operations

As of December 31,2015, Atria and Sunrise, collectively, provided comprehensive property management and accounting services with respect to 268
of our 304 scniors housing communities, for which we pay annual management fees pursuant to long-term management agreements.

Because Atria and Sunrise manage our propertics in exchange for the receipt of a management fee from us, we are not directly exposed to the credit risk
of our managers in the same manner or to the same extent as our triple-net tenants..However, we rely. on our managers’ personnel, expertise, technical
resources and information systems, proprictary information, good faith and judgment to manage our senior living operations efficiently and effcctively. We
also rcly on our managers to set appropriate resident fees and otherwise operate our seniors housing communities in compliance with the terms of our
management agreements and all applicable laws and regulations. Although we have.various rights as the property owner under our management agreements,
including various rights (o terminate and exercise remedies under the agreements as provided therein, Atria’s or Sunrise’s failure, inability or unwillingness to
satisfy its respective obligations under those agreements, to efficiently and effectively manage-our properties or to provide timely and accurate accounting
information with respect thereto could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. In addition, significant changes in Atria’s or Sunrise’s senior management or
equity ownership or any adverse developments in their busincsses and affairs or financial condition could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Our 34% ownership interest in Atria entitles us to certain rights and minority protections, as well as the right to appoint two of five members on the
Atria board of directors.

Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred, Atria, Sunrise and Ardent Information

Each of Brookdale Senior Living and Kindred is subject to the reporting requirements of the SEC and is required to file with the SEC annual reports
containing audited financial information and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial information. The information related to Brookdale Senior
Living and Kindred contained or refemred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been derived from SEC filings made by Brookdale Senior Living or
Kindred, as the case may be, or other publicly available information, or was provided to us by Brookdale Senior Living or Kindred, and we have not verified
this information through an independent investigation or otherwise. We have no reason to believe that this information is inaccurate in any material respect,

“bui We cannot assitre you of its accuracy. We are providing this data for informational purposes only, and you arc encouraged to obtain Brookdale Senior
Living’s and Kindred’s publicly available filings, which can be found at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

Atria, Sunnse and Ardent arc not currently subject to the reporting requirements of the SEC. The information related to Atnia, Sunrisc and Ardent
contained or referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been derived from publicly available information or was providcd to us by Atria, Sunnse or
Ardent, as the casc may be, and we have not verified this
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information through an independent investigation or otherwise. We have no reason to believe that this information is tnaccurate in any material respect, but
we cannot assure you of'its accuracy.

Note 4—Acquisitions of Real Estate Property

The following summarizes our acquisition and development activitics during 2015,2014 and 2013. We invest in seniors housing and healthcare
properties primanly to achicve an expected yield on our investment, to grow and diversify our portfolio and revenue base, and to reduce our dependence on
any single tenant, operator or manager, geographic location, asset type, business model or revenuc source.

2015 Acquisitions

HCT Acquisition

In January 2015, we acquired HCT in a stock and cash transaction, which added 152 propertics to our portfolio. At the cffective time of the merger, cach
share of HCT common stock outstanding (other than shares held by us, HCT or our respective subsidiaries, which shares were canceled) was converted into
the right to receive either 0.1688 shares of our common stock (with cash paid in licu of fractional shares) or $11.33 per share in cash, at the election of each
HCT shareholder. Shares of HCT common stock for which a valid election was not made were converted into the stock consideration. We funded the
transaction through the issuance of approximately 28.4 million shares of our common stock and 1.1 million limited partnership units that are redeemable for
shares of our common stock and the payment of approximately $11 million in cash (excluding cash in lieu of fractional shares). In addition, we assumed $167
million of mortgage debt and repaid approximately $730 million of debt, net of HCT cash on hand. In August 2015, 20 of the properties that we acquired in
the HCT acquisition were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off. '

Ardent Health Services Acquisition

On August 4,2015, we completed our acquisition of Ardent Medical Services, Inc. and simultancous separation and sale of the Ardent hospital
operating company to a consorttum composed of an entity controlled by Equity Group Investments, Ardent’s management tcam and us (collectively the
“Ardent Transaction™). As of the acquisition date, we recorded the estimated fair value of our investment in owned hospital and other real estate of
approximately $1.3 billion. At closing, we paid $26.3 million for our 9.9% intercst in Ardent which represents our estimatc of the acquisition date fair value
of this interest. Upon closing, we entered into a long-term triple-net master lease with Ardent to operate the ten hospital campuses and otherreal estate we
acquired.

Other 2015 Acquisitions -

In 2015, we made other investments totaling approximately $612 million, including the acquisition of eleven triple-net
leased propertics; cleven MOBs (including eight MOBs that we had previously accounted for as investments in unconsolidated entities; sec “Note 7—
Investments in Unconsolidated Entities.”) and 12 skilled nursing facilities (all of which were disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off).

Completed Developments

During 2015, we completed the development of one triple-net leased seniors housing community, representing $9.3 million of net real estate property
on our Consolidated Balance Shects as of December 31, 2015.
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Esumated Fair Value

We are accounting for our 2015 acquisitions under the acquisition method in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations (*ASC 805”).
Our initial accounting for the acquisitions completed during 2015 remains subject to further adjustment. The following table summarizes the acquisition date
fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, which we determined using level two and level three inputs:

Triple-Net Leased Senior Living
Properties Operativns MOB Operations Total
(In

173,232 272 888 403,046

For certain acquisitions, the determination of fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed has changed and is subject to further adjustment.
We made certain adjustments during 2015, including the fourth quarter, due primarily to reclassification adjustments for presentation and adjustments to our
valuation assumptions. The changes to our valuation assumptions were based on more accurate information conceming the subjcct asscts dnd liabilities.
None of thesc changes had a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Included in other assets above is $746.9 million of goodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date. A substantial amount of this goodwill was due to an increase in our stock price between the announcement
date and closing datcs of the HCT acquisition. Goodwill has been allocated to our reportable business segments based on the respective fair value of the net
assets acquired, as follows: triple-net leased properties - $133.6 million; senior living operations - $219.1 million; and MOB operations - $394.2 million.

Aggregate Revenue and NOI

For the ycar ended December 31, 2015, aggregate revenue and NOI derived from our 2015 real estate acquisitions during our period of ownership were
$327.0 million and $201.9 million, respectively, excluding revenue and NOI for any asscts contributed in the CCP Spin-Off.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred and included in merger-related expenses and deal costs in our Consolidated Statcments of Income. For the
ycars ending December 31,2015 and 2014, we expensed as incurred, $99.0 million and $10.8 million, respectively, costs related to our completed 2015
transactions, $4.1 million and $1.4 million of which are reported within discontinued opcrations. These transaction costs exclude any scparation costs
associated with the CCP Spin-Off (refer to “Note S - Dispositions™).
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Unaudited Pro Forma

The following table illustrates the cffect on net income and eamings per share if we had consummated the HCT acquisition and Ardent Transaction as of
January 1, 2014 and excludes asscts that were acquired in the HCT acquisition but subsequently disposcd of as part of the CCP Spin-Off.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

336136587 %3,164,100

Revenues

Income from continuing operations attributable to common stockholders, including real estate
dispositions $ 475017 $ 465,671
Eaxﬁingspcrédmniéhsh?!_c:_:,:_'.'.. Bl ot AR o LR L
Basic:
_Income frcr)'hl'continuing'o.
. dispositions- .- -7
Diluted:

144

dispositions

Weighted average shares used.in computing camings per common share:
- Basic - P i : e ST 330,311 _ 22,590
Diluted 334,007 326,210

Acquisition-related costs related to the HCT acquisition and the Ardent Transaction arc not expected to have a continuing impact and therefore have
been excluded from these pro forma results. The pro forma results also do not include the impact of any synergics that may be achieved in the HCT
acquisition and the Ardent Transaction, any lower costs of borrowing resulting from the acquisition or any strategies that management may consider in order
to continuc to efficiently manage our operations, nor do they give pro forma effect to any other acquisitions, dispositions or capital markets transactions that
we completed during the periods presented. These pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have been obtained had
the HCT acquisition and Ardent Transaction occurred at the beginning of the periods presented, nor are they necessarily indicative of future operating results.

2014 Acquisitions
Holiday Canada Acquisition

In August 2014, we acquired 29 scniors housing communitics located in Canada from Holiday Retirement (the “Holiday Canada Acquisition”) fora
purchase price of CAD 957.0 million. We also paid CAD 26.9 million in costs relating to the carly repayment of debt at closing. We funded the Holiday
Canada Acquisition initially through borowings undera CAD 791.0 million unsecured term loan that we incurred in July 2014 (and subscquently repaid
primarily through a privatc placement of senior notes in Canada) and the assumption of CAD 193.7 million of debt.

Other 2014 Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31,2014, we also acquired three triple-net leased private hospitals (located in the United Kingdom), 26 triple-net
lcased sentors housing communities and four seniors housing communities that arc being operated by independent third-party managers for aggregate
considceration of approximately $812.0 million. We also paid $18.8 million in costs relating to the early repayment of debt at closing of the applicable
transactions. In addition, we acquired a construction design, planning and consulting business to complement our MOB operations through the issuance of
148,241 shares of our common stock.

Completed Developments

Durimg 2014, we completed the development of two MOBs and one seniors housing community, representing $41.2 miliion of net real estate property
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December31,2014.
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Estimated Fan Value

We are accounting for our 2014 acquisitions under the acquisition method in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805™).
The following table summarizes the acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in our 2014 real estate acquisitions, which we
determined using level two and level three inputs:

Triple-Net Leased Senior Living
Properties Operations Total

L1 Tpas
Sl tAn croents it 45758

Buildings and improvements 546,849

Aggregate Revenue and NOJ

For the year cnded December 31, 2014, aggregate revenues and NOI derived from our 2014 real cstate acquisitions (for our period of ownership) were
$75.9 million and $41.5 million, respectively.

Transaction Costs

As of December 31, 2014, we had incurred a total of $26 2 million of acquisition-related costs related to our completed 2014 acquisitions, all of which
were expensed as incurred and included in merger-related expenses and deal costs in our Consolidated Statements of Income for the applicable periods. For
the ycar ended December 31,2014, we expensed $23.8 million of these acquisition-related costs related to our completed 2014 acquisitions.

2013 Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31 , 2013, we acquired 27 triple-net leased scoiors housing communitics, 24 seniors housing communities that are
being operated by independent third-party managers (eight of which we previously lcased pursuant to a capital lease) and 11 MOBs for aggregate
consideration of approximately $1.8 billion.

Completed Developments

During'thc year ended December 31,2013, we completed the development of two seniors housing communities, one MOB, and one hospital,
representing $65.5 million of net real estate property on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013.
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Estimated Fair Value

We accounted for our 2013 acquisitions under the acquisition method in accordance with ASC 805. We accounted for the acquisition of the eight
seniors housing communities that we previously lcased pursuant to a capital lease in accordance with ASC Topic 840, Leases. The following table
summanzes the acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in our 2013 real estate acquisitions, which we determined using
level two and level three inputs:

Triple-Net Leased Senior Living
Properties Operations (1) MOB Operations Total

(In thousands)

Land and improvements " . 100,908:;
Buildings and improvemc.nts' 1,521,596
Adqiiiréd ledse intangibles L3622
Other assets 8,345
Total assets acquired -, ., = 1,667,076

Notes payable and other debt

Total liabilitics assumed

I :
controlling interest-assumed

Net assets acquired 627,249 147,348 1,583,637
Cash ‘acquired . SR s s 11397 2,150
Total cash used $ 808,287 $ 627,249 $ 145951 § 1,581,487

(1) Includes scttlement of a $142 2 million capital lease obligation related to ¢ight seniors housing communities.

Note 5S—Dispositions
CCP Spin-Off

On August 17,2015, we completed the CCP Spin-Off. In connection with the CCP Spin-Off, we disposed of 355 high-quality triple-nct leascd skilled
nursing facilitics and other healthcarc asscts aperated by private regional and local care providers. The CCP Spin-Off was cffectuated through a distribution
of the common shares of CCP to holders of our common stock as of the distribution record date, and qualified as a tax-frec distribution to our stockholders.
For every four shares of Ventas common stock held as of the distribution record date of August 10,2015, Ventas stockholders received one CCP common
share on August 17,2015. On August 17,2015, just prior to the effective time of the spin-off, CCP (as our then wholly owned subsidiary) received
approximately $1.4 billion of proceeds from a recently completed term loan and revolving credit facility. CCP paid us a distribution of $1.3 billion from
these proceeds. We used this distribution from CCP to pay down our existing debt ($1.1 billion) and to pay for a portion of our quarterly installment of
dividends to our stockholders ($0.2 billion).

The historical results of operations of the CCP properties as well as the related assets and liabilities have been presented as discontinued operations in
the consolidated statcments of operations and comprehensive income. Discontinued operations also include separation costs incurred to complete the CCP
Spin-Off of $42.3 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively. Separation costs for 2015 include $3.5 million of
stock-based compensation expense representing the incremental fair value of previously vested stock-bascd compensation awards as of the spin date. In
addition, the assets and liabilities of CCP are presented separately from asscets and liabilities from continuing operations in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows include within operating, investing and financing cash flows those activities which
related to our period of ownership of the CCP propertics.
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The following is a summary of the asscts and labilities of CCP at the CCP Spin-Off date (dollars in thousands):

August 17,2015 December 31,2014

(In thousands)

Total asscts

rirg o,

e

Llabllmes rclatcd to dssets hcld forsale

Summarized financial information for CCP discontinued opcr';xtions for the years ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013 respectively is as follows
(dollars in thousands):

2015 2014 2013

(In thousands)

Revcnucs

chtnl mcomc

Incomc from loans and mvcetmcnts

Mcrgcr-mlnled expenses and deal costs”
Other

109,731

'» LN e—

Net income ﬁ'om dlscontmucd opcranons 109 731
“"Netincome altnbutablc to noncontmllmg interést ot - ™ 220
3 109,511

Net income from discontinued operations attributable to common stockholders

Capital and development project expenditures relating to CCP for the years ended December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 were $21.8 mitlion, $17.2
million and 10.2 million, respectively. Other than capital and development project expenditures there were no other significant non-cash operating or
investing activities relating CCP.

We and CCP cniered into a transition services agreement prior 1o the CCP Spin-Off pursuant to which we and our subsidianes provide to CCP, on an
interim, transitional basis, various services. The services provided include information
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technology, accounting and tax services. The overall fee charged by us for such services (the "Service Fee") is $2.5 mullion for one year. Through December
31,2015, we recogmized income of $0.9 million, relating to the Service Fee, which is payable in four quarterly installments. The transition services agreement
will terminate on the expiration of the term of the last service provided under the agreement, which will be on or prior to August 31, 2016.

Discontinued Operations - Other than CCP Spin-Off

In addition to the amounts reported within discontinucd operations relating to the CCP Spin-Off, we reported net income from discontinued operations
attributable to common stockholders of $1.0 million, $5.1 million, and $30.3 million for the years ended December 31,2015,2014 and 2013, respectively.

As of December 31, 2015, all properties whose results arc presented within discontinued operations have been sold.

2015 Activity

During 2015, we sold 39 triple-nct lcased propertics and 26 MOBs for aggregate consideration of $541.0 million, including Iease termination fees of
$6.0 million (included within triple-net leased rental income in our Consolidated Statements of Income). We recognized a gain on the sales of these assets of
$46.3 million (net of taxcs), of which $27.4 million is being deferred due to one secured loan ($78.4 million) and one non-mortgage loan ($20.0 million) we
made to the buyers in connection with the sales of certain assets. These deferred gains will be recognized into income as principal payments arc made on the
loans over their respective terms.

Subsequent to December 31,2015 we sold one triple-net leascd property, one seniors housing community included in our seniors housing operations
reportable business scgment and one MOB for aggregate consideration of $54.5 million and we cstimate recognizing gains on the sales of thesc assets of
$26.9 million.

2014 Activity

During 2014, we sold 16 triple-nct leased properties, two scniors housing communities included in our seniors housing operations reportable business
segment and four properties included in our MOB operations reportable business segment for aggregate consideration of $118.2 million. We recognized a net
gain on the sales of these assets 0f$21.3 million, $1.5 million of which is reported within discontinued operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

2013 Activity

During 2013, we sold 19 triple-net leased properties, one seniors housing community included in our senior living operations reportable business
segment and two properties included in our MOB operations reportable business segment for aggregate consideration of $35.1 million, including lease
termination fees of $0.3 million. We recognized a net gain on the sales of these asscts of $5.0 million, all of which is reported within discontinued operations
in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Assets Held for Sale

The table below summarizes our real estate assets classified as held for sale as of December 31,2015 and 2014, including the amounts reported
within other assets and accounts payable and other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Number of
Number of Properties
Properties Assets Held Liabilities Held for Sale Assets Held  Liabilitics Held
Held for Sale for Sale Held for Sale ) for Sale for Sale

(Dollars in thousands)

Tripleiiet1easéd - e o : I AR
properties 2 8 4488 $ 44 333 $° 2,410,840 '$ 17205931
MOB operations (1) 8 68,619 24,759 32 144,482 32,042
Seniors living operations ) 19953 L9837 L =Ll E L=
Total i1 s 93,060 $ 34,340 365 $ 2555322 % 237973

(1) Four MOBs previously reported as held for sale (and discontinued operations) were classified as held and used (and part of continuing operations) as
of December 31,2015 and December 31,2014,

(2) December 31,2014 includes 323 properties disposed of as part of the CCP Spin-Off. Also included are loans, goodwill and other assets and
liabilitics contributed to CCP.
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Real Estate Impairment

We recognized impairments of $42.2 million, $56.6 million and $51.5 million for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 respectively,
which are recorded primarily as a component of depreciation and amortization and relate primarily to our triple-net leased properties reportable business
segment. Of these impairments, $8.9 million, $13.2 million and $41.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 respectively were
reported in discontinued operations in our Consolidated Statements of Income. Qur recorded impairments were primarily the result of a change in our intent
to hold the impaired assets. In each case, we recognized an impanrment in the periods in which our change in intent was made.

Note 6—Loans Receivable and Investments

As of December 31,2015 and 2014, we had $895.0 million and $896.5 million, respectively, of net loans receivable and investments relating to seniors
housing and healthcare operators or properties. The following is a summary of our net loans reccivable and investments as of December 31,2015 and 2014,
including amortized cost, fair value and unrcalized gains on available-for-sale investments:

December 31,2015

Carrying Unrealized Gain
Amount Amortized Cost Fair Value (L.oss)

(In thousands)

(1) Investments in govemment-sponsored pooled loans have contractual maturity dates in 2022 and 2023.

December 31,2014
Carrying : Unrealized Gain
Amount Amortized Cost Fair Valuc (Loss)
(In thousands)

i : 73 139, £ aBRe2
Govc mcnt-sponsored pooled loan investments 63,115 61,377 63,115
} BRI et TP TR ]

'”_ rtgagc loans and olhcr

_en!s reported as Sccured loans rccclvable and‘w 4
-invésiments, net :

N;"' imortgage Joans receivable (19,058 7 ¢
Marketable sccunhes ' 76,046
Tota] mvcstmcnts rcportcd a5 Otlier': asscts R N ; 6 : 95,104
Total net loans receivable and investments 3 896,547 §$ 889,763 § 907,061

2015 Activity

As discussed in Note 5 - Dispositions, we issued one secured loan ($78.4 million) and onc non-mortgage loan ($20.0 million) to buycrs in connection
with the sales of certain assets. In Junc 2015 we sold our $71.0 million investment in senior unsecured corporate bonds for $76.8 million. We recognized a
gain of $5.8 milliosi that is included within income from loans and investments in our Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31,
2015. This gain includes $5.0 million that was previously unrealized within accumulated other comprehensive income on our Consolidated Balance Shcetﬂ
as of December 31,2014,
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During the year ended December 31,2015, we received aggregate proceeds of $97.0 million 1n final repayment of three secured and one non-mortgage
loans recervable. We recognized gains aggregating $1.9 million on the repayment of these loans receivable that are recorded in income from loans and
investments in our Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31,2015,

We disposed of two secured and seven non-mortgage loans receivable as part of the CCP Spin-Off having camrying amounts of $26.9 million and $4.2
million, respectively, as of the CCP Spin-Off date and carrying amounts of $26.9 million and $4.3 million, respectively, as of December 31,2014, These
loans are reported as asscts held for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014.

2014 Activity

During the year ended December 31,2014, we made a $425.0 million sccured mezzanine loan investment that has a biended annual interest rate of
8.1% and has contractual maturitics ranging between 2016 and 2019, and we purchased $71.0 million principal amount of senior unsecured corporate bonds,
a $38.7 mullion interest in a government-sponsored pooled loan investment, and $21.7 million of markctable equity sccurities. During the year ended
December 31,2014, we sold all of our marketable equity sccurities for $22.3 million and recognized a gain of $0.6 million.

During the year cnded December 31, 2014, we received aggregate proceeds of $55.9 million in final repayment of three secured and two non-mortgage
loans receivable. We recognized aggregate gains of $5.2 million on the repayment of these loans recceivable that are recorded in income from loans and
investments in our Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Note 7—Investments in Unconsolidated Entitics

We report investments in unconsolidated entities over whose operating and financial policies we have the ability to exercise significant influcnce
under the equity method of accounting. We are not required to consolidate these entities because our joint venture partners have significant participating
rights, nor are these entities considered VIEs, as they are controlled by equity holders with sufficient capital. At December 31,2015 and 2014, we had
ownership interests (ranging from 5% to 25%) in joint ventures that owned 41 propertics and 51 properties, respectively. We account for our interests in real
estate joint ventures, as well as our 34% interest in Atria and 9.9% interest in Ardent (which are included within other assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets), under the equity method of accounting.

With the exception of our intcrests in Atria and Ardent, we provide various services to each unconsolidated entity in exchange for fees and
reimbursements. Total management fecs camed in conncection with these entitics were $7.8 million, $8.4 million and $7.0 million for the years cnded
December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (which is included in medical office building and other services revenue in our Consolidated Statements of
Income).

In October 2015, we acquired the 95% controlling intcrests in ten MOBs from a joint venture entity in which we have a 5% intcrest and that we account
for as an equity method investment. In connection with this acquisition, we re-measured our previously held equity interest (associated with the acquired
MOBs) and recognized a loss of $0.2 million, which is included in income from unconsolidated entities in our Consolidated Statements of Income. Since the
acquisition, operations relating to these properties have been consolidated in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

In March 2013, we acquired two MOBs from a joint venture entity in which we have a 5% interest and that we account for as an cquity method
investment. In connection with this acquisition, we re-measured our previously held equity interest (associated with the acquired MOBs) and recognized a
gain of $1.3 million, which is included in income from unconsolidated entities in our Consolidated Statements of Income. Since the acquisition, operations
relating to these propertics have been consolidated in our Consolidated Statements of Income.
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Note 8—Intangibles

The following 1s a summary of our intangibles as of Deccember 31,2015 and 2014:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Remaining Remaining
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Amortization Amortization
Balance Period in Years Balance Period in Years

155,161

N/A—Not Applicable

Above market lease intangibles and in-place and other Jease intangibles are included in acquired lease intangibles within real estate investments on our
Consolidated Balance Shects. Other intangibles (including non-compete agreements, trade names and trademarks) arc included in other assets on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Below market lcase intangibles, other lease intangibles and purchase option intangibles are included in accounts payable and
other liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. For the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, our net amortization expense related to these
intangibles was $142.7 million, $74.6 million and $77.0 million, respectively. The cstimated net amortization expense related to these intangibles for each of
the nexi five years is as follows: 2016—3$98.7 million; 2017—$52.0 million; 2018—%$42.9 million; 2019—$36.6 million; and 2020—3$33.9 million.

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill, by segment, for 2015 was as follows (in thousands):

Triple-Net Leased Senior Living MOB Operations Total
Properties Operations P

Goodwill asochccmbcr3l, 2014 (excluding field for sale) : B3

27233548 174 83,958 7§ 7 as293]

Acquisitions 133,539 219,141 394,203 746,883
Partial disposil of reporting unit CEQUUETYH L R AL T 1 3861) (15.828).
Goodwill allocated in the CCP Spin-Off (135,446) — — (135,446)
Currenéy;trafislation adjustments'and other B (125 R R ol (1,043)
Goodwill as of December 31,2015 $ 312,315 § 260,882 § 474300 $ 1,047,497
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Note 9—Other Assets

The following 1s a summary of our other assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Straighiclire ey

87,5727

Non-mortgage lo:.ms 17,620

Total other asscts
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Note 10—Borrowing Arrangements

The following is a summary of our scnior notes payable and other debt as of December 31,2015 and 2014:

3 00% Semor Notcs .Sencs Aduc2019 (3)
.700% ScnlorNotcs due202
Unsecured term loan due 2020

4750% Senitor Notes die 2021 ;
4.25% Senior Notes due 2022
'325% Seior Notes'dué 2022
3 300% Senlor Nolcs duc 2022 (3) .

3500% ‘SeniorNotes duciz‘ozs
4. 125% Scmor Notes due 2026

6 59% Semor Notes duc 2038

5 45% SemorNotes duc 2043

5.70% Senior Notes due 2043

4 375% ScmorNotcs duc’ 2045

Mortgage loans and other (4)
Toml ;

Deferred ﬁnancing costs, net

' (60,328)

Unamortized fair value adjustment’ - T 433 16
Unamortized discounts (26,132) -
“'Senior notes payable hgd' otherdebt 10,844 351 -

(1) $9.7 million and $164.1 million of aggregate borrowings are denominated in Canadian dollars as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

(2) Thesc amounts represent in aggregate the $668 million of unsecured term loan borowings under our unsecured credit facility, of which $89.9 million
. Included in the 2019 tranche is in the form of Canadian dollars, e

(3) These borrowings are in the form of Canadian dollars.

(4) 2015 and 2014 exclude $22.9 million and $27.6 million, respectively, of mortgage debt related to real estate assets classified as held for sale that is
included in habilitics related to assets held for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility and Unsecured Term Loans

Our unsecured credit facility is comprised of a $2.0 billion revolving credit facility priced at LIBOR plus 1.0% as of December 31,2015, and a $200.0
million four-year term loan and an $800.0 million five-ycar term loan, cach priced at LIBOR plus 1.05% as of December 31,2015, The revolving credit
facility matures in January 2018, but may be extended, at our option subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, for an additional peniod of one year. The
$200.0 million and $800.0 million term loans mature in January 2018 and January 2019, respectively. The unsecured credit facility also includes an
accordion feature that permits us to increasc our aggregate borrowing capacity thereunder to up to $3.5 billion

Our unsecured credit facility imposes certain customary restrictions on us, including restrictions pertaining to: (i) liens; (ii) investments; (iii) the
incurrence of additional indcbtedness; (iv) mergers and dissolutions; (v) certain dividend, distnbution and other payments; (vi) pecrmitted businesses;
(vii) transactions with affiliates; (viii) agrecments limiting certain licns; and (ix) the maintenance of certain consolidated total leverage, secured debt
leverage, unsecured debt leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios and minimum consolidated adjusted net worth, and contains customary events of default.

As of December 31,2015, we had $180.7 million of borrowings outstanding, $14.9 million of letters of credit outstanding and $1.8 billion of unused
borrowing capacity available under our unsecured revolving credit facility.

In August 2015, we completed a $900 million five year term loan having a variable interest ratc of LIBOR plus 97.5 basis points. The term foan matures
in 2020.

Also in August 2015, we repaid $305.0 million of our unsecured term loan due 2019 and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.6 miltion
representing a writc-off of the then unamortized deferred financing fees.

In July 2014, we entercd into a new CAD 791.0 million unsecured term loan to initially fund the Holiday Canada Acquisition. The term loan was
scheduled to mature on July 30,2015, but in September 2014, we repaid CAD 660.0 million of the unsecured term loan principally with proceeds from the
sale of unsecured senior notes issued by our wholly owned subsidiary, Ventas Canada Finance Limited, and in December 2014, we rcpaid in full the
remaining borrowings outstanding under the term loan. '

We recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 representing the write-off of unamortized
deferred financing fees as a result of the replacement of our previous unsecured revolving credit facility.

Senior Notes

As of December 31,2015, we had outstanding $6.8 billion aggregate principal amount of senior notes issued by our subsidiary, Ventas Realty, Limited
Partnership (*“Ventas Realty™) ($3.9 billion of which was co-issued by Ventas Realty’s wholly owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation), approximately
$75.4 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes issued by Nationwide Health Propertics, Inc. (“NHP”) and assumed by our subsidiary, Nationwide
Health Properties, LLC (“NHP LLC™), as successor to NHP, in connection with our acquisition of NHP, and CAD 900.0 million aggregate principal amount of
senior notes issued by our subsidiary, Ventas Canada Finance Limited. All of the scnior notes issued by Ventas Realty and Ventas Canada Finance Limited
arc unconditionally guarantecd by Ventas, Inc.

In September 2015, we redeemed all $400.0 million principal amount then outstanding of our 3.125% senior notes due November 2015 at a redemption
price equal to 100.7% of par, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date, and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.9 million.

In July 2015, we issued and sold $500.0 million aggregate principal amount 0f4.125% senior notcs due 2026 at a public offering price equal to
99.218% of par, for total proceeds of $496.1 million before the underwriting discount and expenses.

In May 2015, we repaid in full, at par, $234.4 million aggregate principal-amount then outstanding of our 6% senior notes due 2015 upon maturity.

In January 2015, Ventas Realty issued and sold $600.0 million aggregate princtpal amount of 3.500% senior notes due 2025 at a public offering price
equal to 99.663% of par, for total proceeds of $598.0 million before the underwriting discount and expenses, and $300.0 million aggregate principal amount
0f4.375% scnior notes due 2045 at a public offering price cqual to 99.500% of par, for total procceds of $298.5 million before the underwriting discount and
expenses.

Also in January 2015, Ventas Canada Finance Limited issued and sold CAD 250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.30% scnior notes, series C
due 2022 at an offering pnice equal to 99.992% of par, for total proceeds of CAD 250.0 million before the agent fees and expenses. The notes were offered on
a private placement basis in Canada.
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In September 2014, Ventas Canada Finance Limited issued and sold CAD 400.0 million aggregatc principal amount of 3.00% senior notes, serics A due
2019 at an offering price cqual to 99.713% of par, for total proceeds of CAD 398.9 million before the agent fees and expenses, and CAD 250.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 4.125% senior notes, serics B duc 2024 at an offering price cqual to 99.601% of par, for total procecds of CAD 249.0 million
before the agent fees and expenscs. The notes were offcred on a private placement basis in Canada.

In April 2014, Ventas Realty issued and sold $300 0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.250% senior notes due 2017 au a pubiic offering price
cqual to 99.815% of par, for total proceeds of $299.4 million before the underwriting discount and expenses, and $400.0 million aggregate principal amount
0£3.750% scnior notes due 2024 at a public offering price equal to 99.304% of par, for total proceeds of $397.2 million before the underwriting discount and
expenses.

In September 2013, Ventas Realty issucd and sold: $550.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.55% seaior notes due 2016 at a public offering
price equal to 99.910% of par, for total proceeds of $549.5 million before the underwriting discount and expenses; and $300.0 mitlion aggregate principal
amount of 5.70% scnior notes due 2043 at a public offering price equal to 99.628% of par, for total proceeds of $298.9 million before the underwriting
discount and expenscs.

In March 2013, Ventas Realty issued and sold: $258.8 million aggregate principal amount of 5.45% scnior notes due 2043 at a public offering price
cqual to par, for total proceeds of $258.8 million beforc the underwriting discounts and expenses; and $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of2.700%
scnior notes duc 2020 at a public offering price equal to 99.942% of par, for total procecds of $499.7 million before the underwriting discount and expenscs.

In February 2013, we repaid in full, at par, $270.0 million principal amount then outstanding of our 6.25% senior notes due 2013 upon maturity.

Ventas Realty’s scnior notes are part of our and Ventas Realty’s general unsecured obligations, ranking equal in right of payment with all of ourand
Ventas Realty’s existing and future senior obligations and ranking senior in tight of payment to all of our and Ventas Realty’s existing and future
subordinated indebtedness. However, Ventas Realty’s senior notes are effectively subordinated to our and Ventas Realty’s secured indebtedncss, if any, to the
cxtent of the value of the assets securing that indebtedness. Ventas Realty’s senior notes are also structurally subordinated to the preferred cquity and
indcbtedness, whether secured or unsecured, of our subsidiaries (other than Ventas Realty and, with respect to thosc senior notes co-issued by Ventas Capital
Corporation, Ventas Capital Corporation).

Ventas Canada Finance Limitcd’s senior notes arc part of our and Ventas Canada Finance Limited’s general unsecured obligations, ranking cqual in
right of payment with all of Ventas Canada Finance Limited’s existing and future subordinated indebtedness. However, Ventas Canada Finance Limited’s
senior notes are effectively subordinated to our and Ventas Canada Finance Limited's secured indebtedness, if any, to the extent of the value of the assets
securing that indebtedness. Ventas Canada Finance Limited’s senior notes are also structurally subordinated to the preferred equity and indebtedness,
whether sccured or unsecured, of our subsidiaries (other than Ventas Canada Finance Limited).

NHP LLC’s senior notes arc part of NHP LLC’s general unsccured obligations, ranking equal in right of payment with all of NHP LLC’s existing and
future senior obligations and ranking senior to all of NHP LLC’s existing and future subordinated indebtedness. However, NHP LLC’s senior notes are
effectively subordinated to NHP LLC’s secured indebtedness, if any, to the extent of the value of the assets securing that indebtedness. NHP LLC’s senior
notes are also structurally subordinated to the preferred equity and indebtedness, whether sccured or unsecured, of its subsidiaries.

Ventas Realty, Ventas Canada Finance Limited and NHP LLC may redeem each series of their respective senior notes (other than NHP LLC’s 6.90%
senior notes due 2037 and 6.59% scnior notes duc 2038), in whole at any time or in part from time to time, prior to maturity at the redemption prices sct forth
in the applicable indenture (which include, in many instances, a make-whole premium), plus, in cach case, accruced and unpaid interest thereon to the
redemption date.

NHP LLCs 6.90% senior notes due 2037 are subject to repurchase at the option of the holders, at par, on October 1 in each of 2017 and 2027, and its
6.59% senior notes duc 2038 are subject to repurchase at the option of the holders, at par, on July 7 in each 0£2018,2023 and 2028.

At December 31,2015, we had 133 mortgage loans outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $2.0 billion and sccured by 157 of our properties.
Of these loans, 116 loans in the aggregate principal amount of $1.6 billion bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 3.6% to 8.6% per annum, and 17 loans in
the aggregate principal amount of $433.3 million bear interest at variable rates ranging from 0.9% to 3.2% per annum as of December 31, 2015. At
December 31, 2015, the weighted average annual rate on our fixed rate mortgage loans was 5.7%, and the weighted average annual rate on our variable rate
mortgage loans was 2.0%. Our mortgage loans had a weighted average maturity of 5.5 ycars as of December 31, 2015.
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Dunng 2015, we repaid 1n full mortgage loans in the aggregate principal amount of $461.9 million and a weighted average maturity of 2.1 years and
recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $9.9 million in connection with these repayments.

During 2014, we assumed or incurred mortgage debt of $246.8 million and repaid in full mortgage loans outstanding in the aggregate principal amount
0f$398.0 million, and recognized a net loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.3 millton m connection with these repayments.

During 2013, we assumed or incurred mortgage debt of $178.8 million and repaid in full mortgage loans outstanding in the aggregate principal amount
0f $493.7 million, and recognized a net gain on extinguishment of debt of $0.5 million in connection with these repayments.

Scheduled Maturities of Borrowing Arrangements and Other Provisions

As of December 31, 2015, our indebtedness had the following maturities:

Unsecured
Principal Revolving Scheduled
Amount Credit Periodic
Due at Maturity Facility(1) Amortization  Tota) Maturities

(In thousands)

60 S eozest S S LI 86 ms

2017 (2) 746,458 — 28,500 774,958
2018 . - © 1,101,879 i 3 .30 . 23486 1,306,048
2019 1,900,986 15,929 1,916,915
20200, 0 o s o TUUTAI6913 < L Coih1220 1,428,035
Thereafier (3) 5,085,663 — 125,616 5,211,279

¥235,377.: 8 111,271,020,

. '8 10,854,560 i

(1) At December31,2015, we had $53.0 million of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, for $127.7 million of nct borrowings outstanding under our
unsecured revolving credit facility.

(2) Excludes $22.9 million of mortgage debt related to real estate assets classified as held for sale as of December 31,2015 that is scheduled to mature in
2016 and 2017.

(3) Includes $52.4 million aggregate principal amount 0f6.90% scnior notes due 2037 that is subject to repurchase, at the option of the holders, on
October 1 in each 02017 and 2027, and $23.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.59% senior notes due 2038 that is subject to repurchase, at the
option of the holders, on July 7 in each 0f 2018,2023 and 2028.

The instruments governing our outstanding indebtedness contain covenants that limit our ability and the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to,
among other things: (i) incur debt; (ii) make certain dividends, distributions and investments; (iii) enter into certain transactions; and/or (iv) merge,
consolidate or sell certain assets. Ventas Realty’s and Ventas Canada Finance Limited’s senior notes also require us and our subsidiaries to maintain total
unencumbered asscts of at least 150% of our unsecured debt. OQur unsecured credit facility also requires us to maintain certain financial covenants pertaining
to, among other things, our consolidated total leverage, secured debt, unsecured debt, fixed charge coverage and net worth.

As of December 31, 2015, we were in compliance with all of these covenants.
Derivatives and Hedging

In the nomal course of our business, interest rate fluctuations affect future cash flows under our variable rate debt obligations, loans receivable and
marketable debt securitics and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations affect our operating results. We follow established risk management policies and
procedures, including the use of derivative instruments, to mitigate the impact of these risks.

For interest rate exposures, we use derivatives primarily to fix the rate on our vanable rate debt and to manage our borrowing costs. We do not use
derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes, and we have a policy of entering into contracts only with major financial institutions based upon
their credit ratings and other factors. When considered together with the underlying exposure that the derivative is designed to hedge, we do not expect that
the usc of derivatives in this manner would havc any material adverse effect on our future financial condition or results of operations.
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As of December 31, 2015, our variable rate debt obligations o $2.2 billion reflect, in part, the effect of $150.5 million notional amount of interest rate
swaps with a maturity of March 21, 2018 that effectively convert fixed rate debt to vanable ratc debt. As of Deccember 31, 2015, our fixed rate debt
obligations of $9.1 billion reflect, in part, the effect of $48.1 million notional amount of intercst ratc swaps with maturitics ranging from October 1,2016 to
April 1,2019,in cach case that cffectively convert varable rate debt to fixed rate debt.

In February 2016, we entered into a2 $200 million notional amount intcrcst rate swap with a maturity of Augusi 3, 2020 that effectively converts
LIBOR-based floating rate debt to fixed rate debt, setting LIBOR at 1.132% through the maturity date of the swap. The maturity date of the Ardent Term
Loan is also August 3,2020.

Unamortized Fair Value Adjustment

As of December 31, 2015, the unamortized fair value adjustment related to the long-tenm debt we assumed in connection with various acquisitions was
$33.6 million and will be recognized as cffcctive yield adjustments over the remaining terms of the instruments. The estimated aggregate amortization of the
fair value adjustment related to long-term debt (which is reflected as a reduction of interest expense) was $16.2 million for the year ended December 31,2015
and for each of the next five years will be as follows: 2016—$11.2 million; 2017—8$6.6 million; 2018—§2.7 mllhon 2019—8$2.0 million; and 2020—51 5

million.
Note 11—Fair Values of Financial Instruments
As of December 31,2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts and fair values of our financial instruments were as follows:
2015 ) 2014

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(In thousands)

53 023 3

11,271,020
Rcdcemable or umtho]dcr thrcsts 188,546 188,546 159,134 159,1 34

Fair valuc estimates are subjective in nature and based upon several important assumptions, including estimates of future cash flows, risks, discount
rates and refevant comparable market mformatlon associated with cach financial instrument. The use of different market assumptions and estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the reported estimated fair value amounts. Accordingly, the estimates presented above are not necessarily
indicative of thec amounts we would rcalize in a current market exchange.

Note 12—Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation Plans

 We_cumenily have: five plans under which.outstanding.options.to.purchase common.stock, shares of restricted-stock.or.restricted stock-units-have been,

Tor };lay in the future be, granted to our officers, employces and non-employce directors (the 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (Employce Plan), the 2004

Stock Plan for Directors, the 2006 Incentive Plan, the 2006 Stock Plan for Directors, and the 2012 Incentive Plan); one plan under which executive officers
may receive common stock in lieu of compensation (the Executive Deferred Stock Compensation Plan); and one plan under which certain non-employee
directors have received or may receive common stock in lieu of director fees (the Nonemployee Directors’ Deferred Stock Compensation Plan). These plans
are referred to collectively as the “Plans.”

During the year ended December 31,2015, we were permitted to issue shares and grant options, restricted stock and restricted stock units only under the
Executive Deferred Stock Compensation Plan, the Nonemployee Directors’ Deferred Stock
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Compensation Plan and the 2012 Incentive Plan. The 2006 Incentive Plan and the 2006 Stock Plan for Directors (collectively, the “2006 Plans™) expired on
December 31, 2012, and no additional grants were permitted under those Plans after that date.

The number of sharcs initially reserved for issuance and the number of shares available for fature grants or issuance under thesc Plans as of
December 31, 2015 were as follows:

+  Executive Deferred Stock Compensation Plan—594,070 shares were reserved initially for issuance to our executive officers in licu of the
payment of all or a portion of their salary, at their option, and 594,070 shares were available for future issuance as of December 31,2015.

»  Noncmployce Directors’ Deferred Stock Compensation Plan—594,070 shares were reserved initially for issuance to nonemployee directors in
licu of the payment of all or a portion of their retainer and meeting fees, at their option, and 478,048 shares were available for future issuance as
of December 31,2015,

* 2012 Incentive Plan—10,499,135 shares {plus the number of sharcs or options outstanding under the 2006 Plans as of December 31, 2012 that
werc or are subscquently forfeited or exptre unexercised) were reserved initially for grants or issuance to employecs and non-cmployee dircctors,
and 7,876,301 sharcs (plus the number of shares or options outstanding under the 2006 Plans as of December 31,2015 that were or are
subsequently forfeited or expire unexcrcised) were available for future issuance as of December 31, 2015.

Outstanding options issued under the Plans are exercisable at the market price on the date of grant, expire ten years from the date of grant, and vest or
have vested over periods of two or three years. If provided in the applicable Plan or award agreement, the vesting of stock options may accelerate upon a
change of control (as defined in the applicable Plan) of Ventas, Inc. and other specified events.

In connection with the NHP acquisition, we assumed certain outstanding options, shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units previously issued
to NHP employees pursuant to the Nationwide Health Properties, Inc. 2005 Performance Incentive Plan, as amended (the “NHP Plan™). Any remaining
outstanding awards continue to be subject to the tenns and conditions of the NHP Plan and the applicable award agreements.

Conversion of Equity Awards at the CCP Spin-Off Date

The Plans were established with anti-dilution provisions, such that in the event of an cquity restructuring of Ventas (including spin-off transactions),
equity awards would prescrve their value post-transaction. In order to achieve an cquitable modification of the existing awards following the CCP Spin-Off,
we applied the concentration method of converting pre-spin awards to their post-spin value, meaning that Ventas employces remaining at Ventas following
the CCP Spin-Off would receive equitably adjusted awards decnominated solely in Ventas common stock. The modification assumed a conversion ratio on all
awards calculated as the final pre-spin closing price of Ventas common stock divided by the 10-trading day average post-spin closing price of Ventas
common stock (the “10 Day Avecrage Price”). The conversion impacted 120 participants, resulted in additional awards being granted (as summarized in the
tables below) and an incremental fair value of both vested awards ($3.5 million) and unvested awards ($1.6 million) due to the difference between the 10 Day
Avcrage Price and the closing price on the CCP Spin-Off date. The vesting periods were unchanged for unvested grants at the CCP Spin-Off date. The
incremental fair value of vested awards were recognized immediately and are considered separation costs that are reported in discontinued operations in our
Consolidated Statements of Income. The incremental fair value of unvested awards, which are also considered separation costs, will be recognized over the
remaining requisite service periods. The number of shares reserved for each of the Plans, as well as the ESPP Plan, were adjusted using the same conversion
methodology applied to the outstanding awards.

Stock Options

In determining the estimated fair value of our stock options as of the date of grant, we used the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions:

2015 ' 2014 2013
Risk-fré¢’ifiterest rate _ fan : o 102-138% RN e D5 . D AR St LD R | DA
Dividend yield 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Volatility factors of the expected market pﬁce for our common stock 19.0-20.0% l'j.8'§_18.0%5: D0 -283:3) 1%.
Weighted average expected life of options 4.0 years 4.17 years 4.25-7.0 years
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The following 1s a summary of stock option activity in 2015:

Weighted

Average

Remaining Intrinsic
Contractual Value

Life {years) (5000°s)

3,051,729

Compensation costs for all share-based awards are based on the grant date fair value and are recognized on a straight-line basis during the requisite
service periods. Compensation costs related to stock options for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 were $4.2 million, $4.7 million'and $4.5
million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2015, we had $1.8 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options granted under the Plans.
We expect to recognize that cost over a weighted average period of 1.22 years. -

. . .
The weighted average grant date fair value of options issucd during the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 was $5.89,$4.37 and $9.25,
respectively.

Apgregate proceeds received from options exercised under the Plans or the NHP Plan for the years ended December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 were $6.4
million, $26.2 million and $7.2 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value at exercise of options excrcised during the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 was $4.7 million, $19.3 million and $4.0 million, respectively.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

We recognize the fair value of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units on the grant date of the award as stock-based compensation expense
over the requisite service period, with charges to general and administrative expenses of approximately $15.2 million in 2015, $16.2 million in 2014 and
$16.1 million in 2013. Restricted stock and restricted stock units gencrally vest over perdods ranging from two to five years. If provided in the applicable
Plan or award agrecment, the vesting of restricted stock and restricted stock units may accelerate upon a change of control (as defined in the applicable Plan)
of Ventas and other specified events.
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A summary of the status of our non-vested restricted stock and restncted stock units as of December 31, 2015, and changes during the year ended
December 31,2015 follows: '

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date
Stock Fair Value Stock Units Fair Value
onvestedat December 312014 = 1= oL b e 0 1402,7417 ' SR HILLE92 g st
Granted in 2015 pre-spin 190,429 7,252

Vested in 2015ip

Forfeited in 2015
Non-vested post-s 350,107
Forfeited at spin 61,166
Granetiat i 4 13 : R ETT PRI 9
Non-vested post-spin 343,305
Granited'in 2015:p9stspin’ o L . 31176
3,323

Vested in 2015 post-spin

Forfeited jii Postspif . T T ey el o0 006 ' o g
Nonvested at December 31,2015 363,093 § 25,500 $ 58.02

As of December 31,2015, we had $9.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock and restricted stock units
under the Plans. We expect to recognize that cost over a weighted average period of 1.51 years. The total fair value at the vesting date for restricted stock and
restricted stock units that vested during the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 was $18.3 million, $17.7 million and $16.9 million,
respectively.

Employee and Director Stock Purchase Plan

We have in effect an Employec and Director Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) under which our employees and directors may purchase shares of our
common stock at a discount. Pursuant to the terms of the ESPP, on each purchasc date, participants may purchase shares of common stock at a price not less
than 90% of the market price on that date (with respect to the employee tax-favored portion of the plan) and not less than 95% of the market price on that
date (with respect to the additional employee and director portion of the plan). We initially reserved 2,970,350 shares for issuance under the ESPP. As of
December 31,2015, 79,893 shares had been purchased under the ESPP and 2,890,457 shares were available for future issuance.

Employee Benefit Plan

We maintain a 401 (k) plan that allows eligible employees to defer compensation subject to certain limitations imposed by the Code. In 2015, we made
contributions for cach qualifying employee of up to 3.5% of his or her salary, subject to certain limitations. During 2015,2014 and 2013, our aggregate
contributions were approximately $1,227,000, 31,136,000 and $1,036,000, respectively.

Note 13—Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the applicable provisions of the Code for every year bcginning: with the year ended December 31, 1999.
We have also elected for certain of our subsidiaries to be treated as taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS” or “TRS entities™), which are subject to federal, state
and foreign income taxes. All entities other than the TRS entitics are collectively referred to as the “REIT” within this Note 13. Certain REIT entities are

subject to foreign income tax.
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Although we intend to continue to operate in a manner that will enable us to qualify as a REIT, such qualification depends upon our ability to meet, on
a continuing basis, various distribution, stock ownership and other tests. During the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, our tax treatment of
distributions per common share was as follows:

2018 2014 2013

302368 §

261271

0.16224 0 03995

Distribution reported for 1099-DIV purposes ) 3.04000 $ 296500 $ 2.73500

We believe we have met the annual REIT distribution requirement by payment of at Icast 90% of our estimated taxable income for 2015, 2014 and
2013. Our consolidated benefit for income taxes for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 was as follows:

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2015 is due primarily to the income tax benefit of ordinary losses related to certain TRS
entities. The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31,2014 primarily relates to the income tax benefit of ordinary losses and restructuring related
to certain TRS entities.

Although the TRS entities have paid minimal cash federal income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015, their federal income tax liabilities may
increase in future years as we exhaust net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards and as our senior living operations repertable business segment grows. Such
increases could be significant.

Acreconciliation of income tax expensc and benefit, which is computed by applying the federal corponate tax rate for the years ended December 31,
2015,2014 and 2013, to the income tax benefit is as follows:

2015 2014 2013

(In thousands)

Tax.at statutory rite
. cnuncs noncontmllm

Statc mcome tax S, Ne

--—Foreign-rate-differential and forelgn taxcs—-'—'—"—
Change in tax status of TRS M T
Other differences

Income tax expense (b-n..ﬁt) 3

In connection with our acquisitions of Sunrisc Senior Living Real Estatc Investment Trust (“Sunrise REIT™) in 2007, and ASLG in 2011, and the
Holiday Canada Acquisition in 2014, we established a beginning net deferred tax hability of $306.3 million, $44.6 million and $107.7 million, respectively.
related to temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets acquired and liabilities assumed (primarily property, intangible and
related assets, net of NOL carryforwards).
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No net deferred tax assct or liability was recorded for the Lillibndge acquisition 1n 2010 or the acquisition of three triple-net leased private hospitals (located
in the United Kingdom) in 2014.

In conncction with our acquisitions of HCT and Crimson in 2015, we estabhished a beginning net deferred tax liability 0f $32.3 million and $18.5
million, respectively, related to temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bascs of assets acquired and liabilitics assumed (primarily
property, intangible and related assets, net of NOL carryforwards).

Each TRS is a tax paying component for purposes of classifying deferred tax assets and liabilities. The tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards (in addition to the REIT carryforwards) included in the net deferred tax liabilities at December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as
follows:

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Property, primarily differences ifi iation and améitization;the tax basigof land - - o7 e i it &

assets and the treatment of interests and certaincosts ...~ o $ . (413566)° % . . 0(406,023) ST -1(E09;775)
Operating loss and interest deduction carryforwards 564,091 398,859 377,645
Expensc accruals and other. ik e L 14,624 - 18355 13421
Valuation allowance (503,531) (352,528)

oy

Net deferfed-tax liabili

Our net deferred tax liability decreased $6.0 million during 2015 primarily due to $51.8 million of recorded deferred tax liability as a result of the HCT,
Canford, Eglise and Ardent acquisitions, offset by the impact of TRS operating losses and currency translation adjustments. Our net deferred tax liability
increased $94.2 million during 2014 primarily due to $107.7 million of recorded deferred tax liability as a result of the Holiday Canada acquisition.

Due to uncertainty regarding the rcalization of certain deferred tax assets, we have established valuation allowances, primarily in connection with the
NOL carryforwards related to the REIT and certain TRSs. The amounts related to NOLs at the REIT and TRS entities for 2015, 2014, and 2013 are $369.4
million and $85.5 million, $251.1 million and $66.1 million, and $250.0 million and $47.0 million, respectively.

For the ycars ended December 31,2015 and 2014, the net difference between tax bases and the reported amount of REIT assets and liabilities for federal
income tax purposes was approximately $4.7 billion and $4.1 billion, respectively, less than the book bases of those assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes.

A rollforward of valuation allowances, for the years ended December31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, is as follows:

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

Beginning Balance - - L o o : 3 352,528 1§
Additions:
Purchase accounting S ;':"j.: o ' ’ 172932 - .
Expenses 24332

Subtractions: R e SreEE Lm g s n
Deductions (42,437) (2,344) (23,622)

Other activity (nol resultingiin.expense Srdeduction) . ...~ .. - SR K ) W (3950 16910),

Ending balance 3 503,531 § 352,528 % 331,458

We are subject to corporate level taxcs for any asset dispositions during the five-year period immediately after the assets were owned by a C corporation
(cither prior to our REIT election, through stock acquisition or merger) (“built-in gains tax”). The amount of income potentially subject to built-in gains tax
is generally equal to the lesser of the excess of the fair value of the asset over its adjusted tax basis as of the date it became a REIT assct or the actual amount
of gain. Some, but not all, future gains could be offset by available NOL carmryforwards.

Generally, we are subject to audit under the statute of limitations by the Intemal Revenue Service (“IRS™) for the year ended December 31,2012 and
subsequent years and arc subject to audit by state taxing authorities for the year ended December 31, 2011 and subsequent years. We are subjcct to audit by
the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™) and provincial authoritics with respect to entities acquired or formed in connection with our 2007 acquisition of
Sunrise Senior Living Real
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Estate Investment Trust generally for periods subsequent to the acquisition. We are also subject to audit in Canada for periods subsequent to the acquisition,
and certain prior periods, with respect to the entitics acquired 1n connection with the Holiday Canada Acquisition.

At December 31,2015, we had a combined NOL camryforward of $460.2 million related to the TRS entities and an NOL carryforward of $1.1 billion
related to the REIT, including $18.6 million and $442.6 milhion of the REIT NOL carried over from the HCT and Ardent acquisitions, respectively.
Additionally, $10.5 million of Federal income tax credits were carried over from the Ardeni cniities. These amounts can be used to offset future taxabic
income (and/or taxable income for prior years if an audit determines that tax is owed), ifany. The REIT will be entitled to utilize NOLs and tax credit
camryforwards only to the extent that REIT taxable income exceeds our deduction for dividends paid. Lillibridge, ASLG and Ardent NOL and credit
carry forwards are limited as to their utilization by Section 382 ofthe Lode The NOL carryforwards begin to expire in 2024 with respect to the TRS cntmcs
and in 2019 for the REIT.

As a result of our uncertainty regarding the usc of existing REIT NOLs, we have not ascribed any net deferred tax benefit to REIT NOL carryforwards as
of December 31,2015 and 2014. The IRS may challenge our entitlement to these tax attributes during its review of the tax rctums for the previous tax years.
We belicve we are entitled to these tax attributes but cannot assure you as to the outcome of these matters.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our unrecognized tax benefits:

2015 2014

(In thousands)

Included in these unrecognized tax bcnc'ﬁls of$24.1 million and $25.4 million at December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively, were $22.5 million and
$23.9 million of tax benefits at December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively, that, if recognized, would reducc our annual effective tax.rate. We accrued interest
0f $0.4 million related to the unrecognized tax benefits during 2015, but no penalties. We expect our unrecognized tax benefits to decrease by $3.4 million
during 2016.

As a part of the transfer pricing structure in the normal course of business, the REIT enters into transactions with certain TRSs, such as leasing
transactions, other capital financing and allocation of gencral and administrative costs, which transactions are intended to comply with Intemal Revenue
Service and foreign tax authority transfer pricing rules.

Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies
Certain Obligations, Liabilities and Litigation

We may be subject to various obligations, liabilities and litigation assumed in conncction with or arising out of our acquisitions or otherwisc arising in
connection with our business, some of which may be indemnifiable by third parties. If these liabilities are greater than expected or were not known to us at
the time of acquisition, if we are not entitled to indemnification, or if the responsible third party fails to indemnify us, such obligations, liabilities and
litigation could have a Material Adverse Effect on us. In addition, in conncction with the sale or leasing of our properties, we may incur various obligations
and liabilities, including indemnification obligations to the buyer or tenant, relating to the operations of those properties, which could have a Material
Adverse Effect on us.

Other

With respect to certain of our properties, we are subject to operating and ground lease obligations that generally require fixed monthly or annual rent
payments and may include escalation clauses and renewal options. These leases have terms that expire during the next 86 years, excluding extension options.
Our future minimum lease obligations under non-cancelable operating and ground leases as of December 31,2015 were $31.3 million in 2016, $24.6 million
in2017,$20.3 million in 2018,$17.0 million in 2019, $16.4 million in 2020, and $520.0 million thercafier.
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Note 15—Earnings Per Share
The following table shows the amounts used 1n computing our basic and diluted camings per common share:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Numiérator for basic and dihited gamnings per share: "

Income from continuing opcrmons attnbutablc to common stocl\holders $ 406,740 $ 376,032 § 374,338
Dlscon(mucd opcr:mons S re T s . N L 1L,103 ' S
Net income attnbutable to common stockholdcrs $ 417843 § 475,767 $ 453,509

Dcnommalor .

Denominator for basic eammgs per sharc—wcnghted average shares 330,311 294,175 292,654
' fEﬂ'cct ofdllutwc ‘securities: TE T e SR e S A LR ;

Stock options
 Restrigtéd stock-awards o A :

OP units o 3,295 1952
' Dcnonunatorfordxlulcd cammgspcrsham—ad_]ustcd wclg,htcdavcmgc shancs"_:i'" o '-?'334.(')'07_*‘.-- HLTh296671

Basic eamings per share:

Incomc'f m:&:onunumg opcrauons attributable to common stockholdcrs . '~;$‘ 1 .23 8 S L 128

Dlscontmucd opcratlons 0.03

Netd mcome attnbutablc to common stockholdcfs

" Diluted camings pers sharc

smma Hoéktioldert

There were 852,805, 479,291 and 504,815 anti-dilutive options outstanding for the ycars ended December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013, respectively.

Note 16—Litigation

Litigation Relating to the HCT Acquisition

In the weeks following the announcement on Junc 2, 2014 of our agreement to acquire HCT, a total of 13 putative class actions were filed by purported
HCT stockholders challenging the transaction. Certain of the actions also purport to bring derivative claims on behalf of HCT. Among other things, the
lawsuits allege that the directors of HCT breached their fiduciary duties by approving the transaction and that we and our subsidianies, Stripe Sub LLC and
Stripe OP, LP, aided and abetted this purported breach of fiduciary duty. The complaints seck injunctive rcllcfand damages.

Ten of these actions were filed in the Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland and consolidated under the caption In re: American Realty Capital,h
Healthcare Trust, Inc. Sharcholder & Derivative Litigation, Case No. 24-C-14-003534, two actions were filed in the Supreme Court of the State of New York,
County of New York, and one action was filed in the United States District Court of Maryland.

On January 2, 2015, the parties to the consolidated Maryland state court action entercd into a memorandum of understanding that contemplated the
settlement of the Maryland action and the release of all claims that could be brought by or on behalf of any HCT stockholder related to the HCT acquisition,
including all clajms asserted on behalf of cach alleged class of HCT stockholders. The proposed settlement terms require HCT to make certain additional
disclosures related to the merger, which were set forth in HCT's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 2, 2015.

On January 5, 2015, the parties to the federal action also cntered into a memorandum of understanding that contemplated the settlement of the federal
action and the release of all claims that could be brought by or on behalf of any HCT stockholder related to the HCT acquisition, including all claims
asscrted on behalf of each alleged class of HCT stockholders. The proposed
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settlement terms required HCT to make certain additional disclosures related to the merger, which were sct forth in HCT's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 5,2015.

On August 24, 2015, the plaintiffs in the Maryland state court action subimtted a stipulation of settlement to the court executed by the parties and
moved for preliminary approval of the settlement. The plaintiffs in the Maryland federal action have agreed to allow the settlement to proceed through the
state court and do not cuirently plan to submit an additionai stipulation 1o the federai court. On December 10, 2015, the Circuit Count for Baltimore City,
Maryland entercd a preliminary approval order that, among other things, directed notice be sent to members of the class of HCT stockholders and scheduled a
settlernent hearing to be held on March 15,2016, at which time the court will review any objections lodged by class members and consider the faimess,
reasonableness and adequacy of the settlement. Thc settlement is contingent on final court approval after the settlement hearing. There can be no assurance
that the court will approve the proposed scttlement.

‘We believe that each of these actions is without merit.

Procecdings against Tenants, Operators and Managers

From time to time, Brookdale Senior Living, Kindred, Atria, Sunrise and our other tenants, operators and managers arc partics to certain legal actions,
regulatory investigations and claims arising in the conduct of their business and operations. Even though we generally are not party to these proceedings, the
unfavorable resolution of any such actions, investigations or claims could, individuaily or in the aggregate, materially adversely affect such tenants’,
operators’ or managers’ liquidity, financial condition or results of operations and their ability to satisfy their respective obligations to us, which, in tum,
could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Proceedings Indemnified and Defended by Third Parties

From time to time, we are party to certain legal actions, regulatory investigations and claims for which third parties are contractually obligated to
indemnify, defend and hold us harmless. The tenants of our triple-net leased properties and, in some cases, their affiliates are required by the terms of their
leases and other agreements with us to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless against certain actions, investigations and claims arising in the course of their
business and related to the operations of our triple-nct leased properties. In addition, third parties from whom we acquired certain of our asscts and, in some
cases, their affiliates are required by the terms of the related conveyance documents to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless against certain actions,
investigations and claims related to the acquired assets and arising prior to our ownership or related to excluded assets and liabilities. In some cascs, 2 portion
of the purchasc price consideration is held in escrow for a specified period of time as collateral for these indemnification obligations. We are presently being
defended by certain tenants and other obligated third parties in these types of matters. We cannot assure you that our tenants, their affiliates or other !
obligated third parties will continue to defend us in these matters, that our tenants, their affiliates or other obligated third parties will have sufficient assets,
income and access to financing to enable them to satlsfy their defense and indemnification obligations to us or that any purchase price consideration held in
escrow will be sufficient to satisfy claims for which we are entitled to indemnification. The unfavorable resolution of any suck actions, investigations or
claims could, individually or in the aggregate, materially adversely affect our tenants’ or other obligated third parties’ liquidity, financial condition or results
of operations and their ability to satisfy their respective obligations to us, which, in tum, could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.

Proceedings Arising in Connection with Senior Living and MOB Operations; Other Litigation

From timec to time, we are party to various legal actions, regulatory investigations and claims (some of which may not be insured and some of which
may zallege large damage amounts) arising in connection with our senior living and MOB opcrations or otherwise in the course of our business. In limited
circumstances, the manager of the applicable seniors housing community or MOB may be contractually obligated to-indemnify; defend and hold us harmless
against such actions, investigations and claims. It is the opinion of management that, except as otherwise sct forth in this Note 16, the disposition of any such
actions, investigations and claims that are currently pending will not, individually orin the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on us. However,
regardless of their merits, we may be forced to expend significant financial resources to defend and resolve these matters. We are unable to predict the
ultimate outcome of these actions, investigations and claims, and if management’s assessment of our liability with respect thereto is incorrect, such actions,
investigations and claims could have a Material Adverse Effect on us.
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Note 17—Permanent and Temporary Equity
Capital Stock

In January 2015, in connection with the HCT acqui\silion,we issued approximatcly 28.4 million shares of our common stock and 1.1 million Class C
Units that are redecmable for our common stock. In April 2015, third party investors redeemed 445,541 Class C Units for approximately $32.6 million.
Beginning on January 16,2016 and as of February 10,2016, third party investors exccuted redemption nght exercise notices for Ventas Realty Capital
Healthcare Trust Operating Partnership, L.P. to redeem 303,136 Class C Units. We expect that the Class C Units will be redeemed through the issuance of
303,136 shares of Ventas common stock on or before April 1,2016, but we have the right to redeem the Class Units for a cash amount. i

In March 2013, we established an “at-the-market” (“ATM”) cquity offering program through which we could sell from time to time up to an aggregate
of $750 million of our common stock. In Januvary 2015, we issued and sold 3,750,202 sharcs of common stock under our previous ATM cquity offering
program for aggregate net proceeds of $285.4 million, after sales agent commissions of $4.4 million. In March 2015, we replaced our previous shelf
registration statement that was scheduled to expire in accordance with the SEC’'s rules with a new universal shelf registration statement, rendering our
previous ATM program inaccessiblc. In connection with our new universal shelf registration statement, we cstablished a new ATM program pursuant to
which we may sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate of $1.0 billion of our common stock. Through December 31,2015, we have issued and sold a total of
3,434,839 shares of our common stock under our ATM cquity offering program for aggregate nct proceeds of $206.2 million, after sales agent commissions of
$3.1 million. As of December 31,2015, approximately $790.7 million of our common stock remained available for sale under our ATM equity offering
program. Subsequent to Deccember 31,2015, we have issued and sold a total of 1,649,463 shares of our common stock under our ATM equity offering
program for aggregate net proceeds of $90.8 million, after sales agent commissions of $1.4 million.

For the year ended December 31,2014, we issued and sold a total of 3,381,678 shares of common stock under the ATM program for aggregate net
procceds of $242.3 million, after sales agent commissions of $3.7 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we issucd and sold a total 02,069,200 shares of common stock under thc ATM program for aggregatc net
proceeds of $141.5 million, after sales agent commissions of $2.1 million.

Excess Share Provision

In order to preserve our ability to maintain REIT status, our Charter provides that if a person acquircs beneficial ownership of more than 9% of our
outstanding common stock or 9.9% of our outstanding preferred stock, the shares that are beneficially owned in excess of such limit are decmed to be excess
shares. These shares are automatically deemed transferred to a trust for the benefit of a charitable institution or other qualifying organization selected by our
Board of Directors. The trust is entitled to all dividends with respect to the shares and the trustee may excrcise all voting power over the shares.

We have the right to buy the excess shares for a purchase price equal to the lesser of the price per share in the transaction that created the excess shares
or the market price on the date we buy the shares, and we may defer payment of the purchase price for the excess shares for up to five years. If we do not
purchase the excess shares, the trustee of the trust is required to transfer the excess shares at the direction of the Board of Directors. The owner of the excess
shares is entitled to receive the lesser of the proceeds from the sale or the original purchase price for such excess shares, and any additional amounts are
payable to the beneficiary of the trust.

Our Board of Directors is empowered to grant waivers from the excess sharc provisions of our Charter.
Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Prior to its suspension in July 2014, our Distribution Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP”) enabled existing stockholders to purchase shares of
common stock by reinvesting all or a portion of the cash distribution on their shares of our common stock, subject to certain limits. Existing stockholders and
new investors also could purchase shares of our common stock under the DRIP by making optional cash payments, subject to certain limits. In 2014, we
offercd a 1% discount on the purchase price of our common stock to sharcholders who reinvested their dividends or made optional cash purchases through
the DRIP. We may determinc whether or not to reinstate the DRIP at any time at our sole discretion, and if so, the amount and availability of this discount will
be at our discretion. The granting of a discount for one month or quarter, as applicable, will not insure the availability or amount of a discount in future
periods, and each month or quarter, as applicable, we may lower or climinate the discount without prior notice. In addition, we may change our determination
as to whether common shares will be purchased by the plan administrator directly from us or 1n the open market without prior notice to investors. '
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
The following is a summary of our accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

(In thousands)

Forcu,n currcncy Lmnsla(mn $ (13,926) $ 866

4,623
(563)%,

Redeemable OP Unitholder and Noncontrolling Interest

The following is a rollforward of our redeemable OP unitholder interests and noncontrolling interests for 2015:

Total Redeemable OP
Redeemable OP Unitholder Redeemable Noncontrolling Unitholder and
Interests Interests Noncontrolling Interests

159{135¢:
87,245
(7i832) O
(15,095) @91)
O 7(34@,57') i a 55@““7"" = i3
188,546 § 7,983 s 196,529

Balancc as ochccmbcr 3 l 20 15

Note 18—Related Party Transactions

As disclosed in “Note 3 - Concentration of Credit RlSk" Atria provides comprehensive propcxty management and accounting services with respect to
our seniors housing communities that Atria operates, for which we pay annual management fees pursuant to long-term management agreements. Most of our
management agreements with Atria have initial terms expiring either July 31,2024, or December 31, 2027, with successive automatic ten-year rencwal
periods. The management fees payable to Atria under most of the Atria management agrecments range from 4.5% to 5% of revenues generated by the
applicable properties, and Atria can eam up to an additional 1% of revenues based on the achievement of specified performance targets. Atria also provides
certain construction and development management services relating to various development and redevelopment projects within our seriors housing-
portfolio. For the ycars ended Decembeér 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, we incurred fces to Atria of $58 million, $52.7 million and $44.2 million respectively, the
majority of which are recorded within property-level operating expensces in our Consolidated Statements of [ncome.

As disclosed in “Note 4 - Acquisitions of Real Estate Property”, we Icased ten hospital campuses to Ardent pursuant to a single, triple-net master lease
agrecement. Pursuant to our master lease agreement, Ardent is obligated to pay base rent, which escalates annually by the lesser of four times the increase in
the consumer price index for the relevant period and 2.5%. The initial term of the master leasc expires on August 31,2035 and Ardent has one ten-year
renewal option. For the period from the closing of the Ardent Transaction through December 31, 2015, we recognized rental income from Ardent of $42.9
million. We also paid certain transaction-rclated fecs to Ardent of $40.0 million, which are recorded within merger-related expenses and deal costs in our
Consolidated Statements of Income.

\

Thcsc transachons are consxdered to be arm’s length in nature.
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Note 19—Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Summarized unaudited consolidated quarterly information for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 is provided below.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(ln lhousandﬁ, cxccp( per share :\mounts)

05,598:..8 - 81119204

Incomc from contmumg opcmtlons attnbutablc to common
stockholders, mcludmg real estatc dlsposmons (l) 3 102 868 § 131,578  § 45235 §$ 127 059

Dlscontmucd opcmtlons (l) Lo o R : ‘,'.‘.'.;' -_.' -':I-i_. ' ]7,574 : ,18.',243'" (22;383) ) o
Net i 120442  $ 149,821 $ 22852 § 124,728

holders, mcludmg redl estate dlsposmons :
Dlscontmucd opcratlons 0.05

stockholdcrs mcludmg feal-estate dispasition

Discontinued operations . 0.05
_Netincomé attributable to commoni stackholders /1t § 037§
Dividends declared per share ) 079 %

(1) The amounts presented for the three months ended March 31,2015 and June 30, 2015 differ from the amounts previously reported in our Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q as a result of propertics not previously included in discontinued operations in the respective reporting periods.

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30,
2015 2015
(In lhousands, cxcept per share amounts)
T i T :.__384 02 8?1,322 F
Rcvcnucs prcvnously rcpom:d in contmumg operatlons in Fo 10-Q (78,426) (79,402)

i-.,:805:598"

Total n:venucs dnscloscd in Form 10-K

Income from continuing operations attributable to common stockholders, including real estate dlsposmons
previously reported in Form 10-Q 3 120,865

Income from continuing operations attributable to common stockholders, including real estate dxsposmons o
. previously reported in contiming operations in Form 10-Q

$

17997

Income from continuing operations attributable to common stockholders, including real estate

dispositions disclosed in Form 10-K 3 102,868 §
Dlscontmucd operations, previously reported in Form 10-Q o S 70 ) B Bt
Opcrahons from propemes prcvnously reported in contmumg opcr:auons in Form 10-Q 17,997
Dlsconlmucd operations' dlsclosed in Form’ l0 K- S - - _S. © 17,574 REHE




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(In thousands, cxcept per share amounts)

Incomc from contmmng opcrations 'mnbut.:bl(_ to common
stockholdus including real estate dispositions (1)

o
w
2
©
-~}
)
o

107,617 § b3 86,481

oA

RN S -
°m3‘-"ﬁpn'¥ o

Dividends declared per share

(1) The amounts prescnted for the three months cnded March 31,2014, June 30,2014, September 30,2014 and December 31, 2014 differ from the amounts
previously reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2014 as a result of propetties not previously included in
discontinued operations as of December 31, 2014.

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, Septembci- 30, December 31,
' 2014 2014 2014 2014

(1n thousands, except per share amounts)

$ .7 .+803.987
(71,897)

y (76 208)

Income from conlmumg operations attnbulable to common stockholders
mcludmg real estate dlsposmons prcvnously rcported in l'oxm 10 K $ $
. ; e ) . . o

b3 107,601

Income from continuing operations attributable to common
stockholders, including real estate dispositions disclosed in Form 10-

S

107617

scontinited operations; previously reported in Form 10-K

. Operations from properties previously reported in continuing operationsin . . _
Form 10K 27,043 31,036 18,430
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Note 20—Segment Information

As of December 31,2015,2014 and 2013 we operated through three reportable business segments: triple-net leased properties, senior living operations
and MOB operations. Under our triple-net lcased propertics scgment, we invest 1n seniors housing and healthcare properties throughout the United States and
the United Kingdom and lease those properties to healthcare operating companies under “triple-net” or “absolute-net” leases that obligate the tcnants to pay
all property-related expenses. In our senior living operations scgment, we invest in seniors housing communities throughout the United States and Canada
and engage independent opcerators, such as Atria and Sunrise, to manage those communities. In our MOB opecrations scgment, we primarily acquire, own,
devclop, lease, and manage MOBs throughout the United States. Information provided for “all other” includes income from loans and investments and other
miscellaneous income and various corporate-level expenses not directly attributable to our three reportable business segments. Assets included in “all other”
consist primarily of corporate assets, including cash, restricted cash, deferred financing costs, loans receivable and investments, and miscellaneous accounts
receivable. .

We evaluate performance of the combined properties in cach reportable business segment based on segment profit, which we define as NOI adjusted for
income/loss from unconsolidated entitics. We definc NOI as total revenues, less interest and other income, property-level operating expenses and medical
office building services costs. We consider segment profit useful because 1t allows investors, analysts and our management to measurce unlevered property-
level operating results and to compare our operating results to the operating results of other real estate companies and between periods on a consistent basis.
In order to facilitate a clear understanding of our historical consolidated historical operating results, segment profit should be examined in conjunction with
nct income as presented in our Consolidated Financial Statements and other financial data included clsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Interest expense, depreciation and amortization, general, administrative and professional fees, income tax expense, discontinued operations and other
non-property specific revenues and expenses are not allocated to individual reportable business segments for purposes of assessing segment performance.
There are no intersegment sales or transfers.
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Summary information by reportable business segment is as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2015:

Triple-Net Senior
Leased Living MOB Ail
Properties Operations Operations Other Total

(In thousands)

$ 779801 $ — s 566,245 $ —s 1,346,046

Medlcal officc buxldmg and other services

I'CVCDUC

A)llé(_ﬁ'o aﬂ

Total revenues _ _ $ 784234 § 1,811,255  § 600,681 § 90,228 § 3,286,398

SRNET Y O 4225
— — ) — 26,565
T 601840 . - g '

(526)

R

(Loss) income from unconsohdaled cntmes

~Segment profit n$ a8 s 60131408
Intcrcst and othcr income
 Tftérest éxpéiise- - ; RR ‘ e o _ 3
Depreciation and amortization (894 057)
‘Géneral, admmtstmtl_ _:d_pmfcssxonal fois ¢ - : o RN _ : g:
Loss on cxtmgulshmcnt of debt, net - (l4,4l 1)
Mglgcr-n:l,ntc_d cxpenscs and deal costs . IR e AR ] IR .. . . s (’92'944)
Other _ o ! (17,957)
lncomctaxbcncﬁ C T LT T e S 99284
Dlsconlmued operatlons
Gain on real estate dispositions - . _ ) , _ o - -ABS80
Net income $ 419,222
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For the year ended December 31, 2014:

Triple-Net Senior
Leased Living MOB All
Properties Operations Operations Other Total

(Jn thousands)

s 463910 3 — $ 1,138,457

674,547

#1,552,95

29,364

“Income froim 162ans and ifvestments

Intcrcst and olhcr income — — —
; s L ' (§ 55295148 48643978
1,552,951 486,439

Total revenucs

Intercsl and othcr income

Propcxty-levcl opcmtmg e_xpcnscs
Medical ofﬁcc bunldmg sarvxccs costs
Segment NOL - :
lncom (loss) from unconsohdatcd cntmes

"Seiginent profit; 3109137 '§:
Interest and othcr income
lntc’r‘é'st

Dcprcctatlon and amortization

Genéral; administrative and professional fees
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net

Maga'-lclated ‘expensesiand. deal costs
Other

Incofiedax benefit

Discontinued operations

G:up_ 0 real estate dispositions

4 L ! X
3 477,001

Net income

128




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For thé year ended December 31, 2013:

Triple-Net Senior
Leased Living MOB All
Propertics Qperations Operations Other Total

In th nds)

Rental income $ 586

$ — $ — 3 1,036,356
B ¥ Tiat. Tach S r

Medical oﬂlcc bmldmg and other services
revenuc
iR

7V A TS0 P v-u\—«-l

Assets by reportable business segment are as follows:

As of December 31,
2015 2014

(Dollars in thousands)

Tnplc-nctlcascdpropenles $ 7,996,645 ) 359% $ 9,115,901 43.1%

‘¥ Sénior livifig operations . | 8{022:206 * 7,421,924 - 35.1
OB opcmtxons 5,209,751 3,526,217 16.6

e Alloﬂlcrassels e e e o e e i e l ,033,316 e oy 1,101,871 52
Total assets S 22261918 1000% $ 21,165913 100.0%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Capital expenditures, including investments in real estate property and development project expenditures, by reportable business segment are as
follows: -

For the Year Ended December 31,

201s 2014 2013

(In thousands)

Ciriblcspenditires: . DU L
245 § 647870 $ 847,945

Triple-net leased propertics

; Séniofliving operations - (382877 T 977997 k0 TiS76,459
MOB opcrations 604,827 36,861 189,953
sfpenditres! DRITOATLTS 1,662,128, 78 11614357

Our portfolio of properties and mortgage loan and other investments are located in the United States, Canada and the United Kingdom. Revenues are
attributed to an individual country based on the location of each property.

Geographic information regarding our operations is as follows:

) For the Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)

2423399
2932187

As of Decembher 31,

2015 2014
(In thousands)

Nef rédl'catate property: s = 1 *-

United States 18271,829 $ 15,334,686

Comada i e i 1039561 1269710,
United Kingdom 313,830 168,594

Totdlnct ral estate property’s: 19,625,320°°8 " 16,712,090

Note 21—Condensed Consolidating Information

Ventas, Inc. has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligation to pay principal and intcrest with respect to the outstanding senior notes issued by
our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Realty, including the senior notes that were jointly issued with Ventas Capital Corporation. Ventas Capital Corporation
is a direct 100% owned subsidiary of Ventas Realty that has no asscts or operations, but was formed in 2002 solely to facilitate offerings of senior notes by a
limited partnership. Nonc of our other subsidiaries (such subsidiarics, excluding Ventas Realty and Ventas Capital Corporation, the “Ventas Subsidiarics™) is
obligated with respect to Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes.

Ventas, Inc. has also fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligation to pay principal and interest with respect to the outstanding scnior notes
issued by our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Canada Finance Limited. None of our other subsidiaries is obligated with respect to Ventas Canada Finance
Limited’s outstanding senior notes, all of which were issucd on a private placement basis in Canada.

In connection with the NHP acquisition, our 100% owned subsidiary, NHP LLC, as successor to NHP, assumed the obligation to pay principal and
interest with respect to the outstanding senior notes issued by NHP. Neither we nor any of our subsidiaries (other than NHP LLC) is obligated with respect to
any of NHP LLC’s outstanding senior notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Under centain circumstances, contractual and legal restnctions, including those contained in the instruments goveming our subsidiaries’ outstanding
mortgage indebtcdness, may restrict our ability to obtain cash from our subsidiaries for the purpose of meeting our debt scrvice obligations, including our
payment guarantees with respect to Ventas Realty's and Ventas Canada Finance Limited’s senior notes. Certain of our real cstate asscts arc also subject to
mortgages.

The following summarizes our condensed consol ing information as of December 31,2015 and 2014 and for the years ended December 31,2015,
2014,and 2013:
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2015
Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Ventas Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

{In thousands)

0378039

2 377,226 -

$
7,154 1,644 69,098

12,989,643

13,032,197

$

Llabllmcs
Sc.moi'ﬁﬁg'sé'fy‘é“ ehindiother de
Intcrcom any loans 7,294,158 (6 571 512)
P o L o _ . . 64,561'
68,604 45226

.‘_ ..' "l.. . _ .l . 44' b
338,382

Llab'hq:‘held for salc
Deferred income taxes

Rcdccmable OP umtholder and noncontrollm!,
mterests . — —

| 5 R | SSUET
Totalllabllmesandcquuy $ 13,032,197 § 3,750,512 $ . 22,014,035 § (16534826) $ . 22261918

196,529

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes were issucd jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no
asscts or operations.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31,2014

Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Ventas Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

(ln lhousunds)

th rcal estate 1nvcstmcnt5 S 6,404 216,521  § l7 444 818 S — 5 17,667,743
Cashiand cash cqulvalents" e e 124 X i Dl s )
Escrow deposltq and rcsmclcd caqh 2,102 1,424
Dcfem:d ‘financing costs, nct St — A e T
Investment in and advanccs to aﬁ'lnatce 10,783,780 3,430,055
Goodwill = ARE LT e T e T 363971
Assets held for sale ' — 150,405 2,404,917
Othérasséts’ Pl o TR I 98 605 RRASCT 41821 UM 311332 k) e

Total asscls 3 10,915,748  § 3,840,226 § 20,623,774  $ (14,213,835) §$ 21,165,913
Llnblhﬂesandequlty L o N ' -
Liabilities:
SenigFnotes payable and otherdebt * . 8 L e 13715478 - 3472804,
Intercompany loans 5,555,196 (5,562,739) 7,543
Accrued interest Co TR L =T esant T 18970 82
Accounts payable and other lmbllmcq 103,469 55,909 591,279 — 750,657
Llabxhllcshcldforsalc o L — . ..24398. ST 213,575 _._"___. 23 5
Defened income taxes 344,337 — — —

1,932,327 4304171,

176,003,002,

Rcdccmablc OP unllholdcr and noncontmllmg
intcrests — — 1 _72_,01 6 — 172,016

6; 14 38 A STASXITVAL. .

Toial ity s

Total liabilitics and equity $ 10,915,748 $ 3,840,226 § 20,623,774  § (14,213,835) $ 21 165 913

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no
asscts or opcrations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31,2015

Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Ventas Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

(In thousands)

evase #T

Mcdlcal office buxldmg and olhcr services
revenues

-.«L“

Equny eamm

Propeny-levcl operating cxpense

TR e e e e,
Mcdn:;g_l,gﬁ_wbmldmyscrvxc 5
General, administrative and professwnal chs
Lo enedi e
Merger-rclated cxpcnscs and dcal costs
£ R T

OfEIE

Total expenses

39284

446,140
18,580 — — — 18 580
_ ! _ 417,843 T 459545y o 419,292
Net income attributable to noncontrolling
mterest — — 1,379 — 1,379
S 417843 s 524404 5 (459545) 5 L

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no
. assets or operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coutinued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Ventas Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

(1n thousands)

$ 2,789 % 954,761

Mcdlcal ofﬁcc bmldmg and other services
revenues —

3082
480,267

33147450
489,422

(18,210)
5,860

1

3910

. @)
26,209
9,732
27,499

2, 174 499 —

Bl e 46192317

- 4 12,42 80:466). . © " - .-3500103z
— (1,389) 139)
8732 o, i SR i
470,655 (41 929) 411,036 (480,466) 359,296
(12,858) * : '838 : o 997355
17,970
come RS : - 475,767 i ATT00LF
Net income attributable to noncontrolling
interest — —_ 1,234 — 1,234
th‘.i.d;:_érﬁé_-aigiﬁibut.é.'blc;_tt:)".cdmﬁon ' - : B " IR
stockholders - ) 3 475,767 $ 460640 S .- {480,466) % 475,767

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty's outstanding senior notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no
asscts or operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31,2013

Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Ventas Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

{In thousands)

Medlcal offcc bu1ld1ng and other services
revenucs — an 17,820 — 17,809
o,

Tyl M aairis i v ey
ld GISETVICES CQsts

lasen J.\

Mcrgcr-rclated cxpcnscs and deal cosls 11,917 — 9;717 - — 21,634

83‘19 .
72 642

Net income attﬁbutable to common
stockholders $ 453509 $ 72,642 § 377,706 $ (450,348) $ 453,509

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty's outstanding senior notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no
assets or opcrations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31,2015

Ventas Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

. (ln (housands)
Net incomie (10s5). . S L8P i417,843 8 (64.859) $°°. 525783, .8 i'(459,545) §.

Other comprdlcnswc loss:

Fomgn cumency | lranslauon L. = — (14,792)

Change in unrealized gain on
markctable debt sccuritics (5,047) — —
(15,639)

Total othcrcomprchcmwc lo%s (5,047) —
£ (64,859)

Comp £Hensive income (10s8) -5, o,
Comprehensive income aunbulablc
to noncontrollmg mterest —

412,796 'S (64,859)

Certain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes were 1ssucd jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no

assets or operations.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31,2014

Ventas Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

(In thousands)
S 475767 § 19,826 §° 461,874 $.7.(480,466)" $ -,

'thmcomc : ; .
Othcrcompre cn 'vc income (loss)

Fomgn clirt translahon . — — (]7,_i53_) R

Change in unreallzcd gain on

markectable debt securities 7,001 — - — 7,001

Other. .7 — — 3614 ..l o — L 2h3614
Total other comprehensive income o

(loss) 7,001 — (13,539) — (6,538)
Comprehensive income 482,768 19,826 448335 . 7 -(480,466) . - . 470,463
Comprehensive income attributable

to noncontrolling interest — — 1,234 —_ 1,234
Comprchensive income attributable G

to common stockholders $ 482,768 $ 19,826 $ 447,101 .8 (480,466) $ = 469,229

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capxtal Corporation, which has no

asscts or operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31,2013

Ventas Ventas Consolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

In thousands)

Change in unrealized gain oﬁ
marketable debt sccurities (1,023) —_ — — (1,023)

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no
assets or operations. ’
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cashiflows from financing activities: |
Net change in borrowings under credit
famlmcs

chaymc-nt of debt

“Net change in intercompany debt
Purchase of noncontrolling interest
P"zij'niiéht'o'fd'cfcmd financing costs
Issuancc of common stock, net

) rd stribution’(to) from affiliates

dlstnbutlon to common slockholdcrs

Ca
; 'smbutlon to n:decmablc OP .

; “dpitholders’ - N
Purchascs ofredccmablc OoP umts
__fbuuons 10 noncontrollmg interest .;

th increase (decrcase) in cash and cash
equlvalcnts

Cash and cash cquxvalcnts at bcgmmng of
period

Ventas, Inc.

For the Year Ended December 31,2015

Ventas Ventas
Realty (1) Subsidiaries

Consolidated

Elimination Consolidated

(2,107,862) (15,733) (300,097) - (2,423,692)

— (584,000) (139,457) — (723 457)
-+1,273,000 ; SR (1401,749) 5 il 8749y
— 2,292,568 220,179 — 2,512,747
- oe— ' ‘4°°°°° Felad w7 1/400,000;
— (705,000) (730,596) — (1,435,596)
1,782,954 T BRI(L008,773) | A48 e e e
_ _ (3.819)
— . @227y - (2368)
491,023 — —
G13,755) FIE 459 T I a6 ¢
(1.003,413) — -

e (LY. e
(33,188)

24857 — 30,491 —

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $

11,733 §° =8 41290 " S —

(1) Centain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding sentor notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no

assets or operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31,2014
Ventas Consolidated

Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Ventas Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated

{In thousands)

(7;.749) ((586,035) (2,055,040).

Net change in borrowings under revolving
crcdlt facility -— 386,000 154,203 — 540,203

(1,151,395)
(6,608)
(253,726)

Cash distribution to redeemable OP .
umtholders

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash :
cqulvalcnts 8,525 — (50,663) — (42,138)

(1) Centain of Ventas Realty’s outstanding senior notes were issued jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no
assets or opcrations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31,2013

Ventas Counsolidated
Ventas, Inc. Realty (1) Ventas Subsidiaries Elimination Consolidated
(In thousands)
Net cash (uscd m) T ;v'dcd by opc'x_'.i_tiﬁg . n 3 L e R L EEa oo : Che
actnv:txcs b3 (8,596) $ 149,734 - § . 1053617 § = : s 8 1,184,755;
Net cash (used in) provided by mvcstm;, '
activitics (1,416,336) (6,122) 139,698 (1,282,760)
Net change in borrowings under revolving
credit facilities — (168,000) 3 971 (164 029)
Proceeds fom debtins . — 2330435 . 43711 13,767,546
chaymcnt ofdebt — (400 000) y ([,792,492)
_ Netchange in intercompany debt *. .- 2,149,080, (1,881,988) 1.1 @ e
Paymcm of deferred ﬁnancmg costs — (29,586) (31,277)
f-ilssimnce ofcommon-stock ‘et T4l 343 s o l4l,343 '
Ca.sh dlstnbutlon (to) from aﬂ'halcs (54 852) —
dsh-d 16 common stockholdérs™ *° (802;123) (802:123)
Cash distribution to redccmablc op
unitholdcrs (5,040) — — @, 040)
urchascs of fedeema . ; S (639) . T 58
Contnbunons from noncontrollmg mtcrcst — — 2,395 2,395
Distributions to noncontmllmg ‘interest h — — T Te2ke). . e .(9,286)
8,618 — 8,618
1,436,367 (143,529)
11,435 83
cashy cquiva S : — - (83)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period 16,734 — 51,174 67,908
Cash and dash equivaléntsat end of period” $ . 28,169 § — § 66,647, 7§ s 94,816

(1) Certain of Ventas Realty’s cutstanding scnior notes were issucd jointly with our 100% owned subsidiary, Ventas Capital Corporation, which has no

asscts or opcrations.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

VENTAS, INC.

SCHEDULE 11
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
December 31,2015
(Doliars in Thousands)

Allowance Accounts Additions Deductions
Uncollectible
Balance at Charged to Acquired Accounts Written- Disposed Balance at End of
Year Ended December 31, Beginning of Year Earnings Propertics off Properties ‘Year

1y

(14,118)
T

“.k

2014

Allowirics. for deubtfil iecduris a2y o

Straight-line rent receivable allowance

Allowance for doubtful accounts —_ (6,013) (1,524) 8 9,624
‘Stiaightline rent receivablé alic Pl L5 £(40632)'E %6087
— (7,265) (42,156) 70,411




Can’ying. cost:

" Balance a't'bé-'g'iﬁliiil'g' ofpcﬁéd;" B
Additions during penod
Acqu:smons
Capltal cxpcndilurcs

Dlsposmons ‘

Sales and/or transfers to asscls hcld for salc

Fomgn cum:ncy translation

Balance at end of period

Accumulated depreciation:

Balinéc at beginning‘of period

Additions dunng penod

" Depreciationicxpense -

Dlsposmons
Sales ‘and/or transfers to assets held for sale
Forelgn currcncy translallon

Balancc at end ofpcnod

VENTAS, INC.

SCHEDULE 111
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
December 31,2015
(Dollars in Thousands)

For the Ycars Ended December 31,

2015

2013

19241735 .58 4 2

4,063,355
229,560

:(209,460)

| (867,158)

1769,790.:
189,711

' (3,023,401)
(87,776) -

19,241,735 § 20 393,411

$ 2925508

778,419

" (144,545)
(14,757)

3 22,458,032

354436358
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VENTAS, INC.

SCHEDULE 111
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
December 31,2015
(Dollars in Thousands)

Gross Amount Carried at

Location Tmitial Cost te Company Close of Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Caputalized in Income
Property . State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement

City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisitien Improvements lmprovements Total

Depreciation NBV Construction Acquired Is Computed
= " 3

I3 ye

ot -

Canyonwood  Redding CA — 401 3,784 — 401 3784 4185 2295 1,890 1989 1989 45 years
Nursing and
Rehab Center

Lawton San CA —_ 943 514 —_ 943 514 1,457 513 944 1962 1996 20 years
Healthcare Francisco
Center

Aurora Care Aurora co — 197 2328 - 197 2328 2,525 1.826 699 1962 1995.
Center

VIR

Py rampby ety t . ‘ N LT e . . . . T i A H P P R
Canyon West Caldwell m — 312 2,050 —_ 312 2,050 2,362 1,017 1345 1974 1998 45 years
Health and

Rebabilitation

Center
SpPeqiet Tmird

Vallgy,

— 252 2810 —_ 2810 3062 2,712 350 19560 1983
R £ 1) 1.760 - a5 17601917 1B37 .- %0 .. 1963 1983
Wedgewood Clarksville IN — 119 5115 — 119 5115 5234 3,659 1575 1985 1995
Healthcare
Center
ol CIN - - 345 . 6817 - . 345 ‘6817-7,162- - 1966 - 1991 125 yewrs
__ . Hammison ____ _Cosydon IN _ ____~ __ _ —. 125 6068 — 125 6,068 6,193 2448 3745 1998 1998 45 years
Health and
Rehabilitation
Ceatre
v N - - 87 2,665 - 87 . 2565 2,752 2429 . .30 .. - 1985 1993 25 yun
Wildwood Indianapolis IN —-— 134 4983 —_ 134 4983 5,17 4515 602 1988 1993 25 years
Health Care
Center
Windsor Kokomo ™ - 256 6625 - 256 6615 6881 4595 2286 . 1962 1995 35 yeanx
Estates Health . -
&Rehab .+
Ceater .
Rolling Hilts New Albany IN — 81 1,894 —_ 81 1,894 1975 1,730 245 1984 1993 25 yeurs
Health Care
Center
Svuthwued Terre Haute  IN — 90 2,463 [¢3] 82 2568 2950 261) 337 1988 1993 25 yeurs
Health & . .
Rehabilitation
Center
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Location

Property
Name City

State
Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements

Imtial Costto Company

Land and

Buildings and

Gross Amount Carried at
Closeof Period

Costs
Capitalized
Subsequent

Land and Ruildings and

to Acquisition Improvements Improvements

Total

Accumulated

Year of

Year

Life on
Which
Depreciation
inlacome
Statement

Depreciauon NBV  Counstruction Acquired is Computed

Maplc Manor  Greeawille  KY

Health Care

Center

Hamngton
House
Nursing and
Rehabilitation
Center

Walpole MA

Rebisbilitation .
Cetter .~ [ 0
Park Place
Health Care
Center

Great Falls  MT

Greeabrize ' iNadhus . NH

Terrace |
Healthcare |

Rose Manot Durham NC
Healthcare
Center
Guardian Caie
of Elizabeth’
Gy
Guardian Care
of Henderson
Birchwood
Terace
Healtheare
Nanscmond
Pointc
Rehabilitation
and
Halthcare
Center

River Polote’
Rehabilitation, -
and *
Healtheare
Conter” .
Bay Pointe
Mcdicsl and
Rebabilitation
Center

NC

Henderson NC

Virgiaia VA
Beach

Scattle - WA

Tacoma WA

Lakewood
Healthcare
Center

Vancouver
Healih &
Rebabilitation
Ceater
TOTAL
KINDRED
SKILLED
NURSING
FACILITIES

NON-
KINDRED
SKILLED
NURSING .
FACILITIES
Cherry Hills
Health Care
Center
Brookdalc
Lisle SNF
L.opatcong
Center

Engiewood CO

Lislc L

Phillipsburg N

=

Maricita Martictia OR
Convalescent

Center

The Belvedere  Chester PA

Pennshurg Peonsburz  PA

Manor

'B’tl.lli-ing'l'on VT

CVA--

Vancouver WA .

— 59

296

— 600

3,187

6,896

4,444

2578

6311

6011

3527

561

1997

4,656

6,990

4,440

2,886

4013

3511

2964

— 59

3,187

4444

1,997

4556

6,990

4,440

(380) 425 2,886

— L 4013

3,511

2964

2578

6311
6011

3527

3,246

7,192

4448

2,785

6911

6737

3,727

632-

2203

4571

7.524

5210

33

5,024

4,015

3413

2,728 Sig

2483 1,965

2064

5,035

3,298 429

01 —

3202 -

2,370

1,645

2426 987

3063 . 7

_ 1,490

—_ 1,091

140,645

2,180

. 9270

12336

7203

1871

(388) 13,196

194 241 2374

2270

_— 1,490 12336

-
-

158 3341

7203

- 1.0M 1871

140,645 153,841

2615

10.000

13,826

3,499

8,025

8,962

113,458 40,383

1,823 792

2373 1627

5247 8579

31065 4M
3052 1973

3393 5569

1968

1991

" 1965,

1963

1963
19.72
1977
195.7

- 1968

1963

1953

1971

1950

1989

1970

1960

1990
1982
1972

1899
1942

1985 .o

1990

1991

1993

1993
1990

1991

1982

1993

1990

1991

1991

1993

1993

1989

1993

1995

2009

2004

1993

2004

2004

30 years

SOyears: .

45 years

2’9 years

26 years
20 years
29 years
27 years

32 years

29 years

285 ycars

45 years

28 years

30 years

IS ycars
30 years

25 yean

30 years

A0 vears



Chapel Manor

Philadeiphia PA

Wayne Ceater Strafford PA

1,595

662

13,982

2

1,358
‘R50

15340

16,935

8,384 .

6,575 10,360

3495 4589

194%

2004 30 years




Gross Amount Carricd at
Location Initial Costto Company Close of Periad

Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buddings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements fo Acquisiion Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed

Everett Everett WA — 27950 27337 — 2,750 27337 30,087 3,829 26,258 1995 2001 35years

Rehahilitation
& Care

Northwest Longview WA . —
Centinuum : T s
CircCenter * .

SunRise Care  Moses Lake WA —_
& Rehab

Moses Lake

SunRiscCare  Moses Lake WA =
& Rehab Lake - . ¢
Ridge ’ i -

Rainier Vista Puyallup WA -
Care Center

Logan Center  Logan wv - 300 12959 L= 300 12,959 13259 1833 11426 1987 2011 .35years

- 2,563 PRI 1145 2,734 2819

17,439 — 660 17,439 18,099 2,526 15573 1972 2011 35 years

- 8866 - © . 660 BRG6 9,526 1345 51%) © 3Syan

4,780 305 520 5085 5,605 2,998 2,607 1986 1991 40 yecars

Ravenswood Ravenswood WV — 320 12,710 — 320 12710 13,030 1,803 11227 1987 2011 35 years
Healthcare
Center
Valley Center South wv C -
Charleston
White White wv —
Sulphur Sulphur
Spnings
TOTAL - _ T
NON- . . N . T
KINDRED P
SKILLED [
NURSING .
FACILITIES . —
TOTALFOR
SKILLED
NURSING
FACILITIES —
SPECIALTY )
HOSPITALS . : PR . R A . o P
Kindred Phoenix AZ — 226 3359 — 226 3359 3,585 2,696 889 1980 1992 30 ycars
Hospatal -
Arizona -
Phocntx
Kindred ‘Tueson  AZ - o 3091 - 130 3091 3221 2913 - -
Hospital - . NI R .
Tucson . ’
Kindred Brea CA —_—
Hospital -
Brea
Kindred ’ Ontario CcA . -7 I 2988 —_ 523 2988 3514 2867
Hospltal - "
Ontario . .
Kindred San Dicgo CA — 670 11,764 — 670 11,764 12434 11,254 1,180 1965 1994
Hospital - San
Dicgo
Kindred San Leandro CA — 2,735 . 5870 - 2,735 5870 5605 6093 2512 1962 1993
Hospital - San . ST R - X
Francisco Bay
Area
Kindred Westminster CA —_ - 727 7384 — 727 7384 8,111 7561 550 1973 1993 20 years
Hospnal -
Westminster
Kindred Deaver  CO - 896 6367 - 396 6367 17263 6695 568 1963 1994 20yean”
Hospital - . e e
Denver
Kindred Coral Gables FL — 1,071 5348 — 1071 5348 6419 4819 1,600 1956 1992 30 yecars
Hospital -
South Flonda
- Coral Gables
Kiodred Fort FL - 1,758 14,080 —_ 1758 14080 151838 13,624 2214 - 1969 1989 30yers
Hospital - Lauderdale ) . B S
South Flonda
F1. Lauderdale

201t

24,115 - 750 24115 24,865 3459 21,406

13,055 — 250 13,055 13,305 1,864 1144) 2011

186,804 2,953 13,144 189,757 202,901 50,827 Iiljﬂl v

327,449 2,565 26,340 330,402 356,742 164,285 192,457

1994 -

2,611 —_ 3,144 2611 5755 1327 4428 1990 1995

1994 -

Kindred Green Cove  FL — 145 4613 — 145 4613 4,758 4,388 370 1956 | 1994 20yecars
Hospital - Spnings

North Flonda

Kindred Hollywoad FL — 605 5229 — 605 5229 5834 5234 600 1937 1995  20ycan
Hospual -

South Florida

-1lollywood

Kindred St FL — 1401 16,706 — 1401 16,706 18,107 14,108 3,999 1968 1997 40 ycars
Hospial -Bay  Petersburg .

Area St

Perersburg

Kindred Tampa FL — 2232 14676 —
Hospital -

Central Tamnpa

2670 10408 4939 5469 1970 1993 40 ycans




Property
Name

Location

State/

[nitial Cosfto Company

Landand

Buwldings and

Costs
Capitalized
Subsequent

Gross Amount Carried at
Claosc of Period

Land and

Ruildings and

Ciry Pravince Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements

Total

Accumulated
Depreciation NBV

. Yearof

Year

Life on
Which
Depreciation
inlncome
Statement

Construction Acquired is Computed

Kindred
Hospial -
Chicago
(North
Campus)

Kiadred
Hosputal -
Chicago
(Northlake
Campus)
Kindred
Hospilal -
Sycamorc
Kindred
Haspital -
Indianapolis
Kindred .
Hospital-~
Louisville
Kindred
Hospital -
New Orleans
Kindred
Hospital -
Boston |
Kindred
Hospital -
Boston
Narth Shore
Kindred
Hespital - -
Kaagas City

Kindred
Hospital - St.
Louis

Kindred
Hospital -
Albuguerque
Kindred”
Hospital - _
Greenshoro
Kindred
Hospital -
Oklahoma
Cuy
Kiadred
Hospilal -
Pittsburgh
Kindred
Hospital -
Philadelptua
Kindred
Hospital -
Chattanooga
Kindred
Hospual -
Tarrant
County (Fort
Worth
Southwest)
Kindred
Hospital -
Font Warth

Kindied
Hospital
(tlouston
Northwest)
Kindred
Hospital -
Houston
Kindred
Hospital -
Mansfield
Kindred
Nuspnal -
San Antomio

Chicago 15

Chicago

Northlake IL

Sycamore * . L

Indianapohis IN

© Louisville | KY

New Orleans LA

. Brighton ' MA R

Peabody MA

" Kansas City M:O K

St Louts MO

" Las Vegas NV

Albuquerque NM

Greengbors NC

Oklahoma OK
Cny

Oakdale PA

Philadelphia PA

Chattanoogs TN

Fort Worth  TX

Fon Worth  TX

Houston TX

Houston TX

Mansficld 1X

San Antenio TX

1,583

1,513

850

77

985

3,041

648

1,551

543

277

1,126

1,110

1010

293

662

156

2,342

648

1,699

33

267

19,980

9,525

6,498

8,549
3,801
. 12279
1971
9,796

7,568

2914
2,087

2,177

4253
7,586

5,607

12,854
5223
4415

7458

10,608
6,788
7.062

2462

11,413

1,583

1513

850

n

3,041
648
1851

543

7
1,126

1,10

1,010

293

662
135
756

2,342

648

1,699

33

267

19,980

9525

6498

8549

3.801
12,279
4971
9,796

7,568

2914

2,087

2477,

4253

7586

5,607

12854

5223

4415

7458

10,608

6.788

7062

2462

143

21,563

e

7,348

4,786

15320

5619
11347

8,111

3.9

3213

4264
8,596

5,900

13516
5358
s

9,800

11256

8,487

1095

2,729

11,662

3526

3,2_!7 .

19,156 2,407

1529

3355 1431

12,031 3,189 ¢

4465 1154
© 9029 2218

5,553 2,558

1,873 1340

2,796 1468

7.603 - 993

4543 1357

93854 3662

3220 2138

4043 1,128

7493 2307

8734 2522

5465 3022

6,606 489

1,903 826

EB16 2346

NULEE

2639 552,

1349 1938 ]

1949

1955

1968
- 1930

1974
1958
1984
" 19s0

1985

1958

1972
1960
1975

1987

1960
1986
1972

1983

1941

- 1964

1964 -

1995

1991

'993

1993

1995 .

1978

1994

1993

1992

1991

1994°

1993

1994 .

1993
1996
1995

1993

1986

1994
1985
1994

1990

1993

25 years

Wy
30 years
20 years
20 ycars

2 yen

40 years

40 years

40 yers

40 years
20 ycars

30 years

40 ycars
35 years
. Zi ycars

20 years

34 years
40 years
20 years

40 years

30 years



Southern Tucson AZ — 770 25,589 —_ 770 25589 26,359 3437 22922 1992 2031 35 years
Anizona

Rehab
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Gross Amount Carried at

Location Initial Cost to Company Cloasc of Penind

Lifeon

Which
R Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlIncome
State / Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Property Name Cirty Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total  Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed

'" £ 28100 35248 . 28058 4 1

HealihSouth - Tustin™ [ CA -
Rehabilitation PR
Hospital

Lovelace Albuquerque NM
Rehabilitation

Hospital .

University ,*
Hospital
Rehabilitxio
Hospital -
Relant Dazllas X
Rehabilitation -
Dalias TX
Blylorlnn(iilx_xc
for Rehabilition -
FuWonh TX . R . LT .. . .
Reliant Houston X - 1838 34,832 —_
Rehabilitation -

Houston TX

Select .

Rehabilitation -

San Antonio TX ::;; San Antonio TX

38,702

ejis, i

Fort Worth - TX .

18301

401

2318

2,071 |

1838

1,359

38,702 41,020

36,670

- 18301

1,129 39,891 2009 2015 35 years

9592,

TOTAL FOR
SPECIALTY
HOSPITALS —_ 52,039 465,280 _
GENERAL : C R

ACUTE CARE
HOSPITALS - : )
Lovelace Medical ~ Albuquesque NM — 9,840 156,535 —
Center Downtown

Lovelace Albuguerque NM 10,007 -, . 18501 —_
Wesiside .. L. : o

Hospital : . R4 t : .

Lovelace Albuquerque NM — 7236 181,866 —_
Woimnen's

Hospital

Roswdl Regional
Hospital " ;: . L g
Hillerest Hospital  Claremore  OK — 3623 34359 —
Claremore

Bailey Medical  * Owaso ~ OK . .
Ceater T | L .
Hillerest Medical — Tulsa OK — 28319 215,199 —
Center

Hillerest Hospital  Tulsa 0K,
South . : : :
Baptist St Amanllo TX - 13779 358,029 —_
Anthony's

Hospial

Spirc Hull and Anlaby Hull
East Riding

Hosputal .
Spirc Fylde Coast  Blackpoo!  Lancashirte —_ 2,446 28,896 (1.687)
Hospital

Spire Qlarc Park

Hospita) Famham Surrey

17026, ','.pq_o,'s"yz SRR

3i94 81613 (43563)

6263 26419 (1.743)

52,039

9,840

10,107

7236

1560

3,623

4964

28,319

17.026

13,779

3022

2314

5926

465,280 517319

156,535 166375

18501 28608 -

183,866 191,102

254,248 263,071

164,315 1968 2015 335 years

©.-28,071

34,359 37982

8969 13933

215,199 243518

100%92 117518

358,029 371808

77,212 30244

27,341 29,655

24,713 30639

407 37,575 1955 2015 40ycars

3315 240203 1928 2015 3dycas

R RETRRIT S )

3,545 368,263

2761 17483

992 28,663 1980 2014 50 years

932 29707

TOTALFOR

GENERAL

ACUTE CARE

HOSPITALS — 109,357 1.254,142 (7,9%93)

108,716

1,246,790 1355506

17,947 1337559

TOTALFOR ’ o

HOSPITALS T 161,396 1,719,422 (1,993
BROOKDALE

SENIORS

HOUSING

COMMUNITIES

Sicrling Houscof  Chandles  AZ - 2000 . 6533 —
Chandler .

The Springs of Mesa AZ — 2,747 24918 —
East Mesa .

Sterling Houseof  Mcsa AZ —-— 655 6,998 —_
Mecsa

Clare Bndge of Oro Valley AZ — 666 6.169 —_
Oro Valley

160,755

2,000

2747

655

1,712,070 1,872,825

6538 2538
24918 27665

6,998 7.653

6,169 6835

272,195 1400630

1008 7.530

9.532 18,133 1986 2005 35 years
2,653 5,000 1998 2005 3Syecans

2339 4,496 1998 2005 35 years




Gross Amount Carricd at

Location Iatial Cost to Company Close of Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitatized inlncome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Landand Buldings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement

Total Deprecia NBV Construction Acquired is Computed

Name

1997 2005

Ementus at Anaheim CA — 2,464 7,908 —_— 2464 7908 10372 2717 7,655 . 1977 2005  35ycars
Fairwood
Manor

25,003 1987 2005 35S yecars

14,066, 2
Emeritusat  Tracy — 1,110 13296 - 1110 13,296 14,406 4234
Heritage

Place

Wynwood Colorado
of Colorado  Springs

3518

‘3565

T HEI H ITITERE . - Tt - . - 7 Lig pteadd)
TbeGables  Farmington CT —_ 3,995 36310 - 3,995 36,310 40305 13,885 26420 1984 2005 35 yeass
at
Farmington

=t

22,833

L P

Ementusat  Boynton FL 13,632 2317 16,218 — 16,218 18,535 5891 12,644 1999 2005 3Sycars

Boynton Beach
_ - 159'9':"’

TIGH 050 T 38se 9301, 1955 20087

i

Fort Myers — 9372 1,119  §.253 1996 2011 35 years
w0 17605 1 2283 15322 - 1997 20
- 10,959 1355 9,604 1997 2011 35years
12232 14,651 477 9a4 260535 e
Sterling — 11,398 1377 10021 1997 2011
Housc of
 Onmond- - - ; .
Beach

1310 8346 . 1997, 201

Palia Coist
Sterting Pensacola  FL —_
House of
Pensacota

2308 4412 1998 2005 35 yecars

745 5326 L1997 2001

Hotscof
Englewood
o . - o .
Clare Bndge Tallahassce FL 4385 667 6,168 ' _— 667 6,168 6835 2,339 4496 1998 2005 35 ycars
of

Tallahassee

Sterting
Houseof
Tavarces .
Clare Bndge  West FL. 6249 586 5,481 _ 586 5481 6,067 2078 3989 2000 2005 35 years
of West Melbourne '
Mciboume

The Classic West Palm  FL, 25,170 3,758 33,072 b 158
» West Beach '

Pale Beach

Tayares  FL — w0 sot0 — 280 15.9%0 16,260 2,189 14071 1997 2011, 3Syesns |

-
D
3
v

36830 12,734 14.09¢ 1950 2008 35 ycars



Clare Bndge  Winter
Couage uf Haven
Winter
Haven

FL

232

3,006

3.006

3233

1,130

2098

1997

2005

35 years



Gross Amount Carried at

Locauon Initial Cost to Company Close of Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlncome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
is Computed

Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements lmprovements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total

Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired
FL 5 5}49 —

Wynwood  TwinFalls 1D — 703 6,153 — 703 6,153 6,856 2,333 4523 1997 2005 3Syecars
of Twin
Falls

10298 35 years

Chicago

Herilige |

Devonshire  Hoffman 1L
ofHoffman  Estates
Estates

— 3,886 44,130 43,016 16,171 31,845 1987 2005 35 years

The* ‘Ligle - 7953 Loarem,
Detinshi S _ S B AT
Seasons at Northbrook IL — 1,988 39,762 —_ 1,983 39,762 41,750 13,784 27966 1999 2004 35 years
Glenview
' — 4433

— 1,047 11,188
Willows Hills
Sicling’ = - 1)
Berkshire Indianapolis IN _ 1,280 11,515 — 1,280 11,515 12,795 4413 B382 1986 2005 35 ycars
of )
Castlcton

3E0 - — 207

Sterling 3,649 —_ 128 3,649 3,777
House of
Portage
Stedding 495 - 495 4124 45190 1se4
House of Coe D . ;
Richmond .. L T B L
Sterling Derby KS — 440 —_ 440 4422 4862 645
House of
Derby-
Clafe - KB RILE — . 117 .5:2000
Bridge of L -~ . A e
Lawood H

149




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Tmtial Costte Company of Period
Lifeon
‘Which
Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsecquent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Property Name Ciny Province Encumbrances Improvenents lmprovements fo Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Compnted
Sterling House T 65 _ i, 300 95’ 8307 s 011735 years,
of Satina'll N T R :
4,797 376 6,825 - 370 2588 4,607 2000 2005 35 years

Clare Bndge
Cottage af

of Wellington
Ementus at Farm
Pond

Eméritus at Cape
Cod (WhitcHall)
River Bay Club
Waveni
Davison .. |
Clare Bndge of
Delta Charter
Wovdf_l:lcjix_!.: of
Delta Chanter

Clare Bndge of
Farmington Hills
I

Clare ﬁr_idge of
Farmingten Hills
u .

Wynwood of
Mendian
Laosing Ul

Qlare Brid_g.cof
Graod Blancl .
Wynwood of
Grand Blanc 1l
Wynwoad of
Nonbhville
Clare Bridge of
Troy |
\Vyn"mbd'of
Troyll . .- -
Wynwood of
Utica

Clarc Bridgc of
Utiaa =~ .
Sterling House
of Blaine

Clarc Bl‘id‘: of
Eden Prwitie
Woven Hearts of
Faribault
Sterling House
of Inver Grove
Heights' -
Woven Hearts of
Mankato
EdinaPark Plaza
Clure Bridge of
Nonh Oaks
Clare Bn'd;e‘of
Plymouth
Woven Hcarts of
Sauk Rapids
Woven Hearts of
Wilmar

Wouen Hearts of
Winona

The Solana West
County

Clare Bndge of
Cary

Sterling llouse
of Hickory

Clare Bndge of
Winston-Salem

‘Heans of D

10,497

Farmington Ml —
Hilis

10246

Holly Ml _ 620 14,627

‘Nadbville MI -

Troy

Faribault

InverGrove MN

Heigh

b;anka;c; MN

Minneapolis, MN 15,040 3,621 C 334
North Oaks MN — 1,057 8,296
Plymouth ~ MN - 679 " B67S
Sauk Rapids MN — 480 3178
Wiloar  © MN - 470 T . 433
Winona MN _— 800 1390
Ballwin ~ MO . - 3,100 " 35074
Cary NC _ 724 6466
Bickory ~ NC — 330 10981
Winston- NC —_ 368 3,497

Salem

6,134

22412

3o

5.':'m
1297
6.101
160 .
730 ; 1 l,4il
8200 .. _'-zis_'i:f- )
— 580 . 10,-49§
- 700
— 1340 6134
— 450 12
i 620 1ag27
— 407 T 6068
— 630 - 15_{73
- 950 12,503
- 1,142 |i,s'ox;
- 700 8,657
—_ 150 1.675 '
— 301 6,228
— 530 l,;).BS .
— 253 2,655
— 490 410
3621 55553
— 1057 8,296
— 679 8,675
— 480 3078
pu— 470 4,813
— 800 1390
16 3,100 35,090
— 724 6,466
- RR1i) 10,981
— 368 3497

150

124

15247

§41s.

17,808

900

59.174
9353

9354

3,658

5303

2,190

35,190

7.190

1at

3,865

2080

2301 .

2376
1,865

4477

RE

635

2361

201

1,007

145

12655
3.145

3289
474
682
402

1,601

15432

11,538

s
46519
6208
6,965
3,184
4621
1,788

36589

4,739

9,774

2,539

1994

1998

1996

1996

... 1998
1998

1988
1997
1997

1997

‘2012

1997
1997

1997

2011

2011

2005

2011

2008
2005

2005
2011
_-2an
2011
2014
zo.os
2011

2005

55.;'&5
ISyean |
35 yeus
IS ya -
35 years
35 yan

35 years



Gross Amount Carned at Close

Lacation Inital Cost to Company of Period
Lifcon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inTncome
State/ Landand Bulldings and  Subsequent land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement

NBV Construction Acquired is Computed

Depreciation

Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acqui

Fan: ey ety T

ion Improvements Improvements

Clare Bndge of
Wesiampton

17,754

90

%‘_

2854 5621 1991 2005

3870

=
:',".;; L

3,136 1997 2005  35ycars

IELI0n 3 ¥ - -
Clare Bndgeof  Schenectady NY - 1,021 8333 — 1,021 8,333 9354 159 6,195 1997 2005 35 years
Niskayuna

1991 2005 35 years

OH

10,884 11324

EELIEREE T B

Sterling House of Clayton OH . —_— 630 6477 _ 630 6,477

7.107 . 958  6.149 1997 2011 35 yeans
Englewood (O11) .

3,'867 REEE BT

Sterhing House of Greenville OH 4634 722 3912 1997 2011 35 yeas

Greeaville

on . Fsgayc U728 439
OH — 620 3306 — 620 3306 3926 555 3371 1998 2011 35years
: o YY) Ctagse 52930 0 Taaes: st
W7 N A N st i
Sterting House of Springdale OH 1,140 9,134 10274 1,300 8,974
oK, i250 10529 10779 ‘. 1ASI .9328"
Sterling Housc of Bethany oK 190 1499 1,889 374 1615 1994 2011 35 years
Bethany
.. . ) I eyl . . B . NarLe v . e L P AL
oK : 1873 11,789 13662 1485 12,197 TR1996 ]
Forest Grove Forest Grove OR — 2320 9,633 11,953 1,512 10441 1994 2011 35 years
_— Ressdential.. _ ... .__
Commumty
TheHlaitigem Gresham ~ OR h S 2410 ©9093 11503 1427 10076 C ek
Mi,Hood : ) N o :
McMinaville  McMinaville OR 1552 1,230 7,561 8,791 1317 7474 1989 2011 35 years
Residential .
Estates
Denton ™ - " 1,750 6712 B462 965 7494
Sterling Housc of Ennis X -—_ 460 3,284 3,744 520 3224 1996 2011 35 years
Eoois
Sterling Houscof Kenville  TX - 460 2548 9.008 1200 7.808 1997 3011
Kérrvil . s
Sicrhing House of Lancaster X —_ 410 1,478 1,888 295 1,593 1997 2011 35 years
Laocaster
Sterhing House of Paris T - 360 24N —_ 360 2400 2771 a5 2356 1996 2011 - 35years.. -
Paris .
Steiling House of San Antonio TX — 1,400 10,051 - 1,400 10,051 11451 1433 10018 1997 2011 35 yeas

San Antonio

151




Gross Amovut Carried at

Laocation Imtial Cost to Company Clase of Period
Lifc on
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitahzed inlncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subscquent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Property Name City Province Encombrances Improvements 1mprovements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation  NBY  Construction Acquired is Computed

Stciling House of-- Téimple *

L7700 el i1
Templé’® - S

Ementus at Salemn VA 5,743 12376 1998 201t 35 years
Ridgewond

Gardens

S 3830

§a2

3,146 6,207 1998 2005 35ycars
3360 -
5079
2257

754 4282 1988 2011 35ycars

Union Park at Tacoma WA

Allenmore

2197 13939 .

Sterling Housc of  Fond du w1 —_ 196 1,603 — 196 1,799 608 1,191 2000 2005  35ycars
Fond du Lac Lac

2665 611

- - al
283 2,041 2011 35 years

1,775 . 4028 .

Sterling Housc of LaCrosse  WI —_ 644 5831 2,637 644 2,768 6,344 2005 35 ycars
La Crosse -
wI - - N4 4p87
Middigon ™, .. . L
Woven Hearts of Neenah wI — 194 1,176
Neenah
Wovea Hearts of  Onalaska ° ¥ — 697 as01 ..
— 310 1,754
= 207 1274
TOTALFOR
BROOKDALE
SENIORS
HOUSING
COMMUNITIES 246,461 190,934 1803345 66907 191867 1,869319 2,061,186 562,297 1.498,889
SUNRISE : Lo
COMMUNITIES - . . s S . . .
Sunnse of Chandler  AZ — 4344 14,455 448 4439 14808 19247 1980 17267 2012 35years
Chandler
Sunriseof Scotisdale AZ - 2229 2,255 28060 3015 7375 22940
Scottsdale : . . H
Sunnscof Ruver  Tucson AZ _ 2971 2971 12,501 i5472 1,545 13,927
Road
SusriscofLynn  Vancouva BC -, £1,759 8445 27579 36024 7210 28814 B
Valley . : .. P . . :
Sunrise of Vancouver BC — 6,649 31,937 313 6,661 32238 38,899 8,746 30,153 2005 2007 35 years
‘Vancouver
Sunriscof Victoria Victoria  BC — R332 299707 © (10,044) 5999 22259 28158 5924 22334 2001 ) S yeart
SunnseatLa Curlsbad  CA — 4,890 20,590 1276 4960 21,796 26,756 6293 20,463 1999 2007 35 ycars
Costa
Suariscof - Carmichael CA - 1269 CE14.598 77 1269 14845 16,114 1903 14211
Carmicheel S
Sunnise of Fair FarOaks CA — 1456 23679 2271 24544 26815 6792 20023 2001 2007 35 ycars
Qaks
Sunriicof Mission Mission  CA - 3802 24560 .12 - 1827 28769 29596 7062 22434 1998,
Vicjo Vicja g "~ "
Sunnseat Canyon Riverside CA — 5486 19.658 1531 T 5530 21,145 26675 SROI 20874 2006 2007 35 yecus
Crest
SunriscofRocklin Rocklin  CA — 1378 23,565 T a1 24263 25674 6442 19232 2007 2007 73S years
Suntise of San San Mateo  CA — 2,682 35335 1320 2,695 36642 39337 94672 29665 1999 2007 35 years
Mateo .
Sunnsc ol Sunnyvale CA — 2,933 34361 821 2,948 35067 IRIALS 9330 2R7RS 2000 2007 3Syers
Sunayvale .
Sunnscat Stering Valencia  CA - 3868 29293 4,146 3995 33312 37307 9469 27338 1998 2007 35years
Canyon



Gross Amount Carned at Close

Locabon Initial Costto Company of Period
Lafeon
Which
Costs Depreciatton
Capitalized inIncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreaation NBV  Construction Acqured is Computed

49 T $3

Sunniseat Yorba  Yorba Linda
Linda

! ! ERR : : 3ok e & X = SR
Suprise of Westmuinster CO — 2,649 16243 1387 2,686 17593 207279 4846 15433 2000 2007 35 years
Westminster

e

20,180 2,314 17866 2009 2012 35years

Sunarse of Atlanta
HuntchfTl

6,783 19,780

Sunnsc at East Manetta 1,346 1,799

Cohb

< P
y )

2000 2007 35 yecars

Sunnse of Bloomingdale TL — 1,287 38,625 1523 1382
Bloomingdalc

- 2007,

Sunnsc of Chicago L - 3485 26,687 829 3,504 27,497 31001 7011 23,890 2003 2007 35 years
Lincotn Park

.‘335.

-
Sunnise of Willowbrook L — 2000 2007
Wiltowbrook
Suni 14 - 009 2012 .
ot 2006 2012

007 - 201243

1267 1321 24,705 26020 6,625 1'9,401 2000 2007

—_ 846 35328 ° 9631 25,694 2001 2007
Sunnse of —_ 2230 30,968 1,642 34,840 8683 26,157 1997 2007
Norwood .
Sunris:nf- —_ 23083 1353 26716 6804 19912 + 1996 2007
Col SN Y C S fheye g
Sunnseof —_ 1,634 41,889 10443 31,446 1997 2007 35 years
1513 33,006 7745 25261 . 2006 2007 35 yearseu
Sunnise of Grand Rapids MJ — 262 22,033 23317 2739 20578 2007 2012
Cascade
= ) 26,995 2852070 7472 21,048 ©.1999. . 12007 -
Sunnscof Rachester MI . —_ 2774 38,666 39,704 42545 10510 32,035 1998 2007
Rochester
SundseoflTroy .Troy . Mi —_ 1,758 23,727 645 1260 L.24270 26130 6,686 19444 2001 2007
Sunnse of Edina MN _ 3181 24224 2538 3270 26,671 29943 7286 22,657 1999 2007
3 ) .. NC R - 1976 19.472 . 2018 YT 21488 23476 5714 17,762 1999 2007
Sunnseat Nosth  Raleigh NC — 749 37,091 3,504 762 40,582 41344 10864 30480 2000 2007 35 years
Hills .
Sunriscof€ast  East | NJ ’ - 2,784 26173 1760 3047 © 21670 30517 7885 22832 1999 2007 35 yeas
Brunswick. .. .. .Brunswick - S e e - PR -

182

o)




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Locanon Iunitial Cost to Company of Period
Costs
Capitalized
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and

Property Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total
Sunriseof ©  Jackson - NJ T i el 40097 304 4014 415328 19342
Sunnse of Moms NI 18,165 i.492 32052 1517 33,736 35253
Morms Plamns Plams

Sunriscof Old . Old Tappin ;. NJ. :

Sunnscef Wall  Wall
Township

Sunriscof _ Wayne . NJ 13400 .24990
Wayne' A L )
Sunrise of Westfield NJ 17,756 23,803

Woodcliff Laki " Laki
Sunnise of North Lynbrook NY —
Lynbrook

Sunrisc of New NewCity  NY — 1,906 27323
Cuy

Sunriscpk' Smithtown .25621

Smithtown - . . K P
Sunrise of Staten Staten Island NY 23910
Island

Sunrise ot Parma. Cléveland: s2OH 1, <. LT 698 16840
Sunri.;c of Cuyahoga  OH —_ 626 10239

CuyahogaFalls Falls
Sunrisc of * r

Auforz "

Sunnse of
Burlington

Sunnse of
Mississauga

Sunrise of 37,489
Oakville

Sunris¢of - . 41254
Richmond Hil} - [
Thome Mill of  Vaughan ON 57513
Steeles

Sunrisc o :1120882
Windsor- P -
Suanse of Abington PA 53,660
Abington

Sunisé of Blue  BlucBell . "PA - 1765 . .13920
Bel! : : :

Sunnsec of Exton Exton PA — 1,123 17,765
Sunriscof ©  Havarford., PA B AL R 7T ‘25872
Haverford [ . .

Sunrisc at Media PA 11,019 1272 31,781
Granite Run

Suariscof © Momisville PA - 3.068° 21337
Lower - .. . - :

Makeficld - . T e '
Sennsc of West Chester PA — 1547 22996
Westtown :

Suvnriscof Dallas ™ — 2616 27,680
Hillcrest® - o - T
Sunriscof Fort  Fort Worth  TX —_— 2024 18,587
Worth

Suansc ol Frisco Frisco TX — 2523 14,547
Sunnsc of Cinco Katy X — 2512 21.600
Ranch

Sunrisc of Holladay uT —_ 2,542 44,771
Holladay

Sunnse of Sandy Sandy uTt — 2576 22987
Sunnscof Alcxandria VA — 38 L4811
Alexandria

Sunnise of Richmond VA — 1,120 17,446
Richmond

Sunnsceo{Bon  Richmond va — 2,047 22,079
Aur

;21,085
1386

(9.936)

371

(13,229) ;

.(9:614)

agib,

(11479) -

(13,988
442
1,883
2,149

1,500
1,738

2,098

359

155
1431

1,136

390

)

Accumuiated
Depreciation

© 2,074

8956

Lifcon
Which
Depreciation
inIncome
Yearof Year Statement
NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed

17268 *.-2008 -,

26,297 1997

Tia0

2,755

1553

1,063

e

1,980
1827

1,187
962

1372

3,165

1570
2,626
2,082
2535
2550
2577

2618
176

1,149

2032

20,102
26551

25511

39,681

28,799

27,437

24,010

21,165

27815

30,628

30,749
" 30475

31,298

o113 asdn

11,527

26614

30377
45,025
+21308

57,401
26,007
/
19,201
27589

337719

21696

24356
28232
19.068
14724
22014
4517

23,100
16,154

18,553

22484

12251

44381

11,128

o

7817

- 8,036

8,458

- AIN
3,176

127,747

38,034 40,789

31530

46,088

. 23037

59381
27834

20388
285551
35151

24 861

25926
30358
21.150
17259
24564
477945

25718
16330

19,702

235810

9817
7834
10,866

5433

14930

1270

5312
734

8.893

2.796- 2

7073

7639

2454

1,694

2,782

5614

6359
4961

5307

2918

15,632 1999 2007 35 years

22932

122439

2006 2007 35 years

4136307 - 2000 | 2907 ' 3Syemm;
9,075 2000 2007 35 years
20,682 2002 2007 35y

2000 2007 35ycars

1¢2000,;

2000

30972 2002

24096 . 2042 "

35222 2003

n17s6a L. - . 2000,
44 451 1997 2007 35 years
* 20564 2006 2007

15076 2000 2007
; 1997 3007 -

26258 1997 2007

18,853 1999 2007

21219 2006 2007

18.,6.96 2007 zoi 2 35 years
15565 2009 2012 3Syaain
21,782 2007 2012 ' 35 years
42,134 2008 2012 35 ycans
19359 2007 2007 35 years
11,369 1998 2007 35 yeans
14395 1999 2007 35 yeans
21598 200% 2012 J3Syan



Gross Amaunt Carnied at

Location Initial Costto Company Close of Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlncome
State/ Landand  Buildings and  Subsequent Landand  Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Property Name Cirty Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total  Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Sunnisc of Springlield VA 8,198 4,440 18.834 2,164 4,466 20972 25438 5723 19,715 1997 2007 35 years

Spningficld

ATRIA
SENIORS
HOUSING
COMMUNITIES

View at 24,770 “z211) 2,102 20,960 23,062 1,108 21957 2007 2014 35ycars

":‘.9.:‘..‘9'

19311
183 © iin
9506

Ironwood Estates §
Aliia Regeoey . - wMobile
Atria Chandler Chandler
Villas

2,602 1988 2011 35 years

Atna Campana Tucson AZ —_ 5861 37,284 1,408
Decl Rio

M,

AtriaBell Count Tueson
Gardens

e

3,020 31,849 34,869

RIS PRI
1,735 19,189 20,924

Prnce George Pance
George
FENSION o
Victoria 2871 §213°

Victonan at Victona

4031 21,794 25,825
McKenzic
vBurlingame : Byrtingy CUHRSEB L A3 NSBES. . 2435

Atria Las Posas Camanllo 4508 29,117 33,625 4834

calIM 509427 T5g%6 Yt e

5.984

0%
2,540

vl

Atna Encinitas Encinitas  CA 2,057 13899

AtnaEscondido  Escondido Ca o a— L haes ... 186 505 8012
Atna Grass Grass CA 11,644 1,965 435 2,768 28,046
Valley Valley
\uidGolden . Trvi “ca 31380 4526
Creekif s : A H '
Atnia Woodbndge Irvine CA 1377 305 1,072
At Uifayénte Lafayatic * CA ' 5692 187295 62987 45946 58041
Atria Del Sol Mission CA 3,716 20,801 24517 2,584 21,933
Vigo . o R,

AiaTamalpais  Novata  CA 537 25088 31018 4293 2672
Creck . . - o . . .o . o
Asia Pacific Pactfic  CA 4470 18,017 22,587 5329 17258 2000 2007 35 years
Palisades Palisades

Desen’ Palm. €A SRS E § 1 15 3,06 10542 13745 3354 10394

Degert




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Initial Costto Company of Perind
Costs
Capitalized

State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and
Pruperty Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvemenis to Acquisition Improvements Improvements
Atria Hacienda PalinDesert CA — 6,680 85,900 2,231 6,826 87985
AtdaParidisé’  Paradise -+ CA’ 4983 3 28262 ; -, 2309°
AtnaDel Rey  Rancho CA — 17427 3458

Cucamonga

Autia Collwood Sasi Dicgo's' CA " -

Atna Rancho San Dumas  CA
Park

Atria Chatéan SanJosc  CA
Gadens .
Atria Willow San Jose CA
Glen

Atria Chateat*."SanJoan | CA
San Juan * Capistrano
AtrtaHillsdale SanMalce CA
Alril’B'a'y;_ide.__ Slock'tonl Y

Landing

Atria Sunnyvale Sunnyvale CA

Atria Twzina Tarzzna ;. CA
AtnaVintage  Temecula CA
Hills
AwiaGrnd | - Thousand; :CA
Oaks T .. Oaks ! e
Atriallillcrest  Thousand CA
Ouks
AtriaMontego  Walnat CA
UHcights . © = Creck :
Atna Valley Walnut CA
View Creek
Aia .7 Lskewood CO’
Applewood © - bl -
Atnalnn at Lakewood CO
Lakewood
Atria Vistas i Lp_;'\gmoq(_-;,',C_O
Langmont L
AtnaDarien Darien cT
Atialason  Hamden cT

Place. .,: . .

Atna Rocky Hill CT
Greenridge

Place

AuiaStamford  Stamford  CT
Atna Stratford  Stratford CT
Auia Watdrford cr
Crossroads o -
Place

AtnaHamilton West CcT
Heights Hartford

Atnia Windsor  Hudson FL
Woods o

Atnta Baypoint  Hudson FL
Village
AtriaSan Pablo Jacksonville FL.
Atriaat St. Jupiter FL
Joseph’s

AtriaMendian  Lake Worth  FL
Atria Hentage at Sanford FL
Lake Forest

AtriaEvergreen  Spring Hill  FL
Woods

AwaNorth Alpharetta  GA
Point

AtlriaBuckhead Atlanta GA
AtrtaMableton  Austell GA
Atria Johrson  Manctta GA

Fery

15436

5596
16,115

2,083

1620,

5520

3,589
2370
4830

3,660
1911

9%0

48557

14,674
©.32432.
28,841

14920
30,720

32,586
28371
78318

5274,
18,879

6453

53914

11353
14,865

L e

45230

48,059
45,391

34,535

29695

56,225

816 41,415

1873 17,181

2,388 33,747

IR B 65733

3210 28932

235k 43634

2,136 3,154 16,776
1407 1661 33788
4345 2259 33,010
678 1,642 15,576
612 5,549 31,303
T 1069 30 1,149
2618 3844 34949
2,859 2518 31,082
775 4,853 79,070
673 3,683 5,924
7 1942 19,075
363 995 6811 -

156

0,703 .

Total
94811

31242
25334

11691 -

19,441

T 1080 -

53,786

425713

22,580

923

40305
49,027
50,175

56,747 °

41,147
37230
.63,3.96
52,644
5’7,503
28,058

42231
19,054

36,135
617,106
32,142
46186
19,930
35449
35,269

17218
36,852

1179
38.793

33,600
83923

9,607
21,07

7806

Accumulated
Depreciation

13,532
2,646
4992

12267:.

3,258

616
6,412
s'.l"ii

2996

R I

5498
4,021
4391

. 7,045
4591
13463
4,765
7852
32719

6.737
3259

5430
10,775
5,122
6721
3.701
6,145
6,475

2614
2945

307
5553

6,251
4112

1443
1879

1327

28596 .

L ATS9 .

Life on
Which
Depreciation
inlncome
Yearof Year Statement
Construction Acquired is Computed

201

NBY
81,279

20242

9424
16,183

464,
41374
34400

19584
[

34,807
45,006 -
45,784

51,988

34,102

1987

32639

49,933 1977
47279 '
49,651

w9 -

35,494
15995

30,705
56331

27020
39465 "

16,229

29304

28,794 1986 2011 35years

38 yein’

1999
2007

14,604

33907 35 years

1986
2002

7
33240

" 38yem

35 ycars

27349

1951

79,151 2007 35 years

5,164
19.138

1996 -
2000

2011 .

2013

35 yeans™
35 years

6479 1995 2011 . }Syers




Gross Amount Carticd at Close

Location Initial Costto Company of Perind
Lifeon
' Which
Costs " Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearofl Year Statement
Property Name City Province Fncumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Immprovements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Atria Tucker Tucker GA — 1,103 20,679 275 L5 20,942 22057 030 20027 2000 2013 35 yecus
R o} r: - o~

Atna Topcka KS —_ £230 28379 1,826 1230 30205 31435 5555 25880 1987 2011 35years
Hearthstone
West

Atria Summat Crestview KY —_ 1,780 15,769 698 1,789 16458 18247 3020 15227 1998 2011 35 years
Hills Hills

2408 8432

Burlington MA - 5310 58,021 1,093 5383 59,041 64424 8,948 55,476 1998 2011 35 years

Longmeadow
Pl

30,881 37314 3,431 33,883 2013 2011 35ycars

CERESER . TS
3,155 16952 1998

N

33,899

2011

35 years

260

17,821 2000 2014

. A,182; L1988 201 yex
19,000 1926 2011 35 years
: . 24500: N IR X 1995, " 7Eo0 ;0% yamt
Aina Kennebunk —_ 23,496 709 1,104 24,191 25295 4067 21,228 1998 2011 35S years
A : I 1303 .., 15857 07570719286 - 4995 14285 2001 2007 . 3Syéam
Atna Riverview Ml 13,545 1440 26,260 27,460 28955 4901 24,054 1987 2011 35 years

204 K00 1989

— 1221 29,626 25,041 26,066 1262 24,804 2002 2014 3Syears
287 Jase  aasm 20902 21576 T 1,094 20482 2002
) . oo
- 1,678 36,892 IRIIE 40,621 6946 11675 1991 2001 3years
i 16609 2,430 " 25.920 " 26366 18496 2608 25888 009 2013
Sb.“uly..oin.l t N - . T : b : - ’ .o B M
Atria Oakndge 15,406 1482 28,838 29210 30,724 2906 27818 2009 2013 3Syears
A : - .. 26052 3260 . . 6141 . : ) L ..64338 72682 - 10747 61935 1993 . 2011, ¥Sycars .
AtmaTinton  Tinton Falls  NJ — 6,580 13258 1037 6,593 14282 20875 3073 17802 1999 2011 35 yeass
Falls
Airia Vistadel | Albuquerque - NM L= - 3 ... 1008 " 57 L. 987 1044 27 817 1997 2012 3Syears
Rio . . : T
RO cwer e Lt . B A S - . Lr . PR
AtniaSunlake  LasVegas NV — 7 732 745 7 1477 1484 883 601 1998 2001 35 ycars
AtfiaSutton  LatVegas NV — - 863 894 .- 39 ing 1781 1100 657 1996 2011  3Syan
Atna Seville Las Vegas NV —_ — 796 811 1 1,596 1,607 975 632 1999 2011 35 yeans




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Lncation Init1a) Cost to Company of Penod
Lifcon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized : in [ncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subscquent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Property Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreaation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed

A3 Summit . Reno . .
Rxdgc-_,,', .

NV 0 Dm0 T vaemd T 4070 DL 336 CTAY T i47 0 v D482 2657 -l1997. 201

Albany 29,667 26,966 1997 2011

Atna Shaker
Atvia Croisgite- Albany . -, " V208990 LI8ES3T G 1980 1T 2010 :
Atna Ardslcy 65,581 64,171 2005 2011

Woodlands

AviaBay Shore {Bay Stors ) 32202550 11000 Hei201 1 38 Yo
AuiaBrarehff Briarchft  NY 36,065 1997 2011 35years

Manor Manor

N . .
AuizRiveidale; Broox
AwiaDelmar  Delmar
Place

7 7 5277 32880 71999
1,219 25,268 26487 1,789 24,698 2004

24449 ¢
24,850

East ) 34467 ©10003° 7. - 52453 62456 " 56374
: Norhport:: et : . R
Glen Cove 19,857
Gcat Nee 50,480
GreatNeck  NY 2,750 49,581 52,337 44,627 1999 2011 3Syers
Atris " Huntington NV 8IS0 . LI6Y T 27367 nges T Ta3IS esey - 1981... 2001
Huntington *  Station 8 ' e ’ N Do ’ :
Atnallerthn  Lake NY — 7,886 16,391 17,557 25,443 2,089 23354 2002 2012
House Ronkonkotna .
Asria Lyobrook. Lynbrodk ... % KT ) . S5asy . 718 o347 6205 . 93527+ I3 1839 .. 1996 20i1-
Atna Lynbrook 4,120 37348 672 4,142 37,998 42,140 5915 36,225 2005 20N
Tanglewoad
Atria 8618 Stroct Néw York ') 0 Tmgss. . am3 167 . G 783117848 12777 65203 1998 7 *.3018.
Awzonthe  Ossining — 8123 61,089 2,622 8,157 65677 73,834 11237 62,597 1972 2011
‘Panfield + N U0 T 226 626 .. 2265477328200 <3822 19460 - 1972 TH201l.3Syan
Plainview  NY 2,480 16,060 929 16,839 19,469 3,089 16380 2000 2011
Port Chester SNY ' .9.660 L 74936 - 984 758647385580 7 T 11865 T3S £ 2004, 2001
Queens NY — 3,051 66013 7,437 73433 76,501 10391 66,110 1999 2011
" 2,050 16680, . T3S 17318 TUTU3058 16307 " 2001 . 304"
Rochester ~ NY —_ 410 14967 848 15589 16225 2,733 13492 1970 2011
A Roslyn - . NY ° 12909 27200 2, 0333 173,994 186962 11390 75572 2006 *. 2011
Shngerlands  NY — 1,170 22414 339 22,752 23923 . 3723 20200 1950 2011
8450 . 14534, 145 15343 9 3897 20232 1967 2011.: 3856
. At EIEE : : PG
Cinctnnai~ OH — —_ — 540 23 517 540 177 363 1985 2012 35 ycars
Park
TheCourtst’  Brooklin . ON’ c—- 2515 35,602 ¢917) 2,112 30,088 32200, . 1448 30752 2004 2014 3Syem
Brooklin **", | : L . _ . oo ) )
Burlington Burlington  ON — 7.560 50,744 9.122) 6349 42833 49,182 1980 47202 2008 2014 3Sycars
Gardens
ThcCourtot  Hamilion  ON 13.076 1,799 34633 (5334) 1511 29587 31,098 1408 29,690 2004 2014 3Syems’
Rushdale - R
Kingsdale Kingston ON 13,70 2221 36272 (5.985) 1,865 30,643 32,508 1486 31,022 2000 2014 35 years
Chateau
Cry<ial View ._N}p'm ‘oN LT . 1,587 37243 T T (3659) . 1457 L4 3 1,532 31,639 2000 2014  ISycas
Lodge ' o
TheCourtat  Nepean ON - 1778 33922 (4.861) 1,493 29346 30,839 1395 29444 2004 2014 3Syears
Barrhaven X
Sumford "~ . NiagaraFalls ON 10,640 1414 29,439 " a1y 1,188 74944 26132 1245 2487 2005 3014 3syan
Estates _ . o
Sherbrooke Peterborough ON 13,110 2485 33,747 (5.217) 2,090 28925 31,015 1,406 29,609 2001 2014 3Syears
Heights
Anchor Poiate St Catharines ON 12319 8214 24,056 (4.980) 6398 20392 27290 1136 26,154 2000 2014 3Syems
TheCourtat  Whitby ON — 2,965 39,206 (6.137) 2490 33544 36,034 1610 34424 2002 2014 3Syears
Pringle Creek

158




Gross Amount Carricd at

Location Initial Costto Company Clase of Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs . Depreciation
Capitalized m Income
State/ Landand  Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buidings and Accnmulated Yearof Year Statement

ed is Computed

Cirty Provioce Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquistiion Improvements Improvements Depreci NBV  Construction

“35445  37.520 6.464 2011 35 years

Lincoln Rl — 1,440 12,686 664 1,470 13320 14,790 2,639 12,151 2000 2011 3Syears

Place

28,787

e 25048, ' 31582 o
Atna Weston 8,739 9.706 1,783 7923 1993 2011 35ycars

Place

Avin Viliage s Ty
Arborctum’ - s

Atnia Colher Park  Beaumont 792 794
Atsia Caiioliton ; T aaer 20

23,552 25,622
Twaes s e T

AlnaCaqyon Plano X — 3110 45,999 724 3,138 46,695 49,833 4,634 45,199 2009 2013 35’yeal‘
Creck : )
Atria Richardsa L89S 115 24309 25904 296,
Ana 387 9.913 10,800 1,786 9014 1996 2011 35 years
Cypresswood
and. FSopur L 7 g2i1 W99, [ 393 A3y
Tyler 18,535 20416 3251 35 years
Villow vl T : ks bl ;192 0 3289877 I : 33 ycus
AtnaVirginia  Virgmia VA - 1,749 33,004 532 1,749 33536 135285 5673 35 years
Beach (Hilltop)  Beach
Ambariidd TP R Y

Other Projects — - 4307 —_ — 4307 4307 CcIp CIp 35 years

278,594 5395220 687,032
OTHER
SENIORS
HOUSING
COMMUNITIES
Elmeroftof , 4 46 (19613 20,659 2911
. Grayson Valley R . . T DR . SRR
Eimcroft of Byrd Hunstville AL 440 1,723 11,707 13430 1914 11,516 1999 2011 35 years
Springs
Elmaoftof ' Mobile AL. ASS 020 10699 1LTIS 2001 3Syexs..
Herifige Woods ™' o) e HTEL L e AR i U
Elmerott ot Montgomery AL —_ 220 5476 — 220 5,476 5,696 1,434 4262 1999 2006 35 years

Halcyon

159




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Imtial Cost to Company of Period
Lifeon
Which ’
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Year of Year

Property {Vﬂm" i City Province Fncumbrances Improvements Improvements te Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV - Construction Acqui
Rosewood Scottsbora AL - . e ’ y — 630 4038 4TI "4 1998
Manor{AL)" L e - . . Co : A i BRI
West Shotes Hot Springs AR — 1326 10,504 — 1326 10.904 1988
Elmcrofof ~ Maumelle. . AR T T asd S s 7601 8353 19977
Maumelle X . : i : e . ) S ) o W - .
Elmeroft of Mountain AR — 204 — 204 8971 9,175 2350 6,825 1997
Mountam Home Home
Elmcoftof - Shawoed ~ AR~ .. 5693 7013
Sberwdod IR o : VAT ; ] - . S
Chandler Chandler AZ — 2910 —_ 9.066 3,094 8882 11976
Memory Care .
Community
Cousswood  'Coltod¥ood AZ - 1200 15,024 16324 .
Village - - . . - L L
Silver Creek Inn - Gilbert AZ 890° 5918 6,808 745 6,063 2012 2012 35yeas
Memory Care
Community

' .- Groea Valley AZ 13977 15204
Assisted Liviog -
ut Green Valley S A o . T - . e
Prestige Lake Havasu AZ 14792 15386 533 143853 1999 2014 3Syears

Assisted Laiving
at Lake lavasu

City
Lakeview, Lake Havasu AZ 1810 8,516
T T Gy - RS e
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Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Imiaal Costto Company of Penod "
Life un
Which
Costy Depreciation
Capitalized inTncome
Property State / Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Year of Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements lmprovements to Acquisition Improvements [mprovements Total Depreciation NBY  Construction Acquired is Computed
Arbor Rose Mesa AZ 11,880 1999
The i Az : 2ot
Amber Crect 8 L¥4 1386

Ton Mcmory
Care

£.090 13,776 14866 2,158 12,708

3549 16458 2004

Las Villas De}  Carlsbad CA — 1,760 30,469 —_ 1,760 30469 32229 7980 24249 1987 2006 35 years
Carlsbad

\-3“5‘""'

201t
5

Las Villas Del
Norte

Clmcroft of La LaMesa

2,700
‘718
Prestige Marysville CA ) —_ 741 35 years
Assisted )
Living at
:'Montrose  CA L - 1089 116,538 4046 12492 1974 2006 - 3ISycars
Redwood Napa cA — 2,798 12,639 15,437 972 14,465 1986 2013 35 ycars
Retirement
sige ~ Oroville CA - 638 8019 87 293 8424 1999 2014 35 ycam -
Valencia Rancho CA — 1439 361363 — 1439 36,363 37,802 2,728 35,074 2002 2013 35years
Comntons Cucamonga
Miision Hills Raicha " CA —_ 6300 3637 = 6800 ,° 3637 10437 963 9468 1999 2011 3Sycan
Mirage . . . . . .

“ShistaEstates Redding  CA T Thise 23463 - 1,180 23463 24,643 1,763 22850 2009 2013 35 years
TheVists ~. Redding  CA — 1290 22,033 —_ : 1290, - 22033 23323 3,097 20,126 2007 2011 3Sycus
CasadeSanta  Rockhin CA 20,024 4427 52,064 —_ 4427 52,064 56,491 1,613 54878 2001 2015 35 years
Fe
Elucrofiof  SauDicgo  CA - 2117 6865 . — 2417 . 6B6S 8982 1798 7,184 1999 2006 3 yeoms
Point Loma . .

Regency of  Sanlose  CA — 2,700 1994 — 2,700 7994 10,694 1585 9,109 1998 2011  35years
Evergreen

Valley

Villadel SanJuan  CA — 2,660 9,560 54 2,660 9.614 12,274 1501 10743 1985 2011 3Syean
Obispe Capistrano ]

VillaSanta  Sunta cA — 1219 12426 — 1219 12426 13,645 31769 9876 1977 2005 35 ycars
Barbara Barbara

Summertull  Santa Clanta CA - 3380 38366 — 3,830 38306 42246 1250 41,036 2001 2015 35 years
Villa -

Skyhne Place  Sonota cA — 1,815 28,472 - 1815 28472 30287 1,145 29 142 1996 2014 35 years

Senror Living




Gross Amount Carnied at Cleose

Location Initial Costto Company of Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitahized inlncome
Property State/ Landand Buildings and  Subscquent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements te Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Coustruction Acquired is Computed
Ok Termace - g - — - g T o 5 e q —
Memory Care . -ri5" .
Eagle Lake Susanville  CA — 35 years
Village
‘Banaventure, V)
Prestuige Visalia CA — 1300 8378 — 1300 8378 9,678 307 9371 1998 2014 35yeas
Assisted
Living at
Visalia
Vista Village orost - 6289

Rancho Vista  Vista 21,828 28558 5,717 223841 1982 2006 35 years

Westminster .- Westminsta CA . —_ 11,531 13232 1699 11,533

Highland Trasl Broomfield © CO — 26,431 26431 28942 1998 26,944 2009 2013

Calcy Ridge' ' Englewood €O™ ™ . 12,133 13133 132000 0 1508 12782 1999 - 2012

Garden Square  Grreeley co — 8211 8211 B84l 1258 7,583 1998 2011

at Westlake

Garden Squan Co DEES T R & A 436 2625 201107

of Greeley C o S N . N |

Lakewood Lakewood €O — 1306 21,137 — 1306 21,037 22,443 1,591 20,852 1988 2013

Estates

SugarValley Loveland’ —_ 1,255 L2183 21,837 23,092 1643 21449 2009 2013 3Syears
Estates .y, . : ) R A . TR S e

Devonshire Sterling co — 950 13,569 10580 11,530 1,580 9950 1979

Acres

Girdinside _ Branford  CT - — 7060 . 31518 31,518 38518 4578 33940 1999 2011

Taqc: o 2 Y AU .‘,' B A . - : . SR, H L RPN o ) P .l

Hearth at Tuxis Madison cT — 1,610 44322 — 1,610 44322 45932 6,124 39,808 2002 201t

Pond .
White Ozks . Manchester~. CT - . - 2,584 34507 - S 23840 - 34507 37,091 2602 34,439 2007 2013 3Syamsts
Hampton Belleview FL - 390 8337 - 390 8337 8,727 1,272 7455 1988 2011 35 years
Manor

Belleview

Sabal Hose. 0 S — 430 - ] 5301 63327 . 876 5AS6 - 1999 L2001 -3SyGn
. Bnstol Park of Coral FL — 3,280 —_ 3280 11877 15457 1871 13,286 1999 2011  3Syears
Coral Spungs ~ Springs

Stanley House Defunlsk. "FL - - 410 . 5659 5659 6069 341 5228 1999 2011 3Syeas
The Peninsula — 3,660 9,122 9.022 12,782 1,663 11.119 1972 2011 3Syeas
Elmeroftof " — 455 5905 5905...6360 - 1547, 4413 1998 2006 35 years ™
Timbedin Pare, - . . 1 8 T PPN N
Forsyth House Multon FL — 610 6,503 6503  7,113° 954 6,159 1999 2011
Lésington Park. — 3,752 26265 : 30,017 827 29,190 2010 2015

- Lake Lady, : Co oo . -

FL : : O . .

Pninceton Largo FL — 1,718 10438 — 1,718 10438 12,156 413 11,743 1992 2015
Vallage of

Largo

Baiagton _Fon . — 2105 — 0. 20295 650 19,645 2000 2015 ]
Teracc of Fort' ™, EE : - T % : o
Myers E o L
Barrington Naples FL — 2,596 18,716 —_ 18716 21312 684 20,628 2004 2015 35 ycars
Terrace of

Naples

ThbeCarlisle  Naples FL . — 8,406 78,09t — 8406 78,091 86497 10975 75522 1998 2001  3Syan
Naplas e Ly . e ; A
Naples ALZ  Naples FL — 2,983 — — 2,983 — 2983 — 2983 cw cw cw
Development

Hampton  Oala ~ FL — 690 8767 - 690 2767 9457 1288 %169 1996 2081 3Syan
Manor at 24th )

Road - . s .

Hampton Ocala FL — 790 5605 307 790 5912 6,702 922 5780 2005 201t 35 years
Manor at

Deerwood

LasPalmas  PalmCosst FL . — 934 30,009 - 984 30009 30993 2,250 28,743 2009 W13 35 years
Princeton Palm Coast  FL - 1958 24525 — 1958 24525 26,483 808 25,675 007 2015 3Syears
WVillage of Palm

Coast '

Outlook Pointe Pensacola  FL — 2230 2362 143 2,130 2505 4738 580 4,155 1999 2011 3Sycars
at Pensacola

Magnolra Quincy FL — 400 5190 — 400 5190 5,590 785 4805 1999 3011 35years
House




Gross Amount Carried at Cluse

Location Initial Costto Company of Period
Life on
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
Property State/ Land and Butldings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Year of Year Statement
Name City Province Ercumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
0 = g HE T 2,:1‘3 ==

Magnol:a Tallahassee

Mace

e . H -] o - ‘x
Elmcroftof  Tarapa FL — 5410 20,944 601 54t0 21,545 26955 3274 23,681 2001 2001 35years
Carrolwood

Arbor Termace  Atlanta
at Cascade

woens s d !
Benton House Covington  GA 7871 1,297
of Covington

Benton House Douglasville GA —_— 1,697 15,542 — 1,697 15542 17,2319 521 16,718 2010 2015 35 years
of
Douglasville

Benton Ilouse Newnan GA — 1474 17487 — 1474 17487 18961 565 18,396 2010 2015 35 years
of Newnan GA ‘
-Elmeroft

H B : d e w e
Benton Stockbndge GA —_ 2,221 35 ycars
Village of

Stockbndge

GA

Villas of St_ Breesc IL — 671 6,849 —_ 671 6,849 1520 268 77252 2009 2015 35 years
James - Breesce, ’

Villas of Effingham IL
Holly Brook -
Effingh. I

Hally Brook - -
Hemin, 1L . c . . . L
Villas of Marshall 1. — 1,461 43881 - 1461
Holly Brook -
Marshall, IL.

263 6,079 2012 20t5  3Sycars

HEETS
- N to

Holly Brook - *
Newton, I . . . . N A
Wyndcrest Rochester L — 570 2005 2015 35 ycars
Assisted

——Living m—— e
Villasof | Shelbyville M.° RICEE ¥ 7 T R AR 2392 3351 .- 5643 . ¢ 1289 7 5354 - 20011
Holly Brook, . ) . : - ot
Shelbyville, IL” . o : .
Georgetowne Fort Wayne N — 1,315 18,185 —_ 1315 18,185 19,500 5371 14,129 1987 2005
Place
TheHaimigon * Indidnapolis IN:. .15 . : 200 40 - . — 7 1200 5740 16340 T 1E23 57 1985 2005 .7 38 yers
Eimcroft of Munaie N — 244 11218 —_ To244 11218 11462 2,724 8738 1998 2007 35 years
Muncie
Wood Ridge  SouthBend IN . —_ - 590 4,850 35) 590 4315 5405 768 4,637 19%0 2011 35 yeans -
Elmcroft of Flotence KY _— 1,535 21,826 -— 1535 21826 23,361 727 22634 2010 2014 35 years
Florence
Hastland Hills Lexington  KY _ 1,468 23929 — [A468 23929 25397 1ROl 23596 2001 2013 3Syeas
Elmcroft of Mounl KY - 758 12,048 — 758 12,048 12806 401 12405 2005 2014 35 years
Mount Washington
Washington .
Hcl_-il:g:_ Agawam MA i = . 1.249 4625 —_ 1249 4625 5R74 - 2,12% 3,746 1997 2004 30 ycars
Woods ’
Devonshure Lenox MA - 1,832 31,124 — 1832 31,124 32956 2341 30615 1998 2013 35 ycars
Estates .




Gross Amount Carried at

of Southport

NC —

Location Initiat Cost to Company CloseofPenod.
Lifcon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlIncome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequcent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Year of Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements improvements Total Depreciaion  NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Owlook Poiate Hagerstown *"MD! — . 2010 Toms100 22010 11393 3403 L 407 - 2996
at Hagerstown o X . : - ) . e .
Clover Aubum ME — 1,400 26,895 732 11400 27,627 29,027 4,164 24863
Healtheare
GorhamHoute Gerbam — 1360 T 3347 ST sy 31229
Kiltery Estates  Kittery 30,811 1,531 30,027
Woodsat ~ ° Ponland 1441
Canco * - Lo .
Sentry Hill York Harbor 3,490
.. . :;_”.__ -
Independence  EastLansing M1 — 1956 18.122 — 1956 18,122 20,078 1,950 18,128 1989 2012 35 yews
Village of East
Lansing
Elmcroftof -, Keatwood M1 : 13976 510 C14ATS 14985 .. 2357..12,628
Kentwood . . . Tl . . . : .
Prnimrose Austin — 2,540 11,707 14247 1,651 12,596 2002 2011
Austin
Primrosc Dufuth - 6190 8317 14,507 ° 113,163
Dulath = ... - el . el b RN o Y Shin
Pnmrose Mankato 1,860 8,937 10,797 1376 9421 1999 200t 3Sycars
Mankato
Rosc Arbor Maple Grove MN . . e 1,140 12421 —_— 1,140 124217 13561 - 4868 . 8693 2000 . 2006 :. 35 ycars
Wildflawer Maple Grove MN —_ 504 5035 — 504 5035 5539 1978 13,561 1981 2006 3Sycars
Lodge
Lodge st White White Bear  :MN .’ a2 4599 - 732 24999 25731 - " 187323858 2002 2013 8
Bear . s Lake BRI St P ™ I : . Coan
Assisted O'Fallon MO — 2326 14,158 — 2326 14,158 16,484 553 15931 1999 2015  35ycars
Living at the
Meadowlands -
O’Fallon, MO
Canyon Creck  Billinge 420 15224 . 11 644° 1533 10,111 ot - 201t
ino Mcmory * .7 .
Springs at Missoula 1975 34390 36,365 3,722 32,643 2004 2012 3S5ycars
Missoula
Carillon ALF.  Asheboro . 680 15370 16,050
of Asheboro o RI T
Arbor Terrace  Ashewiile NC 9234 1365 15,679 _ 1365 15679 17,044 518 16,526 1998 2015 35 years
of Ashevitle ‘ .
Elmcrofiof ~ Charlolte "NC- —_ 250 5.077 — 250 5071 5317 1330 3997 1997 :po's 35 years
Littte Aveaue ) - c B . . D
Canillon ALF  Cramerton NC —_ 530 18225 — 530 18,225 18,755 2635 16,20 1999 20011 35 ycars
of Cramer
Mountain
Carilton ALF Hamisburg NC —_ 1660 15,130 — 1,660 15,130 16,790 2178 14615 1997 2011 35 years
of Harrisbarg N C . . . . PR
" Canfion ALF Hendersonville NC —_ 2210 7372 _— 2210 7372 9,582 1,205 8377 2005 2011 3Syears
of
Hendersonville
Carillon ALF  Hillsborough NC -— 1,450 - 1,450 L 09,754 21204 2,792 18,432 2005.. 2004, Myews
of . s SR R : : el
Hillsborough X .
Willow Grove Matthews NC —_ 763 — 763 27,544 28307 2,061 26244 2009 2013 3Syears
Cantlon ALF  Newton NC . 40 - 540 14935 15475 2141 13334 20000 2011 35 ycans
of Newton : . o
Independence  Raleigh NC — 1989 — 1989 18,648 20,637 2,050 18587 1991 2012 35 ycars
Viliage of Olde
Raleigh
Elmcroft of Raicigh NC - 184 1592 —_ 184 3592 3776 ) 941 2,835 1984 006" 3Syeans
Nonahridge
Canllon ALF  Sahisbury NC -— 1.580 25,026 — 1580 25,026 26,606 3,509 23,097 1999 2018 35 ycars
of Salisbury
Carillon ALF  Shelby NC —_— 660 1547 — 660 15471 16,100 2224 13907 2000 w;n 35 ycars
of Shelby '
Elmcroft of Southem Pines NC _— 1,196 10,766 —_ 1196 10,766 11,962 1,769 10,193 1998 2010 35 years
Southem Pines
Canllon ALF  Southpont 1330 103356 — 1330 10356 11686 1,589 10,097 2005 011 35 years




Gross Amount Carricd at Close

Location Initial Cost to Company of Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized w income
Property Stace/ Land snd Buildings and  Subscquent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisitien Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Primrosc Bismarck ND -— 1210 9,768 20 t210 9,788 10998 1425 9573 1994 2011 35 years

Bismarck

3647 9,619

2,722 35,380

paR v A ~!
IRIB 24265 1998 WL 35 years

Elmcrofi of
Quintessence

- 2000

5,057 1,046 5:35.011 -

19,685 23,183 6,000 17,183 1988 2005 3S5years

1248724372, 386920503 ', 994
3368 3,858 882 2976 1998

Elmerofi of
Med

Elmcroft of Norhfield OH — 980 12,604
Sagamore Hills

Gardens at Westlake OH

Westlake -
Westlake OH

X R
Arbor House of Mustang 0K _— 37N 3,587 —_ 372 3587 3959
Musiang

Arborflouse  Norman OK — 438 3,028 — 438 3,028 3466
Remunisce
Ceater

_ e G Y 911. 8,766 2004
west ity "y . D T .
Mansionat  Oklahoma OK — - 2077 14,184 16261 1629 14,632 1999
Waterford Cuty
M'cmj_ll'o\'vbl_\;o Biker Gi —_ i1 6741, 218. 6523 1965
pl'..'“' B . i : R . L L R . . .
Edgewoad  Beaverton  OR — 2356 15,476 — 2356 15476 17,832 1,179 16,653 1978 2013 3Syears
9 1999
— - 3,293 152 3,141 2006 2015 35 ycars
: - - N TR T I B 13622° 529 13093 2006 535 Ve
T “Avamereat Hillsbore  OR — 1,065 4,400 9418 13818 1550 12,268 2000 2011 35 yeass
Hillsboro
The Springa at - Hilisboro ©  OR., 34,689 — . 4589, " 55035 59,724 5599 58,125 2009
Tanasboume . . ’
Keizer River Keizer QR — 68 1138 6,307 7442 296 7,152 2012
ALZ Facility
Pelican o] 12,050 : — ey i 36231 21080 836 26344 001 20057 353
The Stafford  Lake OR — 1,800 16,122 — 1,800 16,122 17922 2,476 15446 2008 2011 35 years
Oswego
The Springsal- Milwaskic  OR 10,557, 1264 . . 22429 — 1264 122,429, 23693 2428 21265 1999 2002.. 35years o
Clackamas - ) L
Woods (ILF) - : .
Clackamas Milwavkic  OR 5,648 631 12,077 — 681 12,077 12,758 1307 11451 1999 2012 35 years
Waods
Assisted
Living
Phessant Pointe Mclalla OR — 904 7433 — 504 7433 8337 276 8061 1998 2015 35 yean
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Gruss Amount Carried at Close

Location Imtial Costto Company of Penod
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
Property State/ land and Ruildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Yecar Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Avamere at Newberg OR — 1,320 4,664 383 1320 5,047 6367 889 5478 1999 201t 35 years
Newberg
Avamere .- Qregon Gity-OR - 1910 1,122 72395 - . 1972 ;- 200}
Living ai Barry ' ERUREAN ; Lo T
Park .0 . o .
McLoughlin — 2418 26819 — 2418 26,819 29237 LORS 28,152 1997
Place Senior
Living
Avamereat .. . OR - 3,50 16240 L16740 19850 © 2537 17353 2002 -
Babany' . - : : _ .
Cedar Village OR .- 868 12,652 12,652 13,520 418 13,102 1999
Vopd, ' OR L= 1513 162747 V6174 13287 o555 1Y - 19y,
OR — 1,000 7309 7533 8,533 1226 1307 1999
Sandy
Suzaine Ehise - — 7 as40, .. 4027 B L5967 -839 5118 R [
ALF -, B . . - - :
Necanicwn Seaside OR — 2212 7311 — 9,523 181 9342 2001
Village
Avamere st OR e - i,010 Torast 8264 . 1,90 0 7074 . . 2000 .2
stewand | ¢ . ST o o
Chateau Springficld OR — 1,550 4,197 5,747 621 5,126 1991
Gardens
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Gross Amount Carned at Close

Location ’ Initial Costto Company of Period
Lifc on
Which
Costs Depreciation
Caprtalized inIncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Year of Year Statement
Property Name City Province E brances Tmpr ts Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Avamere at St §t Helens OR — 1410 10,496 384 1410 10.880 12,290 1,663 10,627 2000 2011 35 years

Helens

Elmcrofl of i 6,852
Berwick

Elmcroft of Dulisburg PA — 432 7,197 - 432 8229 2042 6,187 1998 2006

Dallsburg
S, A0
o

Elmcroft of Lebanon PA - 240 7336 — 240 7336 1576 192F 5655 1999 2006 35 years
Lebanon

Bt : AR i
Lehigh Macungie PA - 420 4,406 450
Commons

30 ycars

'JSyu“:'i:::'

9,079 10230 2004 30 years

3 years

30 years
Joyews

1997 2004 35 ycars
- 1998 ° (2006 - 3Sycars

5,305_
15,580

REMjaG: 1 R S - .
Elmcroft of Recdsviile PA - 189 5,170 — 189 5170 5359 1998 2006 35 years
Reedsville

¢ - 770 5949 — 770 T 1994 73006 35 years
Elmcroft of Shippensbuig PA — 203 . 7.634 — 203 1999 2006 35 ycars
Shappensburg
Eliacioft of State - 52adc Co] 320; . - 320 1997 . 2006 35 years
College ™ ="+ . . . . : . L R .
Outlook Pointe  York PA — 1260 6923 85 1260 7,008 8,268 1999 2011 3Syeams
at York
Garden Honscof . A T 18N . 969 - . 13613 - 969 - 503716582 . 510 16072 2000 .201S 3Sycars
Anderson SC . . . .. R - : o ’
Forest Pines Columbsa sC - 1,058 27471 — 1,058 27471 28,529 2,061 26468 1998 2013 35 years
Elmcroftof  * Flarence ©. SC . | — 108 7620 —_ 2108 17,728 1996 ..5.732 1998 2006 35 yan
Floreace SC. ~ c. ’ : . . PR ST :
Primrose Aberdeen SD — 850 659 72 850 731 1,581 231 1,350 1991 2011 35 years
Aberdeen
PrimrosePlace . Abadeem © © SD - 3io 3242 12 .30 13354 3564 495 3069 2000 2001 3Syen
Primrose Rapid  Raprd City sD — 860 8,722 - 860 8722 9.582 1322 8260 1997 2011 3Syears
Cuy
‘Primrose Sioux - Siowx Fallg~— SD - o — TTALI800 U CI2936777 0 T 99 0 T 2180 T130357 15215 TC TU4e85 132307 77 2002 3003 T3S yean
Falls- |~ . - . N o ] i -
Outlook Pownte  Bristol ™ — 470 16,006 134 470 16,40 16610 2,274 14336 1999 2011 3Syeam
of Bristol
Elmofiof  * Cisanoogs TN - 87 4243 - 87 1248 4315 w232 1998 2006 3Syean
Hamilios Place o T . ) IR . .
Elmcroft of Chattanooga TN - 580 7.568 455 582 8,021 8.603 1442 7161 1999 2011 35 years
Shallowford
Elmeofiof  Hendemonville TN . 600 . 8304 — 600 5304 5904 178 5726 1999 2004 35 years
Hendersoavalle -
Regency House  Hixson TN -— 140 - 6611 — 140 6,611 6,751 982 5,769 2000 2011 35 years
Elmerofh of Jackson ™ - 768 16,840 —_ 768 " 16840 17608 559 17,049 1998 2084 35 yeans
Jackson . ’
Outlook Posnte  fohnson City TN — 590 10,043 222 590 10,265 10855 1472 9,383 1999 2011 35 yeus
atJohnson City
Elmaoft of Kingsport ™ _ 22 7815 - 22 7815 7837 2047 5,790 2000 2006 3Sycars
Kingspan
Ashor Temuce of  Knoaville ™ — 590 15.862 — 590 15862 16,452 527 15925 1997 2015 35 yews
Knoxville
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Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Initial Costto Campany of Pasiod
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Camtalized in Tncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land 2nd Buildings and Accumulated Year of Year Statement
Property Name City Province Encurmsbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreaation NBV  Construction Acquired 1s Computed
Etmcroft of Halla: Knoavilfe B NS 1 T A POR 17T I RN ¥ A 9485335 . Li6s su70 - 998111~ 2014438 years
Elmcroft of West Knoxwville TN — 439 10,697 — 439 10,697 11,136 2802 8334 2000 2006 35 years

Knoxville

180

. 1.856 Y

Elmeroft of Memphus 343 3,703 1999 2011
Bartlett ‘

Keniiington Plact Merp BIS, . ;18200 ] St 12763 (1989, ¢ 2011573
Glenmary Senior  Memphis 224 1,245 1964 2011

Manor
Outlook Pointe at Murﬁu:b

. isge 2011 3
Murfreesbero | PR

Elmeroft of Nashville 1998 2011

Brentwood

Elmioflof. . Adiagted TaT3 280 20

Adington - © . [ RS

Mcadowbrook Arlington 940 755 5815 2012 2012  35yeas

ALZ

Elmeroftof. : . Austin 534 2,770, ... 153-2000 2011 3Syeas, .

Austin’ . : : e . Lo

Elmcroft of Bedford —_ 770 19,691 493 770 3009 17945 1999 2011 35 years

Bedford

Highland Estaict Cedar Paek T IEI9 - 28943 0 - — 1619 P2 §7TC8A4S . T 12009 20131 BSyeas

Elmcrofl of Conroe — 860 32,67 689 860 4785 29435 1997 2011 35yean

Rivershire

Flower Mound. *(Flawer’ oSS —_ . ©Y 1995 2011 3Syeas
© o7 . Mousd: - R : RS IR

ArborHouse  Granbury  TX — 390 8,186 — 390 - 2007 2012

Grnbury

Copparfictd *. ETRET IO — T21ene 2009 2013 3Syeur

Egtates . ; e . N v R . - R I

Elmcroft of Houston 15919 626 3970 1999 2011 35 years

Bracswood

LoTngers, . M. - 998 2001 35 yewr -

Elmcroft of TX _— 18,755 455 1,620 19210 20830 2874 17956 1999 2011 35 years
Irving .

TheSolaoaat  Katy . L= L T8 - NN .. 73287 2136 .74322. 1 2000, .. 2015 3Syeuws |
CincoRanch - . . . R . o . . e
Whittey Place Kelfer —_ et 5.100 - - 5,100 s.100 1154 3946 1998 2008 35 years
Elmcroft of Lake . Lake Jackson . L= e LT 14,265 . 417 ne - . 15,182 515892 2318 13574 1998 2001 S yean
Jackson . L ) . PR
AtborHouse Lewiswille TX — 824 10,308 — 824 10,308 11.132 1031 10,101 2007 2012 35 years
Lewisville

Elmcaroft of Vista Lewisville . TX L - 6280 .. . 10548 (10254) 1934 - . 4640  6574° 1901 4673 1998 2041 35 yeans
Ridge : PR . - . B o ) . )

Polo Park Estates Midtand TX —_ 29,447 — 765 29,447 30232 2,205 28,007 1996 2013 3S5years
ArborHills Plano .. TX L —- 5119 . — 1014, . $,719 .- 6733 - 476 6257 - 2013 2003 35 yars
Mcmory Core . ) . . . . .
Arbor Houscof  Rockwall TX —_ 12,883 —_— 1,537 12,883 14,420 1,296 13,124 2009 2012 35 years
Rockwall

Elmcroft of San Anlqn'in TX. — 920 13011 526 920 13537 14457 2176 12281 1999 2011 IS ycan
Winderest ’ . T : .

Paradise Springs  Spring TX — 1,488 24,556 —_ 1,488 24556 26,044 1848 24,196 2008 2013 35 yeams
ArborHouscof  Temple STX ) —_ 473 ‘ 6,750 — 473 6,750 7223 675 6548 2008 2012 35 years
Temple : . L . .. . . :
Elmcroft of Temple TX —_ 630 17.515 405 630 17.920 18550 2659 15891 1997 2011 35years
Cottonwood

Elmcroft of TexasCity  TX _— s20 . 14,849 504 520 15353 15873 2335 13538 . 199 2011 35 ycas
Mainland . . T
Elmcroftof’ Victona TX -— 440 13,040 425 440 13,465 13905 206t 11844 1997 2014 35 years
Victona

Arbor Houscof  Weatherford TX - 233 3347 — 213 3347 31580 334 3246 1994 2012 IS yean
Weatherford ’

Elmcroft of Wharton X — 320 13,799 658 320 14457 14777 2248 12529 1996 2011 3Syeam
Wharton

Mounisin Ridge  South Ogden UT 11,644 1,243 24,659 — 1,243 24,659 25502 884 2501% 2001 2014 3Syan
Elmcrofl of Richmond VA —_ 829 6,534 — 829 6,534 7363 171 5,652 1999 2006 35 years

Chesterficld




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Initial Costto Company of Perod
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Property Name City Pravince Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisitivn Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed

6,294 7,107 240

Cascade Valley  Aslington
Senior Li

Lt ! TR LY. .
PBremetton WA — 2,114 21,006 — 21,006 23,120 667 22,453 1999 2015

ity

Ray Pointe

27852 32,125

DMiscovery i 1534 9375
Memory Case

1,09

Clearwater - 1,269 9,840 - 1,269 9,840 11,109 369 10,740 2003 2015  3Sycars
Springs

2,116

2,256

23807d
Wi — 150 4356 411 191 4726 4917

prge=i i yie

Harbor House
Beloit

1990 2011 35 ycars

"352° 2,096

Harbor House EauClaire  WI 870 5599

Eau Claire
; chbur “ATS 2447
Matthews of Fox Point 218 2572
Milwaukee 1T
H ¢ wi T 138047UB6T4 - 1526 134
w1 44,181 4657 6,199 40,372
"W i 5,008 G188 az9s
wi 5690 37,000
wr Y322 2024
Matthewsof  Horicon wi — 340 3327 ©95) 345 3227 3512 564 3,008
Horicon
. defferson  WI- 330,777 2384 T 2g0siT T 31 2342
. .Hamony.of —— . Kenosha . _.WI 1,180 ~8717- 9897 - = 1240 8,657
wi ) : ' 1Is6 - iskor 6387 531 6226
Madison w1 650 4279 4929 690 42319
R AR T BN | XY YRR T'X L /NS I VR AL
Harbor House Manitowoe  WI — 140 1.520 —_ 140 1.520 1.660 229 1,431 1997 2011 35 years
Manitowoc
Hormonyof . - McFarfand W1 TS L 640 . AseT. — : 640 4647 5247 721 4566 1998 2001 35 yeam -
McFasfand . . . : o . o
Adare Il Menasha Wi — 110 537 20 110 557 667 1o 557 1994 2011 35 years




Gross Amount Casried at Close

Location Inital Cost to Company of Periad
Life on
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlIncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent lLand and Buildings 2nd Accumulated Yearofl Year Statement
Property Name City Province Fncumbrances Improvements Impro ts to Acquisiti Impro ts Improvements Totai Deprecianon NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
AdarcIV. > ' Menashai™ WI ° = oo D os3 olisevars crie Ut Y cs42 682 108 S48 1:1994 10738 yéam 1o
Adarc N1 Menasha wI — 90 5 562 652 11 541 1993 35 years
Adarel 7 Monsha: W N LI 5 . s62 . 652 106 546 s yars .
Riverview Menomonee W1 5413 2,170 11,758 13928 1,660 12268 35 years
Village Falls
The Arbo Meag 5,640 7389° 41911
Matthews of Milwaukee wI — 222 2632
Milwaukee |
Hx o Milwakee © WI.. | 6600 1900 . ILE2E . o=k, 1900 i 2162823528 3,160 20368
Harbor House Monroc WI —_ 490 4964 —_ 490 4,964 5454 79 4735
Monroce
‘Matthewsof  Neemah Wi : - S0 713 L, 12181931 240 1,691
Matthews o Neenah Wi —_ 720 720 2289 3,009 403 2,606 2007 2011 35 years
Necnah I
Matthewsof  Neeoah . . Wi - T320 7320 1,123 1443 12271216
Maithews of Oak Oak Creek Wi —_ 300 812 2,153 2965 360 2,605
Creck .
HuborHouse  Oconomowoe W1 o= a0 400 270 1596 1996 — 19%
Ocgnomawoe .- - . T : VRl e L .
Wilkinson Oconomowoc WI - 1,100 12,436 — 1,100 12,436 13,536 1,794 11,742
Woods of
Oconamowoc
‘Harbor House ~ Usbkosh wi V— i9g T 549 o . 190 949 1139 188 951 1993 200t
Oshkoth . ) el T :
Harmony of Racine Wl 8,954 590 11,726 —_ 590 11,726 12316 1,634 10,682 1998 2011 35 yecars
‘Wi 1a1s. T 153 0292
Harmony of Sheboygan wI 17,908 18,718 2,510 16,208 1996 2011 35 years
Sheboygan
Harbor House ©  Shcboygan Wi —_ 1,060 6208, 1060 6208 7268 879 6389 1995 . 2001 235 yean
Shehoygsa i~y ." . - S A S
Matthews of St St Francis wi — 1,370 1,428 1,389 1296 2,685 260 2425 2000 2011 35 years
Francis 1
Matthews of St St.Francis W1 - 13700 1466 1377 1674 3951 297 2,754 2000 2000 35yems
Frncis I . o : s S .
Howard Vi St Francis Wi 4,800 2,320 17,232 - 2,320 17,232 19,552 2576 16976 2001 2011 35 years
of St. Francis
i{mnyof Stevens Point W1 7562 790 10,08) —_ 790 10,081 10871 1456 9415 2002 1_0l| A5 years
Stevens Point X X . .
Harmony Stevens Poimt W1 — 760 2,242 . —_ 760 2,242 3,002 430 2572 2005 2011 3Syears
Commons of
Stevens Point
Harmony of Stoughton wi 1502 450 9298 . —_ 490 9298 9.788 1322 8,466 1997 2001 3Syenrs
Stoughton
Harbor House Stoughton WI - 450 3,191 — 450 3,191 3,641 500 3,141 1992 2011 35 years
Stoughten )
Harmony of Twa Two Riven W1 2413 330 3538 - 330 3538 3368 542 3226 1998 2011 3Syens
Rivers ° .
Matthews of Waukesha WwI — 1.180 4,124 206 1,197 4313 5510 741 4,769 200 2000 35 years
Pewaukec
Oak Hill Tarace Waukesha w1 4335 2,040 40,298 —_ 2040 40,298 42338 5364 36474 1985 2011 JSyean
Harmony of ‘Wausau wi 6.730 430 5,037 — 430 5037 5467 750 4,717 1996 201t 35 years
Terrace Court
Han;:nny of Wausap Wi -— 740 6.556 - 740 6556 7296 983 6313 2000 2011 3Syem
Terrace
Commonz
Harbor House Wausau wIi — 350 3413 —_ 350 3413 3763 500 3,263 1997 2011 35 years
Rib Mountain
l:ihnry Square  West Alhiz Wi 5150 1160 23,714 — 1,160 23,7114 24374 3A55 21419 1996 2001 35yeans
Harmony of Wisconsin Wi 1.006 520 4349 —_ 520 4349 4869 686 4,183 2000 2011 35 years
Wisconsin Rapids
Rapids .
Matthews of Wnghtstown W} —_ 140 376 12 140 388 528 ito 418 1999 2001 3S years
Wrightstown
Outlook Pointe  Humcane wv - 1950 14,489 106 1,950 14595 16545 2049 14,496 1999 2011 35 years
at Teays Valley
Elmeroft of Martinsburg WV —_ 248 8320 - 248 2320 8,568 2079 6389 1999 2006 35 years
Martinsburg

170



Gross Amount Carried at

Location Initial Cost lo Company Closeof Period
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlacome
State/ Land and Ruildings and  Svhscquent landand  Buildings and Accumolated Year of Year Statement
Property Name City Provioce Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Immprovements Improvements Total  Depreciation NRBV Construction Acquired is Computed
Garden Square Casper wYy — 1558 3,197 — 355 3,197 3552 428 3,124 1996 201! 35 years

Assisted Living

2008 H0i;
2010

East
Sea Sussex

Pentlow Nursing  Lasttoume East

Home Sussex
<1

Maples Care Bexleyheath Kent — 5,042 7525 —_ 5,042 .. 7,525 12,567 150 12417 2007 2015 40 ycars
Home

TOTALFOR
OTHER
SENIORS N

HHOUSING

COMMUNITIES 244234 526,342 4,719,518 31,302 523209 579,112 4,708,060




Location

Property
Name

City

State/
Province

Initial Cost to Company

Landand
Encumbrances Improvements

Buildings and

Costs
Capitalized
Subsequent

Gross Amount Carried at Close
of Period

Land and Buildings and

Itnprovements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements

Total

Accumulated
Depreciation

Yearof

Year

Life on
Which
Depreciation
n Income
Statement

NBY Construction Acquired is Computed

MEDICAL

OFFICE

BUILDINGS

St.Vincent's  Biurmingbam AL
Medical Ceater - . .
Exs1#46 v
St Vincent's
Medical Center
Eagt #48
S!‘Vin:;:'cnl'i‘ .
Medical Cente?
Eagt 952
Cresiwood
Medical
Pavilion

Birmingham AL

Huntsville AL

Davita Didlysis Markcd Tree AR

Marked Tree | 1
West Valley Buckeye
Medical Center

AZ

Camyon. -
Springs
Madiéal Pliza
Mercy Gilbert
Medical Plaza
Thunderbind | Glendale
Paséo Medical © .7
Pluas
Thunderbird
Pasco Medical
Plazall
Descrt Medicil
Pavilion .~

Az

AZ

Gilbert

AZ

Glendale AZ

Desert
Samaritan
Medical
Building 1
Daat .
Samaritan *
Medical +*
Building II
Descnt
Samaritan
Medical
Building 1T
Deer Valley
Medicat Office
Building I}
Deer Valley
Medical Office
Buillding It
Papage Mcdical
Pusk

Nonh Valley
Orthopedic
Surgery Center
Burbank
Medical Plaza
Burbank
Medical Plazall
Eden Medicat
Plazs

United
Healtheare -
Cypress
NorthBay
Camponte
Headquanters

AZ

Phocaix ™ .

Phoenix AZ

Phoenix

Phoenix AZ

Baorbank CA

Burbank CA

Castro CA

Vallcy

Cypress CA

Fairficld CA

Gateway Fairfield CA

Medical Plaza
Solano
NonhBay
Health Plaza
NoithBay
Healthcare
MoB

UC Davis
Medical
Verdugo Hills
Professtonal
Bldg 1

Faitficld CA

Fairfield CA

Foliom CA

Glendale

‘Birmingham AL

625

79

3,348

720

12919

10,649

2,800

1,241
35,006 491
238

12,883

1873

6,682

25298 .

12,698
7,608

16,078

5233

27497

11277

12,504

8,100

32,768

11,923

7395

13,665

22,663
19,521

12072

10,150

13322
45,641
2455

38,309
19,187
12,872
3.280
8,507

10,156

9,589

1,580

3R92

418

11,064

76

66

559

615

472

516

100

1,043

589

30

459

1,015
221

276

2280

336

2_9.19:'0'
1316
: '5,6_7.'2
“162sa

179 . 1580

3348

5233

720

20 13499

20 8,552

32897

12,439

14,708

-23,238
12 19539

12,631

2,800 10,150

1241 24337

491 "45,862
258 2731

12,883 38,309

19,187
12.896
— 3580
- 10,787

1873

6 683

. T496.

29,190

13,116

3672

16879

12,556
13519
8,572

32397

12439

14,708

23252

19,551

12,631

12,950

1557R
46,353
2989

54,192

19,187

12,896

$.380

10,787

12,029

16,608

2801
: 2.2l_3

2,626

243

2207

1929
1,320

2905

1,758

2,093

“3"7-.15

2813

2,070

354

4242
6,767
758

1,701
1837
1230
841
997

i8S

2305

10315

‘6 459; -

14253

0. 1g9s’

8338

11,590

7252

‘19,992

10,681

12,615

19,929
16,738

10,561

12,596

21336
39,586
20

49,49]

12350

11.666

8,07

9.790

11,644

f4303

2005

1989

1985

1994

2009
201}

2007

2007

1997

2001

2003

1977

1980

1986

2002

2009

1939

2006

2004
2008
1993

1985

2008

1986

1990

2004

1995

1972

2010
2010
2010
2004

2015
2015

2012

201¢

201)
2011
2003
2011
2014

201t

2011
2011

20t

201t5

2011
2011
2011

2015
2012
2012
2012
2013

2018

2012

35 years
35 years
35 yeans
35 years

35 yers
31 years

35 ycars

35 years

35 yeans
35 years
35 yearx
35 years
35 years

35 years

35 years
35 years

35 years

35 ycars

35 yean
35 years
25 years

29 years
35 years
35 years
35 years
35 yeurs

28 yoan

13 years



VedugoHills Gleadalé - CA e T aasd
Professiopal Lo . S A
Bidgy . . - _

4464 4296 8710 1270 7440

1987-

2012

19yeas




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Initial Coestto Company of IPernod
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized in Income
Property State/ Land and Buildings 2nd  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construclion Acquired is Computed
St Francis Lynwood CA — 688 8385 730 688 9,115 9803 2346 7,457 1993 2011 32 ycars
Lyuwood
Medical
PMBMission Mission  CA — 15468 . 30,416 L4729 15468 34845 50313 3,095 47218 .2012  3Syeam
Wills - | Hills . S ) . K . e
PDP Mission  Mission CA 58,490 1916 77,022 226 1916 77248 79,164 11,775 67389 2011 35 yecars
Viejo Viejo
PDPOmnge Onnge  CA 46513 11520 ergar. | L2d2 60 61870 63.631 9680 53951 3008 % 2001 3Syam
NHP/PMB Pasadena CA —- 3,138 81412 8,590 3,138 92,002 95,140 16,041 79,099 2009 2011 35 years
Pasadena
Western Pomons' = CA — 31523 — e 2'31,523 31,614 C4532 1082 ISyears ¢
Universityof , -~ + ° . N . oy oon -
Health
Scienccs .
Maodical
Pavilion : R B R N
Pomerado Poway CA — 71,435 2858 3233 74293 771526 12,439 65,087 35 years
Outpatient
Pavilion
Sl{llct}icdiga] San Dicgo CA - ' 1'25,088 1371 — 26459 26459 2301 24,158 ISyan
Ceater [ TR . . - .
San Gabnel San Gabriel CA -—_ 914 5510 346 914 5856 6,770 1,467 5303 35 years
Valley
Medical
Sauta Claria” » Santa CA 23,000 9,708+ 20020 < 443 9,726 20445 30,171 3496 26,675 35yan
Valley Clarita . e S - : -
Medical . . .
Kenneth E Tormance CA —_ 262 6,945 1238 291 8.154 8,445 2,095 6350 1989 2011 23 ycars
Waus Mcdical
Plazg
VacaValley Veaville CA — —_— 9634 . 2 - S " 9636 9,636 912 8,724 1988 0 2012 3Syears.
Haalth Plazs . . e - . N
Potomac Aurora co — 2,401 9.h18 2,181 2464 11,236 13,700 4,720 8980 1986 2007 35 years
Medical Plaza
Briargaste . Coloado €O - 33 ‘1244 11,608 13452 3,987 9365 2002° 0 '2007 3Syearm .
Medical - -Springs R T . .o R
c‘mp“‘; o : T . ' v . . - -t ° . N . Lo S N
Printers Park  Colorado Cco —_ 2,641 47507 1415 2,641 48922 51563 15,033 36,530 1999 2007 35 years
Medical Plaza  Springs
Grecn Valley - Denver co 5,797 —ae L 12039 ) . 158" .. 235 12062 12297 1,110 11,187 2007 - 2012° 3Syers
RanchMOB @ - ‘ ’ I A n '
Community  Lafayette CO — - 10,436 1,590 — 12026 12,026 2517 9,509 2004 2010 35 ycars
Physicians
Pavilion
Exenpla Lafayettc  CO - -l 439 o e ’ - 4393 4393 257 4136 2013- 2013 3Syean
Good : . . .
Samaritan
Mcdical
Ceater
DakotaRidge Littleton cOo —_ 2,540 12,901 — 2,540 12901 1544) 458 14983 2007 2015  35years
AvistaTwa  Louisville CO _ - 17330 1676 -— 19006 19,006 4813 14,193 2003 2009 35 ycass
Medical Placa :
The Siema Parker co —_ 1,444 14,059 3,072 1,492 17,083 18575 4,969 13,606 2009 2009 35 ycars
Medical
Building
Crown Paint  Parker co - 852 5210 - $52 5210 6062 477 5585 2008 2013 3Syan
Heajtheare
Flazs . .
Lutheran Wheat co —_ —_ 2,655 875 — 35830 3530 984 2,546 1976 2010 23S years
Medical Office Ridge
Building II
Lutheran Wheat co — — 1266 923 _ B,189 8,189 1327 6362 1991 2010 3S5yearx
Mcdical Office Ridge
Buildh’gl\'
Lutheran Wheat Cco — — 11,947 107 — 12054 12,054 2576 9478 2004 2010 35 years
Mcdical Office Ridge
Building I
Dcbaul Washington DC — —_ 6,424 18506 — 8280 280 2540 5140 1987 2010 35 yarns
Prufessional
Office
Buitding
Providence Washington DC —_ —_ 2,473 520 b 2993 2,993 1,081 1912 1975 2010 3Sycars
Medical Office
Building
RTS Arcadia  Ancadia L -— 345 28R4 — 345 2584 3229 531 2696 1993 2001 30 years
Aventura Aventura FL. — 401 3,338 — A01 3338 3,739 256 3483 1996 2015 26 years
Medical Plaza
RTS Cape Capc Coral  FL - 368 S48 — EIC S.44x 5816 &5t 4965 1954 2011 34 yeanx
Coral
RT3 Englewood FL — 1,071 3,516 —_ 1071 356 4,587 589 3998 1692 2011 35 ycars

Englewood



RTSFt.Myers. FortMyers FL = . - 53 42 o= sy 41277 5280 C 113 4507 1988 2011 3lycars
RTS Key West Key West  FLL — 486 3380 — 186 4380 4866 609 4257 1987 2011 35 yers

173




Gross Amount Carried at Close

roB 1

Location Ininal Costte Company of Pertod
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized nIncome
Property State/ Land and Buwldings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciztion NBV  Censtruction Acquired is Computed
JFK Medical LakeWorth FLi** - 1453 17 T 39 o4y 1850 2303 691 V1812 1999 2004  3Syeans
East Pointe Leigh Acies FL 5260 327 11516 — 327 11816 12,143 380 11,763 19%4 2015 35 years
Medicat Plaza
Palms West - Loxahatehée FL - 965 2678 51 230 3495 0 909 2786 2000 2004 35y
Building 6" :° - . O o R S O .
Bay Medical Lynn Haven FL 9,579 4215 15,041 -_ 15041 19256 '557 18,699 2003 2015 35 years
Plaza
L © o 15680° - — 25,361 2,979 - 28340 . 2834 9914 18426 . 2006 2007, 3Syean
-RTS Naples Naples FL —_ 1,152 3,726 —_ 1,152 4878 4,289 1999 2011 35 years
ical  Panama City FL 9321 82 17400 — 82 17400 17432 .., 559 16923 1987 2015 35 ycars
Woodlands Pensacola FL 14914 2,518 24 006 29 2,518 24,035 26,553 3513 23,040 2009 2012 35 years
Center for
Speciafized
_— 966 4581 — 966 - C4sBI $541 1160 4,787 1985 2011 3dyax
RTS Sarasota Sarnsota Fi. _ 1,914 3,889 —_ 1914 3.889 5803 680 5123 1996 2011 35 years
! " Tallahassee FL — 90 8773 - 590 . B3T3 9363 T 1 L 251 a2 1998 2015 35 yeas
University Tamarac FL —_ - 6,690 132 —_ 6822 6822 2316 4506 2006 2007 35S years
Mecdical Office .
Building
RTS Veaice  Veniee  FL - 1536 4,104 - 1536 4004 S50 650 . 4950 1997 2001 3Syen
Athens Atbens GA — 2,826 18,339 —_ 2,826 18339 21,165 625 20,540 2011 2015 3Sycas
Medical
Complex _
Doctors .- GA — 545 80,152 - — 545 T 80697 i . 740 79957 1978 2015 20y
Augusta Augusta GA - 594 4847 517 594 5364 5,958 1474 4,484 1972 2011 25 years
Mcdical Plaza
‘Augusta GA . . — 687 6057 ° 657 691 282 3519 1983 2011 27yews
AugustaPOB  Augusta GA — 233 7.894 507 233 8.401 8,634 2971 5663 1978 2012 14 yecars
H
AugustaPOB Augusta  GA . — 735 13,717 159 735 13876, 14611 . 3446 11,165 1987 2012 yan
n - L e N . ..
AugustaPOB  Augusta GA - 535 3,857 212 535 4069 4,604 1,192 3412 1994 2012 22 years
il
-AugustaPOB  Augusta GA — 675 2,182 392 675 3074 3749 - 942 2,207 1995 2012 23yan
Cobb Austell GA — 1,145 16,805 919 1145 17,724 18869 3691 15178 1992 2001 3Sycars
Pbysicians
Center
Summit . ‘Brunswick GA 5,096 1821 2,974 42 1821 3ote 4237 . (2669 2168 2004 2012 3t yan
Professional . .
Plazal -
Sumpmit Brunswick GA 10,829 981 13818 10 981 13828 14,809 2378 12,431 1998 2012 35 ycars
Professional
Plazall
Colambia Evans GA — 268 1497 139 268 1636 1904 . 512 130 1940 2014 23 yeans
Medical Plaza . .
Fayette MOB  Fayetteville GA — 885 20,669 —_— 895 20669 21564 672 20,892 2004 2015 35 years
Northside Manctta GA — 5.495 16,028 —_ 5495 16028 21523 590 20,933 1991 2015 SSyans
East Cobb - .
un -
PAPPClimc  Necwnan GA — 2,167 5477 —_ 2167 5.477 7,644 253 7391 1994 2015 30 ycars
Parkway Riggold  GA — 476 10,017 419 476 10436 10912 2047 8365 2004 2001 3Syears
Physicians
Center
Riverdale R:v:rd:lc GA —_ 1,025 9,783 —_ 1025 9.783 10308 365 10.443 2005 2015 3§ years
MOB
Eastside Snellville  GA - 1289 25019 1937 1366 26879 28245 7,326 21,019 1994 2008 35 ycurs
Physicians
Center
Eastside Sncllwille GA —_ 294 12,948 53 197 12,998 13295 3,176 10,119 2003 2008 35 years
Physicians
Plaza
Rush Copley  Aurora . — 120 27,882 — 120 27382 28002 907 27,095 1996 2015 34 years
POR1
Rush Coptcy  Aurora IL — 49 27217 — 49 27217 21266 839 26407 2009 2015 35 years



Good
Shepherd -
Physician
Office "
Building I 'R
Good Barrington 1L
Shepherd

Physician

Office

Building 11

152

512

174

13,119 13,631

1,129

12,502

1979,

1996

2013, 355

2013 35 years




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Initial Costto Company of Penod
Lafe on
Which
Casts Depreciation
Capitalized inlincome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent l.and and RBuildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisinon Improvements Improvements Tetal Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired {s Computed
Tenity . Chiagot U * 7 vt =0T vaae 3 21y i9 3582 36810 3 9711k 2 35'years .
Hospital L ; oo o B : DERIE
Phygicien * © .0 o R
Office’ .. - . R ) T ac
Building : . - S Lo . D AL s S
Advocate Chicago  IL — 2227 10,140 — 2227 10,140 12,367 495 11872 1986 2015 25 ycars
Beverly Center
‘Orystal Lakes  Grystal I St UL 2490 T19,504 . 1. L= 2as0 19504 21994 2007 .2015 " 3Syean
Mcdical Aits Lake”’ C ) - e : : e Lo o
Advocate Crystal L - 2,444 10,953 — L2444 10953 13,397 456 12,941 2008 2015 33 years
Good Shepard  Lake
Physicians  Deeatur  IL P o e L e12 T 1403, 1,403 LUR077 0. 1976 20007 3Syen
?lmEis( . . . I o . . . . - . . el A A . c,
Physicians ~ Decatur  IL — — 1943 354 — 2297 2,297 760 1,537 1987 2010 35 years
Plaza West
Keuwood . Decaur 1L == Uag00 " 51 - 3951 3951 125272699 T 1996 - 2010 .35 years
Medical Center : S T R : I
304 WHay  Decatur  IL —_ - 8,702 193 — 8895 8895 2,115 6,780 2002 2010 35years
Building
302 WHasy  Decatur  JL . . —_ — 3467 . 156. L — 3623 3623 1047 7.2476 .- 1993 . 2010: .3Syean
Building ’ ’ . A o
ENTA Decatur L - - 1,150 — — 1150 1,150 304 846 1996 2010 3Syears
301 WMay  Decatnr IL —_ e — ‘640 — = 640 640 . 234 - .406 1980 .2010° 3Syars
Building st : R ST e .
South Shore Decatur 1L —_— 902 129 —_ 902 129 1,031 145 886 1991 2010 35 years
Medical
Building
STU Family  Decstar  IL - C—= isse 19 o= 1708 1708 457 C125i- T - 1997 2010 3Syem
Pracice . . . . .. .
Corporate Decatur  IL - 934 1386 — 934 1386 2,320 450 1870 1996 2010 35 ycars
Health
Services
Rock Springs Decatur  IL — 399 . 495 - 399 . 495 894 YN 1996 2010 : 3Sycars
Medicat . o . : : . . e . o )
S75WHay  Decatur IL — 1 739 - 1t 739 850 215 1984 2010  35years
Building R
‘Dowsiers 1L = 407 07 - -2 407 10565 10972 L1976 2013738 years

Grove .

Building | . . -

Good Downers IL —_ 1,013 25370 366 1013 25,736 26,749 2,133 24616 1995 2013 35 ycars
Samaritan Grove
Physician

Office

Building Il
EberlcMcdical Elk Grove
Office Village
Building

(Eberic

MQOBT) .
1425 Hunt Gumee L — 249 1,452 75 249 1,527 1,776 419 1,357 2005 2011 34 years
Club Road

MOB .

1445 Hunt Gumee |18 — 216 1,405 309 216 1714 1930 588 1342 2002 2011 31 years
Club Drive .

Gumee Gumee L _ 82 2,731 — 82 2731 2,813 453 2360 2002 2011 35 ycars
Imaging Center

Gumee Center  Gumee i — 627 17,851 - 627 17851 18478 3,113 15365 2001 2011 Myan
Qb .

South Hazel Crest L —_ 191 4370 150 191 4520 4711 427 4284 1989 20i3 35 years
Suburhan

Hospital

Physician

Office

Building

Daciors Office Hoffman IL - —_ 24550 71 —_ 24,627 24627 .17 17510 2005 2009 35 ycars
Building 11 Estates

(DOBIN)

B
|
|

16315 93 — 16,408 16,408 5453 10955 2005 2009 - 35 years

755 Libentywille L — 421 3,716 1012 479 4,070 5,149 1822 3327 1990 2011 18 years
Milwaukee

MOB

890 Libentyville TL -—_ 214 2,630 139 n4 2769 2983 707 227 1980 2011 28 years
Professional .

MOB

Libertywille Lihenyville IL — 1,020 17,176 — 1,020 172,176 18,196 3,077 15119 1988 2011 35 yeans
Ceater Club

Christ Medical Oak Lawn 1L _ 658 16421 L3 5% 16472 172330 1374 15756 1986 2013 3Syears
Center

Puysicran

Office

Building



Mecthodsst Peora . — 1025 29,493 —_ 1025 29493 30518 964 29,554 2010 2015 35 yecars
North MOB

2543

e 2,701 0

373 1,057

Wilbur § Anderson  IN — - 2653 621 — 2 31,274 97 2,303 1802 2010 1S years
Roby Building
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Gross Amount Carried at Cluse

Location Tatial Costto Company of Penod
Lifeon
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement

Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements lmpro s to Acquisi Impro s Improvements Tatal Depreciation NBV  Constructian Acquired is Computed

Building

St John's Anderson [N — 426 — 2,707 2,707 823  1.884 2010 35 years

Medical Arts

Building

Comel 1 g a6 T, BRURIRE P RN NP T7 S o X 8422 11 A } 20125230 yeati

Carmel 1l - 455 5976 221 455 6197 6,652 1,042 2012 33 years

Carmel 1" LR, ©oan2 - gde4 - -ams. o . 42X .C6579 301 960 . 20127 *3S yewt'™ "
- 1256 1973 — 1256 1973 3229 2011 32years

i

Dupont Road 14,012 501 2015 35 years

MOB
Harcourt ..
“Professional
Offiec  ~
Building
Cardeac
Professional
Office
Building

2012

3939 24456 1995 2012 3Syears

C')nunlg:g'y.. :
Mcdical Office
Building - ., i . e N TSR s e
St Francis Indianapolts IN —_— — 20,649 744 — 21393 21393 2,081 19312 1995 2013 35 years
South Medical

Office
Building
Methodist:
.Profcssional :
Center 1 . RN KR . : T U SRR . . : .
Indiana Indianapohis IN — 967 83,746 — 967 83,746 84,713 1273 83,440 1997 2015 35 years
Orthopedic

Cenler of

Excellence

Ugijied - ludianspolis IN _ 5737 32816 . _ 5,137 .
Healthicare - . . . =
lady . - . : - L
LaPorte La Porte — 553 1,309 —_ 553 1309
Mishawaka  Mishawska’ - 3,187 5,543 - Y3,787 . 5543 9330 2244 7,086 1993 2011 3Syen

w
N

Cancer Care Mishawaka IN —_ 3,162 28,633 —_ 3,162 28633 31,795 914 30881 2010 2015 35 years
w

2003 ;2012 -.'3S years

6,795

— C 61T 37411 el 1985 2012 - 15 yeam

U32,016 737453 1131 36322 1938 . 2015 3Syen

1,862 3 1,531 1997 2011 34 ycars

Partners

Michiana ‘Misbawaks
Oncology R . .
DaVita Paoli IN - 396 2,056 — 396 2,056 2452 81 2371 2041 2015 35 years
Dialysts - .

Paoli

SouthBend ~ South Bend IN -— 792 2530 _ 792 2,530 3322 330 1992 1996 2011 3 years
Via Christi Wichita Ks —_ 1,883 7428 -— 1,883 7428 9311 290 9,021 2006 2015 35yecars
Clinic

OLBIH Same ~"Ashhand - KY _ 101 19,066 208 i 1ol 19274 19375 3262 16,113 1997 2012 26 yeas
Day Surgery °

Ceater MOB

St Ehizabeth  Covington KY —_ 345 12,790 16) 345 12774 13,119 1865 11,254 2009 2012 35years
Covington

St.Elizabeth  Floronce KY - 402 8279 1,082 402 9361 9763 1,713 8,050 2005 2012 3Syan
Florence MOB

Jefferson Lowisville KY — _— 673 2018 — 2,691 2,691 109 2,582 2013 2013 3Sycars
Chaic

East Jeffauon Metainic LA —_ 168 17,264 162 168 < 17426 . 11594 3974 13,620 1996 2012 32 ycars
Medical Plaza .

East Jefferson  Metairie LA — 107 15,137 230 107 15417 15524 3341 12,183 1985 2012 28 years
MOB .

Lakeside FOB  Mctaine LA — 3334 49714 2,259 3334 7233 10567 2090 8477 1986 20f1  2ycars -
1 .

Lakeside POB Metaine LA — 1,046 802 680 1,046 1,482 2,528 642 1,886 1980 200 7 years
n

Ftesenius Metairic LA — 1195 3197 — 1,195 ' 3797 4,992 134 4358 2012 2015 3S years
Medical

RTSBerlin Berlin MD — - 2216 — — 2216 2,216 378 1,838 1994 2010 29 years .
Charles O. Westmnster MD 11,091 —_ 13,795 1,747 — 15542 15542 4,786 10,756 2009 2009 S ycars
Fisher Modiaal

Building

Mecdical Kalamazoo MI — — 19,242 1,366 — 20,608 20,608 4234 16374 1989 2010 35 years
Specialtics '

Building

- 4577 20939 - 4577 - /20939 (35516 700 24816 . 2010 2015 3Sycars
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Gross Amount Carried 4t Close

Location Imtial Cost to Company of Pertod
Lifeon
Which
Casts Depreciation
Cupitalized inIncome
State/ Land and Buildings and  Suhsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement

Property Name Province Encumbrances Improvements Improveme

(=]

n Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
< 5 TN

Borgess
Navigation

Ceater
R

Heart Center Kalamazoo M1 — — 8420 383 — 8.803 8,803 2207 6596 1980 2010 35 yeas
Building

Madison Ml — 401 — 401 2946 3,347 483 2,864 2002 20f1 35 years

Heights

31564 35399 1,141 34258 2006 2015 35 years

Bronson
Lakeview OPC
e - . . cmar e .

Pro Mcd Center Richtand M1 - 233 2267 30 233 2,297 2,530 520 2,010 1996 2010  35years

Fre el

W)_’umil‘:g h 5479 6,804 207 6597
Spedtrui HealihtWyoming - (YELE sS4y g !

Cogdeli Duluth Duluth MN - —_ 33406 (19) — 33387 33387 3254 30,133

Amold Urgent  Amold MO — 1,058 556 95 1097 612 1,709 365 1344 1999 2011 35years
Care

177




Location

Property

Name City

State/
Province Encumbrances

Initial Cost to Company

Land and

Buildings and

Improvements Improvements

Costs
Capitalized
Subsequent

Grass Amount Carried at Close
of Penind

Land and

Buildings and

to Acquisition Improvements Improvements

Total

Accumulated
Depreciation

Yearof

Year

Life on
Which
Depreciation
inIncome
Statement

NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed

DePaul
Health Center
North
DePanl . Bridgeton .
Health Center - -
South -+ -
St Mary's
Health Ceater
MOBD
Fenton ..
Urgedt Care
Center’

Bridgeton

Clayton

 Fenton

St.Joseph
Medica)
Building
StJoseph
Medical Mall
Carondelet
Medical
Building

Kansas City

Kansas City

StJoseph”  LakeSsint
Hospital - Louis
Weit Medical
Office - |
Building 11
St Joseph
O'Fallon
Medical
Office
Building

O'Fallon

Building

St. Joseph
Hcalth Center
Medical
Building 1

St. Charles

St.Joseph:
Health Center
Medical' -
Buitding 2
Physicians
Office Center
12700 - St.Louis
Southford
Road Medical
Plaza

St Anthony's
MOB A

St Anthony's
MOBRH
Lemay
Urgent Care
Center

St Mary's
Health Center
MOBHB

St Mary's
Health Center
MOBC
University
Physicians -
Grants Fary
Randolph
Maltarg
Crossing 1
Medical Ants
Butlding

St. Charles

St. Louis

St Lows
St. Louis

St. Loms

St Loais

St. Louis

Flowoed

Charlotte
Chadotte

Concord

Gateway
Mcdicat

Office
Building

Concord

Copperficld
Medical Mall

Concord

Weddington
Intema} &
Pediatric
Mcdicine

Rex Welluess
Center

Concord

Gamer

Gaston Gastoaia
Professional

Center

Kansas City |

X ;;ri‘ngﬁdd

MO

MO

MO —_

MO

MO

1 *5,500

Mo
MO |

MO

L

MO
MO
MO
MO
MO
M5 9339
NC
NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

996

‘910,

103

305

745

524

940

3427
503
369

1,445

595

409
350

2317
t9
136

2,796

6370
3219

701

1,100

1,980

1,348

§33

530

10,045

12,169

2,780

7445

Soa1s -

12,437

- 3229

5556

8,597

4336

12963

13.825

12584 "

4,687

3s42

3.120

4,161

6,018

12125

2929
2072

11734

9,904

2,846

638

5330

24885

794

718

612

156

365
162

325
10717
607

437
4278
362

3)

1,155
152

502

487

287

704

996
910
l03.
189
305

530

745

5247

940

3,427

503

11

1445

595

409

350

2339

19

136

2796

1,100

1980

1.348

LEE)

10,839
12671
3.498

2,932

9,612

9327

13,049

388

5,565

8,697

4,701

3,125 -,

14,150

13,861

5294

43719

35

8,439

6380

12,112

4,084
2424

12226

10391

3,133

m

5330

25589

11,835

» 13581 °

3,601

EXPIR

9917

9857

13,794

13909 .

6,505

ILI_ZA -

5204

15595

14,256

5,703
4,729

5754
8,558
6516
14,908

10,454
5,653

12937

11,491

6,678

26422

2,542

2374

852

839

1227

3,678

L3392

1,592
1,518

1261

2550
1,140

2,689

2249

919

213

3993

659 .

9,293

11,207

2,749

5,666

IREI L BN

3977

197

10,864 -

4111

3214

4493

2512

5253

12,986

7,904
4513

10,248

9242

4,194

1,062

6429

22429

1976

T 1992

1984

2003

1975

1980

1983
1979
1969
2010
1973
' 1997
1997

2005

1989

2000

2003

1997

2012
2012

2012

21 years
. 30yean
22 years

‘35 years

2012

2012

2012

L2012

2012

*2018

2012

2011

‘201

2011

2011

2011

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

2015

2012

32 years

N Byers-

29 years

-35 years

35 years

35 years

20 years

’ 32ycars

35 years

32 ycars

20 years
2l yeans
22 years
23 years
20 years

35 years

4 years

25 years

31 years

35 yeus

25 years

27 years

3 years

A8 vears



Hamsbuig Hamsburg NC
Famuly
Physicians

|ﬁ!hurg . NC

Huntersville NC

479 1646 63 679 1709 23R% 290 2,098 1996 2012 35S years

3800 74977 3051

2002 - 27yan

11,769 1,774 9,995
22 R £

2012 35yewms
- 12002.. 38 years -,

178




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Initia) Cost to Company of Period
Life on
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inIncome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements [mprovements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Northeross  Hunlersville NC — 623 278 36 623 314 937 177 760 1993 2012 22years
REX . " 'Knightdale' NC —_ — “228m 425 M= 23248 23248 2,156 21,092 2009 . 1012 0 35y
Knightdale * : R - o ’ - . *

Rocky Mount
Kidney
Center
Rocky Moant
Medical Pask

English Road
Medical

Traity
Health
Medical Arts
Clime

Céo'pu; B

Midland

Rocky
Mount
Rocky'
Mount

Rocky
Mount

" -Salisbury

Minot

. Willingboro

Health MOBT -

Cooper

Health MOB
1}

Salem - .
‘Medical *7 -
Carson Tahoe
Specialty
Medical
Center

Eamon Tihoe
MOB West
Del E Webb
Medical Plaza
D(’m’ng'o .
Medical Flaza
The Termace at
South
Meadows

Albany -
Medical |
Cenler MOB

St. l’clcr’sI
Recovery
Center
Central NY
Medial -
Cealer
Northcountry
MOB

Anderson
Medical Arts
Buildieg I
Anderson
Medical Arts
Building 11
Riverside -
Nonh' ™
Mcdical
Office
Building

Riverside
South
Medical
Office
Building
340 East
Town
Medical
Office
Building

Willhingboro
Woedstown

Carson Gity

Carson City

Henderson

‘Las Vegas

Reno

-Albsay

Guilderland

' Syracuse

Watertown

Cincionati

Cincinnau

Columbus

Colunibus

Columbus

NC

NC

NC

ND

NJ

NJ

NJ

NV

NVv.

NV

NV

NY

NY

NY

NY

OH

OH

=4

1

OH

O

4312

6,959

24,500

3420

6,311

479

2,552

1321

1,039

935

1389

594

275

688

2,362

1028

3787

504

32

1.059

1,786

1320

586

1297

7,779

3747

5,184

§5482

2,742

5638

4132

11346

27519
16,993

27738

9966

18389

9,156

26,101

10,799

9.632

15,123

8519

9443

39

45

958

483

1

1,737
2276

936

748

627

. .. (Z-)_ .

" 996

479 1336
2652 " 8325
1321 3,751
1,039 15019
935 15482
1389 2,742
594 5638
4132

688 11346

"o 2862 121,519
1,028 17,951
! 3787 27,738
504 10,449
321 18389
1,059 9,156
1,791 21,806
1,320 10,799
_ 11369

— 17399
785 9,455
610 8022
10 10070

1,799

1,815

10977

5,072

6218

16,417
4,131
6,232

4407

12,034

30381 .

18979

31525 -

10,953

18,710

10215

29,598

12,119

11,069

17399

10240

§,632

10,080

382

1,122

948
363
718
130
190
133

418

1209
3574
946

2,203
529
354

4630

427

3,769
5526

2,185

1,564

1691

2714 -

1525

1,433

9,255

4,124
53385
15,699
4001
6,042
4269

11,616

29,172
15,405
30579

8,750
18,181
9,861
24,968

11,692

7,600
11873

8,055

7,068

1998

2000

1990

1991

2002
2003
1995
2010
2012
2010

1981

2007
1999
2008

2004
2010
1990
1997

2001

1934
2007

1962

1985

1984

2012

25 years

2012

2012

2012
2012
2015
2015
2015
2015

2015

© 2015
2011
2015

2011
2015
2015
2012

2015

2007
2007

2012

2012

1012

25 years

20yeen.
35 years
35 years'.
26 years
35 years
35 years

< 38 yeus

35 years

‘29 y_ah .
35 years
IS years -

35 ycars.
IS years
35 yca;s
33 years

35 years

35 years
35 years

25 years

27 years

29 ycars



393 East Columbus  OH 3288 61 4760 218 61 4978 5039 1,033 4006 1970 2012 20 years
Town .

Medical

Ofiice

Burlding

Doctors West Columbus  OH 4,705 414 5362 568 414 5930 6344 1,046 5298 1998 2012 35 years
Medical
Office

Building

East Main Columbus OH 5226 T 440 4,771 58 . 440 4,829 5269 784 4,485 2006 2012 35ycars
Medical
Office
Buidding




Gross Amount Carried at Close

OfMice
Building

Location Initial Cost ta Company of Period
fifeon
Whirh
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlncome
Property State/ Land and Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements 1o Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV  Construction Acquired is Computed
Heant Center ~* Columbus® OH * —_ 1063 ° 12,1407 R 1,063 ° 12297713360 - 2,144 11216 2004 3012 35yess
Building. . - S, ,
Wilkins Columbus OH — 123 18,062 226 123 18288 18,411 2489 15922 2002 2012 35years
Medical Office N
Building
Gredy Mcdical Delawart 1824 239 306 239 611 - 2197 1991 . 2012 2Syen
Office .. - > . . . - S -
Building K Sl ’ . -] .
Dubhin Dublin OH 3018 342 215 342 672 3,163 200) 2012 34 years
Northwest
Medical Office
Building
Presave Il 9.684 2449 7025 (66) 2,449 6959. 9408 1,297 8111, 2006 2012 3Syean
Medical Offiec - - . . h : e : :
Building . B AN . . .
Zanesville Zaneswille OH — 172 9403 —_ 172 9403 9,575 1472 8,103 2000 2011 35 years
Surgery Center
Dialysis ™ Zancavilt — ©834 855 " 534 -926 ;1,460 -3 1960 - 2011 2lyan
Genesis Zanesville OH — 538 3,781 — 538 3,781 4319 820 349% 2006 2011 30 years
Children's
Center
Medical Arts. . Zanevill - 429 2405 455 436 285303289 ‘78272507 1970 2011 20yen
Building [ . . . Lo : .
Medical Arts ~ Zanesville OH — 485 6,013 340 490 6348 6,838 1987 42851 1995 2011 25 years
Building I
Mcdical Arts ~ Zanesville ,: — 94 . 1248 — 94 1248 1342 o R 1970 2011 25yen
Buildiegm- - -~ - A . .. : : S .
Primecare Zanesviile OH —_ 130 1,44 648 130 1,992 2,122 475 1,647 1978 2011 20 years
Building
Outpatient’ ;° Zanesville, - N +1 1541 — 82 541 - 1,623 1262 ©1985 2011 2yan
Rehabilittios ~ : RO . : .
Building - ) “ L
Radiation Zanesville OH — 105 1,201 — 105 1,201 1306 1988 2011 25 years
Oncelogy
Building
Healthplex ™ Zincsvilfe ;1 GH —_ 2438 © 15849 s40 2,488 16,389 18877 - 3,5991:1527 1990 2011 32ycars
Physicians Zanesville OH — 422 6,297 1,123 422 7420 7842 1,806 6,036 1990 2011 25 years
Pavilion
Zanesville - Zamesville OR — 42 635 - 42 615 617 154 1985 2011 2Syean
Northside : .
Pharmacy. o . .
Bethesda Zaneswille OH —_ 188 1,137 128 199 1,254 1,453 321 1978 200 25 years
Campus MOB
m
Tuality 7th Hil.ls.lgoiu'.'ol't- 18,594 1516 24,638 429 1,533 25,050 26583 4,661 2!.9'22: 2003 2011 3Sycars
Avenuc - o .
Mcdical Plaza .
Professional  Chester PA — —_— 6283 1335 —_ 7618 7618 3,420 4,198 1978 2004 30 years
Office
Building I
DOMH . Drexet Hill'l.;A - — 10,424 1,501 —_ 11,925 11925 5326 6399 1984 2004  30ycas
Medical Office . o
Bailding’ .
Pinnacle Harrisburg PA — 2,574 16,767 — 2,574 16,767 19341 645 18,696 2002 2015  35years
Health
Penn State Hemhey PA 57415 - 55439 —_ b 55439 35439 10,717 44,722 2008 2010 35 years
Univenity .
Outpatient
Center X
Lancaster Lancaster  PA — 959 16,610 {16) 959 16,594 17553 2488 15065 2007 2012 35years
Rehabilitation
Hospstal
Lancaster ASC Lancaster  PA 94037 593 17,117 25 593 17,042 17,735 2902 14233 2007 2012 3Syears
MOB to . :
St. Joseph Reading PA — — 10,823 81l — 11,634 11,634 2,644 8990 2006 2010 35 years
Medical Office
Building
Crozer- Springficld PA _ 9,130 479078 - 9.130 47,078 56208 1967 54241 1996 2015 3S ycars
Keystone
MOBI
Crozer- Spnngficld PA - 5,178 6,523 — 5178 6523 11,701 290 11,41} 1998 2015 25 years
Keystone
MOB I
Doylestowa  Warnington PA - 4452 17383 351 4,497 17,689 22,186 3311 18875 2001 2012 34ycars
Heaith &
Wellness
Center
Roper Medical  Charleston SC 8,360 127 14,727 2058 127 16.792 163919 3.491 13728 1990 2012 28 years



C"h_ulcslon sC

(Chirfeston) .
Providence
MOBI

Columbia  SC

180

4474

4,699

4725

933

1432

13,792

3267

1979

2012

2012

35 yésns .

18 years




Location

Property

Name City

State/

Initial Costto Company

Land and

Buildings and

Costs
Capitalized
Subsequert

Gross Amount Carried at Close
of Period

Land and

Province Encumbrances Jmprovements Jmprovements to Acquisiiun Improvements

Buildings and
Improvements

Tutal

Accumulated
Depreciation

Yearof

Year

Lifeon
Which
Depreciation
inIncome
Statement

NBV  Censtruction Acquired s Computed

Providence
MO8l

Providence
MOBII
Oné Medical
Park

Three Medical
Park

'S¢ Francis,
Millennium
_Mf_ﬁg’l}bfl’n:x
Building

200 Andrews
St Frncis
cMOoB

St Francis
Outpatient
Surgery Center
StFrncis  Grecoville
Professional .
Modieal .
Center
St. Franais
Women's

Cotumbia
Columbia
Cn_)lumb_ia
Columl‘na

Groaville

Greenvilie

Greanville

Greenville

Greenville

St Fraacis
Medical Plaza
(Greenvilic)
Irmo
Professional
MOB

River Hills™
Medical Piaza
Mount
Pleasant
Mcdical Office
Longpomt

Greenville:

. Little River

Mount
Pleasant

Sp.&!ub-ur;

Spartanburg ~ Spartanburg

ASC

Spartanburg
Regional.
MOB
Wellmont
Blue Ridge
MOB

Health Park
Medical Office
Building

Spartanburg

Bnstol

Chaitanooga

Peerless Cleveland
Crossing
Medical
Center

St. Mary's
Clinton
Profcssional
Office -
Building

Clinton

St Mary's
Famagut MOB
Mecdical
Center
Physicians
Tower

Farmagut

Jackson

Jefferson
City

St Mary's
Physical
Therapy &
Rehabilitation
Center East

St. Mary's Kaoxwille
Physician
Professiona!
Office
Building

St Mary's
Magdatenc
Clarke Tower

Knoxwlle

St Mary's Knoxville
Medical Oflice

Building

.8C

sC

sC
sc
sC

sC © 15,062

sC
sc

sC

sC
sC
sC
sC
SC
sC
sC
™
™

6277

™™ 6,643

TN

™

™ 13246

TN

TN

N

C2

766
"210

40

789

501" .

1,007

- 342

1,726

1,406

670

291 -

1333

207

999

2305

1217

298

138

69

136

CLo1834

4,406

16,538

6337

4877

5876 -

5414

15,756

17,963
5027
8549

6,464

618

2719

27074

160

3,144

4053

. shst

+507

106

66
134

T.30

91

33

@

13

122

766

24 -

40

789
501

1,007

360

88
1,726
1406

670
- 291
1333

207

999
2305

1217

29t

221

549

120

138

69

136

T 1870

4,696

2,175
T osas
16,576
6826
4,983
5942
5,548
1,843

4,546

518

15,756

17963
5,027
8,982

6471

818

2,719

27067
160
3,144

4153

359

1992

5,462

3. 8637

11263

123576,

2964
8,732

17,583

7486
5305
6,030
7274

3249

5216

. sa42

17,089

18,170

6,026

11,287

7,688

916

2940

27616

280

3282

620
1,135
L2244

2,548

1346,

824
1333
2,847
1AL
1447
1317
1361

510
1414
1,127

478

616

197
1,508

1,026

41

1372

4327

839

8,715

16,230

2,140
1399

14,736

15778

3,358

4713

5913

1,239

3,802

4315

16,611

17554

5829

9,179

6,662

05

291

23.221

274

3,241

4174

4RS

1990

1988

1994
* Y2001

2001

1991

1998

2004

609

2012

2012

2012

201

2012

2012

2011

1999, i20

2001

2002

1986,

2001

2004

2006

1988

1997

2010

1985

1981

1972

1976

2015

. 201
2015
2012

2012

2018

2015

2012

2015

2015

2018

2015

T y-:-m_

2012y

24 years

35 years

34 yeans

35 years

'~35yun.

35 years
35 years

35 years

I yan

39 years

35 ycars
39 years
39 years

39 yeun

39 yan



St May's”  Kooxwille 1N
Ambutatory

Surgery Center

'”' A;lin'g|én

Seton Medical Austin TX
Park Tower

1012

1391

181

129

1012 1,141

1,124

38204

1999

" 3oid

1968

2015

2015

2012

24 years

35 ycars

35 years




Gross Amount Carried at Close

Location Initial Cost to Company of Period
Life on
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized inlncome
Property State/ Land and Ruildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement
Name City Province Encumbrances [mprovem Impro isiti Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV Construction Acquired is Computed

22,632 -
Scton Austin X —_ 294 5311
Southwest

Health Plaza

BioLife Denton X — 1036 6576
Sciences
“irx, 356 2877
East llouston Houston X — 671 426
Mcdical Plaza
¢ 822 14,307
AT L4 -
Kingsland 534 5.104

18935
8,890
15074
Sunnyvale Sunnyvale X — 1186 15397
Medical Plaza
Tk TASC Tex xR 814 5503
Spnng Creck  Tomball TX - 2.165 8212
Medical Plaza
CisE 12078
e FZny Do U = . B
253 Medical Webster TX — 1,181 11,862
Center
MRMCMOB 1 Mechasicaville VA~ y 1669 . 7024
Henrico MOB  Richmond VA — 968 6,189
S d o c227 2961
Virginia Ruchmond VA — 3,822 16,127
Urology Center
SLFRass. dd > VA [ “654 18331
Cancer Center '}t - - L .
Bonncy Lake Bonney Lake WA 10712 5.176 14375
Medical Otfice
Building
WA 781 30.36¥
Holy Family  Spokane WA — — 19,085
Hospital
Central MOB
Physician's - [ Vaneouver WA - 1411 32,939
Pavition - '~
Admunistration Vancouver WA —_ 296 7,856
Building
Medical Center Vancouver WA — 1225 31,246
Physician's
Building .
Memorial MOB Vancouver WA —_ 663 12626
‘Salmon Crock * Vancouver ' WA - 1325 9238
MOB < - .
Fisher's Vancouver WA - 1,590 5420
Landing MOB
Cotumbis Vancouver WA —_ 281 5266
Mecdical Maza
Appleton Heart Appleton w1 — — 7,775
Institute
Applcton Appleton wi —_ _ $.156
Mcdical
Offices West
Appleton Appleton Wi - — 9058
Medical

Offices South

10,154

1451

%5

56
355

“ase

161

87

230

304

191t

315

60

181

294

3822

654

5176

kil

1,424

296

1246

690

1325

1,590

n

5396 5690 727 4963

6,576 7612 257 1355

3213 3

860 1,531 531

3,890 11971 11618
FU5817 15817

15397 16583 586 15997
5503 6MTN.. 24T 6470
8212 10377 288 10,089

uaA el oy

11,862 13043 1673
7380 (S9!
6544 1512 1809 5,703
217°4°3; 3

16,127 19949 597 19,352

T18331 18985 63318352
14536 19712 2478 17234
30455 31236° 4210 27026

19315 19315 1,890 17,425

33230 34,654 6226 28428
7,856 8,152 1401 6751
33,136 34382 5502 28880
12914 13604 2276 11328
9238 10563 1629 8934
5420 7,010 1152 5858
5424 8785 1009 4746
7811 780l 1677 6,134
S316  SAI6 1250 4566
9239 9239 2043 7196

1870 9079

2004 2012 35years

2010 2015 35 years

tsygm

i1 y::ar:
. 3Syen’ .

35 ycars

i3S yan

35 years

20087 ° 2010 38 yan

2009 2015 35 ycars

1994 - °2005° 30yens
2006 2015 35years

"ISy. e

35 years

1993 2012 Iy -

25 years

2004 2015 35years

2006 - 2015 3Syean

2011 2012 35yeors

2011 2012 3Syears

2007 2012 3S5yers

2001 2011 3Syeans
1972 2011 3Syears
1980 2011 3S5ycans

1999 201! 35 ycars
1994 2011 3S5yan

1995 2011 34 ycars
1993 2010 3Syears
2003 2010 39years

1989 2010 39 years

1983 2010 39 yeans



Gross Amount Carried at

Lacation . tmitial Costto Company Close of Periad
Life on
Which
Costs Depreciation
Capitalized ’ in Tucome
Property State/ Landand Buildings and  Subsequent Land and Buildings and Accumulated Yearof Year Statement

Name City Province Encumbrances Improvements Improvements to Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total Depreciation NBV Construction Acq

ed is Computed

3 e

2008 2015

i.akeshore Frankhin
Medical Clinic

- Frunklin

Aurora Health  Hartford —_ 3,706 22019 25,725 800 24,925 2006 2015 35years

Care - Hartford

Hikilia Clic Hir o=l Ban o TUseso 42910 ciaen,
Aurora Kenosha - 7,546 19,155 25,990 2014 2015 35 years
Healthcare -

Kenosha

Theda Clark Neenah wi — —_ 7080 2414 —_ 732t 7321 1525 5,196 1993 2010 39 years
Mecdical Center
Office Pavilion

pomSras g

354 10,751 2006 2015 35 years

: i
Aurora Health Neenah w1 7,840 2,033 9072 —
Carc - Neenah

‘Qidic’

Betdin” . .
Ugited Onalaska W1 —_ 5527 — 280 9,870 1995 2015 35S yecars
Healthcare -

Onataska

25308 30,946

5638 25308 —

Aurora Health Two Wi
Care - Two Rivers

Rivers

i4 3400

Southside Waunkesha WI 5273 5491
Clinic

Si3%36° 16008

Hopital . S S . o
Uaited Wawatosa WI — 8,012 15992 — 8,012 15,992 24,004
Healthcare -

Wauwatosa

BSGCS,LLC Waunakec WI . —
TOTALFOR

MEDICAL

OFFICE

BUILDINGS 624,254 395,733 4132212 148,775

TOTALFO

NIR

ST - 1,060 R 1,060 =7

396,841 4279879 4,676,720 632,349 4044371

54804 S 2056428 S 20401604 S124S80325 3544625 Sll.Ql'J}l_llT-_‘- :

183




VENTAS, INC.

SCHEDULE 1V
REAL ESTATE MORTGAGE LOANS
December 31,2015
(Dollars in Thousands)

L.ocation Number of RE Interest Rate le.cd ! Maturity Date Monthl)t Debt Face Value  Net Book Value Prior Licns
Assets Variable M Service
First M_oﬁf;ag_q h
8/1/2020 167
- R BT S
California 11 9.42% F 12/31/2017 1,624
" - :Multiple A 3 Che21% T L SV Y T 630R019:] “131
Ohio 5 10/172021 516
Sccond Mortgages
CMupte . T 9T T 163018 48
Mezisnice Loans L
Virginia 1 12/10/2019 86
" Multiple** ' 214 7 " 12012016, ,. 2963
Construction Loans o _ . ERNE
Colorado 1 8.75% v 2/6/2021 330 46,436 45,680 —
* The Second Mortgage loan is a $5 million participation in a second lien term loan with an aggregate commitment of $215 million
** The variable portion of this investment has a maturity date of 12/9/2016, with extension options to 12/9/2019.
Mortgage Loan Reconciliation
2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Beginning Balance s 741,456 § 335,656 § L e22,139
Additions:
New Loans 88,643 451,269 3,500
Construction Draws 53,708 — 694
Totat additions 142,356 - 451,269 et i, 194
Deductions: e o
Principal Repayments (99,467) (21,159)
. -Conversions to Real Propefty, ' ... = (18310) -
Sales and Syndications (5,524) — (214,939)
Total deductions (104,991) (39.469) (290,677)
Ending Balance s 784,821 § 747,456 $ 335,656

184




ITEMS. Changesin and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM9A. Controls and Procedures

As required by Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) of the Exchange Act, our managem